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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT ON SPECIAL-PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails

To the Finance Management of Cirsa Enterprises, S.L.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose consolidated financial statements of
Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. (the Parent) and its Subsidiaries (the Group or Cirsa Enterprises
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31,
2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well
as the explanatory notes thereto, which include a summary of the significant accounting
policies (together known as “the consolidated financial statements™). The special-purpose
consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Finance Management of Cirsa
Enterprises, S.L. on the basis of the financial reporting criteria described in Note 2, since
these were the criteria that the Parent Company considers most adequate to achieve the
purpose for which they were prepared.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared, in
all material respects, in conformity with the financial reporting criteria described in Note 2.

Basis for opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code).
Furthermore, we have complied with other ethical requirements in compliance with IESBA
Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Domicilio Social: Calle de Raimundo Fernéndez Villaverde, 65. 28003 Madrid - Inscrita en el Registro Mercantil de Madrid, tomo 9.364 general, 8.130 de la seccién 3+ del Libro de Sociedades, folio 68,
hoja n® 87.690-1, inscripcion 1. C.I.LF. B-78970506.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
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Emphasis of matter paragraph - Basis of accounting and restrictions on distribution and
utilization

We draw attention to the accompanying explanatory Note 2, which describes the basis of
the accounting principles and criteria used. As indicated in said note, the special-purpose
consolidated financial statements have not been prepared to meet legal requirements and
have been mainly prepared to show, for comparative purposes, the 12-month activity of the
Cirsa Enterprises Group in 2018, instead of the 6-month comparative figures that would
result from the preparation of consolidated financial statements. Consequently, the
consolidated financial statements may not be suitable for other purposes. Our report is
intended solely for the Group's Finance Management and must not be distributed to or used
by any other parties. Our audit opinion is not further qualified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of matter paragraph - Subsequent events

We draw attention to Note 29 to the accompanying financial statements, which deals with
the impact on the Group of the recent global health emergency situation caused by the
coronavirus (COVID-19). Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other matters

The special-purpose consolidated financial statements have been audited applying
International Standards on Auditing. This report can under no circumstances be considered
an audit report in the terms established by prevailing audit regulations in Spain.

Responsibilities of Finance Management for the consolidated financial statements

Finance Management are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying special-
purpose consolidated financial statements in accordance with the financial reporting criteria
described in Note 2, and for the internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Finance Management is responsible for
assessing the ability of Cirsa Enterprises Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Finance Management either intends to liquidate the Company or cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parent Company’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Finance Management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Finance Management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We communicate with the Company's Finance Management regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L.

Joan Tubau Roca

March 27, 2020

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Cirsa Enterprises Group

Consolidated financial statement of financial position at December 31

ASSETS
(Thousands of euros) Notes 2019 2018
Non-current assets 3,272,195 2,533,233
Goodwill 5 1,219,064 968,100
Other intangible assets 6 1,206,949 1,103,676
Property, plant and equipment 7 397,569 297,461
Right-of-use assets 20 305,137 -
Investments accounted for using the equity method 8 32,887 78,990
Financial assets 9 49,252 39,426
Deferred tax assets 18.4 61,337 45,580
Current assets 341,369 307,546
Inventories 11 20,029 17,903
Trade and other receivables 9 117,344 112,509
Other financial assets 9 34,877 14,886
Other current assets 9,450 10,056
Cash and cash equivalents 12 159,669 152,192
Total assets 3,613,564 2,840,779
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(Thousands of euros) Notes 2019 2018
Equity 642,682 666,757
Issued capital 13.1 70,663 70,663
Share premium 13.1 635,390 635,940
Retained earnings 13.2 (190,756) 125,103
Currency translation differences 2,859 (1,201)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the Parent (6,668) (284,009)
Non-controlling interests 13.3 131,194 120,261
Non-current liabilities 2,601,970 1,907,553
Corporate bonds 14 1,943,222 1,521,952
Bank borrowings 15 40,423 52,122
Other non-trade payables 16 42,932 31,971
Provisions 17 14,735 12,094
Finance lease liabilities 20 254,061 -
Deferred tax liabilities 18.4 306,597 289,414
Current liabilities 368,912 266,469
Corporate bonds 14 3,172 2,949
Bank borrowings 15 51,366 33,938
Trade payables 40,066 42,761
Other non-trade payables 16 196,204 173,757
Finance lease liabilities 20 60,200 -
Current income tax payable 18.2 17,904 13,064
Total equity and liabilities 3,613,564 2,840,779




Cirsa Enterprises Group

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31

(Thousands of euros) Notes 2019 2018
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Income from gaming activities 1,971,912 1,824,138
Other operating income 151,949 142,923
Bingo prizes (234,811) (226,869)
Total operating income 1,889,050 1,740,192
Variable rent (274,490) (271,068)
Total operating income net of variable rent 3.1 1,614,560 1,469,124
Cost of sales (68,134) (71,276)
Employee benefits expense 211 (267,898) (281,850)
Utilities and external services 21.2 (235,474) (276,669)
Gaming taxes and other similar taxes (570,360) (511,044)
Charge to depreciation and amortization and impairment of assets 6, 7 & 20 (297,828) (192,338)
Change in operating provisions (3,843) (3,249)
Finance income 1,943 2,249
Finance costs (148,998) (136,470)
Finance lease expenses (16,966) -
Change in financial provisions 929 3
Gains/(losses) on investments in associates 8 4,322 4,578
Exchange gains / (losses), net 21.3 (366) (11,513)
Gains/(losses) on disposal/derecognition of non-current assets 14,399 8,488
Profit before tax 26,286 33
Income tax 18.2 (14,706) (28,378)
Net profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 11,580 (28,345)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Net profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 19 - (240,366)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 11,580 (268,711)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to non-controlling interests 13.3 18,248 15,298
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the Parent (6,668) (284,009)




Cirsa Enterprises Group

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31

(Thousands of euros) Notes 2019 2018

Net profit/(loss) for the year 11,580 (268,711)
Currency translation differences 4,430 (1,201)
Tax effect - -
Total other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent years 4,430 (1,201)
Total other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent years - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 16,010 (269,912)
Comprehensive income attributable to:

Parent Company (2,608) (285,210)
Non-controlling interests 18,618 15,298
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 16,010 (269,912)




Cirsa Enterprises Group

Consolidated statements of changes in equity for the years ended December 31

Profit for the year

and Retained Currency Non-controlling

Issued capital earnings translation interests
(Thousands of euros) (Note 13.1) Share premium Treasury shares (Note 13.2) differences (Note 13.3) Total
At December 31, 2017 24,577 9,500 (184) 105,002 (362,632) 236,679 12,942
Net profit/(loss) for the year 2018 (including
effect of sale of Argentinean companies) - - - (284,009) 391,735 (92,660) 15,066
Other comprehensive income - - - - (1,201) - (1,201)
Total 2018 comprehensive income 24,577 9,500 (184) (179,007) 27,902 144,019 26,807
Other movements:
Contribution by the Sole Shareholder, net of the
purchase and sale transaction of the Cirsa Group 46,086 626,440 184 20,101 (29,103) 2,484 666,192
Dividends paid - - - - - (26,242) (26,242)
At December 31, 2018 70,663 635,940 - (158,906) (1,201) 120,261 666,757
Net profit/(loss) for the year 2019 - - - (6,668) - 18,248 11,580
Other comprehensive income - - - - 4,060 370 4,430
Total 2018 comprehensive income - - - (6,668) 4,060 18,618 16,010
Other movements:
Dividends paid - - - - - (10,783) (10,783)
Other movements - (550) - (31,850) - 3,098 (29,302)
At December 31, 2019 70,663 635,390 - (197,424) 2,859 131,194 642,682




Cirsa Enterprises Group

Consolidated cash flow statements for the years ended December 31

(Thousands of euros) Notes 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year before tax 26,286 33
Adjustments to profit/(loss) due to:
Change in operating provisions 3,843 2,506
Depreciation and amortization and impairment losses on non-current
assets 56&7 297,828 193,082
Gains/(loss) on disposals/derecognition of non-current assets (14,399) (8,487)
Finance income (costs) 158,770 129,640
Exchange gains / (losses), net 21.3 366 11,513
Other 3,721 14,406
Change in:
Inventories (1,799) (2,007)
Trade and other receivables 4,836 3,759
Suppliers and other accounts payable (10,228) 6,428
Gaming taxes payable (8,539) (4,991)
Other operating assets and liabilities, net (14,216) 2,444
Income tax paid (68,835) (23,995)
Net cash from continuing operations 377,634 324,330
Net cash from discontinued operations 19 - 21,419
Net cash from operating activities 377,634 345,750
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment (108,405) (107,684)
Acquisition of intangible assets (44,946) (52,504)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,109 29,354
Acquisition of investments in other companies (395,446) (55,058)
Other financial investments (28,104) (14,480)
Interest received and income from financial investments 1,943 2,280
Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations (567,849) (198,092)
Net cash used in investing activities from discontinued operations 19 - (28,942)
Net cash used in investing activities (567,849) (227,034)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
Cash inflows from bank loans 1,466,735 1,450,220
Cancelation of bank loans (1,462,907) (1,470,600)
Bond issues 880,000 -
Cancelation of bonds (480,075) (977,600)
Contribution by the Sole Shareholder, net of the purchase and sale
transaction of the Cirsa Group and new bond issue - 948,664
Lease liability principal payments 20 (58,384) (400)
Interest paid (137,400) (92,743)
Dividends paid and other payments (11,069) (25,344)
Net cash from /(used in) financing activities from continuing operations 196,900 (167,803)
Net cash used in financing activities from discontinued operations 19 - (7,449)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 196,900 (175,252)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,685 (56,536)
Net effect of exchange gains/(losses) on cash 792 (3,459)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 152,192 212,189
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, from continuing operations 159,669 152,192




Cirsa Enterprises Group
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019

1. GROUP INFORMATION

1.1 Group activity

Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. (hereinafter the Company or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter the Group or the Cirsa Group) consist of a set of companies operating in the gaming and
leisure sector, carrying out the following activities:

e the design, manufacture and marketing of slot machines that are sold to both group companies
and third parties, and the development of interactive gaming mechanisms and systems.

e Operation of slot machines, bingo halls and casinos, in both Spain and abroad.

Until December 31, 2017 the Cirsa Group parent company was Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. On July
3, 2018 the company Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. acquired 100% of the shares of Cirsa Gaming Corporation,
S.A. from the former shareholders. Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. formerly LHMC Bidco, S.L. was incorporated
on November 15, 2017. Information about this transaction is provided in Note 4.3.

Therefore, the new consolidatable group was born on July 3, 2018 with the inclusion of the Cirsa Gaming
Corporation, S.A. subgroup and the bond-issuing company, Cirsa Finance International, S.a.r.l., which
was incorporated on May 22, 2018. As indicated in sections 1.2 and 2.1, the consolidated financial
statements of the Cirsa Group will be prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards by its
ultimate parent company in Luxembourg, LHMC Topco, S.a.r.l. They will be translated and filed with the
Mercantile Registry in due time and form. Consequently, the Company meets the criteria for exemption
from preparing consolidated financial statements under article 43 of the Commercial Code.

As a result of the foregoing, the accompanying consolidated financial statements cannot be considered
consolidated financial statements under Spanish GAAP, but special-purpose consolidated financial
statements, whose purpose and basis of presentation are disclosed in section 2.1 below. Although these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a voluntary basis, they have been authorized
for issue by the Board of Directors as if it were a legal requirement.

The 2019 financial statements of the companies comprising the Group have yet to be approved by the
corresponding General Meetings of Shareholders or Owners. However, the Board of Directors of the
Group Parent expect that the aforementioned financial statements will be approved without significant
modification and, therefore, they will have no impact on the special-purpose consolidated financial
statements.



1.2 Group structure

The Parent Company, which is domiciled in Madrid, at Calle Fermina Sevillano, 5-7, is a subsidiary of
its Sole Shareholder LHMC Midco, S.a.r.l., which is in turn a subsidiary of LHMC, Topco, S.a.r.l. (both
domiciled in Luxembourg, at Rue Eugéne Ruppert, 2-4). The fund that holds the shares of the new Cirsa
Enterprises Group is ultimately controlled by The Blackstone Group.

The details of the Company’s subsidiaries at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are shown on Appendix |,
classified into the following categories:

e Subsidiaries: Subsidiaries are companies controlled either directly or indirectly by the Company so
that it can manage the financial and operating policies in order to obtain profit from the investment.

e Joint ventures: The jointly controlled companies are entities ruled by a contractual arrangement
between the partners whereby they establish joint control on the business, and which requires the
unanimous consent of the venturers regarding the operating decisions.

e Associates: The associates are enterprises not included in the previous two categories and in which
there is an ownership interest on a long-term basis that favors their activity, but with limited influence
over their management and control.

(NOTA: The ‘Ownership percentage’ column in Appendix | is obtained by multiplying the successive

percentages over the ownership chain and, therefore, shows the final ownership at Company level).

1.3 Changes in the scope of consolidation

The changes in the scope of consolidation are summarized as follows:

2019

e Acquisition of companies

Operating revenue

Total Assets in the in the 2019
consolidated consolidated
statement of statement of

% voting Consolidation  financial position at comprehensive

(Thousands of euros) rights method December 31, 2019 income
First Game, S.L.U. 100% Full 782 758
Fomento Advenio 1, S.A. DE C.V. (*) 100% Full 10,836 663
Palabingo, S.R.L. 56% Full 3,641 4,059
Recreativos Sortia, S.L.U. 100% Full 1,069 1,450
Redeye Games, S.L.U. 100% Full 1,079 1,313
Subgrupo Giga Games (**) 100% Full 302,740 66,147

320,147 74,390

(*) Fomento Advenio 1, S.A. de C.V. is the owner of Casino Central, a 7 casino hall business in Mexico.

(**) On July 31 the Giga Games subgroup was acquired as a result of gaining control of 100% of the company Giga Games
System Operation, S.L., the parent of the subgroup, which includes 30 other companies.

All acquisitions shown in the table above have given rise to a business combination.

The information on the business combinations carried out during the year is shown in Note 4.



e Incorporation of companies

During the current year the company Sportium Servicios de Gestion, S.L.U. was incorporated. Its
activity consists in the provision of corporate services to the Sportium subgroup companies. The
assets and revenue of this company at December 31, 2019 are not material.

e Sale of companies resulting in loss of control

During the current year, the following companies have been sold resulting in a loss of control and/or
significant influence on their businesses:

Ownership % Consolidation Ownership Consolidation
at prior year method at prior year % after the method after
end end sale the sale
Ferrojuegos, S.A. 100% Full - -
Metroservi Andaluza de Salones, S.L. 25% Equity - -

The gains/(losses) that said sales have generated in the consolidated financial statements are not
material, nor have they generated any change in non-controlling interests.

e Changes in the consolidation method

The changes in the ownership percentage during 2019 are as follows:

Consolidation method Percentage
At December At December
AU AUL) 31, 2019 31, 2018
Sportium subgroup Full Equity 100% 50%

In October 2019 the group company Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A. Acquired the remaining 50% of
Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A., gaining effective control of the Sportium subgroup. Consequently,
at December 31, 2019 the Sportium subgroup has been integrated into the consolidated financial
statements using the full consolidation method. The gaining of control of 100% of Sportium has given
rise to a business combination. Its effects are shown in Note 4.

e Changes in the ownership percentage

The changes in the ownership percentage during 2019 are as follows:

Consolidation method Percentage
At December At December

AU AUL) 31, 2019 31, 2018
Apuestas Electrénicas, S.L.U. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Comdibal 2000, S. L. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Comercial de Recreativos Salamanca, S.A.U. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Egartronic, S.A. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Iber Matic Games, S.L. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Interplay, S.A.U. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Juegos Del Oeste, S.L.U. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Montri, S.A.U. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
S.A. Explotadora de Recreativos Full Full 90.0% 61.4%
Servi-Joc, S.A. Full Full 85.0% 51.0%
Tecnijoc, S.L.U. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Tecnoappel, S.L. Full Full 75.5% 51.0%
Yumbo San Fernando, S.A. Full Full 100.0% 60.0%

The changes in the table above correspond to several acquisition of additional ownership interests.
However, the consolidation method has not changed since the full consolidation method was already
used in the prior year.



e Other changes in equity

In 2019, the following companies have been dissolved or wound up:

At December 31, 2018
% held by the Consolidation Total Assets in the consolidated

(thousands of euros) Group method statement of financial position
Bingaser, A.lL.E. 100% Full 28
Gironina de Bingos, S.L. 21% Equity 223
Losimai, S.A.U. 100% Full 508
Red de Bingos Andaluces, A.l.E. 54% Full 29
Red de Juegos y Apuestas de Madrid, S.A. 40% Equity 23
Servicios Integrales del Juego, A.l.E. 100% Full 108

Said transactions have not generated significant results for the Group.

Additionally, the following changes in the scope due to mergers between group companies have
occurred, without affecting the consolidated figures.

Acquired Group company Acquiring Group company
Cirsa+, S.R.L. Cirsagest, S.P.A.U.

Elettronolo Firenze, S.R.L.U. Cirsagest, S.P.A.U.

Inmobiliaria Rapid, S.A.C. Gaming and Services, S.A.C.
Sal6n de Juegos Portal, S.A.U. Gaming and Services, S.A.C.
Sierra Machines, S.A.C. Gaming and Services, S.A.C.
Casino El Cacique, S.A.U. Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Casinos Pajaro Trueno, S.A.U. Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Cirsa Estrellas del Caribe, S.A.U. Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Cirsa Gran Entretenimiento De Costa Rica, S.A.U. Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Operacion Banshai, S.A.U. Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Patterson Lake Business Services, S.A.U. Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Recreativos Miami, S.A.U. Union de Operadores Reunidos, S.A.

Finally, several changes to the corporate names of group companies have been made: Italtronic, S.r.l.
is now Cirsa Retail, S.r.l. and Cirsa Digital, S.A. is now Sportium Apuestas Digital, S.A.



2018

e Acquisition of companies (excluding the transaction disclosed in Note 4.3)

Operating revenue

Total Assets in the in the 2018
consolidated consolidated
statement of statement of

% voting  Consolidation financial position at comprehensive

(Thousands of euros) rights method December 31, 2018 income
SGB 2 SRLU (¥) 100% Full - -
Casinos del Caribe, S.R.L. (**) 100% Full 14,868 1,261

Acquisitions of Nortia Group companies (***)

Unién de Operadores Reunidos, S.A. (****) 50% Equity 16,146 -
Societé du Casino Le Mirage, S.A. 51% Full 2,339 2,239
Felix Jimenez Morante, S.A. 50% Equity 827 -
Recreativos Oropesa, S.L.U. 50% Equity 62 -
Talluntxe, S.A.U. 100% Full 1,783 1,973
36,025 5,473

(*) The company SGB2 was acquired in January 2018 by the group company Cirsagest, S.p.a. During October 2018 it merged
with said company. Consequently, total assets and operating income contributed to the consolidated group is included in the
financial statements of Cirsagest.

(**) At the date of gaining control, Casinos del Caribe, S.R.L. wholly owned the company Merengue Bar Gran Casino Jaragua,
G.C.J,S.R.L.U.

(***) Companies acquired from the Nortia Group during 2018, in addition to the Cirsa subgroup as a result of the purchase and
sale transaction carried out on July 3, 2018.

(****) At the date of gaining control Unién de Operadores Reunidos, S.A. wholly owned the company Recreativos Miami, S.A.U.

All acquisitions shown in the table above have given rise to a business combination. Additionally,
another business combination has been carried out in Mexico, which has been integrated into the
financial statements of Promociones e Inversiones de Guerrero, S.A.P.l de C.V., whereby a gambling
hall was acquired, agreeing to the purchase of fixed assets (slot machines) and intangible assets
(exclusive rights over the activity and portfolio of customers) for an overall amount of 16,306 thousand
euros.

The information on the business combinations carried out during the year is shown in Note 4.

e Incorporation of companies

During 2018 the following companies have been incorporated:

Operating revenue

Total Assets in the in the 2018
consolidated consolidated
statement of statement of

% held by Consolidation financial position at comprehensive

(Thousands of euros) the Group method December 31, 2018 income
Cirsa Finance International, S.A.R.L.U. 100% Full 75 -
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U 100% Full 3,360 62
Nortia Real State Colombia, S.L.U 100% Full - -
Unidesa Operations Services, S.L.U. 100% Full - -
Sportium Global Investments, SGI, S.A. 60% Equity - -

3,435 62

The information on the percentages of voting rights, consolidation methods and other information on the
companies above is shown in Appendix .
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e Sale of companies resulting in loss of control

During the current year, the following companies have been sold resulting in a loss of control and/or
significant influence on their businesses:

Ownership % Consolidation Ownership Consolidation
at prior year method at prior year % after the method after
end end sale the sale

Recreativos Trece, S.L. 50% Equity - -
Disposals of Nortia Group companies (*)

Complejo Hotelero Monte Picayo, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Jesali, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Casino de Asturias, S.A. 40% Equity - -
Gestion del Juego Integral, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Cirsa Panama, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Silver Cup Gaming, Inc. 50% Equity - -
Las Perlas Beach Resort, Co 17% Equity - -
Cirsa Venezuela, C.A.U. 100% Full - -
Cirsa Caribe, C.A. 70% Full - -
Cirsaecuador, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Ariv, S.A (ARG) 50% Equity - -
Casino Buenos Aires, S.A. (ARG) 100% Full - -
CBA-CIESA, UTE 50% Proportional - -
Casino Rosario (ARG) 50% Full - -
Ivisa- Casino Buenos Aires, U.T.E. (ARG) 100% Full - -
Traylon, S.A. (ARG) 55% Full - -
Magic Star, S.A. (ARG) 50% Proportional - -
Sobreaguas, S.A. (ARG) 100% Full - -
Alavera, S.A. (ARG) 50% Equity - -
Emjucasa, S.A. (ARG) 50% Equity - -
Binbaires, S.A. (ARG) 33% Equity - -
Bingames, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Cirsa International Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. 100% Full - -

(*) Companies sold to the Nortia Group during 2018, as a result of the purchase and sale transaction carried out on July 3, 2018.

The results from these sales in the consolidated financial statements are detailed in the following table:

Change in non-

(Thousands of euros) controlling interests Results from the sale

Recreativos Trece, S.L. - (286)

Companies sold to Grupo Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. (107,958) (240,366)
(107,958) (240,652)

The impact of the disposal of the group of companies of which Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. was the
parent to Grupo Nortia Business Corporation, S.A. after the sale includes the change in non-controlling
interests and the results from the sale, that is, the year-on-year results of the companies sold plus the
results from the sale of said companies.

e Change in the ownership percentage or consolidation methods

The changes in the ownership percentage or consolidation method during 2018 are as follows:

Consolidation method Consolidation method
(Thousands of euros) 2018 2017 2018 2017
New York Games, S.L.U. Full Full 100% 50%
Cirsa+, S.R.L. Full Full 100% 51%
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The changes in the table above correspond to the acquisition of ownership interests in said companies
until reaching 100%. However, the consolidation method has not changed since the full consolidation
method was already used in the prior year.

e Other changes in equity

During the current year Global Manufacturing Corporation, S.A., Sternal Bay Venezuela, C.A. and Cirsa
Funding Luxembourg, S.A. were dissolved and wound up. The first two companies were dormant or
showed low activity and their dissolution and wind-up have generate no significant results for the Group.
The third company was the holding of the previously issued bonds, which have been early repaid during
the current year.

Additionally, during the current year, the company Cirsagest, SPAU has taken over the company SGB
2 SRLU, which has also become a Cirsa group company during the current year (see section Acquisition
of companies). Logically, this take-over transaction has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Additionally, in 2017 there were changes in the corporate names of several companies that belonged to
the Group; Madrilefia de Servicios para Bingo, S.L. became International Mex Business, S.L., Global
Gaming became Global Real State SAS and, lastly, Caballo 5, S.L. became Sant Cugat Desarrollos de
Tecnologias, S.L.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

2.1 Basis of presentation of the special-purpose financial statements

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards adopted by the European (IFRS-EU) Union published by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and further interpretations. At the date these consolidated financial
statements were authorized for issue, the consolidated financial statements of the Cirsa Group in
Luxembourg had not yet been prepared by LHMC Topco, S.a.r.l.

Except for that indicated below and Notes 2.1.1 and 2.1.2, the accounting policies used in the
preparation of these special-purpose consolidated financial statements meet every prevailing standard
at the date they were authorized for issue. The International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union establish application alternatives in some cases. The options applied by the
Group are described in the several accounting policies detailed in these Notes.

The special-purpose consolidated financial statements have been prepared in order to present
information on the consolidated financial position and results of the Cirsa Group's gaming business for
a whole financial year, and for comparative purposes, to present fair and useful information to the users
of the special-purpose consolidated financial statements, mainly, the holders of the bonds issued by the
Group in Luxembourg. In this regard, certain premises are included herein, which are indicated in the
subnotes below, that do not agree with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union, only in relation to said additional premises.

Specifically, although the Group the parent of which is Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. was born on July 3, 2018
as a result of the acquisition of the Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. subgroup, the 2019 consolidated
financial statements show the 12-month comparative figures for the year 2018 of the consolidated
statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and the notes there to for
comparative purposes.

This matter is described in greater detail in Notes 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 below.
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2.1.1 Premises used in the preparation of the special-purpose consolidated financial statements

The adjustments introduced by the Group’s Finance Management to prepare the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are summarized as follows:

- The 2018 financial information presented for comparative purposes has been prepared from
Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. and Subsidiaries for the first six months of the current year, and
from then on includes the effects of the business combination that Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. (the
acquiring company) carried out on the Cirsa Group, as well as the integration of the new financial
debt (and finance cost) related to the corporate bonds issued by Cirsa Finance International,
S.a.r.l. in 2018. Consequently, the special-purpose consolidated financial statements include a
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, a consolidated statement of changes in
equity and a consolidated cash flow statement with comparative figures for a 12-month period,
instead of those corresponding to the period of almost 6 months that would be presented
considering that the parent company, Cirsa Enterprises, S.L., acquired the shares of the Cirsa
Gaming Corporation Group and gained control over it on July 3, 2018.

- Both the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement include a line called
‘Contribution by the Sole Shareholder, net of the purchase and sale transaction of the Cirsa
Group and the new bond issue’ for the effect on the Cirsa Group’s equity and cash of the capital
increase, the issue of new corporate bonds and the (paid) purchase and sale transaction of the
Group.

- The income statement of the gaming business in Argentina was discontinued as a result of the
purchase and sale transaction described in Note 1, since the companies included in said scope
were transferred to Nortia Business Corporation, S.L., and classified in the 2018 income
statement as ‘Discontinued operations’.

The business combination for the purchase of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. by Cirsa Enterprises, S.L.
and its accounting effects (in relation to the aforementioned consolidation adjustments and those derived
from the application of the ‘Purchase Price Allocation’ of IFRS 13 Business Combinations) remained at
the date of acquisition (July 3, 2018).

2.1.2 Other basis of presentation of the special-purpose consolidated statement of financial position

e Information to be disclosed in the Notes

The International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union require that the
presentation of the Notes help the users understand the financial statements and compare them with
those presented by other entities. For this purpose, the information disclosed in these Notes has been
considered appropriate and sufficient, and therefore, it was not deemed relevant to include any other
disclosures required by Spanish legislation but not required by the International Financial Reporting
Standards.

e Comparative information

Under International Financial Reporting Standards as approved by the European Union a new
consolidatable group should present comparative information for the period of almost 6 months between
the date of acquisition of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. and the 2018 year end. As mentioned above,
and since this information is necessary for the users of these consolidated financial statements, (i.e. the
bond holders), 12-month comparative information has been presented for all statements and notes,
except for the exemptions indicated in Note 2.1.1 above.

Except for the aforementioned premises and those indicated in Note 2.1.1, the accounting principles
and criteria used in the measurement and presentation of the assets and liabilities of the Cirsa
Enterprises Group at December 31, 2019 agree with the principles and criteria set forth in the
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. In any case, due to the
aforementioned exceptions, the financial statements are not presented in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union but with the specific accounting bases
described in Note 2.
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2.2 Estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires Group Management to exercise
judgment and to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies
and the recorded assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and assumptions taken into
account have been based upon historical experience and other factors which were considered to be
reasonable in the light of the circumstances. Consequently, the results obtained could differ from those
assumptions

The estimates and assumptions are continuously reviewed. Any changes to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period they are made if they apply solely to that period, or for that period and
subsequent periods if they affect both. The key estimates and judgments are as follows:

e Business combinations and goodwill

The Group assesses for each business combination, the fair value of assets, liabilities and acquired
contingent liabilities, allocating the cost of the business combination to the identified elements. Likewise,
goodwill arising from the acquisition is assigned to its corresponding cash-generating unit, based on
expected synergies, for subsequent impairment tests (Notes 4 and 10).

e Impairment of assets

The Group assesses forimpairment at year end for all non-financial assets which carrying amount could
be unrecoverable. Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment
annually, or when there is evidence of impairment, based on financial projections and estimates of future
operating cash flows. During 2019 and 2018 the Group has not recorded any impairment losses on
goodwill, whereas it has recognized impairment on intangible assets in 2019 amounting to 8,000
thousand euros (Note 10).

e Useful life of non-current assets with finite lives.

The Group regularly reviews the useful lives of its items of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. If its estimates of useful life are changed, it prospectively adjusts allocations to depreciation or
amortization. During the years 2019 and 2018 it was not necessary to readjust the useful life of any non-
current asset with finite life.

e Recoverability of deferred tax assets

When the Group, or any of the companies included in it, recognizes deferred tax assets, the estimated
taxable profits that will be generated in future years are reviewed at year end in order to assess their
recoverability, and any impairment loss is recognized accordingly. At December 31, 2019 the Group has
recorded deferred tax assets amounting to 61,337 thousand euros (45,580 thousand euros at December
31, 2018), as indicated in Note 18.4.

e Provision for taxes and other risks

Provisions are recognized for taxes and risks that will probably arise based on related studies carried
out regarding the likelihood that these risks may occur, and the amounts they would entail, recognizing
a provision when they are assessed as probable. At December 31, 2019 the Group has recorded
provisions for taxes and other risks amounting to 14,735 thousand euros (12,094 thousand euros at
December 31, 2018), as detailed in Note 17.
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e Consolidation methods

The assessment of whether control is exercised when the Group does not have absolute majority of
voting rights, but agreements with the other shareholders have been reached, requires the Group to
make estimates and judgments to determine whether it has unilateral rights to manage relevant activities
in accordance with IFRS 10. Additionally, in order to establish the consolidation method of certain
entities over which control is not exercised also requires Group Management to make judgments and
estimates to determine whether they are considered jointly controlled companies, joint operations or
associates.

2.3 Standards and interpretations approved by the European Union applied for the first time
in 2018

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these special-purpose consolidated financial
statements comprise all applicable standards at the beginning of the period, including those that came
into force in the current year:

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease,
SIC 15 Operating leases - Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal
Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases, and requires lessees to record all leases under a single lessee accounting model.
On the contrary, this standard does not substantially change the lessor accounting in comparison with
IAS 17. Consequently, IFRS 16 has had no significant impact on the leases in which the Group acts as
lessor.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 with initial application date January 1, 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this method, the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 has been
recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of right-of-use assets and finance lease liabilities.
The comparative figures for the prior year have not been restated.

For transition purposes, at initial application date, the Group has chosen the practical expedient of
applying IFRS 16 only to the leases that were already identified as such in accordance with the old
standards (IAS 17 and IFRIC 4). The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 is as follows:

Impact on the statement of financial position (increase/decrease) at January 1, 2019:

(thousands of euros) Balance at 12/31/2018 Impact of IFRS 16 Balance at 1/1/2019
Non-current assets 2,533,233 268,047 2,801,280
Current assets 307,546 307,546
TOTAL ASSETS 2,840,779 268,047 3,108,826
Equity (666,757) - (666,757)
Non-current liabilities (1,907,553) (229,716) (2,137,269)
Current liabilities (266,469) (38,331) (304,800)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (2,840,779) (268,047) (3,108,826)

In addition to the lease liabilities recorded at initial application, January 1, 2019, the Group held lease
liabilities amounting to 1,381 thousand euros corresponding to lease liabilities previously classified as
finance leases.
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Nature of the impact of IFRS 16

The Group acts as the lessee of several plants, machinery, vehicles and other equipment. Prior to the
adoption of IFRS 16, at the commencement of these arrangements the Group assessed whether they
were operating or finance leases. The lease was classified as a finance lease if all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the asset were transferred. Otherwise, it was classified as an operating lease.

In finance leases a fixed asset at the fair value of the item was recorded, or if lower, at the present value
of the minimum payments of the arrangement. The financial liability was subsequently recorded at
amortized cost.

In operating leases, no asset was recorded in the balance sheet, but expensed in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the duration of the arrangement. Any advanced payment or accrued rent
was recorded as a prepaid expense or an account payable, respectively.

On the contrary, as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16, the Group applies a single recognition and
measurement model for all leases in which it acts as the lessee, except for leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases.

The standard determines the practical expedients and transition requirements that have been applied
by the Group:

Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Group has not modified the carrying amend of the lease assets and liabilities recognized at the date
of initial application that had been previously classified as finance leases. That is, right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are the same as the lease assets and liabilities recognized under IAS 17. Therefore,
the IFRS 16 requirements for this type of leases will be applied as from January 1, 2019.

Leases previously classified as operating leases

The Group has recognized the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The lease liabilities have been calculated at the present value of outstanding payments, using the
incremental interest rate at the date of initial application. For all leases, right-of-use assets have been
calculated at the same amount as lease liabilities.

The Group has also applied the following available practical expedients:

- Applying the same discount rate for a portfolio of arrangements with similar characteristics. In
this regard, An incremental borrowing rate has been applied by homogeneous portfolio of
leases, country and lease term. Incremental interest rates at the date of initial application have
been around 2% in Spain and Italy, and between 4% and 13% in Latin America.

- Using the assessment of onerous contracts of IAS 37 instead of reviewing impairment at the
date of initial application.

- In order to determine the lease term as the non-cancelable period of the lease the Group has
considered the initial term of each lease, considering that it is not reasonably certain whether
the unilateral option to extend or terminate the lease, if any, will be exercised.

- Considering as short-term leases those that end within 12 months or less since the date of initial
application.

- Using updated information.

- Not including incremental direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset.

As for presentation, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities have been presented separately from other
assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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The impact of the IFRS 16 implementation on profit/(loss) before tax for the year 2019 is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019

Capitalization of operating leases 58,384
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (47,405)
Profit/(loss) from derecognition of assets (641)
Finance costs from the discount of borrowings from right-of-use assets (16,966)
Impact of IFRS 16 implementation on Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year 2019 (6,628)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12. The Interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following
aspects:

whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately.

- the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax

treatments by taxation authorities.
- how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and

- how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
an entity shall determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with
one or more other uncertain tax treatments based on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty.
Neither the Group nor its subsidiaries have uncertain tax treatments whose acceptance by the tax
authorities is considered not probable. This interpretation has had no significant effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
Annual improvements to IFRS — 2015-2017 Cycle
The IASB has made the following amendments to the standards:
IFRS 3 Business combinations — Previously held interest in ajoint operation
The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that previously
was a joint operation, it shall apply the requirements for business combinations achieved in stages,
remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at the fair value.
This amendment has had no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
IAS 12 Income Tax — Consequences of Payments on Instruments Classified as Equity
The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to
past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners.
Therefore, an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past

transactions or events. This amendment has had no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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IAS 23 Borrowings costs — Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The amendments clarify that an entity considers as part of its borrowing costs any borrowing cost
originally incurred for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete. This amendment has had no
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.4 Standards and interpretations published by the IASB, but not applicable in the current
year

The Group intends to adopt the standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the IASB, whose
application is not mandatory in the European Union as at the date of authorizing the accompanying
special-purpose consolidated financial statements for issue, when they are effective, to the extent
applicable to the Group.

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

In May 2017 the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard
for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once
effective, IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all
types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type
of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide
a more useful and consistent accounting model for insurance contracts among insurance companies.
In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local
accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all
relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general approach, supplemented by:

- A specific adaptation for all contracts with direct participation features (variable fee approach).

- A simplified approach (premium allocation approach) mainly for contracts with shorter
duration.

IFRS 17 is effective for periods beginning on January 1, 2022 (taking into account the delay in its coming
into effect) or after. and comparative figures must be included. Early application is permitted for entities
that apply IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date of initial application of IFRS 17. This standard is
not applicable to the Group.

Revised version of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting underpinning IFRS
Standards

The Conceptual Framework sets out the fundamental concepts of financial reporting that guide the
Board in developing IFRS Standards. It helps to ensure that the Standards are conceptually consistent
and that similar transactions are treated the same way. The Conceptual Framework also assists
companies in developing accounting policies when no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction.

The revised Conceptual Framework includes: a new chapter on measurement; improved definitions and
guidance; and clarifications in important areas, such as prudence and measurement of uncertainty. The
IASB will start using the revised Conceptual Framework immediately, whereas issuers that develop
accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework will use it from periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2020.
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Amendments to IFRS 3 Business combinations

The IASB has issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3. The amendments are
intended to assist entities to determine whether a transaction should be accounted for as a business
combination or as an acquisition of a group of assets. Distinguishing between a business and a group
of assets is important because an acquirer recognizes goodwill only when acquiring a business.

The amended definition emphasizes that the output of a business is to provide goods and services to
customers, which generate revenue from the investment (such as dividends or interest) or generate
other revenue from ordinary activities; whereas the previous definition focused on returns in the form of
dividends, lower costs or other economic benefits to investors and other owners, members or
beneficiaries.

Companies are required to apply the amended definition of a business to acquisitions that occur on or
after January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The IASB has issued amendments to its definition of material to make it easier for companies to make
materiality judgements. The definition of material helps companies decide whether information should
be included in their consolidated financial statements. The amendments clarify the definition of material
and how it should be applied. In addition, the explanations accompanying the definition have been
improved. Finally, the amendments ensure that the definition of material is consistent across all IFRS
Standards.

An entity shall apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2020. Earlier application is permitted. The Group will assess the contents of its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the amended definition of material, although no significant changes are
expected.

2.5 Consolidation methodology

Consolidation methodology is described in the following sections:

Consolidation methods

The methods applied to obtain these consolidated financial statements were as follows:
e Full consolidation method for subsidiaries
e Equity method for associates and jointly controlled companies

Harmonization

The financial year of the companies within the consolidation perimeter ends on December 31. For
consolidation purposes the corresponding 2019 financial statements of each company have been used.

The accounting principles applied by the companies comply with Group policies and, accordingly, no
harmonization adjustments were necessary.

Elimination of internal transactions

The intercompany balances arising from financial operations, rental agreements, payment of dividends,
financial assets and liabilities, purchase and sale of inventories and non-current assets and rendering of
services have been eliminated. In regard with purchase and sale transactions, the unrealized margin on
assets, as well as depreciation, has been adjusted in order to show the assets at their original cost to
the Group.
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Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The financial statements of foreign companies have been translated into euros prior to their consolidation
following the year-end rate method. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange
rate prevailing at December 31, capital and reserves are translated at the historical exchange rate, and
income and expenses at the average exchange rate of the year. Differences arisen from this process
have been recorded directly under Translation differences in net equity.

2.6 Business combinations

When Group gains control over one constituted business, or directly over a business’ net assets, the
consideration transferred is assigned to assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, measured at fair
value. The difference between the sum of fair values and the sum of the consideration transferred plus
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at acquisition date is recognized as goodwill
where it is positive or as income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income where the
difference is negative.

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value. This is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by
the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree, and the equity interests issued by the acquirer.

The costs related to the acquisition, such as finder's fees, advice, legal, accounting valuation and other
professional or consulting fees, are recognized as expenses in the years when they are incurred and
the services are provided.

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment loss.

Goodwill is not amortized as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. Instead, it is tested for
impairment at least annually as well as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Likewise, the net
carrying amount of intangible assets having finite useful life is tested for impairment when there is
evidence or changes of not recovering the carrying amount, similar to the criteria established for
property, plant and equipment.

Research expenses are charged to expenses when incurred, while development costs related to an
individual project are capitalized when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility and
profitability, the availability of financing resources, and incurred costs can be measured reliably.
Development expenses to be capitalized, including the cost of materials, personnel expenses directly
attributable and a fair proportion of overheads, are amortized using a declining method (50% the first
year) over the period for which they expect to obtain profits or income from such project, which generally
comprises three years.

Amounts paid to the owners of the sites where the slot machines are located on an exclusivity basis are
capitalized as installation rights. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over the contract term.

Administrative concessions are amortized on a straight-line basis, according to the concession term, as
well as transfer rights of leased premise.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis over three years.
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2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recognized impairment loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an indication that the net carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. If any indication exists, assets or cash-generating units are recorded at
their recoverable amount.

Expenses for repairs which do not prolong the useful life of the assets, as well as maintenance expenses,
are taken to the income statement in the year incurred. Expenses incurred for expansion or
improvements which prolong the useful life of the asset are capitalized. Future expenses for restoring
and retirement are recognized, at present value, as a cost component, with a liability provision as
counterpart.

Depreciation charges are calculated over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Property, plant and
equipment are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. A declining
basis is used alternatively for some assets, basically slot machines, since it better follows the actual
pattern of income related to these assets.

Method Rate
Commercial buildings (new/used) and plant Straight-line 2-4%
Production installations (new/used) Straight-line 8-16%
Other installations Straight-line 8-12%
Production machinery Straight-line 10%
Other production equipment Straight-line 20%
New slot machines (“A” and “B” / “V" and “C") Declining/Straight line 20%
Used slot machines Straight-line 40%
Furniture (new/used) Straight-line 10-20%
Vehicles (new/used) Declining/Straight line 10-32%
Tools and furniture (new/used) Straight-line 30-60%
Data processing equipment (new/used) Declining/Straight line 25-50%
Molds and dices Straight-line 25%
Other PP&E items Straight-line 16%

The finite useful life of slot machines is necessarily subject to exogenous factors (mainly market and
competence) of difficult forecast. In the event that such equipment completes its useful life before the
base period used for depreciation, the net balance of the related good at the removal date is charged as
depreciation for the year, given its recurrent and typical features, as well as its corrective nature of
systematic depreciation performed on related goods.

29 Investments in associates
Investments are accounted for under the proportional consolidation method or the equity method, that

is, they are accounted initially at cost and its carrying amount is increased or decreased in order to
recognize the part of the result of the invested company attributed to the Group from the acquisition date.

Part of the profit (loss) for the year of the invested company is recorded in the Group

consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Dividends received reduce the amount of
the investment.

Changes in the invested company’s equity different than those generated by income of the period are
directly recorded as changes in the Group’s net equity.
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2.10 Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recorded at fair value. For investments not measured at fair value with
changes in results, directly attributable transaction costs are added. The Group establishes the
classification of financial assets at the initial recognition, and, when appropriate and allowed, the
classification is assessed again at each year end.

Loans and receivables

The Group recognizes in this category trade and non-trade receivables, which include financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments not quoted on active markets and for which the Group expects to
recover the full initial investment, except, where applicable, in cases of credit deterioration.

Following initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortized cost.

Nevertheless, trade receivables which mature within less than one year with no contractual interest rate,
as well as prepayments and loans to personnel, the amount of which is expected to be recovered in the
short term, are carried at nominal value both at initial and subsequent measurement, when the effect of
not discounting cash flows is not significant.

2.11 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets (or, when applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) are derecognized when:

— Rights to related cash flows have expired;

— The Group has retained the right to receive related cash flows, but has assumed the liability of
fully paying them within the established terms to a third party under a transfer agreement;

— The Group has transferred the rights to receive related cash flows and (a) has substantially
transferred the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the financial asset, or (b) has not
transferred or retained the asset’s risks and rewards, but has transferred the control over the
asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the related liability is settled, cancelled or expired. When a
financial liability is replaced for other from the same borrower but with substantially different terms, or
the conditions of the existing liability are substantially modified, such change or modification is recorded
as a disposal of the original liability and an addition of a new liability. Difference of related carrying
amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are accounted for at the lower of the acquisition cost and the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of raw materials is the replacement cost. Nevertheless, no provision is set aside
for raw materials and other consumables used in production, if the finished products in which they are
to be incorporated will be sold above cost. The recoverable value of finished products corresponds to

the estimated sales price less related selling expenses.

The cost value of finished products includes materials measured at the weighted average acquisition
price, third-party work, labor and production overhead.
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2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

This heading includes cash, current accounts, bank deposits and other financial investments maturing
within less than three months from the acquisition date, provided that risks of the substantial alteration
of their value are not significant.

In terms of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
abovementioned concepts, net of bank overdrafts, if applicable.

2.14 Impairment of assets

Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each year end whether there is an indication that a non-current asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, and when an annual impairment test is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the cash-generating unit (CGU)
fair value less cost to sell and value in use, and it is established for each separate asset, unless for
assets that do not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and its carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. To assess value in
use, expected cash flows are discounted to their present value using risk free market rates, adjusted by
the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses from continuing activities are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group assesses at year end indicators of impairment losses previously recorded in order to verify
whether they have disappeared or decreased. If there are indicators, the Group estimates a new
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if the circumstances
giving rise to it have disappeared, since the last loss for depreciation was recognized. In this regard, the
asset’s carrying amount increases to their recoverable amount. The reversal is limited to the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset.

The reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Upon such reversal,
the depreciation expense is adjusted in the following periods to amortize the asset’s revised book value,
net of its residual value, systematically over the asset’s useful life.

Financial assets

The Group assesses at year end if financial assets or group of financial assets are impaired. To assess
the impairment of certain assets, the following criteria are applied:

e Assets measured at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that there is an impairment loss of loans and other receivables recorded at
amortized cost, the loss is measured as the difference between the book value and the present value of
estimated cash flows, discounted at the current market rate upon initial recognition. The book value is
reduced by an allowance, and the loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment loss is reversed only if the circumstances giving rise to it have ceased to exist. Such reversal
is limited to the carrying amount of the financial asset that would have been recognized on the reversal
date had no impairment loss been recognized.

In regard with trade and other receivables, when there is objective evidence of not collecting them, an
adjustment is made based on identified bad debts risk.
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2.15 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when:

— the Group has a present obligation either legal, contractual or constructive as a result of past
events;

— itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

— the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured.

When the effect of the cash temporary value is significant, the provision is estimated as the present
value of the future cash flows required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate applied in the assessment of the obligation’s present value only corresponds to the
temporary value of money and does not include the risks related to the estimated future cash flows
related to the provision. The increase of the provision derived from the aforementioned discount is
recorded as a financial expense.

2.16 Interest yield loans and credits

Loans and credits are initially measured at cost value, which is the fair value of the contribution received,
net of issuance costs related to the debt.

Upon initial recognition, interest yield loans and credits are recognized at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, including any issuance cost and discount or settlement premium.

2.17 Translation of balances in foreigh currency

Transactions in foreign currency are translated at the spot rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the spot rate prevailing
at the closing date. Unrealized exchange gains or losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. As an exception, exchange gains or losses arising from monetary assets and
liabilities that reflect investments in foreign subsidiaries are recorded in Translation differences in equity,
with no impact on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.18 Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, that is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. The Group recognizes the lease liabilities representing its
obligation to make lease payments and the assets representing the right to use the underlying leased
asset.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes the right-of-use assets at the commencement of the lease (that is, the date on
which the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciated and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises the amount of recognized lease liabilities, initial
direct costs incurred and lease payments made at or before the commencement of the lease, less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shortest
lease term and the useful lives of the assets.
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If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost shows
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful live of the asset.
Right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Accounting policies are described in Note 2.14.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments to be made over the lease term. Lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees. Lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate the lease. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate are recognized as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

To calculate the present value of the lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the commencement of the lease because the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily
determined. Subsequent to the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect interest thereon and reduced to reflect the lease payments made. Additionally, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in the lease payments (ie changes in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the recognition exemption for short-term leases to its short-term leases on machinery
and equipment (that is, leases that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to office equipment leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments associated with
short-term leases or leases of low-value assets are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

2.19 Income

Revenues are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits from the transaction will flow
to the Group and the amount of income and costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.

Revenues from exploiting slot machines are measured at the collected amount. The percentage of the
amount collected from slot machines attributable to the owner of the premises where the machine is
located is included as operating expense under Variable rent.

Revenues from bingo cards are recognized for the total amount of sold cards, based on their face value,
while recognizing the prizes granted to players as a decrease in operating revenues. The card cost is
recorded in Consumptions, and the gaming tax rate over purchased bingo cards is included under
Gaming taxes.

Revenue from casinos and sporting bets is recorded for the net amount from the game (“win”), after
deducting prizes removed by players.

Revenue from sale of finished products is measured when risks and significant benefits incidental to the
ownership of the assets have been transferred to the buyer and the outcome can be estimated reliably,
circumstance that generally arises with the effective goods delivery.

Interest income is recorded based on the time passed, including the asset’s effective yield.
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2.20 Restructuring expenses

Expenses incurred in restructuring processes, mainly indemnities to personnel, are recognized when a
formal and detailed plan exists to perform such process by identifying the main parameters (i.e. main
locations, functions and approximate number of affected employees, estimated payments and the
implementation schedule) and creating a real and valid expectation among affected employees in regard
with the process.

2.21 Income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on all temporary differences at the closing date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences, except for taxable temporary
differences arisen from an acquired goodwill, which amortization is not tax deductible and those arisen
upon the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination,
and that at the transaction date did not affect the accounting or the tax result.

Likewise, a deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences from investments in
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled companies, except when both the following conditions are
met: (a) the Group is able to manage the reversal date of the temporary difference and (b) the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the future. In this regard, when the results are generated in subsidiaries
in countries where there is not an agreement to avoid double taxation and the Group’s policy is the
repatriation of dividends, the Group records a deferred tax related to the effective amount that would be
filed when profits are repatriated.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax credits and unused tax
loss carryforwards, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
these assets may be utilized, except for deductible temporary differences arisen upon the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, and that at the
transaction date did not affect the accounting or the tax result.

Furthermore, only a deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences from
investments in subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled companies when both the following
conditions met: (a) the temporary difference will be reversed in the future, and (b) it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which these temporary differences may be utilized.

The recovery of deferred tax assets is reviewed at year end, reducing the amount in assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable benefits will not be available and consequently these assets could
not be utilized.

Deferred taxes are measured based on the tax legislation and charge rates enacted or to be enacted,
at the date of consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted and are classified as non-current assets or non-
current liabilities, respectively.

2.22  Contingencies

When unfavorable outcome of a situation that leads to a potential loss is likely to occur (i.e. more than
50% of possibilities), the Group establishes a provision which is recorded based on the best estimate of
present value of expected future disbursement. On the other hand, if expectations of favorable resolution
are more likely, no provision is recorded, which is reported in the notes of existing risks, unless the
possibility of a negative outcome is clearly considered remote.
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2.23 Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities are classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as current and non-
current according to their maturity date. Current assets mature within one year from the closing date,
and non-current assets mature in more than such period.

3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY OPERATING SEGMENT

The Group’s activities are organized and managed separately based on the nature of the services and
products provided. Each segment represents one strategic business unit that provides different services
and offers products to different markets whose operating profit or loss are examined on a regular basis
by the Group’s ultimate operating decision-making body in order to decide on the resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance.

An operating segment has been considered to be an identifiable unit of the Group responsible for
supplying a unique product or service, or alternatively a set of these which are inter-related, and which
is characterized by being subject to risks and yields of a different nature from those which correspond
to other operating segments within the Group.

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses by segment include those directly attributable, together with
those which may be reasonably attributed. Unallocated captions by the Group correspond to deferred
tax assets and liabilities balances.

Transfer prices between segments are determined based on the actual costs incurred increased by a
reasonable trade margin.

3.1 Operating segments

The distribution of the operating segments on which information is disclosed coincides with the
information usually handled by Management. The operating segments defined by the Group are as
follows:

Slots:

It owns and operates slot machines in bars, cafés, restaurants and amusement arcades in Spain and
Italy. It also provides machine interconnection services in Italy.

B2B:

It designs, manufactures and distributes slot machines and gaming kits for the Spanish and international
markets. The division sells directly or through distributors to other divisions of the Group, mainly slot
division, and third parties

Casinos:

The Group operates with two types of casinos, traditional casinos, which include table games and casino
slot machines, and electronic casinos which only operate with casino slot machines.

Bingos:
Operation of bingo halls mainly in Spain and, to a lesser extent, in Italy and Mexico. These halls operate

through the sale of bingo cards to customers and, to a lesser extent, through slot machines and
restaurant services.
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Bets:

The Group’s corporate purpose consists in the marketing and operation of bets at own or third-party
halls, performance of related activities and manufacture of gaming material for bets. Additionally, the
Group operates online bets in Spain through the website “sportium.es”.

Other segments:

Segments that aggregately represent less than 10% of total external and internal revenue, less than
10% of the combined result of all segments with aggregated benefits, and less than 10% of total assets
have been considered as irrelevant. Thus, no specific information thereon is provided and they have
been grouped together under this generic heading.

The table below shows information on the income and results, certain information on assets and
liabilities, and other information regarding these business segments at December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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2019

Eliminations

(Thousands of euros) Slots B2B Casinos Bingos Bets and other Total
Assets by segment

Allocated non-current assets 1,072,518 27,863 1,647,288 567,966 175,836 (280,613) 3,210,858
Unallocated non-current assets - - - - - 61,337 61,337
Allocated current assets 119,570 53,148 140,022 41,301 28,521 (41,193) 341,369
Total Assets 1,192,088 81,011 1,787,310 609,267 204,357 (260,469) 3,613,564
Liabilities by segment

Allocated liabilities (821,674) (31,811) (371,257) (198,620) (40,593) (1,200,330) (2,664,285)
Unallocated liabilities - - - - - (306,597) (306,597)
Total Liabilities (821,674) (31,811) (371,257) (198,620) (40,593) (1,506,927) (2,970,882)
Operating income net of variable rent

Sales to external customers 773,760 47,603 537,223 246,674 31,336 (22,036) 1,614,560
Intragroup revenue 7,537 43,513 1,907 4,986 - (57,943) -
Total operating income net of variable rent 781,297 91,116 539,130 251,660 31,336 (79,979) 1,614,560
Profit/(loss)

EBITDA (*) 169,554 14,011 232,439 76,687 5,112 (25,109) 472,694
Finance income 1,637 585 3,748 1,797 72 (5,896) 1,943
Finance costs (29,876) (577) (6,534) (5,503) (22) (123,452) (165,964)
Profit/(loss) before tax 34,650 7,272 74,024 15,146 25,978 (130,784) 26,286
Income tax (9,382) (1,951) (16,049) (3,267) (16) 15,959 (14,706)
Profit / (loss) after tax 25,268 5,321 57,975 11,879 25,962 (114,825) 11,580
Non-monetary expenses

Charge to depreciation and amortization and impairment of assets (100,795) (6,200) (144,375) (51,039) (3,109) 7,690 (297,828)
Change in operating provisions (2,838) (441) 43 - - (607) (3,843)
Other significant expenses

Employee benefits expense (77,011) (21,705) (97,796) (50,296) (4,880) (16,210) (267,898)
Utilities and external services (69,213) (12,272) (111,872) (57,348) (16,478) 31,709 (235,474)
Gaming taxes (422,783) (186) (87,802) (54,930) (4,461) (198) (570,360)
Other segment information

Investment in non-current assets (cash flow) 66,569 4,900 60,784 18,051 1,804 1,243 153,351
Investments in associates (balance sheet): 20,661 - - 12,226 - - 32,887
Non-controlling interests (profit and loss) 6,958 175 9,953 712 - 450 18,248

(*) EBITDA is defined for financial reporting purposes, as profit or loss before income tax, finance income or costs, profit or loss from investments

in associates, profit or loss from sale/derecognition of non-current assets, change in operating provisions and depreciation and amortization charges and impairment.
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2018

Eliminations

(Thousands of euros) Slots B2B Casinos Bingos and other Total
Assets by segment

Allocated non-current assets 683,385 33,859 1,485,706 468,954 (184,251) 2,487,653
Unallocated non-current assets - - - - 45,580 45,580
Allocated current assets 118,015 49,412 86,875 28,729 24,515 307,546
Total Assets 801,400 83,271 1,572,581 497,683 (114,156) 2,840,779
Liabilities by segment

Allocated liabilities (551,235) (30,135) (184,153) (99,403) (1,019,683) (1,884,609)
Unallocated liabilities - - - - (289,413) (289,413)
Total Liabilities (551,235) (30,135) (184,153) (99,403) (1,309,096) (2,174,022)
Operating income net of variable rent

Sales to external customers 707,468 47,017 505,248 227,351 (17,960) 1,469,124
Intra-group revenue 674 42,485 1,644 4,708 (49,511) -
Total operating income net of variable rent 708,142 89,502 506,892 232,059 (67,471) 1,469,124
Profit/(loss)

EBITDA (*) 141,080 12,681 182,973 55,696 (64,146) 328,284
Finance income 10,533 2,607 4,254 1,261 (16,406) 2,249
Finance costs (26,051) (2,273) (11,839) (4,815) (91,492) (136,470)
Profit/(loss) before tax 29,815 (2,467) 106,880 26,134 (160,329) 33
Income tax (1,496) (2,473) (31,540) (8,790) 15,921 (28,378)
Profit / (loss) after tax 28,319 (4,940) 75,340 17,344 (144,408) (28,345)
Non-monetary expenses

Charge to depreciation and amortization and impairment of assets (88,482) (4,430) (80,003) (27,289) 7,866 (192,338)
Change in operating provisions (3,027) (46) (178) 2 - (3,249)
Other significant expenses

Employee benefits expense (71,344) (20,168) (89,300) (45,633) (55,405) (281,850)
Utilities and external services (77,479) (15,387) (144,360) (66,638) 27,195 (276,669)
Gaming taxes (376,087) (150) (82,091) (52,532) (184) (511,044)
Other segment information

Investment in non-current assets (cash flow) 70,044 4,227 47,480 37,940 497 160,188
Investments in associates (balance sheet): 67,042 - - 11,948 - 78,990
Non-controlling interests (profit and loss) 4,779 228 8,388 1,903 - 15,298

(*) EBITDA is defined for financial reporting purposes, as profit or loss before income tax, finance income or costs, profit or loss from investments
in associates, profit or loss from sale/derecognition of non-current assets, change in operating provisions and depreciation and amortization charges and impairment.
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3.2 Information on geographical segments

In the presentation of information by geographic segments, sales are based on the destination country
and the assets on their location. The table below shows this information at December 31, 2019 and

2018:

2019

Investments in

Sales to Inter-segment sales Total revenue Assets by segment Non-current
external by segment assets
(Thousands of euros) customers
Spain 657,059 88,534 745,593 1,175,934 74,318
Latin America 575,695 796 576,491 1,757,775 69,008
Italy 381,806 - 381,806 138,945 9,699
Eliminations and other - (89,330) (89,330) 540,910 326
1,614,560 - 1,614,560 3,613,564 153,351
2018
Investments in
Sales to external  Inter-segment Total revenue Assets by Non-current
(Thousands of euros) customers sales by segment segment assets
Spain 586,584 85,134 671,718 737,314 80,780
Latin America 532,987 664 533,651 1,506,303 74,784
Italy 349,553 2 349,555 124,504 4,131
Eliminations and other - (85,800) (85,800) 472,658 493
1,469,124 - 1,469,124 2,840,779 160,188
4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

4.1 Significant acquisitions in 2019

The breakdown of amounts related to the acquisition of Giga Group, 50% of the Sportium subgroup, and
Casino Central is as follows:

(Millions of euros)

Non-
controlling
interests Fair value of
Fair value of arisen inthe the previous Goodwill
Name and description of Acquisition the assets business ownership generated
the entities and business  Acquisition date cost acquired combination interest (Note 5)
Giga Group July 2019 283 82 9) - 191
Sportium subgroup October 2019 73 107 - 73 38
Casino Central November 2019 36 24 - - 12
392 213 9 73 242

The values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business
combinations, excluding resulting goodwill, were as follows:

Recognized on

(Millions of euros) acquisition Book value
Property, plant and equipment 79 28
Intangible assets 169 72
Other non-current assets 15 15
Current assets 55 55
Deferred tax liabilities arisen (39) (2)
Other current and non-current liabilities (66) (66)
213 103




Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the year, consolidated operating income in 2019
would have increased by 204,813 thousand euros and consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 2019 would
have increased by 15,691 thousand euros. Additionally, since their acquisition date these companies
have contributed profit to the Group amounting to 13,790 thousand euros.

4.2 Other acquisitions in 2019

The breakdown of the companies constituting a business over which unilateral and exclusive control
was gained in 2019 is summarized as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

Non-
controlling
interests Fair value of
Fair value of arisen inthe the previous Goodwill
Name and description of Acquisition the assets business ownership generated
the entities and business  Acquisition date cost acquired combination interest (Note 5)
Recreativos Sortia, S.L.U. January 2019 1,087 1,087 - - -
First Game, S.L. January 2019 414 414 - - -
Redeye Games, S.L. January 2019 692 692 - - -
Palabingo S.r.l. September 2019 5,559 5,536 (23) - -
7,752 7,729 (23) - -

The values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business
combinations were as follows:

Recognized on

(Thousands of euros) acquisition Book value
Property, plant and equipment 841 841
Intangible assets 12,992 2,050
Other non-current assets 250 250
Current assets 1,675 1,675
Liabilities (including deferred taxes generated) (8,029) (5,070)
7,729 (254)

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the year, consolidated operating income in 2019
would have increased by 3,525 thousand euros and consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 2019 would
have increased by 26 thousand euros. Additionally, since their acquisition date these companies have
contributed net profit to the Group amounting to 533 thousand euros.

4.3 Acquisition of the Cirsa Group

On April 27, 2018 Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. (owner of 52.43% of the share capital of Cirsa
Gaming Corporation, S.A.) and private capital (owner of the other 46.65%) signed the agreement for the
sale of the Grupo Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. and subsidiaries to the Company (whose ultimate
owner is Blackstone). This purchase and sale agreement included several clauses whereby the
transaction was subject to a set of obligations by both parties to be considered fully effective. Final
closing between the parties was signed on July 3, 2018, the date on which Blackstone gained effective
control over the Cirsa Group through the purchase of 100% of the shares of Cirsa Gaming Corporation,
S.A.
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The breakdown of the amounts related to the acquisition of the Cirsa Group over whose business the
Parent Company has gained control, effective from July 3, 2018, is as follows:

(Millions of euros)
Non-controlling

interests arisen Goodwill
Name and description of the Acquisition Fair value of the inthe business generated
entities and business Acquisition date cost assets acquired  combination (Note 5)
Grupo Cirsa Gaming
Corporation July 3, 2018 1,453 476 105 968

The values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business
combinations, excluding resulting goodwill, were as follows:

Recognized on

(Millions of euros) acquisition Book value
Property, plant and equipment 295 266
Intangible assets 1,134 132
Non-current financial assets (ownership interests accounted for using the
equity method) 74 12
Other non-current assets 195 195
Current assets 563 563
Deferred tax liabilities arisen (303) (15)
Other current and non-current liabilities (1,482) (1,482)
476 (329)

Operating income from ordinary activities, operating profit/(loss) and net profit/(loss) for the year already
correspond to a whole year in accordance with the premises for the special-purpose consolidated
financial statements.

As a result of the transaction, all the Group’s rights and obligations, including the agreements and
contracts that it held with third parties, continued to be in force subsequently. The only relevant business
of the Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group, prior to the transaction, that did not continue under the new
scope of consolidation is the one corresponding to the gaming activities in Argentina, which is presented
as a discontinued operation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

4.4 Other acquisitions in 2018

The breakdown of the companies constituting a business over which unilateral and exclusive control
was gained in 2018 is summarized as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

Non-
controlling
interests Fair value of
Fair value of arisen inthe the previous Goodwill

Name and description of the Acquisition Acquisition the assets business ownership generated
entities and business date cost acquired combination interest (Note 5)
Talluntxe, S.A.U. July 2018 1,443 1,443 - - -
Casinos del Caribe, S.R.L. and
Merengue Bar Gran Casino November
Jaragua, GCJ, S.R.L.U. 2018 13,557 13,557 - - -

15,000 15,000 - - -
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The values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business
combinations were as follows:

Recognized on

(Thousands of euros) acquisition Book value
Property, plant and equipment 4,770 4,770
Intangible assets 10,447 93
Other non-current assets 202 202
Current assets 1,843 1,843
Liabilities (including deferred taxes generated) (2,784) (2,389)
14,478 4,519

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the year, consolidated operating income in 2018
would have increased by 10,477 thousand euros and consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 2018 would
have increased by 785 thousand euros. Additionally, since their acquisition date these companies have
contributed profit to the Group amounting to 525 thousand euros.

5. GOODWILL

The breakdown of and movements in goodwill by operating segment is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2018 Additions Other 2019
Slots 358,197 191,310 3,391 552,898
Casinos 464,688 12,252 4,399 481,339
Bingos 145,215 - 1,375 146,590
Bets - 38,237 - 38,237

968,100 241,799 9,165 1,219,064

Goodwill has arisen in the last two years, mainly due to the acquisition of the Cirsa Gaming Corporation,
S.A. Group and subsidiaries (Note 4.3) and significant acquisitions carried out in 2019 (Note 4.1). The
Other column corresponds to a price adjustment made in 2019 to the acquisition of Cirsa in the prior
year.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 there have been no impairment losses on goodwill (Note 10.1).

The evolution of the book value of goodwill, net of impairment losses, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Balance at January 1 968,100 92,912
Derecognition due to business combinations of PPAs prior to 2018 - (92,912)
Business combination (PPA 2019) 250,964 968,100

Balance at December 31 1,219,064 968,100

Note 10 below shows the several items related to the potential impairment test conducted on the
Group’s assets.
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6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

6.1 Movements

2019
Currency
translation
Balance at differences Balance at
January 1, and other December 31,
(Thousands of euros) 2019 Additions Disposals Transfers changes 2019
COST
Development costs and patents 66,527 5,457 (1,443) - 431 70,972
Service concession arrangements 98,511 4,115 (34,745) - 1,031 68,912
Installation rights 1,272,443 256,969 (14,425) 1,322 21,566 1,537,875
Transfer rights 13,375 1,463 (285) (1,322) 387 13,618
Software 32,357 14,793 (2,657) 358 482 45,333
Prepayments and other 32 10 - - - 42
1,483,245 282,807 (53,555) 358 23,897 1,736,752
AMORTIZATION
Development costs and patents (52,331) (5,663) 1,280 - (172) (56,886)
Service concession arrangements (67,459) (7,578) 34,656 - (795) (41,176)
Installation rights (219,885) (163,678) 11,459 (1,129) (101) (373,334)
Transfer rights (7,761) (2,044) 60 1,129 (145) (8,761)
Software (27,264) (11,507) 2,581 - (327) (36,517)
(374,700) (190,470) 50,036 - (1,540) (516,674)
Impairment losses (4,869) (9,360) 1,102 - 2) (13,129)
Net carrying amount 1,103,676 82,977 (2,417) 358 22,355 1,206,949
2018
Currency
translation
Balance at differences Balance at
January 1, and other December 31,
(Thousands of euros) 2018 Additions Disposals Transfers changes 2018
COST
Development costs and patents 56,355 11,638 (1,624) - 158 66,527
Service concession arrangements 120,968 567 (25,158) - 2,134 98,511
Installation rights 643,668 1,047,154 (418,486) 54 53 1,272,443
Transfer rights 10,817 2,797 (405) - 166 13,375
Software 34,211 5,269 (7,561) 294 144 32,357
Prepayments and other 151 - (119) - - 32
866,170 1,067,425 (453,353) 348 2,655 1,483,245
AMORTIZATION
Development costs and patents (50,080) (3,786) 1,624 - (90) (52,331)
Service concession arrangements (69,232) (7,586) 10,899 - (1,540) (67,459)
Installation rights (294,489) (90,516) 165,133 - (12) (219,885)
Transfer rights (4,652) (3,042) - - (67) (7,761)
Software (28,802) (2,002) 3,602 - (62) (27,264)
(447,255) (106,932) 181,258 - 1,771) (374,700)
Impairment losses (29,727) (1,047) 15,906 - (2) (4,869)
Net carrying amount 399,188 959,446  (256,189) 348 883 1,103,676

The Additions column in 2019 includes the effect of the other business combinations (Note 4), which has
amounted to an overall gross value of 237,775 thousand euros (27,828 thousand euros in the prior year)
and accumulated amortization of 55,250 thousand euros (912 thousand euros in the prior year). These
amounts related almost entirely to Installation rights, just like in 2018.
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Most of the rest of additions in 2019 and 2018 included in Installation rights mainly relate to the non-
refundable payment in exchange for the exclusive rights to operate the halls where the slot machines
were located. The disposals in this caption for both years mainly relate to installation rights pending
amortization in halls which had been closed, or it was decided not to operate the machines for profitability
reasons.

6.2 Development costs and patents
They mainly correspond to:

e Industrial companies: Creation of new models of slot machines and technological innovation for them.
The net value at December 31, 2019 and 2018 is 6,958 and 6,127 thousand euros, respectively.

e Companies engaged in lotteries and interactive products: Software development for online gaming
applications. The net value at December 31, 2019 and 2018 is 3,125 thousand euros and 3,068
thousand euros, respectively.

The internal cost of developing new models of slot machines and software for on-line games by the B2B
division of the Group is recorded as development costs and patents with a charge to the corresponding
expenses according to their nature in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Said work
performed by the Group for its intangible assets in 2019 and 2018 amounts to 4,857 and 3,573 thousand
euros, respectively.

Research and development costs recognized as an expense in 2019 amount to 12 thousand euros (66
thousand euros at December 31, 2018) (Note 21.2).
6.3 Service concession arrangements

The most significant items in the gross balance of service concession arrangements at December 31,
2019 are as follows:

e Official contract to manage and operate slot machine halls in the Republic of Panama for an amount
of 13,316 thousand euros (46,869 thousand euros at December 31, 2018). The net value of this
concession at December 31, 2019 amounts to 11,984 thousand euros (12,419 thousand euros at
December 31, 2018).

e Licenses of video terminals acquired by Cirsa Italia S.p.A. for an amount of 40,768 thousand euros
at December 31, 2019 (40,807 thousand euros at December 31, 2018). The net value of this
concession at December 31, 2019 amounts to 8,257 thousand euros (12,360 thousand euros at
December 31, 2018).

6.4 Installation rights

This caption includes the amount given in exchange for the exclusive rights to operate in the halls were

the slot machines are located, and the effect of the business combination indicated in Note 4.

6.5 Impairment losses

The impairment losses recorded during 2019 mainly correspond to the impairment of installation rights

for an amount of 8,000 thousand euros, which have been registered as a result of the impairment test

made on the Group’s assets (Note 10).

6.6 Other information

At 2019 year end, the net value of intangible assets in foreign companies amounts to 851,672 thousand
euros (877,775 thousand euros at 2018 year end).
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7.1 Movements

2019
Translation
Balance at differences Balance at
January 1, and other December 31,
(Thousands of euros) 2019 Additions Disposals  Transfers changes 2019
Cost
Land and buildings 99,645 17,912 (15,988) 2,772 1,688 106,029
Technical installations 80,770 60,164 (1,281) 4,755 1,390 145,798
Machinery 561,050 139,071 (68,623) 11,295 8,479 651,272
Data processing equipment 60,449 14,852 (612) 550 560 75,799
Transport equipment 3,492 686 (202) - 22 3,998
Other installations, tools,
furniture, and other PP&E 297,541 72,163 (3,795) 4,315 3,749 373,973
Property, plant and equipment 12,237 23,543 (431) (24,045) (20) 11,294
under construction
1,115,184 328,391 (90,932) (358) 15,878 1,368,163
Depreciation
Buildings (34,093) (7,327) 1,747 - (597) (40,270)
Technical installations (61,821) (31,054) 1,103 (198) (1,016) (92,986)
Machinery (435,242) (99,791) 52,054 198 (6,417) (489,198)
Data processing equipment (53,745) (13,293) 552 1 (366) (66,851)
Transport equipment (2,992) (679) 197 - (16) (3,490)
Other installations, tools,
furniture, and other PP&E (225,119) (49,315) 5,039 1) (2,911) (272,307)
(813,012) (201,459) 60,692 - (11,323) (965,102)
Impairment losses (4,711) (13,020) 12,328 (89) (5,492)
Net carrying amount 297,461 113,912 (17,912) (358) 4,466 397,569
2018
Translation
Balance at differences Balance at
January 1, and other December 31,
(Thousands of euros) 2018 Additions Disposals  Transfers changes 2018
Cost
Land and buildings 257,555 33,592 (191,702) 102 98 99,645
Technical installations 81,727 5,158 (7,750) 1,089 546 80,770
Machinery 616,379 39,772 (114,970) 16,258 3,611 561,050
Data processing equipment 65,857 4,492 (10,803) 662 241 60,449
Transport equipment 10,850 205 (7,584) - 21 3,492
Other installations, tools,
furniture, and other PP&E 294,730 23,712 (32,043) 5,886 5,256 297,541
Property, plant and equipment 16,043 29,238 (9,500) (24,345) 801 12,237
under construction
1,343,141 136,169 (374,352) (348) 10,574 1,115,184
Depreciation
Buildings (105,026) (9,736) 80,262 485 (78) (34,093)
Technical installations (58,933) (10,300) 7,750 39 (377) (61,821)
Machinery (447,695) (64,979) 80,544 9) (3,103) (435,242)
Data processing equipment (56,603) (4,528) 7,571 - (185) (53,745)
Transport equipment (8,676) (610) 6,271 - 23 (2,992)
Other installations, tools,
furniture, and other PP&E (221,788) (19,579) 20,916 (514) (4,154) (225,119)
(898,721) (109,732) 203,314 1 (7,874) (813,012)
Impairment losses (13,370) (2,264) 10,949 (26) (4,711)
Net carrying amount 431,050 24,173 (160,089) (347) 2,674 297,461
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The Additions column in 2019 mainly shows:

- The effect of the other business combinations (Note 4.2), which has amounted to an overall
gross value of 189,702 thousand euros (12,939 thousand euros in the prior year) and
accumulated depreciation of 110,322 thousand euros (7,127 thousand euros in the prior year).

- Investments in assets in Spain (35,782 thousand euros), Colombia (15,986 thousand euros),
Mexico (10,067 thousand euros), Peru (15,533 thousand euros) and Panama (21,786 thousand
euros) mainly to renovate some already-installed halls, and additions of property, plant and
equipment under construction amounting to 23,543 thousand euros as a result of the renovation
and expansion of casinos, mainly in Latin American countries.

Additions in 2018 also included investments in assets in Spain (41,076 thousand euros), Colombia
(14,575 thousand euros), Mexico (16,419 thousand euros), Peru (7,389 thousand euros) and Panama
(20,472 thousand euros) mainly to renovate some already-installed halls, and additions of property, plant
and equipment under construction amounting to 29,238 thousand euros as a result of the renovation
and expansion of casinos, mainly in Latin American countries.

The Disposals column in 2019 and 2018 includes sales of several assets and other disposals, basically
due to the replacement of slot machines, which in 2019 resulted in losses of 5,028 thousand euros (gains
of 13,025 thousand euros in the prior year).

7.2 Work performed by the Group and capitalized

The cost value of the machines manufactured by group companies that after being sold to operational
companies of the Cirsa Group are operated by them is recorded as property, plant and equipment with
a charge to the corresponding expenses according to their nature in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The work performed by the Group and capitalized as property plant and
equipment in 2019 and 2018 amounts to 47,795 and 46,438 thousand, respectively.

7.3 Assets used as guarantees

Several property, plant and equipment items, whose net value at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was 785
and 210 thousand, respectively, were used as guarantee for mortgage loan debts.

7.4 Assets subject to charges and limitations

All assets can be freely used, except for the assets used as guarantees indicated in Note 7.3 and those
acquired under finance lease arrangements, whose net carrying amount is 168 thousand euros at
December 31, 2019 (681 thousand euros at December 31, 2018).

7.5 Assets located outside of Spain

The net value of the assets located outside of Spain amounts to 215,199 thousand euros at December
31, 2019 (186,242 thousand euros at December 31, 2018).

7.6 Investment commitments

Firm investment commitments amount to 7,225 thousand euros at December 31, 2019 (10,018 thousand
euros at December 31, 2018).
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8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

This caption includes the following investments:

2019
Book value Profit/(loss)
of the Operating for the
(Thousands of euros) investment Assets Liabilities revenue period
AOG, S.R.L. 12,226 21,833 12,754 100,976 434
Union de Operadores Reunidos, S.A. 18,693 11,081 2,713 23,992 5,094
Other 1,968 20,957 18,678 39,871 1,428
32,887
2018
Book value Profit/(loss)
of the Operating for the
(Thousands of euros) investment Assets Liabilities revenue period
AOG, S.R.L. 11,948 21,131 (12,028) 104,207 461
Union de Operadores Reunidos S.A. 16,146 10,008 (1,842) 23,310 4,700
Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. and 48,678 161,115 (65,331) 635,383 11,542
Subsidiaries.
Other 2,218 14,862 (12,069) 40,084 920
78,990

The associates consolidated using the equity method had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments
at December 31, 2018 and 2019.

The annual variation in the ‘Investments in associates’ caption is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Balance at January 1 78,990 57,820
Share in profit/(loss) for the year 4,322 4,578
Revaluation due to PPA Cirsa Group (Note 4.3) - 16,592
Business combination Sportium subgroup (Nota 4.1) (50,425) -
Balance at December 31 32,887 78,990

The transactions carried out during the 2019 and 2018 between the above-listed companies and the
companies accounted for using the full and/or proportional consolidation method are not relevant.
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9. FINANCIAL ASSETS

This caption consists of the following balances:

2019 2018
Non- Non-

(Thousands of euros) current Current Total current Current Total
Loans and receivables
Joint ventures and associates 1,659 1,749 3,408 2,854 2,909 5,763
Loans to third parties 29,873 - 29,873 19,125 - 19,125
Guarantees and deposits 9,689 19,300 28,989 10,064 14,762 24,826
Fixed income securities and deposits - 12,551 12,551 - 1,198 1,198
Trade and other receivables - 152,155 152,155 - 142,069 142,069
Other 8,465 3,892 12,357 7,832 1,434 9,266

49,686 189,647 239,333 39,875 162,372 202,247
Impairment losses (434) (37,426) (37,860) (449) (34,977) (35,426)

49,252 152,221 201,473 39,426 127,395 166,821

The Group considers that the fair values of these do not differ significantly from the amounts recorded.

The accumulated balance of impairment losses on non-current financial assets mainly relates to loans
to third parties, whereas the amount of impairment losses on current financial assets mainly relates to
trade and other receivables (36,560 and 32,468 thousand euros at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively). The remainder of the balance amounting to 866 thousand euros corresponds to
impairment losses on current financial investments.

9.1 Loans and receivables

Balances to joint ventures and associates

This caption breaks down as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Current accounts with joint ventures and associates and loans 1,659 5,763

Trade transactions 1,749 -
3,408 5,763

(*) The amounts receivable from the joint ventures included in the table above are the remaining balances after the eliminations

upon consolidation.

The annual maturity of these assets is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Within 1 year 1,749 2,911
Between 1 and 2 years - 713
Between 2 and 3 years 1,659 713
Between 3 and 4 years - 713
Between 4 and 5 years - 713
3,408 5,763

The average interest rate of these assets in 2019 was 6.91% (2018: 5.82%).
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Loans to third parties

The breakdown of non-current loans to third parties is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Mortgage loan in US dollars to a company that owns a hotel in Dominican Republic where a

casino operated by the Group is located. It earns an annual interest of 5%. 8,190 -
Accounts receivable from the industrial division. 3,322 2,852

Deferred collection for the sale of a non-controlling interest in an Italian company of the

operational division 287 498

Deferred collection for the sale of a non-controlling interest in a Spanish company of the

operational division 948 1,843

Current accounts with third parties for Group purposes, at an interest rate of 2% 1,021 -

Other 16,105 13,932
29,873 19,125

The breakdown of maturity dates for non-current loans to third parties is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Between 1 and 2 years 14,846 13,806
Between 2 and 3 years 4,426 2,711
Between 3 and 4 years 1,651 790
Between 4 and 5 years 953 779
More than 5 years 7,997 1,039
29,873 19,125

Trade and other receivables

This caption consists of the following balances:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Trade receivables 59,576 56,955
Impairment losses (36,560) (32,468)
Public administrations 42,116 28,860
Other accounts receivable 50,463 56,254
115,595 109,601

Receivables from Public administrations mainly correspond to payments on account of income tax, VAT
and other tax receivables.

Other receivables mainly relate to loans granted to establishments and suboperators.

The balance of Trade and other receivables is shown net of impairment loss. The movements in the
impairment loss allowance are as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Balance at January 1 34,977 39,062
Net charges for the year 2,311 3,011
Utilized (2,556) (7,239)
Additions of companies 2,694 143
Balance at December 31 37,426 34,977

The Group has established credit periods between 90 and 150 days, while the average collection period
is approximately of 120 days at December 31, 2019 (120 days at December 31, 2018).
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10. IMPAIRMENT TEST

10.1 Goodwill

Cash-generating units

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and any other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives have been attributed to cash-generating units for impairment testing. The breakdown of cash-
generating units is as follows:

e  Operational segment in Spain and Italy.

e Bingo groups in Spain and Mexico.

e (Casinos in Spain, Panama, Colombia, Mexico, Dominican Republican, Peru, Costa Rica and
Morocco.

e Betsin Spain and other countries (Sportium).

Note 5 indicates the distribution of Goodwill at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Key assumptions

Budgeted gross margins - the bases for determining the value allocated to the budgeted gross margins
is the average of the gross margins obtained in the year, increased by expected efficiency
improvements. The period used in said projections is 5 years. From year five onwards projections are
extrapolated using a growth rate similar to the growth rate equivalent to expected inflation.

Increase in costs - the basis for determining the value allocated to the increase in costs is the price index
expected during the year for the different countries and segments. The values allocated to the key
assumptions are consistent with external information sources.

Discount rates — the basis for determining the discount rate applied in the cash flow projections is
determined based on the specific risk of each cash-generating unit, considering the type of activity and
countries. The discount rates used by activity and geographical area range between 7% and 14% for
the CGUs that have been allocated significant goodwiill.

Growth rate - the basis for determining the growth rate used to extrapolate the flows to obtain the
terminal value is the expected growth rate of inflation in each geographical area. The growth rate used
range between 1.5% and 4%.

Test results

As a result of the impairment tests on goodwill carried out in 2019 and 2018, no impairment adjustments
needed to be recorded.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group has done a sensitivity analysis for each of the aforementioned key assumptions. Based on
this analysis, the Group has concluded that no reasonably possible change in the assumptions has
occurred that would entail the need to record impairment losses on the assets of each cash-generating
unit.
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10.2 Other assets

Impairment indicators used by the Group to determine the need of an impairment test on other non-
current assets, amongst others, are as follows:

Significant drop of the result over the same period in the prior year, and/or over the budget.

Legislative changes in progress or planned, which could lead to negative effects.
Change of strategy or internal expectations regarding a particular business or country.
Position of competitors and their launches of new products.

Slowdown of income or difficulties in selling at expected prices.

Change in habits and attitudes of users, and other elements specific to each division.

At December 31, 2019, based on the results of the impairment tests under discounted cash flows,
impairment losses of 8,000 thousand euros have been recorded (corresponding entirely to installation
rights in Peru), mainly due to more prudent estimates of future cash flows from Peruvian casinos.

11. INVENTORIES

The breakdown of inventories by category, net of impairment, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Raw and auxiliary materials 4,108 3,660
Spare parts and others 9,224 8,225
Finished goods 1,896 1,555
Work in progress 3,319 3,390
Prepayments to suppliers 1,482 1,073
20,029 17,903

Inventories correspond mainly to the manufacture and marketing of slot machines carried out by Group
companies.

The balance of inventories is shown net of impairment loss. Movements in the impairment loss allowance
are as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Balance at January 1 929 1,145
Net charges for the year 457 425
Write-offs (364) (641)
Balance at December 31 1,022 929

The write-off in 2019 and 2018 corresponds to the destruction of several inventories from the industrial
division.

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For consolidated cash-flow statement purposes, cash and cash equivalents include the following items:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Cash 57,633 42,300
Current accounts 62,595 73,049
Deposits under 3 months 2 66
Cash in hoppers 36,739 36,777
159,669 152,192

These assets are unrestricted and earn market interest rates.
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13. EQUITY

13.1 Subscribed capital and share premium

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Parent Company’s share capital consisted of 70,663 thousand
registered shares with a face value of 1 euro each after a capital increase was carried out on July 2,
2018 with a share premium for an aggregated amount (capital increase plus share capital) of 706,603
thousand euros. In 2019 part of the balance of the share premium has been returned, for an amount of
550 thousand euros. The Sole Shareholder of the Parent Company is LHMC Midco, S.a.r.l. and all
shares bear the same obligations and voting and economic rights.

All shares are pledged in favor of six financial institutions as a guarantee of a credit line.

13.2 Retained earnings
The balance of this caption includes reserves of the Parent Company, which are non-distributable.

Leqgal reserve

In accordance with the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, Spanish companies obtaining profit will
assign 10% of profit to the legal reserve, until its balance is equivalent to at least 20% of share capital.
As long as it does not exceed this limit, the legal reserve can only be used to offset losses if no other
reserves are available. This reserve can also be used to increase capital by the amount exceeding 10%
of the new capital after the increase.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Parent Company’s legal reserve has not been set aside.
Additionally, the Group Spanish subsidiaries have provided the legal reserves at the amount required
by the prevailing legislation.

13.3 Non-controlling interests

The balances related to non-controlling interests are as follows:

Balance in statement of Share in
financial position profit/(loss)
(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Division
Casinos 109,453 102,910 9,964 8,388
Slots 4,345 (2,277) 7,324 4,779
B2B 1,336 2,356 175 228
Bingos 16,060 17,272 785 1,903
131,194 120,261 18,248 15,298

The inter-annual variation of balances in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Balance at January 1 120,261 236,679
Share in profit/(loss) for the year 18,248 15,298
Currency translation differences 370 -
Net impact due to business combinations 9,255 2,484
Dividends paid (10,783) (26,242)
Sale of Argentinean companies - (107,958)
Other disposals (6,157) -
Balance at December 31 131,194 120,261

The movements in 2019 correspond to the non-controlling interests’ share in the profit/(loss) of
companies, to dividends paid and to additions and disposals due to changes in scope. The main
movement in 2018 corresponds to the exclusion of non-controlling interests of Argentinean companies
from the scope of consolidation.
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14. CORPORATE BONDS

At December 31, 2018 this caption mainly related to a bond issue carried out by a group company
domiciled in Luxembourg, Cirsa Finance International, S.a.r.l., on July 2, 2018 for an approximate
amount of 1,560 million euros, which were partially used for the early repayment of previously issued
bonds by the Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group, for an amount of 950 million euros.

During 2019 two additional issues of corporate bonds, amounting to 880 million euros, have been made.
These funds have been partially used to early redeem a portion of the previous bond issue.

Current corporate bonds consist of 4 issues, divided into two tranches: the first tranche amounts to 663
million euros and 495 million US dollars, which mature in 2023 and accrue interest at a rate of 6.25%
and 7.875%, respectively. The second tranche amounts to 390 and 490 million euros, which mature in
2025 and accrue interest at a rate of 4.75% and 3-month Euribor plus 362.5 basis points, respectively.

The issues for the first tranche were both made below par at a price of 97.75%.

Contracts subscribed in relation to the bonds issued by the subsidiaries in Luxembourg regulate certain
obligations and commitments by the Group, which include, among others, the supply of periodic
information, the maintenance of titles of ownership in subsidiaries, the restriction on disposal of
significant assets, the compliance with certain debt ratios, the limitation on payment of dividends, the
limitation on starting-up new businesses, and the restriction on the Group granting guarantees and
endorsements to third parties. The Parent Company’s Directors consider that all contractual obligations
have been met. The shares of several Group companies have been assigned as security for these
liabilities.

At December 31, 2019 the quoted price of the bonds recognized in the liabilities side of the Cirsa Group's
balance sheet is 106.0%, 106.0%, 105.1% and 101.3% of their par value, for each of the four tranches.

15. BANK BORROWINGS

The breakdown of bank borrowings at December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018
Non- Non-

(Thousands of euros) current Current Total current Current Total
Mortgage and pledge loans 14 84 98 99 82 181
Other loans 40,194 44,550 84,744 51,571 26,967 78,538
Finance lease arrangements 215 448 663 452 929 1,381
Credit and discount lines - 6,284 6,284 - 5,960 5,960

40,423 51,366 91,789 52,122 33,938 86,060

Average interest rates accrued by these borrowings are as follows:

Percentage
2019 2018
Loans 3.57% 3.57%
Finance lease arrangements 5.87% 3.23%
Credit and discount lines 2.30% 2.27%
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The annual maturity date of these liabilities is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Within 1 year 51,366 33,937
Between 1 and 2 years 16,586 18,011
Between 2 and 3 years 13,163 14,591
Between 3 and 4 years 9,427 11,065
Between 4 and 5 years 1,163 7,871
More than 5 years 84 585
91,789 86,060

At December 31, 2019 part of these liabilities, equal to 444 thousand euros is denominated in U.S.
dollars (718 thousand euros at December 31, 2018).

At December 31, 2018 and 2019, the shares of several subsidiaries are pledged in favor of six financial
institutions as a guarantee for the credit line (RCF), whose utilization limit amounts to 200 million euros.
At December 31, 2019 the Group has drawn down a total of 25 million euros from this credit line (no
amount drawn down at prior year end). This drawdown accrues interest at an annual rate of 3% and
matures in June 2020. This facility drawdowns are subject to the fulfilment of certain leverage covenants.

At December 31, 2019 the undrawn amount of credit and discount lines is 18,947 and 1,290 thousand
euros, respectively, without considering the credit line commented in the paragraph above. These figures
amounted to 18,126 and 3,439 thousand euros, respectively, at 2018 year end.

Finally, at December 31, 2019 and 2018 the guarantees given by credit institutions and insurance

companies to the Group, in connection with official concessions were 149,128 and 100,713 thousand
euros, respectively.

16. OTHER NON-TRADE PAYABLES

The breakdown of this caption is the following:

2019 2018
Non- Non-
(Thousands of euros) current Current Total current Current Total
Public administrations - 67,549 67,549 5 73,380 73,385
Bills payable 1,617 4,439 6,056 268 2,528 2,796
Other payables 41,315 124,216 165,531 31,698 97,849 129,547
42,932 196,204 239,136 31,971 173,757 205,728

The current portion corresponds to gaming taxes with a short-term maturity (2019: 29,133 thousand
euros, 2018: 35,771 thousand euros), outstanding settlements (not due) for the personal income tax,
VAT, social security contributions and similar concepts.

Bills payable correspond mainly to debts arising from the acquisition of companies and operations of
slot machines with deferred payment, discounted at market interest rate.

The caption Non-current sundry creditors mainly includes:

e  Asset suppliers amounting to 9,138 thousand euros (8,206 thousand euros at prior year end).

o Non-current payable amount related to certain investments in Panama corresponding to a payable
balance related to an investment agreement amounting to 6,264 thousand euros. The debt derived
from this investment will be settled through 239 equal monthly instalments of 71 thousand dollars,
including interest, the first payment being in February 2018 until February 2038. At December 31,
2019 the payable amount classified as non-current amounts to 5,713 thousand euros (5,935
thousand euros at December 31, 2018).
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e Several payables for common transactions amounting to 13,056 thousand euros, with an

undetermined maturity (11,061 thousand euros at prior year end).

e Non-current payable amount related to the acquisition of companies in Spain and the Dominican
Republic at year end amounting to 6,247 thousand euros and 979 thousand euros, respectively

(1,849 thousand euros and 2,124 thousand euros, respectively, at prior year end).

The caption Current sundry creditors mainly includes:

at December 31, 2018).

[

Asset suppliers amounting to 32,627 thousand euros (23,454 thousand euros at 2018 year end).
Payables for the rendering of services amounting to 41,036 thousand euros (26,566 thousand euros

Current borrowings amounting to 6,779 thousand euros (9,380 thousand euros at prior year end),

notably including the payable portion in 2019 for the investments in Peru and the Dominican

Republic mentioned above.

prior year) (Note 21.1).

17. NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

Employee benefits payable amounting to 21,835 thousand euros (23,241 thousand euros in the

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Personnel commitments 11,760 9,407
Tax contingencies 2,393 1,357
Other 582 1,330
Balance at December 31 14,735 12,094

The amount recognized in Obligations in relation to employees mainly consists of probable
contingencies with the personnel in Italy, the incentive plan for the Group’s executives, and retirement

incentives.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 the amount shown under the caption ‘Others’ mainly consists of

provisions for several risks and fines that are individually irrelevant.

The inter-annual variation of the balance is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Balance at January 1 12,094 18,396
Net charges for the year 5,922 5,179
Provisions utilized (3,705) (10,062)
Additions due to acquisition of companies 248 -
Exchange gains (losses) 176 198
Disposals due to sale of companies - (1,617)
Balance at December 31 14,735 12,094
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18. TAXES
18.1 Taxgroup

In Spain, Cirsa Enterprises, S.L., together with 65 Spanish group companies, meets the requirements
set by tax regulations to form a consolidated tax group, represented by the subsidiary Cirsa Gaming
Corporation, S.A. There are two more consolidated tax groups in Spain: the first one of them consists of
7 companies, the parent of which is the subsidiary Orlando Play, S.A.; and the second one consists of
17 companies, the parent of which is the subsidiary Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A.

The other Group companies file income tax returns separately in accordance with applicable tax
legislation in each country.
18.2  Accrued and payable income tax

The annual tax expense that has been entirely recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account,
since the Group has direct tax impacts on equity, is broken down as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Current 56,142 39,073
Deferred for (increase) decrease in tax credits related to tax loss carryforwards and deductions 1,952 2,676
Deferred for temporary differences (33,086) 1,029
Other (10,302) (14,400)
14,706 28,378

‘Other’ includes, among others, the tax effects derived from amortization and other accounting
revaluation adjustments as a result of the business combination of the Cirsa Group in 2018.

Income tax payable amounts at 17,904 thousand euros at December 31, 2019 (13,064 thousand euros

at December 31, 2018) and mainly corresponds to the current income tax accrued in the several
jurisdictions net of withholdings and payments on account for the period.

18.3  Analysis of tax expense

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018

Profit before tax 26,286 33
Tax rate prevailing in Spain 25% 25%
Theoretical income tax expense 6,572 8

Adjustments — Effect of:

Different tax rates prevailing in other countries 5,399 5,261
Impairment losses on assets and goodwill recognized solely for consolidation purposes 2,000 -
Revaluation of assets and recorded solely for consolidation purposes (22,220) -
Utilization of tax credits and deductions for the year (4,010) -
Utilization of (capitalized and uncapitalized) tax credits and deductions in prior years - 3,705

Limitation on the deductibility of financial expenses in Spanish companies that will not be
recovered 27,088 9,708
Other non-deductible expenses and other (122) 9,696
14,706 28,378

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 the effect of corrections in different tax rates mainly corresponds to the
higher taxes applied in Mexico and Colombia.

At December 31, 2019 the effect of the impairment of assets recorded for consolidated purposes is due
to impairment losses on Peruvian intangible assets and to the income from the revaluation of the
ownership interest in Sportium as a result of the business combination carried out during the year.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 there is a limitation on the deductibility of finance costs with a negative
effect on the tax expense. Additionally, at December 31, 2019 and 2018 non-deductible expenses
consist, among others, of portfolio charges carried out by subsidiaries in Latin American countries.

48



18.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Assets
Tax loss carryforwards from the consolidated tax group represented by Cirsa Gaming
Corporation, S.A. 35,039 26,431
Tax loss carryforwards from the consolidated tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A. 939 1,169
Tax loss carryforwards from the consolidated tax group whose parent is Sportium Apuestas
Deportivas, S.A. 4,490 -
Tax loss carryforwards from other group companies 142 1,254
Related to deductible temporary differences:
--- Impaired receivables 233 480
--- Impaired securities portfolio 11 10
--- Goodwill impaired in individual books 1,060 743
--- Intragroup margin write-off 7 5,628
--- Non-accounting impairment for tax purposes 528 1,924
Non-deductible amortization for accounting purposes 531 759
--- Leases 1,790 -
--- Other 16,568 7,182
61,337 45,580
Liabilities
Related to taxable temporary differences:
--- Tax provision for maximum gaming prizes (86) (8,173)
--- Difference between tax depreciation and accounting depreciation - -
--- Non-accounting impairment for tax purposes (732) (2,364)
--- Margin write-offs (2,039) (1,974)
--- Business combinations (initial statement of non-current assets at fair value) (303,205) (275,133)
--- Other (536) (1,770)
(306,597) (289,414)

The Group estimates the taxable profits which it expects to obtain within the utilization period based on
budgets. It also analyzes the reversal period of taxable temporary differences, identifying those that
reverse in the years in which unused tax loss carryforwards may be used, considering the application of
the Royal Decree-Law mentioned above. Based on this analysis, the Group has recorded deferred tax
assets for unused tax loss carryforwards as well as unused deductions and deductible temporary
differences for which it is considered probable that sufficient taxable profit will be generated in the future

against which they can be utilized within a reasonable period of time.

The breakdown of unused tax loss carryforwards at December 31, 2019 for the three tax groups
represented by Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A., the subsidiary Orlando Play, S.A., and Sportium

Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. is as follows:

(ELEET S i Unused tax loss carryforwards

euros)
Arising in Tax group represented by Cirsa Tax group whose parent  Tax group whose parent is Sportium
Gaming Corporation, S.A. is Orlando Play, S.A. Apuestas Deportivas, S.A.

2000 34 - -
2001 1,890 - -
2003 5,191 - -
2004 10,523 - -
2005 23,894 - -
2006 276 937 -
2007 11,790 396 -
2008 564 372 2,605
2009 7,241 1,241 4,376
2010 10,889 - 1,021
2011 38,155 - 1,714
2012 9,381 - 301
2013 238 - 5,893
2014 24,347 - 4,092
2015 221 596 2,760
2016 257 908 -
2017 3 - -
2018 15,672 2,251 -

160,567 6,701 22,760
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Tax group represented by Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 said tax group recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 35,039
and 26,431 thousand euros, respectively, relating to unused tax loss carryforwards of the tax group. No
deferred tax assets were recorded for the rest of unused tax loss carryforwards (which at December 31,
2019 amount to 20,412 thousand euros; 17,098 thousand euros at December 31, 2018), since their
future application is uncertain within a reasonable period of time.

In addition to tax credits for tax loss carryforwards, the tax group whose parent is Cirsa Gaming
Corporation, S.A. holds additional tax credits amounting to 45,393 thousand euros at December 31,
2019 (2018: 52,534 thousand euros), for unused tax deductions that were not capitalized for not meeting
the terms to be utilized.

(Thousands of euros)

Last year for utilization Unused deductions at December 31, 2019
2019 2,664
2020 2,486
2021 6,591
2022 865
2023 903
2024 1,290
2025 566
2026 419
2027 1,675
2028 717
2029 252
2030 284
2031 268
2032 228
2033 188
2034 192
2035 209
2036 141

No time limit for utilization 25,456

45,393

Tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A.
In 2010 the tax group 502/10 whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A. was constituted.

At December 31, 2019 the tax group had recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 939 thousand
euros (1,169 thousand euros at prior year end) corresponding to unused tax loss carryforwards.

Additionally, said tax group has deferred tax assets related to unused tax loss carryforwards and unused
deductions amounting to 736 and 717 thousand euros, respectively (756 and 744 thousand euros,
respectively, at the prior year) for which the corresponding deferred tax assets have not been
recognized, since the requirements established by the applicable framework for financial information are
not met.

Tax group whose parent is Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A.

In 2012 the tax group 324/12 whose parent is Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. was constituted. As
a result of the purchase of the remaining 50% of Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. by the Group,
mentioned in Notes 1.3 and 4.1, the Sportium subgroup has been accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements of the Cirsa Group using the full consolidation method. As a result of this event,
from the following year, the tax group was dissolved and integrated into the tax group whose parent is
Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.

At December 31, 2019 the tax group had recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 5,690 thousand
euros (2,857 thousand euros at prior year end) corresponding to unused tax loss carryforwards. This tax
group has no unused tax loss carryforwards or unused deductions for which the corresponding asset
has not been recorded.
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18.5 Other information

Under prevailing tax regulations, tax returns may not be considered final until they have either been
inspected by the tax authorities, or until the corresponding inspection period has expired.

On March 7, 2018 the Group was notified of the start of general verification and investigation
proceedings regarding the corporate income tax for the years 2013 to 2016 of the 26/94 tax
consolidation group and, on a separate basis, of the companies Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A., Cirsa
International Gaming Corporation, S.A., Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A., Juegomatic, S.A.,
Uniplay, S.L. and Universal de Desarrollos Electrénicos, S.A.

On the same date, the Group was also notified of the start of partial verification and investigation
proceedings regarding the Value Added Tax, of the group of entities included in the regime of entities
for that tax, for the periods comprised between February 2014 and December 2016. Additionally, for
these companies, the Group was also notified of the start of general verification proceedings, for the
periods comprised between February 2014 and December 2016, regarding withholdings of employees
and professionals.

On June 17, 2019 all inspections were concluded. Agreement assessments were signed and a total
expense of 244 thousand euros was recorded (and paid).

In general, the prescription periods for countries where the Group has significant presence are between
four and five years after the end of the statutory period for filing tax returns. Group Management

considers that no significant contingencies exist that would arise as a result of a tax review of the years
open to inspection.

19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As explained in Notes 1 and 2.1, all the activities of the group’s business in Argentina, which was sold
in 2018 are shown as discontinued operations.

The income statement of discontinued operations breaks down as follows:

(Thousands of euros) Notes 2018

Income from gaming activities 131,373
Other operating income 8,633
Bingo prizes (19)
Total operating income 139,987
Variable rent (602)
Total operating income net of variable rent 139,385
Cost of sales (2,906)
Employee benefits expense 211 (33,685)
Utilities and external services 21.2 (16,585)
Gaming taxes and other similar taxes (47,038)
Charge to depreciation and amortization and impairment of assets (7,419)
Change in operating provisions (24)
Finance income 1,073
Finance costs (2,902)
Change in financial provisions -
Gains/(losses) on investments in associates 582
Exchange gains / (losses), net 21.3 12,779
Gains/(losses) on disposal/derecognition of non-current assets (70)
Profit before tax 43,190
Income tax (15,458)
Net profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 27,732
Profit/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interests from discontinued operations (3,455)
Impact of the sale of companies in Argentina (264,643)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (240,366)
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The impact of the sale of Cirsa International Gaming Corporation, S.A. and its subsidiaries at the date
of sale (mainly Argentinean) derived from the selling price quantified at 136.7 million euros and the
impact of the derecognition from equity of the several accumulated effects thereof. This impact consists
of a positive effect on equity of 26 million euros and negative effects on equity due to the reclassification
to the income statement of translation differences and non-controlling interests for the remaining
amount.

The cash flows would break down as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2018

Cash flows from operating activities 21,419
Cash flows from investing activities (28,942)
Cash flows from financing activities (7,449)
Net cash flows (14,972)

20. LEASES
20.1 Group as lessee

The Group has entered into leases on several buildings and vehicles for an average term between three
and ten years, with no renewal clauses.

The Group has also entered into leases on machines with contracts that can be extended annually or
which expire within less than 12 months, and on other office equipment of low value.

The table below shows the book values of the right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during
the period:

Translation
Balance at differences and Balance at
(Thousands of euros) January 1, 2019 Additions Disposals other changes December 31, 2019
COST
Buildings 259,632 82,518 (1,382) 153 340,921
Vehicles 8,415 2,682 (58) 10 11,050
268,047 85,200 (1,439) 163 351,971
DEPRECIATION
Buildings - (44,100) 616 (58) (43,452)
Vehicles - (3,305) 16 3) (3,291)
- (47,405) 632 (61) (48,833)
Impairment losses - - - - -
Net carrying amount 268,047 37,795 (807) 102 305,137

The book value of lease liabilities and movements during the period are as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019

Balance at January 1 268,047
Additions 85,200
Disposals (166)
Interest accrued on finance leases 16,966
Exchange gains (losses) 2,598
Payments (58,384)
Balance at December 31 314,261
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In turn, the annual maturity of finance lease liabilities es as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019
Within 1 year 60,200
Between 1 and 2 years 33,692
Between 2 and 3 years 29,246
Between 3 and 4 years 31,786
Between 4 and 5 years 24,550
More than 5 years 134,787
314,261
The amounts recognized in the income statement are as follows:
(Thousands of euros) 2019
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 47,405
Interest accrued on finance leases 16,966
Expenses from low-value, short-term and variable leases 28,052
Gains/(losses) on derecognition of right-of-use assets 641
93,064

The Group made lease payments amounting to 58,384 thousand euros in 2019.

21. INCOME AND EXPENSES

21.1 Employee benefits expense
2019 2018

Continuing Continuing Discontinued

(Thousands of euros) operations operations operations
Wages and salaries 205,534 228,760 23,653
Social Security 44,090 39,734 7,869
Termination benefits 7,980 3,491 581
Other 10,294 9,865 1,582
267,898 281,850 33,685

Remunerations pending payment at December 31, 2019 and 2018 (21,835 and 23,241 thousand euros,
respectively) are included in Other non-trade payables - Sundry creditors (Note 16).

21.2  Utilities and external services
2019 2018

Continuing Continuing Discontinued

(Thousands of euros) operations operations operations
Publicity, advertising, and public relations 52,266 45,383 2,182
Leases and royalties 36,475 90,064 1,609
Professional services 35,283 26,052 2,119
Utilities 28,852 26,065 3,532
Repairs and maintenance 20,204 17,491 2,204
Postal services, communications and telephone 10,800 9,809 548
Bank services et al. 9,675 8,387 686
Security services 9,201 8,948 941
Other services 9,098 20,193 1,383
Cleaning services 8,585 7,641 376
Travel expenses 8,457 9,334 239
Insurance premiums 4,875 5,774 120
Transportation 1,691 1,462 646
Development costs and patents (Note 6.2) 12 66 -
235,474 276,669 16,585
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21.3 Exchange gains (losses)

2019 2018
Continuing Discontinued
(Thousands of euros) Continuing operations operations operations
Gains 24,286 14,013 133,380
Losses (24,652) (25,526) (120,601)
(366) (11,513) 12,779

Net exchange gains/(losses) from translation of financial balances in foreign currency between Group
companies are recognized in Translation differences, as a component that decreases shareholders’
equity at December 31, 2019 by 9,361 thousand euros (2018: it decreased shareholders’ equity by 594
thousand euros), since they are considered as exchange gains/(losses) arising from monetary
components of a net investment in a foreign business.

22. RELATED PARTIES

No Cirsa Group-related companies have entered into any transactions or have any outstanding balances
with other subsidiaries of LHMC Topco, S.a.r.l. or the Blackstone Group.

23. CONTINGENCIES

The Group has litigation proceedings, claims and other administrative procedures underway as a result
of the normal course of business in the countries where it carries out its activity. However, the Group
does not expect that any unprovisioned significant liabilities will arise as a result of the above
proceedings.

24, INFORMATION ON ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Given the characteristics of the activities performed by the group companies, at year end it was not
necessary to record any expenses and/or investments related to transactions for preventing, reducing
or repairing environmental damage.

25. AUDIT FEES

Fees and expenses paid for the audit services provided by the main auditors and other firms belonging
to the auditor’s international network amounted to 808 thousand euros in 2019 (2018: 740 thousand
euros). The fees and expenses for the audit services provided by other auditors amount to 249 thousand
euros in 2019 (2018: 228 thousand euros).

In addition, fees and expenses paid for other services provided by the main auditors or other related
entities amounted to 869 thousand euros in 2019 (2018: 571 thousand euros).
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26. OTHER RELATED PARTIES

The breakdown of the remuneration earned by the key executives of Group Management is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits 4,021 3,600
Other long-term benefits 3,603 1,000
(Net) payments in LHMC Topco S.a.r.l. shares - 20,000
7,624 24,600

No additional transactions have been carried out and no other outstanding balances exists with group-
related parties.

27. OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to credit risk, interest risk, exchange risk and liquidity risk during the normal
development of its activities.

The Group's main financial instruments include bonds, bank loans, credit and discount lines, financing
obtained through the deferral of gaming taxes, financial leases, deferred payments for purchase of
businesses, and cash and current deposits.

The Group's policy establishes that no trading in derivatives (exchange rates insurance) to manage
exchange rate risks arising from certain fund sources in U.S. dollars will be undertaken. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to cover fluctuations in interest rates, either.

27.1 Credit risk

Most of the operations carried out by the Group are in cash. For receivables from other activities, the
Group has established a credit policy and risk exposure in collection is managed in the ordinary course
of business. Credit assessments are carried out for all customers who require a limit higher than 60
thousand euros.

Guarantees on loans and credit risk exposure are shown in Note 9.

27.2 Interest rate risk

External finance is mainly based on the issuance of corporate bonds at fixed and floating interest rate.
Bank borrowings (credit policies, trading discounts, financial lease agreements) as well as deferred
payments with public administrations and other long-term non-trade payables have a variable interest
rate that is reviewed annually. Previous Notes show interest rates of debt instruments.

The breakdown of liabilities that accrue interests at 2019 and 2018 year end is as follows:

2019 2018

Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
(Thousands of euros) interest rate interest rate interest rate interest rate
Bonds 1,462,278 484,116 1,111,727 413,173
Bank borrowings - 91,789 - 86,060
Other payables - 19,901 - 32,091
Finance lease liabilities 314,261 - - -

1,766,539 595,806 1,111,727 531,324

At December 31, 2019 financial liabilities at a fixed interest rate represented 71% of total liabilities (68%
at 2018 year end). In this regard, the Group’s sensitivity to fluctuations in interest rates is low: a variation
of 100 basis points in floating rates would lead to a change in the result amounting to 5,959 thousand
euros in 2019 and 5,314 thousand euros in 2018.
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The Group estimates that fair value of the financial liabilities’ instruments does not differ significantly
from the accounted amounts, except for that indicated in Note 14.

The breakdown of assets that accrue interests at 2019 and 2018 year end is as follows:

2019 2018

Fixed Floating Fixed Floating

(Thousands of euros) interest interest rate interest interest rate
Loans to joint ventures and associates 3,408 - 5,763 -
Loans to third parties 13,768 16,105 5,193 13,932
Guarantees and deposits 28,989 - 24,826 -
Fixed income securities and deposits 12,551 - 1,198 -
58,716 16,105 36,980 13,932

The Group estimates that the fair value of the assets’ financial instruments does not differ significantly
from the net book value.

27.3 Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk in businesses located in Latin America, which affect
significantly sales and expenses, Group results and the value of certain assets and liabilities in
currencies other than the euro. It is also affected to a lesser extent by granted and received loans. The
currency that basically generates exchange risks is the US dollar, since a portion of the corporate bonds
is issued in US dollars.

In order to reduce risks, the Group conducts policies aimed to keep balanced collection and payments
in cash of assets and liabilities in foreign currency.

The following study on sensitivity shows the foreign currency risk:

. Sensitivity of the profit for the year before tax against fluctuations of the exchange rate US

dollar/euro
Thousands of Thousands of

euros euros
Change 2019 2018
+10% (2,520) (4,020)
+5% (1,320) (2,106)
-5% 1,459 2,328
-10% 3,080 4914

27.4  Liquidity risk

The exposure to unfavorable situations of debt markets can make difficult or prevent from hedging the
financial needs required for the appropriate development of Group activities.

At December 31, 2019 the Group shows negative working capital amounting to 27,543 thousand euros
(41,077 thousand euros positive at December 31, 2018). Nonetheless, Group Management considers
that cash flow generated by the business and available credit lines will allow the Company to cover its
current liabilities. Additionally, the Group obtains very high EBITDA, as shown in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, which allows it to face debt service without cash difficulties.
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Additionally, to manage liquidity risk, the Group applies different measures:

o Diversification of financing sources through the access to different banking and capital markets.
In this regard, the Group has an additional borrowing capacity (see quantitative data in Note 15).

e Credit facilities committed for the sufficient amount and flexibility. Accordingly, the Group has
available cash and cash equivalents amounting to approximately 123 million euros at December
31, 2019 (2018: 115 million euros), to meet unexpected payments.

e The length and repayment schedule for financing through debt is established based on the
financed needs.

In this regard, the Group’s liquidity police ensure to meet its payment obligations without requiring the
access to funds in costly terms.

Additionally, it is noteworthy that both at Group and individual business level, the Group performs
projections regularly on the generation and expected cash needs, in order to determine and monitor the
Group'’s liquidity position.

The relevant information on the maturity dates of financial liabilities based on contractual terms is broken
down in Notes 14, 15 and 16.

28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The main objectives of the Group's capital management are to ensure financial stability in the short and
long term, appropriate return rates, increased business value and ensure proper and adequate financing
of investments and projects to be conducted in a framework of controlled expansion.

The Group's strategy in 2019 is to enhance the more profitable business and to act decisively on the
deficit operations, to significantly improve the results and net cash flows. Control of investments and
costs restraint have also been established as a priority action, with satisfactory results.

As stated in Note 14, the contracts entered into in relation to corporate bonds issued include limitations
on the payment of dividends. The Company does not intend to distribute dividends in the short to medium
term given that the Group policy is not to distribute dividends.

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization labelled the public health emergency situation caused
by the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak a global pandemic. The rapid escalation of events, in both
Spain and worldwide, is resulting in an unprecedented health crisis that will have an impact on the
macroeconomic environment and business evolution. To tackle the issue, the Spanish Government
declared, among other measures, a state of emergency through Royal Decree 463/2020, of March 14,
and approved a set of extraordinary urgent measures to address the economic and social impact of
COVID-19, through Royal Decree Law 8/2020 of March 17.

The Group considers that these events do not entail any adjustment to the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019, although they could have an impact on the Company’s operations and,
therefore, results and future cash flows.

Given the complexity and rapid escalation of events, it is not currently practicable to make a reliable
guantified estimate of their potential impact on the Group. Should there be an impact, it would be
recorded prospectively in the 2020 financial statements.

The Group is taking appropriate action to deal with the events and minimize their impact, and considers
that this is a temporary situation that according to the latest estimates and current cash position will not
compromise the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so it will be able to meet its financial
obligations.
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Cirsa’s activity will be affected by the temporary close-down of bars, casinos, gaming halls, bingos,
sporting bets and our manufacturing facilities as a result of the guidelines set out by the governments
of the countries in which Cirsa operates.

We would like to inform that Management is doing its best to minimize and mitigate the interruption of
the business and its costs. This includes a cash management emergency plan to ensure Cirsa’s cash
position through detailed prioritization of all payments and optimization of financing sources.

Due to these recent guidelines, on March 13, 2020 the Group drew down its Revolving Credit Facility
(RDF) in full as a precautionary measure. As a result, the Group has over 350 million euros in cash in
the balance sheet.

Additionally, from December 31, 2019 to the date these financial statements were authorized for issue,
no additional significant events took place that required the extension or modification of the contents of
these financial statements.
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The undersigned, whose positions are indicated under their names, hereby CERTIFY the accuracy and

integrity of the special-purpose consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2019 of Cirsa
Enterprises Group.

Terrassa, March 23, 2020

Mr. Joaquin Agut Mr. Lionel Yves Assant Mr. Haide Hong
Chair Vice-Chair Vice-Secretary

Mr. Miguel Garcia Mr. Antonio Hostench
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List of subsidiaries

Appendix

Ownership Ownership
Percentage Percentage
Company Activity 2019 2018 Investment holder Business address City Province/Country
Administradores De Personal En
Entretenimiento, SA de CV Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Bincamex, S.A. de CV. Guillermo Gonzalez Camanera, 660 Piso 8 México D.F. México
Ajar, S.A. Bingos 75,00% 75,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Av. Mufioz Vargas, 18 Huelva Huelva
Alfematic, S.A. Operacional 50,00% 50,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Rellinars, 345 Terrassa Barcelona
Amical Trading, S.L. Operacional 76,76% 76,76% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. C/ Pii Margall, 201 Terrassa Barcelona
Ancon Entertainment, INC. Casinos 50,00% 50,00% Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U. Calle 50 y 73 Este San Francisco Ciudad de Panama Panama
Apple Games 2000, S.L. Operacional 49,50% 49,50% Egartronic, S.A. Sequia de Favara, 11 Picanya Valencia
Apuestas Electronicas, S.L.U. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Comercial de Recreativos Salamanca, S.A.U. C/ 19y 21, modulo 12, nave 2 P.I. El Nevero Badajoz Badajoz
Automaticos Essan, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Recreativos Ergosa, S.L.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Alcazar de San
Automaticos Manchegos, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Interservi, S.A. Crta. Nacional 420, km 286 Juan Ciudad Real
Automaticos Maxorata, S.A. Operacional 55,00% 55,00% Comercial Jupama, S.A. c/ Suarez Naranjo, 45 Las Palmas Gran Canaria
Azibi Horta, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Talzen Inversions, S.L.U. Pl. Ibiza, 21 Barcelona Barcelona
Badamatic, S.A.U. Operacional 50,00% - Radiamon, S.L. Crta. De Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Bar Juegos, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Barnabing, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Inversiones Zental, S.L.U. C/ Calaf, 23 Igualada Barcelona
Barna-Center, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% - Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Barnaplay, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Miky, S.L. Paseo Maragall, 103 - 105 Barcelona Barcelona
Bema - Euromatic, S.A. Operacional 60,71% 60,71% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Bicondal, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Inversiones Zental, S.L.U. Avenida Paralelo, 91-93 Barcelona Barcelona
Billares Valencia, S.L. Operacional 100,00% - Coinland,S.A.U. C/ Convento Santa Clara, 11 Valencia Valencia
Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U.y Global
Binale, S.A. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Bingo Madrid, S.A.U General Ricardos, 176 Madrid Madrid
Bincamex, S.A. de C.V. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% International Mex Business, S.L.U. Cantd, 9 - 601. Colonia Nueva Anzures Meéxico D.F. México
Bincano, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Elcano, 30-32 Bilbao Vizcaya
Bingaser, A.LE. Bingos - 100,00% Varios Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Bingo Santven, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. N-340 Km. 1189 El Vendrell Tarragona
Bingos Andaluces, S.A. Bingos 50,00% 50,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Asuncion, 3 Sevilla Sevilla
Bingos Benidorm, S.A. Bingos 50,00% 50,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Plaza Doctor Fleming, s/n Benidorm Alicante
Bingos de Madrid Reunidos, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Bingos Electronicos De Panamd, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Gaming & Services De Panama, S.A.U. Calle 50 y 73 Este San Francisco Panaméa Panaméa
Bis Line, S.L. Operacional 87,60% - Giga Game System Operation,S.L.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Bumex Land, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Elcano, 30-32 Bilbao Vizcaya
Calpe Leisure, S.A. Operacional 85,00% - Eleval, Electronicos Valencia, S.A.U. c/ German Bernacer, 22 P.I. Elche Elche Alicante
Candan, S.A. Operacional 100,00% - Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. C/ Colom , 495 bis Terrassa Barcelona
Candijoc, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% - Giga Game System Operation,S.L.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Casino Cirsa Valencia, S.A.U. Casinos Global Casino Technology Corporation, S.A.U. Avda. de las Cortes Valencianas, 59 Valencia Valencia
100,00% 100,00%
Casino El Cacique, S.A.U. Casinos - 100,00% Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U. Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
Global Casino Technology Corporation, S.A.U.
Casino Nueva Andalucia Marbella, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Ctra. Cadiz-Malaga Km. 180 Marbella Malaga
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.  Avda. George Washinton, 367 2° Piso Hotel Santo Domingo de
Casinos del Caribe, S.R.L. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Jaragua Guzman R. Dominicana
Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Casinos Pajaro Trueno, S.A.U. Casinos - 100,00% Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
Cat Games, S.L. Operacional 50,00% - Bis Line, S.L. y Tot Patrimoni, S.L. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Cirsa+, S.R.L. Operacional - 100,00% Cirsagest, S.P.A.U. Via Toscana, 31 Buccinasco Milan
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.
Cirsa Brasil Participagoes, LTDA. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Rua Gertrudes de Lima, n° 53 - Sala 42 Centro  Santo André Brasil
Cirsa Estrellas del Caribe, S.A.U. Casinos - 100,00% Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U. Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
Cirsa Finance International, S.A.R.L.U. Estructura 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Enterprises, S.L.U. Rue Eugene Rupert, 2 - 4 Luxemburgo Luxemburgo
Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Estructura 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Enterprises, S.L.U. Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Cirsa Gran Entretenimiento De Costa Rica, Casinos Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U. Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
S.AU. - 100,00%
Cirsa Interactive Corporation, S.L.U. B2B 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Cirsa Intenational Business Corporation, S.L.U.  Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. C/ Fermina Sevillano, 5 -7 Madrid Madrid
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.
Cirsa ltalia Holding, S.p.A.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Centro Direzionale Milanofiori, Strada 2 Assago (Milan) ltalia
Cirsa ltalia, S.p.A.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Italia Holding, S.p.A.U. Centro Direzionale Milanofiori, Strada 2 Assago (Milan) Italia
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Cirsa Retall, S.R.L. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Italia Holding, S.p.A.U. Milano Fiori, Strada 2, Palazzo D4 Assago Italia
Cirsa Servicios Corporativos, S.L.U. Estructura 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Cirsagest, S.P.A. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Italia Holding, S.p.A.U. Centro Direzionale Milanofiori, Strada 2 Assago Italia
Club Privado De Fumadores Nuestro Espacio Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Bingos de Madrid Reunidos, S.A.U. C/ Bravo Murilo, 309 Madrid Madrid
Coinland, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% - Eleval, Electronicos Valencia, S.A.U. C/ Guadalquivir, 84 Valencia Valencia
Comdibal 2000, S. L. B2B 75,50% 51,00% Universal de desarrollos Electronicos, S.A.U. PI. Els Bellots, c/ del Aire, 1 Terrassa Barcelona
Comercial de Desarrollos Electrénicos, S. A.U.  Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Pii Margall, 201 Terrassa Barcelona
Carbajosa de la
Comercial de Recreativos Salamanca, S.A.U. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Tecnoappel, S.L. C/ Cuarta, 17 P.I. El Montalvo Sagrada Salamanca
Comercial Jupama, S.A. Operacional 50,00% 50,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. c/ Suarez Naranjo, 45 Las Palmas Gran Canaria
Cotecnic 2000, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Digital Gaming México, S.A.P.l.de C.V. Apuestas 100,00% 65,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Boulevard Luis Donaldo Colosio, SA-1 Hidalgo México
Egartronic, S.A. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. C/ del Aire, 1 Pol. Ind. Els Bellots Terrassa Barcelona
Eleval, Electronicos Valencia, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% - Giga Game System Operation,S.L.U. C/ Guadalquivir, 84 Horno de Alcedo Valencia
Electrénicos Radisa, S.L. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
First Game, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% - Uniplay, S.A.U. C/ Fermina Sevillano, 5 -7 Madrid Madrid
Cirsagest, S.P.A.U. Centro Direzzionale Milanofiori Strada 2,
Elettronolo Firenze, S.R.L.U. Operacional - 100,00% Palazzo D4 Assago Milan
Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. y Global Ferrocarril, 38 Madrid Madrid
Ferrojuegos, S.A. Bingos - 100,00% Bingo Madrid, S.A.U.
Flamingo Euromatic-100, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Orlando Play, S.A. P.l. La Juaida, C/Sierra Telar, 40 Viator Almeria
Fomento Advenio 1, S.A. DE C.V. Bingos 100,00% - Bincamex, S.A. de CV. Monte Caucaso México D.F. México
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.
Gaming & Services de Panamé, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Calle 50, PH. Torre Global, piso 40 Ciudad de Panama Panama
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.
Gaming & Services, S.A.C. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Av. Ricardo Palma, 341 Miraflores Lima Pera
Garbimatic, S.L.U. Operacional 50,00% 50,00% Alfematic, S.A. Ctra. Rellinars, 345 Terrassa Barcelona
Garrido Player, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.
Gema, S.r.l.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Centro Direzionale Milanofiori, Strada 2, Pal D4 ~ Assago (Milan) Italia
Genper, S. A. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Pii Margall, 201 Terrassa Barcelona
Giga Game System Operation, S.L. Operacional 100,00% - Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. Crta. De Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Gimar Jocs, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Miky, S.L. Paseo Maragall, 103 Barcelona Barcelona
Gimenca,S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Inversiones Zental, S.L.U. Gran Via Corts Catalanes, 642 Barcelona Barcelona
Global Betting Aragén, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. C/ Jaime Ferran, 5 Pol. Ind. La Cogullada Zaragoza Zaragoza
Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Crta. Castellar. 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Global Bingo Madrid, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Global Bingo Stars, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Global Casino Technology Corporation, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Pii Margall, 201 Terrassa Barcelona
Global Real State, S.A.S.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Winner Group, S.A. Calle 90 No. 19C-32 P.4 Bogota Colombia
Gaming & Services de Panama, S.A.U. C/ Cuarta, Casa 39 - Urbanizacién Parque
Global TC Corp., S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Lefevre Panama Panama
Goldenplay, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Orlando Play, S.A. German Bernacer, 22 P.I. Elche Parque Ind. Elche Alicante
Grael, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% - Barna-Center, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Gran Casino Costa Brava, S.L. Casinos 90,00% - Giga Game System Operation,S.L.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Global Casino Technology Corporation, S.A.U.
Gran Casino de las Palmas, S.A. Casinos 51,00% 51,00% ¢/ Simén Bolivar, 3 Las Palmas Gran Canaria
Grasplai, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Telma Enea, S.L.U. Av. Generalitat, 6 Sta. Coloma Barcelona
Grevaloflal, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Talzen Inversions, S.L.U. Avda. de la Constitucié, 134 Castelldefels Barcelona
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.
Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
Hosteleria 1000, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% - Inversiones Zental, S.L.U. Plaza Ibiza, 21 Barcelona Barcelona
Iber Matic Games, S.L. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. C/ Jaime Ferran, 2-4 Zaragoza Zaragoza
llla Valles Hosteleria, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% - Barna-Center, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Instalaciones Recreativas Mallorca, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Talzen Inversions, S.L.U. Mallorca, 209 Barcelona Barcelona
Inmobiliaria Rapid, S.A.C. Casinos - 100,00% Gaming And Services, S.A.C. Av. Ricardo Palma, 341 Miraflores Lima Per(
Integracién Inmobiliaria World de Mexico, S.A. Promociones e Inversiones de Guerrero,
De C.V. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% S.A.P.l. De C.V. c/ Guillermo Gonzalez Camarena 600 Piso 8 Meéxico D.F. México
International Bingo Technology, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U Pii Margall, 201 Terrassa Barcelona
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Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.
International Mex Business, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Interplay, S.A.U. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Egartronic, S.A. C/ Francia, 26 y 27 Puerto Real Cadiz
Alcazar de San
Interservi, S.A. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Nacional 420, km 289 Juan Ciudad Real
Inversiones Interactivas, S.A. Casinos 70,00% 70,00% Orbis Development, S.A.U. C/ 57 y Avenida Obarrio Ciudad de Panama Panama
Inversiones Zental, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% - Giga Game System Operation,S.L.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Cirsa Internacional Business Corporation,
Investment & Securities Iberica, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% S.L.U. Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Juegomatic, S.A. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Av. Velazquez, 91 Malaga Malaga
Juegos De Azar Oliva Rodon, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% - Barna-Center, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Juegos Del Oeste, S.L.U. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Apuestas Electrénicas, S.L.U. C/ 19y 21, modulo 12, nave 2 P.I. El Nevero Badajoz Badajoz
Juegos San José, S. A. Bingos 47,50% 47,50% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. General Mas De Gaminde, 47 Bajos Las Palmas G.C. Gran Canaria
La Barra Ancon, S.A.U. Casinos 50,00% 50,00% Ancon Entertainment, Inc. Calle 50 y 73 Este San Francisco Ciudad de Panama Panama
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
La Barra Panama, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Calle 50 y 73 Este San Francisco Ciudad de Panama Panama
La Cafeteria del Bingo, S.L. Bingos 50,00% 50,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Asuncién, 3 Sevilla Sevilla
La Selva Inversiones, S.A.C.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Gaming And Services, S.A.C. C/ Jr. Loreto, 228 Tambopata Pera
Hotel Atlantic Palace Secteur balneaire et
Les Loisirs Du Paradis, S.A.R.L.U. Casinos 82,00% 82,00% Resort Paradise AB touristique Agadir Marruecos
L&G Bussines, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Castellar, 338 Terrassa Barcelona
Lightmoon International 21, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Lista Azul, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% |nternational Bingo Technology, S.A.U. Gran Passeig de Ronda, 87 Lleida LLeida
Losimai, S.A.U. Operacional - 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Av. De la Albufera, 129 Madrid Madrid
Macrojuegos, S.A. Bingos 51,00% 51,00% International Bingo Technology, S.A.U. Dionisio Guardiola, 34 Albacete Albacete
Majestic 507 Corp, S.A. Casinos 50,00% 50,00% Gaming & Services de Panama, S.A.U. Calle 50, Calle 73 Este Ciudad de Panama Panama
Magquilleiro, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Magqui-Ter, S.A. Operacional 51,00% - Eleval, Electronicos Valencia, S.A.U. Miguel de Cervantes, 12 Teruel Teruel
Marchamatic Indalo, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Orlando Play, S.A. C/Sierra Telar, 40 Viator Almeria
MCA Automatics, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Crta. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Merengue Bar Gran Casino Jaragua, GCJ, Sto. Domingo de
S.R.LU Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Casinos Del Caribe, S.R.L. Avda. George Washinton, 367 2° Piso Guzman R. Dominicana
Miky, S.L. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. c/ Paseo Maragall, 103 - 105 Barcelona Barcelona
Montri, S.A.U. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Iber Matic Games, S.L. C/ del Aire, 1 Pol. Ind. Els Bellots Terrassa Barcelona
New Laomar, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Orlando Play, S.A. c/Sierra Telar, 40 Viator Almeria
New York Game, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
Nightfall Construccions, S.R.L. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Avda. Abraham Lincoln Santo Domingo R. Dominicana
Nortia Real Estate Colombia, S.L.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Sant Antoni de
Oper lbiza, S.L. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. C/ dels Llauradors, 45 Portmany Baleares
Operacién Banshai, S.A.U. Casinos - 100,00% Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U. Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
Operadora de Entretenimiento Manzanillo, S.A.
de C.V. Bingos 60,00% 60,00% Bincamex, S.A. de CV. c/ Guillermo Gonzalez Camarena 600 Piso 8 Meéxico D.F. México
Operadora Internacional de Recreativos, S.A. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. c/ Cervantes, 14 1 Gijén Asturias
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
Orbis Development, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Swiss Tower, 16th floor, World Trade Center Ciudad de Panaméa Panaméa
Orlando ltalia, S.r.l. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Orlando Play, S.A. Milano Fiori, Strada 2, Palazzo D4 Assago Italia
Orlando Play, S.A. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Sierra Telar, 40 P.1. La Juaida Viator Almeria
Palabingo, S.R.L. Bingos 56,00% - Cirsa Retail, S.R.L.U. Via Casale, 22 Alessandria ltalia
Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U.
Patterson Lake Business Services, S.A.U. Casinos - 100,00% Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
Playcat, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% International Bingo Technology, S.A.U. Cadiz, 1 Terrassa Barcelona
Princesa 31, S.A. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. y Bingos de Princesa, 31 Madrid Madrid
Madrid Reunidos, S.A.U.
Promociones e Inversiones de Guerrero, S.A.P.1. Guillermo Gonzalez Camarena, 600 P8 Col.
de C.V. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Bincamex, S.A. de CV. Sfe México D.F. México
Sant Antoni de
Promociones Sol Ibiza, S.A. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Oper lbiza, S.L. C/ dels Llauradors, 45 Portmany Baleares
Giga Game System Operation,S.L.U. y Tot
Radiamon, S.L. Operacional 50,00% - Patrimoni. S.L. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
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Recrea, S.L. Operacional 80,00% - Giga Game System Operation, S.L.U. C/ C-k, P.l. Cami dels Frares Lleida LLeida
Recreativos Arranz, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Recreativos Ergosa, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Recreativos Hatuey, S.A. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Bema - Euromatic, S.A. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Alcazar de San
Recreativos Manchegos, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Interservi, S.A. Ctra. Nacional 420, Km 286 Juan Ciudad Real
Recreativos Martos, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Crta. De Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Recreativos Ociomar Levante, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Orlando Play, S.A. Ctra. De Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Recreativos Panaemi, S.L.U. Operacional 51,00% 51,00% Orlando Play, S.A. c/ German Bernacer, 22 P.l. Elche Murcia Murcia
Recreativos Sortia, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% - Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Recreativos Xativa, S.A. Operacional 55,00% - Eleval, Electronicos Valencia, S.A.U. C/ Guadalquivir, 84 Horno de Alcedo Valencia
Red de Bingos Andaluces, A.l.E. Bingos - 54,00% Varios Martillo, 26 Sevilla Sevilla
Red de Interconexion de Andalucia, S.L.U. B2B 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Interactive Corporation, S.L.U. Martillo, 26 Sevilla Sevilla
Red de salones de Aragén, S.L.U. B2B 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Interactive Corporation, S.L.U. Ctra. De Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Redeye Games, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% - Uniplay, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
Resort Paradise AB Casinos 82,00% 82,00% Box, 1432 Estocolmo Suecia
Romgar, S.L. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Telma Enea, S.L.U. Cayetano del Toro, 23 Cadiz Cadiz
S.A. Explotadora de Recreativos Operacional 90,00% 61,40% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. C/ del Aire, 1 Pol. Ind. Els Bellots Terrassa Barcelona
Sadeju, S.L.U. Bingos 65,00% 65,00% Telma Enea, S.L.U. c/ Carlota Alexandre, 106 Torremolinos Malaga
Sala Valencia, S.A. Bingos 50,00% 50,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Cuenca, 20 Valencia Valencia
Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. y Global
Sala Versalles, S.A. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Bingo Stars, S.A.U. Bravo Murillo, 309 Madrid Madrid
Salén de Juegos Portal, S.A.U. Casinos - 100,00% Gaming And Services, S.A.C. C/ Mercaderes, 303 Arequipa Pera
Sant Cugat del
Sant Cugat Desarrollo de Tecnologias, S.L.U. B2B 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Sena, n° 2 Valles Barcelona
Saturno 5 Conexién, S.L.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
SCB Almirante Dominicana, S.R.L Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Av. A. Lincoln , 403, La Julia Santo Domingo R. Dominicana
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
SCB Anil Dominicana, S.R.L. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Av. Maximo Gomez / Avda. 27 Febrero Santo Domingo R. Dominicana
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
SCB Grand Victoria Dominicana, SRL Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Avda. Abraham Lincoln Santo Domingo R. Dominicana
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U
SCB Hispaniola Dominicana, S.R.L. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Av. A. Lincoln /Correa y Cidron Santo Domingo R. Dominicana
Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U  Av. George Washington,centro comercial
SCB Malecon Dominicana, S.A. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Malecén Santo Domingo R. Dominicana
Sertebi, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Inversiones Zental, S.L.U. Avda. Sarria, 47 Barcelona Barcelona
Castell - Platja
Servi D’Aro, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% - Talzen Inversions, S.L.U. Avda. Estrasburgo, 11 D’Aro Girona
Servicios Especializados Del Juego, S.A. De Guillermo Gonzalez Camarena 600, Piso 8,
C.V. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Bincamex, S.A. de CV. Santa Fe México D.F. México
Servicios Integrales del Juego, A.LE. Estructura - 100,00% Varios Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Servicios y Distribucion de Recreativos, S.A.U.  Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Servi-Joc, S.A. Operacional 85,00% 51,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Rellinars, 345 Terrassa Barcelona
Sierra Machines, S.A.C. Casinos - 100,00% Gaming And Services, S.A.C. Av. Ricardo Palma, 341 Miraflores Lima Pera
Sobima, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% International Bingo Technology, S. A.U. Av. Velazquez 91-93 Malaga Malaga
Social Games Online, S.L. Apuestas 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Interactive Corporation, S.L.U. Ctra. Castellar, 338 Terrassa Barcelona
Societe Du Casino Le Mirage, S.A. Casinos 51,00% 51,00% Cirsa International Business Corporation, S.L.U.  Club Valtur STB, Parcelle n° 31 Agadir Marruecos
Sodemar, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Telma Enea, S.L.U. Sacramento, 16 duplicado Cadiz Cadiz
Sant Cugat Del
Sportium Apostes Catalunya, S.A.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Sena, 2 Valles Barcelona
Sportium Apuestas Andalucia, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Avda. Velazquez, 91 - 93 Malaga Malaga
Sportium Apuestas Aragon, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Jaime Ferran, 5 Zaragoza Zaragoza
Sportium Apuestas Asturias, S.A.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ B, Parcela 45B pol. Ind Asipo Cayes - Llanera Asturias
Sportium Apuestas Baleares, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Gremi des Sabaters, 21 Palma de Mallorca Mallorca
Sportium Apuestas Canarias, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Garcia Morato, 1 Telde Gran Canaria
Sportium Apuestas Castilla La Mancha, S.L.U.  Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Santa Maria Magdalena, 10 -12 Madrid Madrid
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Sportium Apuestas Ceuta, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Gran Via, 14 entreplanta, puerta A Ceuta Ceuta
Sportium Apuestas Colombia, S.A.S. Apuestas 100,00% 60,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Carrera 12 N° 93 - 78 Oficina 501 Bogota Colombia
Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. C/Santa M2 Magdalena, 10-12 Madrid Madrid
Sportium Apuestas Digital, S.A.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Independencia, 11 Ceuta Ceuta
El Grove - Isla de la
Sportium Apuestas Galicia, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Don Pedro, s/n Toja Pontevedra
Sportium Apuestas Levante, S.A.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Guadalquivir, 84 Horno de Alcedo Valencia
Sportium Apuestas Melilla, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Avda. Candido Lobera, 5 Atico 3 Melilla Melilla
Sportium Apuestas Navarra, S.A.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Avda. Barafiain, 27 1° A Pamplona Navarra
Sportium Apuestas Oeste, S.A.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Nevero Doce, Parcela 21 Badajoz Badajoz
Corregimiento de San Francisco, calle 50 y 73
Sportium Apuestas Panama, S.A. Apuestas 100,00% 60,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Este Panama Panama
Sportium Global Investments, SGI, S.A. Apuestas 100,00% 60,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso 3 San José Costa Rica
Sant Cugat del
Sportium Servicios de Gestion, S.L.U. Apuestas 100,00% - Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Sena, 2 Valles Barcelona
Sportium Zona Norte, S.A.U. Apuestas 100,00% 50,00% Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. C/ Las Balsas, 20 nave 49 Logrofio Logrofio
Talluntxe, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Pseo. Miramar, s/n Salou Tarragona
Talzen Inversions, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% - Inversiones Zental, S.L.U. Ctra. de Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Tecnijoc, S.L.U. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Egartronic, S.A. Gremio de Jaboneros, 3B Pol.l. Son Castello Palma de Mallorca Mallorca
Tecnoappel, S.L. Operacional 75,50% 51,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Pol Ind Campollano, calle B1 Albacete Albacete
Tecnologia y Sistemas, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% Eleval, Electronicos Valencia, S.A.U. C/ Guadalquivir, 84 Horno de Alcedo Valencia
Tefle, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% International Bingo Technology, S.A.U Tenor Fleta, 57 Zaragoza Zaragoza
Jerez de la
Telma Enea, S.L.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Sevilla, 10-14 Frontera Cadiz
Tres Rios Hotel la Carpintera, S.A.U. Casinos 100,00% 100,00% Grupo Cirsa De Costa Rica, S.A.U. Oficentro Ejecutivo La Sabana, Torre 6, Piso3  San José Costa Rica
Sant Cugat del
Unidesa Operations Services, S.|.U. B2B 100,00% 100,00% Universal de desarrollos Electronicos, S.A.U. C/ Sena, 2 Valles Barcelona
Uniplay, S.A.U. Operacional 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Fermina Sevillano, 5-7 Madrid Madrid
Universal de Desarrollos Electrénicos, S. A.U. B2B 100,00% 100,00% Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Castellar, 298 Terrassa Barcelona
Universal de Desarrollos Electronicos, S. A. De Guillermo Gonzalez Camanera, 660 Piso 9 Of.
C.V. B2B 100,00% 100,00% International Mex Business, S.L.U. 5 México D.F. México
Urban Leisure, S.L. Operacional 75,00% 75,00% Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Ctra. Rellinars, 345 Terrassa Barcelona
Verneda 90, S.A.U. Bingos 100,00% 100,00% International Bingo Technology, S.A.U. Guipuzcoa, 70 Barcelona Barcelona
Winner Group, S.A. Casinos 50,01% 50,01% Investments & Securities Iberica, S.A.U. Calle 90, n° 19¢-32, Oficina 401 Santa Fe de Bogotd  Colombia
DC
Yumbo San Fernando, S.A. Bingos 100,00% 60,00% Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. San Fernando, 48 Santander Cantabria
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AOG, S.r.l. Bingos 50,00% 50,00% Gema Srl. U. Via Langhena, 1 San Italia
Vendemiano
Santa Lucia de
Automaticos Quintana, S.L. Operacional 50,00% 50,00%  Comercial Jupama, S.A. C/ Parque de la libertad, 30 Tirajana Gran Canaria
Audiovisual Fianzas, S.G.R. Estructura 35,23% 35,23%  Varios ¢/ Luis Bufiuel, 2 22 Madrid Madrid
Bingo Amico, S.r.l. Bingos 50,00% 50,00%  Gema, S.r.l.U. Via Langhena, 1 San Vendemiano Italia
Binsavo, S. A. Bingos 50,00% 50,00%  Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Ruiz Morote, 5 Ciudad Real Ciudad Real
Casino la Toja, S.A. Casinos 50,00% 50,00%  Global Casino Technology Corporation, Isla de La Toja El Grove Pontevedra
Universal de Desarrollos Electrénicos, C/ Enrique Marifias, 36 planta 5 local
Cludeen, S.L. B2B 50,00% 50,00% S.A.U. 1B A Corufa A Coruia
Universal de Desarrollos Electronicos,
Compafiia Europea de Salones Recreativos, S.L. B2B 20,00% 20,00% S.AU. C/ Toledo, 137 Madrid Madrid
Competiciones Deportivas, S.A. Casinos 50,00% 50,00%  Gaming & Services de Panamé, S.A.U. Calle 50 y 73 Este San Francisco Panama Panama
Avda. de los Trabajadores, 12 P.I. La
Felix Jimenez Morante, S.A. Operacional 50,00% 50,00%  Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. Atalaya Torrijos Toledo
Gironina de Bingos, S.L. Bingos - 20,60% International Bingo Technology, S.A.U. Via Laietana, 51 Barcelona Barcelona
Ciudad de
Majestic Food Services, S.A.U. Casinos 50,00% 50,00%  Gaming & Services de Panamé, S.A.U. Calle 50, Calle 73 Este Panama Panama
Metroservi Andaluza de Salones, S.L. Bingos - 25,00%  Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. C/ Tipografia, 26 Sevilla Sevilla
Montecarlo Andalucia, S.L. Bingos 50,00% 50,00%  Global Bingo Corporation, S.A.U. Av. Cruz del Campo, 49 Sevilla Sevilla
Opa Services, S.r.l. Bingos 30,00% 30,00 A.0.G,Sr.l Torricella, 11 Roma Italia
Recreativos Miami, S.A.U. Operacional - 50,00%  Unién de Operadores Reunidos, S.A. Avda. Alcalde Portanet, 33 bajo Vigo Pontevedra
Avda. de los Trabajadores, 12 P.I. La
Recreativos Oropesa, S.L.U. Operacional 50,00% 50,00%  Felix Jimenez Morante, S.A. Atalaya Torrijos Toledo
Red de Juegos y Apuestas de Madrid, S.A. Bingos - 40,00% Varios C/Evaristo San Miguel, 2 Madrid Madrid
Universal de Desarrollos Electronicos,
Serdisga 2000, S. L. B2B 50,00% 50,00% S.A.U. Av. Finisterre, 283 La Corufa La Coruia
Unién de Operadores Reunidos, S.A. Operacional 50,00% 50,00%  Cirsa Slot Corporation, S.A.U. C/ Severo Ochoa, 3 A Corufa A Corufia
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT ON SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

To the Finance Management of Cirsa Enterprises, S.L.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying special purpose consolidated financial statements of
Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. (the Parent) and its Subsidiaries {the Group or Cirsa Enterprises
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31,
2018, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well
as the explanatory notes thereto, which include a summary of the significant accounting
policies (fogether known as “the consolidated financial statements”). The special purpose
consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Finance Management of Cirsa
Enterprises, S.L. on the basis of the financial reporting criteria described in Note 2, since
these were the criteria that the Parent Company considers most adequate to achieve the
purpose for which they were prepared.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared, in
all material respects, in conformity with the financiaf reporting criteria described in Note 2.

Basis for opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audgditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code).
Furthermore, we have complied with other ethical requirements in compliance with IESBA
Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter paragraph - Basis of accounting and restrictions on distribution and
utilization

We draw attention to the accompanying explanatory Note 2, which describes the basis of
the accounting principles and criteria used. As indicated in said note, the special purpose
consolidated financial statements have not been prepared to meet legal requirements and
have been mainly prepared to show one year of activity of the Cirsa Enterprises Group,
which would be different from that resuiting from the issuance of consolidated annual
accounts. Consequently, the consolidated financial statements may not be suitable for other
purposes. OQur report is intended solely for the Group’s Finance Management and must not
be distributed to or used by any other parties. Our audit opinion is not further qualified in
respect of this matter.
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Other matters

The special purpose consolidated financial statements have been audited applying
International Auditing Standards. This report can under no circumstances be considered an
audit report in the terms established by the prevailing audit regulations in Spain.

Responsibility of Finance Management for the consolidated financial statements

Finance Management are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying special
purpose consolidated financial statements in accordance with the financial reporting criteria
described in Note 2, and for the internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Finance Management are responsible for
assessing the Cirsa Enterprises Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Finance Management either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1AS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualfy or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with IAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parent Company's internal
control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Finance Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Finance Management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with the Finance Management of the Parent Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L.

Joan Tubau Roca

April 8, 2019
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Cirsa Enterprises Group
Consolidated financial statement of financial position at December 31

ASSETS
(Thousands of euros) Notes 2018 2017
Non-current assets 2,533,233 1,450,735
Goodwill 5 968,100 92912
Other intangible assels 8 1,103,676 399.188
Property, plant and eguipment 7 297,461 431,050
Investments accounted for using the equity method 8 78,890 57,820
Financial assels 9 39,426 113,225
Deferced tax assets 19.4 45,580 56,540
Current assets 307.546 464,749
Inveniories 12 17.803 17.753
Trade and other receivables 9 112.509 185,694
Olher financial assels g 14,886 32.544
Olher current assels 10.056 16.569
Cash and cash equivalents 13 162,192 212,189
Totalassets _ I - 2,840,779 1,615,484
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(Thousands of euros) Notes 2018 2017
Equity 666,757 12,842
Issued capital 141 70.663 24,577
Share premiom 14.1 635.940 9.500
Treasury shares 14.2 - (184)
Retained earnings 14.3 125,103 34,174
Translation differences (1.201) (362.632)
Profiv/(loss) for the year attribulable to the Parent (284.009) 70,828
Non-controlling interests 14.4 120,261 236,679
Non-current liabilities 1,907,553 1,179,650
Corporate bonds 15 1,521,952 938,536
Bank borrowings 16 52,122 37,927
Other non-lrade payables 17 31,971 63.570
Provisions 18 12.094 18.396
Deferred tax liabilities 19.4 289.414 121,221
Current liabilities 266.469 422,892
Corporate bonds 15 2,949 4,615
Bank borrowings 16 33,938 69,270
Trade payables 42,761 124,772
Other non-trade payables 17 173,757 208,926
Current income tax payable 19.2 13.064 15,309
Total equity and liabllities - 2,840,779 1,615,484




Cirsa Enterprises Group
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for the years ended December 31

2017
(Thousands of euros]) Notes 2018 {Restated)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income from gaming aclivilies 1,824,138 1,748,678
Other operating income 142,923 130,792
Bingo prizes (226.869) (217.863)
Total operating income 1,740,192 1,661,607
Variable rent (271,068) (265.661)
Total operating income net of variable rent 3.1 1,469,124 1,395,946
Cost of sales (71.276) (68,115)
Employee benefits expense 221 (281.850) (228,109)
Utilities and external services 222 (276.669) (256.656)
Gaming taxes and other similar taxes (511.044) (492.234)
Charge to depreciation and amorlization and impairment of assels 5,6 &7 (192,338) (176.513)
Change in operating provisions (3.249) {2.75%)
Finance income 2,249 4,012
Finance cosls (136.470) (68.100)
Chg. in financial provisions 3 -
Gains/(losses) on investments in associates 8 4,578 (90)
Exchange gains / (losses), net 223 (11,513) (1.275)
Gains/(losses) on disposal/derecognilion of non-current assets 8.488 {5.023)
Profit / (loss) before tax 33 101,084
Income tax 19.2 {28,378) {39.139)
Net proflt/(loss) for the year from continuing operations - (28,345) 61,945
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net profi/(loss) lor the year from discontinued operations 20 (240,366} 25,646
Net profiv{loss) for the year {268,711) 87,591
Profil/(loss) for the year atlributable to non-controlling interests 14.4 15.298 16.763
Profit/(loss) for the year atiributable to the Parent (264,009} 70,828

(*) Prior-vear figures have been restated as a result of the disposal of (he Argenlinean companivs, an activity that has been discontinued in the
current year.



Cirsa Enterprises Group
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for the years ended December 31

2017°
(Thousands of euros) Notes 2018 (Restated)
Net profit/{loss) for the year (268.711) 87,591
Exchange gains (losses) (1,.201) {54.863)
Tax effect - c
Total other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
in
subsequent years {1,201) (54,863}
Total other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss In -
subsequent years .
Total other comprehenslve income for the year, net of tax (269.912) 32,728
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Parent Company (285.210) 15,965
Non-controffing interests 14.4 15,298 16,763
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (269,912) 32,728
(*) Prior-year figures have been restated as a result of (he disposal of (e Argentincan companics, an activity (hut has been discontinued in the

current vear.



Cirsa Enterprises Group
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the years ended December 31

Troasury Rotalned Non-contralling
(Thousands of  Issued capital shaces eamings Translation Interests
auros) {Note 14.1)  Share pcamium (Note 14.2) {Nota 14.3) ditierences (Note 14.4} Toral

At Dacember
31,2016 24,677 9,600 _ (184) 34,174 (307,187) 250,954 11,834

Nel profiv/(ioss)

for lhe year

2017 (%) - - - 70.828 - 16,763 87.591
Other

comprehensive

ncome () - - - - {65.445) 582 (54.883)
Total 2017

comprehensive

Income 24,877 9,500 (184) 105,002 (362,632) 268,299 44,562

Other
movements:
« Addiions for
\he year -
Business
combinalions - - - - - 1,117 1,117
« Dividends
paid - - - . - (32,737) (32.737)

At Decomber
31,2017 24,577 9.500 (184) 106,002 (362,632) 236,679 12,942

Nel profiv(loss)

for the year

2018 {including

effect of sate of

Argenlinean

companies) - - - (284.009) 391,735 {92.660) 15,066

Olher

comprehensive

income - - - - (1.201) - (1.204)
Total 2018

comprehensive

Income 24,577 9,500 (184) (179,007) 27,902 144,019 26,807

Other
movemenis;

Conlnbution

by lhe Sole

Sharenolder,

net of the

purchase and

sale

Iransaction of

the Group 46,086 626,440 184 20,101 (29,103) 2,484 666,192

Dividends
paid - - - - - (26.242) (26.242)

At December
21, 2018 70,663 635,940 ) - {158,906) ~{1,201) 120,261 666,757

(*) Priot-year figures huve been restated as a result of the disposal of the Argentinean campanics, an activity thac has been discontinued in Ihe

currcnl year



Cirsa Enterprises Group
Consolidated cash flow statements
for the years ended December 31

2017¢
{Thousands of euros) Notes 2018 {Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profil/(loss) for the year before \ax 33 101,084
Adjustments lo profit/(loss) due to:
Change in operaling provisions 2,508 2,759
Deprecialion and amortization and impaiment losses on 568&7
non-currenl assets 193,082 176,512
Gains/(loss) on disposals/derecognition of non-current
assels (8.487) 5.022
Finance coslts 129,640 64,178
Exchange gains / (losses), net 223 11,513 1,275
Other 14 406 (5.501}
Change in:
Inventories (2.007) (1.152)
Trade and other receivables 3.759 1.569
Suppliers and other accounts payable 6,428 1,588
Gaming taxes payable (4.991) (1.217)
Other operaling assels and liabilities, net 2,444 (8,112)
Income tax paid (23.995) (36.954)
Net cash from continuing operations 324,330 300,061
Net cash from discontinued operations 21,419 35,872
Net cash from operating activities 345,750 335,923
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment (107,684) (96,769)
Acquisition of intangible assets (52.504) (47 421)
Proceeds from gisposal of praperly, plant and equipment 29,354 34
Acquisition of investments in other companies (55.058) (54,110)
Other financial invesiments (14,480) -
Interast received and income from financial investments 2.280 1,287
Net cash used in investing activities from continuing
operations {198.092) (196,979)
Net cash used In investing activities from discontinued
operations {28,942) (980)
Net cash used in Investing activities (227,034) (197,959)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
Cash inllows {rom bank loans 1,450,220 1,831,219
Cancelation of bank loans (1,470,600) (1,649,914)
Cancelation of bonds (977,600) -
Contribution by the Sole Shareholder, net of the purchase
ang sale transaction of the Group and new bond issue 948,664 -
Finance leases (400) -
Interesl paid (92.743) (65,102)
Dividends paid ang other payments {25.344) (16,570)




2017
_{Thousands of euros) Notes 2018 (Restated)

Net cash used in financing activities from conttnuing

operations {167,803) (100,367)
Net cash used In financing activities from discontinued

operations (7.449) (21.112)
Net cash used in financing activities (175,252) (121,479)
Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {56,536) 16,485
Net effect of exchange gains/{losses) on cash (3,459) (4,287)
Cash and cash equivalernits at January 1 212,188 139,991
Cash and cash equlvalents at December 31, from

continuing operations 152,192 175,099
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, from

discontinued operations - 37,090

(") Prior-year figures have been restaled as a result of The disposal of the Argenlincan companies, an activity that has been discontineed in the
current year.



Cirsa Enterprises Group
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

1. GROUP INFORMATION

1.1 Group activity

Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. (hereinafter the Company or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter the Group or the Cirsa Group) consist of a set of companies operating in the gaming and
leisure sector, carrying out the following activities:

« the design, manufacture and marketing of slot machines that are sold 1o both group companies
and third parties, and the development of interactive gaming mechanisms and systems.

¢ operation of slot machines, bingo halls and casinos, in both Spain and abroad.

Until December 31, 2017 the Cirsa Group parent company was Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. On July
3. 2018 the company Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. acquired 100% of the shares of Cirsa Gaming Corporation,
S.A. from the former shareholders. Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. formerly LHMC Bidco, S.L. was incorporated
on November 15, 2017. Information about this transaction is provided in Note 10.

Therefore, the new consolidatable group was born on July 3, 2018 with the inclusion of the Cirsa Gaming
Corporation, S.A. subgroup and the bond-issuing company, Cirsa Finance International, S.a.r.l., which
was incorporated on May 22, 2018. As indicated in sections 1.2 and 2.1, the consolidated annual
accounts of the Cirsa Group will be prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards by its
ultimate parent company in Luxembourg, LHMC Topco, S.a.r.l. They will be transiated and filed with the
Mercantile Registry in due time and form. Consequently, the Company meets the criteria for exemption
from preparing consolidated annual accounts under article 43 of the Commercial Code.

As a result of the foregoing, the accompanying consolidated financial statements cannot be considered
consolidated annual accounts under Spanish GAAP, but special-purpose consolidated financial
statements, whose purpose and basis of presentation are disclosed in section 2.1 below. Although these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a voluntary basis, they have been authorized
for issue by the Board of Directors as if it were a legal requirement.

The 2018 financial statements of the companies comprising the Group have yet to be approved by the
corresponding General Meetings of Shareholders or Owners. However, the Board of Directors of the
Group Parent expect that the aforementioned financial statements will be approved without significant
modification and, therefore, they will have no impact on the special purpose consolidated financial
statements.

1.2 Group structure

The Parent Company, which is domiciled in Madrid, at Calle Fermina Sevillano, 5-7, is a subsidiary of
its Sole Shareholder LHMC Midco, S.a.r.l., which is in turn a subsidiary of LHMC, Topco, S.a.r.l. (both
domiciled in Luxembourg, at Rue Eugéne Ruppert, 2-4). The fund that holds the shares of the new Cirsa
Enterprises Group is ultimately controlled by The Blackstone Group.

The details of the Company's subsidiaries at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are shown on Appendix |,
classified into the following categories:

e Subsidiaries: Subsidiaries are companies controlled either directly or indirectly by the Company so
that it can manage the financial and operating policies in order to obtain profit from the investment.



» Joint ventures: The jointly controlled companies are entities ruled by a contractual arrangement
between the partners whereby they establish joint control on the business, and which reguires the
unanimous consent of the venturers regarding the operating decisions.

e Agsociates: The associates are enterprises not included in the previous two categories and in which
there is an ownership interest on a long-term basis that favors their activity, but with limited influence
over their management and control.

(NOTA: The 'Ownership percentage’ column in Appendix | is obtained by multiplying the successive
percentages over the ownership chain and, therefore, shows the final ownership at Company level).

Joint operations in the Argentinean Temporary Joint Ventures (UTE CBA-CIESA and UTE CBA-Magic
Star were consolidated until the date of disposal. For comparative purposes, the information affecting
some of the items in the balance sheet in 2017 is as follows:

Figures affected
by ownership

percentage
{Thousands of euros) 2017
Non-current assels 7.360
Current assels 151,291
Non-current liabilities (18,760)
Current liabilities (14,771)

1.3 Changes in the scope of consolidation

During 2018 changes have been made to the legal structure of the Group. The most significant one has
given rise to the new consolidated Group, Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. and Subsidiaries.

Given the significance of this transaction, a summary thereof and all related considerations have been
disclosed in Note 10.

The changes in the scope of consolidation are summarized as follows:
2018

e Acquisition of companies (excluding the transaction disclosed in Note 10)

Operating
Total Assets in Income
the consolidated In the 2018

statement of
financial poslition

consolldated
statement of

% voting  Consolidation at December 31, comprehensive
(Thousands of euros) rights method 2018 income
SGB 2 SRLU (%) 100% Full - -
Casinos del Caribe, S.R.L. (*7) 100% Full 14,868 1,261
Acquisitions of Nortia Group companies (")
Equily
Unidn de Operadores Reunidos. S.A. (**™") 50% method 16.146 -
Societé du Casino Le Mirage, S.A. 51% Full 2.339 2,239
Equily
Felix Jimenez Moranle, S.A. 50% method 827 -
Equily
Recrealivas Oropesa. S.L.U. 50% method 62 -
Talluntxe, S.A.U. 100% Full 1,783 1,973
36,026 5,473




(") The company SGB2 was acquired in January 2018 by the group company Cirsagest, S.p.a. During October 2018 il merged
wilh saig company. Consequently, lotal assets and operating income conlributed lo the consolidated group is included in (he
financial statements of Girsagest.

(**) At the dale of gaining control Casinos del Caribe, S.R.L wholly owned the company Merengue Bar Gran Casinoc Jaragua,
G.C.J, S.R.L.U.

(***) Companies acguired from the Nortia Group during 2018, in addition to lhe Cirsa subgroup as a result of the purchase and
sale ransaction carried out on July 3, 2018,

(****) At the date of gaining contro! Unién de Operadores Reunidos, S.A. wholly owned the company Recreativos Miami, S.A.U.

All acquisitions shown in the table above have given rise to a business combination. Additionally,
another business combination has been carried out in Mexico, which has been integrated into the
financial statements of Promociones e Inversiones de Guerrero, S.A.P.I de C.V., whereby a gambling
hall was acquired, agreeing to the purchase of fixed assets (slot machines) and intangible assets
(exclusive rights over the activity and portfolic of customers) for an overall amount of 16,306 thousand
euros.

The information on the business combinations carried out during the year, excluding the one gisclosed
in Note 10, is shown in Note 4.

e Incorporation of companies

During 2018 the following companies have been incorporated:

Operating income In

Total Assets in the the 2018
consolldated consolidated
statement of statement of

% held by Consolidation financiat position at comprehensive

{Thousands of euros) the Group meéthod December 31, 2018 income
Cirsa Finance International, S.A.R.L.U. 100% Full 75 -
Cirsa International Business Corporation. S.L.U 100% Full 3,360 62
Nortia Real Slate Colombia. S.L.U 100% Full - -
Unidesa Operalions Services. S.L.U. 100% Full - -
Sportium Global Investments, SGI. S.A. 60% Equily method - -

3,436 62

The information on the percentages of voting rights, consolidation methods and other information on the
companies above is shown in Appendix |.



¢ Sale of companies resulting in loss of control

During the current year, the following companies have been sold resulting in a loss of control and/or
significant influence on their businesses:

Ownershlp % Consolidation Ownership Consolidation
at prioryear  mathod at prior year % after the method after
ond end sale the sate

Recreativos Trece, S.L. 50% Equity method - -
Disposals of Nortia Group compantes ()

Complejo Hotelero Monte Picayo. S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Jesali, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Casino de Astlurias, S.A. 40% Equily method - -
Gestién del Juego Integral, S A U. 100% Full - -
Cirsa Panam3, $.A.U. 100% Full - -
Silver Cup Gaming. Inc. 50% Equily method - -
Las Perias Beach Resort, Co 17% Equily method - -
Cirsa Venezuela, C.A.U. 100% Fult - -
Cirsa Caribe, C.A. 70% Full - -
Cirsaecuador, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Ariv, S.A (ARG) 50% Equity method - -
Casino Buenos Aires, S A (ARG) 100% Full - -
CBA-CIESA, UTE 50% Proportional - -
Casino Rosario (ARG) 50% Full - -
lvisa- Casino Buenos Aires. U.T.E. (ARG) 100% Full - -
Traylon, S.A. (ARG) 55% Full - -
Magic Slar, S.A. (ARG) 50% Proportional - -
Sobreaguas. S.A. (ARG) 100% Full - -
Alavera, S.A. (ARG) 50% Equily method - -
Emjucasa, S.A. (ARG) 50% Equily method - -
Binbaires, S.A. (ARG) 33% Equity method - -
Bingames, S.A.U. 100% Full - -
Cirsa International Gaming Corporatien, S.A.U. 100% Full - -

(*} Companies sold to the Nortia Group dwiing 2018, as a resull of the purchase and sale transaction carfied oul on July 3, 2018.

The results from these sales in the consolidated financial statements are detailed in the following table:

Change In non-

_{Thousands of suros) controlling interests Results from the sale
Recreativos Trece. S.L. - (286)
Companies sold to Grupo Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. (107.958) (240,368)

— (107,958) ~(240,852)

The impact of the disposal of the group of companies of which Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. was the
parent to Grupo Nortia Business Corporation, S.A. after the sale includes the change in hon-controlling
interests and the results from the sale, that is, the year-on-year resuits of the companies sold plus the
results from the sale of said companies.
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e Change in the ownership percentage or consolidation methods

The changes in the ownership percentage or consolidation method during 2018 are as follows:

Consolidation method Consolldation method
{Thousands of euros} 2018 2017 2018 2017
New York Games, S.L.U. Full Foll 100% 50%
Girsa +, S.R.L. Full Full 100% 51%

The changes in the table above correspond to the acquisition of ownership interests in said companies
until reaching 100%. However, the consolidation method has not changed since the full consolidation
method was already used in the prior year.

e Other changes in equity

During the current year Global Manufacturing Corporation, S.A., Sternal Bay Venezuela, C.A. and Cirsa
Funding Luxembourg, S.A. were dissolved and wound up. The first two companies were dormant or
showed low activity and their dissolution and wind-up have generate no significant results for the Group.
The third company was the ho!ding of the previously issued bonds. which have been early repaid during
the current year.

Additionally, during the current year, the company Cirsagest, SPAU has taken over the company SGB
2 SRLU, which has also become a Cirsa group company during the current year (see section Acquisition
of companies). Logically, this take-over transaction has had no impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Additionally, in 2017 there were changes in the corpcrate names of several companies that belonged to
the Group; Madrilefia de Servicios para Bingo, S.L. became International Mex Business, S.L., Global
Gaming became Global Real State SAS and, lastly, Caballo 5, S.L. became Sant Cugat Desarrollos de
Tecnologias, S.L.

11



2017

e Acquisition of companies

Operating
income in the
Total Assets In the 2017
consolidated consolldated
statemant of statement of

% voting  Consolidation financlal position at comprehensive

(Thousands of euros) rights mathod December 31, 2017 income
Miky, S.L. (7) 100% Full 48,083 14,353
Barnaplay, S.A. 100% Full 901 2.268
Gimar Jocs, S.L. 100% Full 1.493 510
Bingo Santven, S.A.U. 100% Full 7,015 9,698
Global TC Corp, S A.U. 100% Full 1,783 318
Triveneto Games S.R.L. 100% Full 1,084 -
Sierra Machines, S.A.C. 100% Full 16.152 10.875
Inmobiliaria Rapid, S.A.C. 100% Full 12,195 3.086
L&G Business, S.L. 100% Full 87 2
Recreativos Ergosa, S.L.U.(**) 100% Full 1.034 186
Automdlicos Essan, S.AU. 100% Full 502 76
MCA Automalics, S.L. 100% Full 8143 200
Social Games Online, S.L. 100% Full 3,393 -
Italtronic, S.R.L. 100% Full 4,815 717
Operadora De Entretenimiento Manzanillo, S A. 60% Foll 5,104 3,668
Promociones Sol Ibiza, S.A. 51% Fuli 549 19

113,433 45,975

{*) At the date of gaining conlrol Miky S.L. wholly owned the companies Barnaplay, S.A. ang Gimar Jocs, S.L.
(**) At the date of gaining control Recreativos Ergesa, S.L.U. wholly owned the company Aulomaticos Essan, S.A.U,

All acquisitions shown in the table above have given rise to a business combination. Additionally, in
Colombia and Mexico two additional business combinations have been carried out and integrated into
the financial statements of Winner Group, S.A. (Colombia) and Promociones e Inversiones de Guerrero,
S.A. (Mexico), whereby two gambling halls have been acquired for 5.9 and 3.1 million euros,
respectively. The operating revenues generated by these acqguisitions amount to 2,547 thousand euros
and 1,531 thousand euros, respectively.

The information on the business combinations carried out during the year is shown in Note 4.
e Incorporation of companies

In 2017 the following companies were incorporated:

Total Assets

in the Operating
consolidated income
statement of In the 2017

financlal consolidated
% held position at statement of
by the Consolidation December 31, c¢omprehensive
{Thousands of euros) Group meathod 2017 Income
Cirsa Brasil Participagoes, LTDA 100% Full - -
Sportium Apuestas Andalucia, S.L.U. 50% Equity method 2,959 -
Sportium Apuestas Colombia, S.A.S. 60% Equity method 878 -
Sportium Apuestas Ceuta, S.L.U. 50% Equity method C} -
New York Games, S.L.U 50% Equity method 1 -
3,847 -

The assets shown in the table above for the companies that are consolidated using the eguity method
relate to the investments, resulting from applying said method, recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position at December 31, 2017.

12



e Sale of companies resulting in loss of control

During 2017, the following companies were sold resuiting in a loss of contro$ and/or significant influence
on their businesses:

Ownershlp % at Consolidation Consolidation
prior year end method at prior  Ownership % after  method after the
year end the sala sale
Cestién Bingos Gobylan, S.A.(*) 100% Full - -
8.C.B. Margarita, C A. 100% Full - -
Cirsa Insular, C.A. 100% Full - -
Tirrenogames, S.R.L. 50% Equity melhod - -
Giochigenova, S.R.L. 50% Equily method - -

(") At both December 31, 2016 and the dale of sale, the company Gestion de Bingos Gobylan, S.A. held equily instruments
representing 4.63% of the company Red de Bingos Canarios, S.A.

The results from these sales in the consolidated financial statements are detailed in the following table:

Change In non-

(Thousands of euros) controlling interests Results from the sale
Geslidn Bingos Gobylan, S.A. - (388)

S.C.B. Margarila, C A - .
Cirsa Insular, C.A. -

Tirrenogames, S.R.L. - 284
Giochigenova,S.R.L. - 476
- ) 372

The total assets and operating income that these companies contributed to the consolidated statement
of financial position at December 31, 2016 and the 2016 consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, respectively, are shown below:

Total Assets in the Operating income
consolidated statement of in the 2016 consolidated

financial position at statement of comprehensive
(Thousands of euros) December 31, 2016 income
Geslidon 8ingos Gobylan, S.A. 1.893 4911
S.C.B. Margarita, C.A, 4 -
Cirsa Insular, C.A. 160 -
Tirrenogames, S.R.L. 1.217 -
Giochigenova, S.R.L. 422 -

3,696 4,911

The assets shown in the table above for the companies that at 2016 year end were consolidated using
the equity method (Tirrenogames, S.R.L. and Giochigenova,S.R.L.) relate to the investments, resulting
from applying said method, recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31,
2016.

s Qther changes in equity

During 2017 the companies Binred Madrid, S.A., Hostebar 98, S.L., Cirsa Amusement France, S.A.,
Entidad Gestora del Bingo Siglo XXI, S.L.U., Pol Management Corporation, BV., Polispace S.L.,
International Gaming Manufacturing, S.A., Global Cinco Estrellas. S.A., Gestora de Inversiones
Cobiman, S.L.U., Binelec, S.L., Global Amusement Partners Corp, S.A., and Push Games S.L. were
dissolved and wound up. These companies were dormant or showed low activity and their dissolution
and wind-up did not generate any significant resuits for the Group.
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Additionally, during the current year the companies Gonmatic, S.L.U, and Electrénicos Trujillanos, S.L.U.
have been taken over by Uniplay S.A.; Triveneto Games, S.r.l. has been taken over by Cirsagest, S.P.A.;
Recreativos Rodes, S.A.U. has been taken over by Genper, S.A. and the companies Promociones
Tauro, S.L.U, Mabel 96, S.L.U. and Automaticos Siglo XXI, S.L. have been taken over by Juegomatic,
S.A

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

2.1 Basis of presentation of the special purpose financial statements

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards adopied by the European (IFRS-EU) Union published by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and further interpretations. At the date these consolidated financial
statements were authorized for issue, the consolidated annual accounts of the Cirsa Group in
Luxembourg had not yet been prepared by LHMC Topco, S.a.r.l

Except for that indicated below and Notes 2.1.1 and 2.1.2, the accounting policies used in the
preparation of these special purpose consolidated financial statements meet every prevailing standard
at the date they were authorized for issue. The International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union establish application alternatives in some cases. The options applied by the
Group are described in the several accounting policies detailed in these Notes.

The special purpose consolidated financial statements have been prepared in order to present
information on the consolidaled financial position and results of the Cirsa Group's gaming business for
a whole financial year, and for comparative purposes, to present fair and useful information to the users
of the special purpose consolidated financial statements, mainly, the holders of the bonds issued by the
Group in Luxembourg. In this regard, certain premises are included herein, which are indicated in the
subnotes below, that do not agree with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union, only in relation to said additional premises.

Specifically, although the Group is not required to present comparative information in the current year
as this is a new consolidatable Group, the 2018 consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared at historical cost, show the 2017 figures for the consolidated statement of financial position,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
the consolidated cash flow statement and the notes there to for comparative purposes.

This matter is described in greater detail in Notes 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 below.

2.1.1 Premises used in the preparation of the special purpose consolidated financial statements

The adjustments introduced by the Group's Finance Management to prepare the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are summarized as follows;

- The special purpose consolidated financial statements include the financial information on the
audited 2017 consolidated annual accounts of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. and Subsidiaries.
The 2017 financial information is identical to the Information authorized for issue in said
consolidated annual accounts, except for the discontinued activities (explained below) and a
reclassification between Other financial assets and Cash and cash equivalents amounting to
30,270 thousand euros corresponding to cash in hoppers.
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- The financial information on the 2018 consolidated financial statements has been prepared from
Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. and Subsidiaries for the first six months of the current year, and
from then on includes the effects of the business combination that Cirsa Enterprises, S.L. (the
acquiring company) made on the Cirsa Group, as well as the integration of the new financial
debt (and finance cost) related to the corporate bonds issued by Cirsa Finance International.
S.a.rl in 2018. Consequently, the special purpose consolidated financial statements include a
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, a consolidated statement of changes in
equity and a consolidated cash flow statement for a 12-month period instead of a 6-month
period, which would be presented considering that the parent company, Cirsa Enterprises, S.L.,
acquired the shares of the Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group and gained control over it on July
3,2018.

- Both the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement include a line called
‘Contribution by the Sole Shareholder, net of the purchase and sale transaction of the Cirsa
Group and the new bond issue’ for the effect on the Cirsa Group’s equity and cash of the capital
increase, the issue of new corporate bonds and the (paid) purchase and sale transaction of the
Group.

- The income statement of the gaming business in Argentina has been discontinued as a result
of the purchase and sale transaction described in Note 1, since the companies included in said
scope have been transferred to Nortia Business Corporation, S.L., and classified in both the
2018 and 2017 income statements as 'Discontinued operations’'.

The business combination for the purchase of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. by Cirsa Enterprises, S.L.
and its accounting effects (in relation to the aforementioned consolidation adjustments and those derived
from the application of the ‘Purchase Price Allocation’ of IFRS 13 Business Combinations) temain at the
date of acquisition (July 3, 2018).

2.1.2 Other basis of presentation of the special purpose consolidated statement of financial position

« [pformation to be disclosed in the Notes

The International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union require that the
presentation of the Notes help the users understand the financial statements and compare them with
those presented by other entities. For this purpose, the information disclosed in these Notes has been
considered appropriate and sufficient, and therefore, it was not deemed relevant to include any other
disclosures required by Spanish legislation but not required by the International Financial Reporting
Standards.

s Comparative information

Under the Inlernational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, a new
consofidatable Group is not required to present comparative information. As mentioned above, and since
this information is necessary for the users of these consolidated financial statements, {i.e. the bond
holders), comparative information has been presented for all statements and notes, except for the
exemptions indicated in Note 2.1.1 above.

Except for the aforementioned premises and those indicated in Note 2.1.1, the accounting principles
and criteria used in the measurement and presentation of the assets and liabilities of the Cirsa
Enterprises Group at December 31, 2018 agree with the principles and criteria set forth in the
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. In any case, due to the
aforementioned exceptions, the financiat statements are not presented in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union but with the specific accounting bases
described in Note 2.
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2.2 Estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires Group Management to exercise
Judgment and to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies
and the recorded assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and assumptions taken into
account have been based upon historical experience and other factors which were considered to be
reasonable in the light of the circumstances. Consequently, the results obtained could differ from those
assumptions

The estimates and assumptions are continuously reviewed. Any changes to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period they are made if they apply solely to that period, or for that period and
subsequent periods if they affect both. The key estimates and judgments are as follows:

e Business combinations and goodwill

The Group assesses for each business combination, the fair value of assets, liabilities and acguired
contingent liabilities, allocating the cost of the business combination to the identified elements. Likewise,
goodwill arising from the acquisition is assigned to its corresponding cash-generating unit, based on
expected synergies, for subsequent impairment tests (Note 11). As a result of the purchase and sale of
the shares of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. a business combination has arisen, with a consideration
paid of 1,453 million euros and an excess price that has been assessed and allocated (purchase price
allocation) according to the anatysis made by an independent expert.

o |Impairment of assets

The Group assesses for impairment at year end for all non-financial assets which carrying amount could
be unrecoverable. Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment
annually, or when there is evidence of impairment, based on financia! projections and estimates of future
operating cash flows. During 2018 the Group has not recorded any impairment loss on goodwill or assets
(2017; impairment losses of 5.8 million euros on goodwill and 0.5 million euros on assets) (Note 11).

o Usefu! life of non-current assets with finite lives.

The Group regularly reviews the useful lives of its items of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. If its estimates of useful life are changed, it prospectively adjusts allocations to depreciation or
amortization. During the years 2018 and 2017 it was not necessary to readjust the useful life of any non-
current asset with finite life.

o Recoverability of deferred tax assets

When the Group, or any of the companies included in il, recognizes deferred tax assets, the estimated
taxable profits that will be generated in future years are reviewed at year end in order to assess their
recoverability, and any impairment loss is recognized accordingly. At December 31, 2018 the Group has
recorded deferred tax assets amounting to 45,580 thousand euros (56,540 thousand euros at December
31, 2017), as indicated in Note 19.4.

e Provision for taxes and other risks
Provisions are recognized for taxes and risks that will probably arise based on related studies. At

December 31, 2018 the Group has recorded provisions for taxes and other risks amounting o 12,094
thousand euros (18,396 thousand euros at December 31, 2017), as detailed in Note 18.
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e Consolidation methods

The assessment of whether conltrol is exercised when the Group does not have absolute majority of
voting rights, but agreements with the other shareholders have been reached, requires the Group to
make estimates and judgments to determine whether it has unilateral rights to manage relevant activities
in accordance with IFRS 10. Additionally, in order to establish the consolidation method of certain
entities over which control is not exercised also requires Group Management to make judgments and
estimates to determine whether they are considered jointly controlled companies, joint operations or
associates.

2.3 Standards and interpretations approved by the European Union applied for the first time
in 2018

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these special purpose consolidated financial
statements comprise all applicable standards at the beginning of the period, including those that came
into force in the current year:

e |FRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS @ Financial instruments replaces 1AS 32 Financial instrumenls: recognition and measurement.
This standard consolidates the three phases of the financial instrument project: classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. Except for hedge accounting, which has been
prospectively applied, the Group has applied the standard retrospectively, but has not restated
comparative information.

The application of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any changes in the statement of financial position and
equity at January 1. As for the effect of applying the requirements for determining impairment, given the
Group's activity, there has been no increase in impairment losses.

1. Recognition and measurement

There have been no changes in the statement of financial position or equity as a result of the
classification and measurement requirements of (FRS 9. All financial assets measured at fair value
continue to be measured at fair value.

Itis expected that unlisted company shares will be kept in the foreseeable future. The Group has opted
to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income and, therefore, no significant impact
has been recorded.

Its loans and trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows which are only expected to take
the form of principal and interest payments. The Group analyzed the characteristics of the cash flows
from these instruments and concluded that they meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost
in accordance with IFRS 9. Consequently, these instruments need not be reclassified.

2. Impairment

IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognize expected credit losses (ECLS) in respect of all of its debt
securities, loans and trade receivables either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The Group applies the
simplified approach and recognizes expected losses on all frade receivables. Due to the nature of the
loans and receivables from its respective businesses, the Group has determined that there has been no
impact on impairment losses.

3. Hedge accounting

The Group has had no impact as a result of applying hedge accounting since it has not entered into any
cash flow or fair value hedges.
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e IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,

IFRS 15, which was published in May 2014 and amended in April 2016, establishes a new five-step
model applicable to the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers, Under IFRS 15, revenue
must be recognized at an amount that refiects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,

This standard repeals all prior revenue recognition related standards. The Group adopts the new
standard on the required application date using the partial retrospective approach.

The Group's business mainly consists in;

¢ the design, manufacture and marketing of slot machines that are sold to both group companies
and third parlies, and the development of interactive gaming mechanisms and systems.
¢ Operation of slot machines, bingo halls, casinos and lotteries, in both Spain and abroad.

(a) Marketing of slot machines

The application of this standard has had no impact on the Group'’s results for contracts with customers
under which the sale of machines is generally the only contractual obligation. The Group expects to
recognize the related revenue when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is
customarily when the goods are delivered.

(b} Operation of slot machines, bingo halls, casinos and lotteries
1. Loyalty points program

Under IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programs, the loyalty program offered by the Group in its casinos
division results in the allocation of a portion of the transaction price to the loyalty program using the fair
value of points issued, and the recognition of deferred revenue in relation to points issued but not yet
redeemed or expired (called “Player tracking” by the Group). Group Management have guantified this
matter as not significant enough to require an adjustment in the consolidated financial statements.

2. Presentation and disctosure requirements

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are more detailed than under current IFRS.
Given the Group’s activity, the information included in these special purpose consolidated financial
statements is considered to be appropriate and sufficient in connection with the application of this
standard.

24 Standards and interpretations published by the 1ASB, but not applicable in the current
year

The Group intends to adopt the standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the IASB, whose
application is not mandatory in the European Union as at the date of authorizing the accompanying
special purpose consolidated financial statements for issue, when they are effective, to the extent
applicable to the Group.

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and supersedes |AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operaling leases - Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 establishes principles the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases, and requires lessees to record all leases under a
single lessee accounting model similar to the current recognition of finance leases in accordance with
IAS 17.
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tFRS 16 establishes that lessees shall recognize in the consolidated balance sheet a financial liability
for the present value of the paymeats to be made over the remaining life of the lease agreement and a
right-to-use asset for the underlying asset, which is measured based on the amount of the associated
liability, to which the initial direct costs incurred are added. Additionally, the recognition criteria for lease
expenses has changed. Lease expenses are now recorded as a depreciation charge for the lease asset
and as a financial expense for the lease liability. As for current lessor accounting, the standarg does not
substaatially change and entities shall continue to classify the lease as an operating or finance lease
based on the extent to which risks and rewards inherent to the ownership of the asset are substantially
ransferred.

The Cirsa Group has applied the following policies, estimates and criteria:

- The Group has applied the exemption from recognizing leases in which the underlying asset is
a low-value asset (below 5,000 US dollars) and matures in the short term (maturity below or
equal to 12 months).

- The Group has applied the practical expedient indicated in paragraph C3 of appendix C to IFRS
16 that stipulates that an entity is not required to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at the date of initial application.

- The Group opted not to recognize the components that are not leases separately from those
that are leases for those assets in which materiality of these components is not significant in
respect of the total value of the lease.

- For transition purposes, the Group decided to apply the modified retrospective approach, under
which comparative information for prior years will not be restated.

- The Group decided to measure the initial right-of-use asset for an amount equal to the lease
liability at January 1, 2019 for all lease agreements.

- An incremental borrowing rate has been applied by homogeneous portfolio of leases, country
and lease term. Incremental interest rates at the date of initial application have been around 2%
in Spain and ltaly, and between 4% and 13% in Latin America.

- In order to determine the lease term as the non-cancelable period of the lease the Group has
considered the initial term of each lease, considering that it is not reasconably certain whether
the unilateral oplion to extend or terminate the lease, if any, will be exercised.

The estimated impacts from the initial application at January 1, 2019 of the IFRS are summarized below,
although the Group is working on setting the resulting adjustment.

- Recognition of assets in the ‘Right-of-use assets' caption (non-current asset) for an approximate
amount of 2685 million euros and increase in debt in the ‘Non-current and current finance lease
liabilities' amounting to 212 and 53 million euros, respectively. They basically correspond to
leases on offices, vehicles, buildings and halls where the Group’s gaming adlivities are carried
out.

The main estimated impact that the application of IFRS 16 would have had on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the annual period ended December 31, 2018 would have been:

- Increased depreciation expense for the right-of-use asset for an approximate amount of 56
million euros offset by decreased operating expenses and, censequently, increased gross
operating profit, as well as increased finance costs for the lease liabilities; in any case, the
consolidated profit/(loss) for the period would not be significantly affected.
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IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12. The Interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following
aspects:

»  whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately.
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax {reatments by taxation authorities.
how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax iosses, unused tax
credits and tax rates; and

>  how an entity considers changes in facts ang circumstances.

An entity shall determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with
one or more other uncertain tax treatments based on which approach petier predicts the resolution of
the uncentainty. The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
although some exemptions on transition are permitted.

The Group will 2pply the interpretation as from its effective date. Although the Group operates within a
complex multinational tax environment, no significant impact is expected from this standard.

Annual improvements to IFRS — 2015-2017 Cycle

The |IASB has made the following amendments to the standards, which the Group does not expect to
have any significant impact:

IFRS 3 Business combinations — Previously held interest in a joint operation

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that previously was
a joint operation, it shall apply the requirements for business combinations achieved in stages,
remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at the fair value.
The amendments shall be applied to business combinations whose acquisition date is in annual period
beginning on or after January 1, 2019 with early application permitted.

IAS 12 Income Tax — Consequences of Payments on Instruments Classified as Equity

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past
transactions or events that generaled distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an
entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according t¢ where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events.
An entity shall apply those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. Earlier application is permitted. When an entity first applies those amendments, it shall apply them
to the income tax consequences of dividends recognized on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period.

JAS 23 Borrowings costs — Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The amendments clarify that an entity considers as part of its borrowing costs any borrowing cost
originally incurred for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete. The amendments must be
applied to borrowing costs incurred for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted.
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2.5 Consolidation methodology
Consolidation methodology is described in the following sections:

Consolidation methods

The methods applied to obtain these consolidated financial statements were as follows:
o Full consolidation method for subsidiaries
¢ Equity method for associates and jointly controlled companies

Harmonization

The financial year of the companies within the consolidation perimeter ends on December 31. For
consolidation purposes the corresponding 2018 financial statements of each company have been used.

The accounting principles applied by the companies comply with Group policies and, accordingly, no
harmonization adjustments were necessary.

Elimination of internal lransactions

The intercompany balances arising from financial operations, rental agreements, payment of dividends,
financial assets and liabilities, purchase and sale of inventories and non-current assets and rendering of
services have been eliminated. In regard with purchase and sale transactions, the unrealized margin on
assets, as well as depreciation, has been adjusted in order to show the assets at their original cost te
the Group.

Transiation of financial statemen!s in foreign currency

The financial statements of foreign companies have been translated into euros prior to their consolidation
following the year-end rate method. Accordingly, assets and liabilities are translated at the spot rate
prevailing at December 31, capital and reserves at the historical rates, and revenues ang expenses at
the averages rate for the year. Differences arisen from this process have been recorded directly under
Translation differences in net equity.

2.6 Business combinations

When Group gains control over one constituted business, or directly over a business’ net assets, the
consideration transferred is assigned to assets and liabilities, measured at fair value. The difference
between the sum of fair values and the sum of the consideration fransferred plus the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree at acquisition date is recognized as goodwill where it is positive or as
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income where the difference is negative.

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair valve. This is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by
the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree, and the equity interests issued by the acquirer.

The costs related to the acquisition, such as finder’s fees, advice, legal, accounting valuation and other

professional or consulting fees, are recognized as expenses in the years when they are incurred and
the services are provided.
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2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment loss.

Goodwill is not amortized as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. instead, it is tested for
impairment at least annually as well as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Likewise, the net
carrying amount of intangible assets having finite useful life is tested for impairment when there is
evidence or changes of not recovering the carrying amount, similar to the criteriz established for
property, plant and eguipment.

Research expenses are charged to expenses when incurred, while development costs related to an
individual project are capitalized when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility and
profitability, the availability of financing resources, and incurred costs can be measured reliably.
Oevelopment expenses to be capitalized, including the cost of materials, personnel expenses directly
attributable and a fair proportion of overheads, are amortized using a declining method (50% the first
year) over the period for which they expect to obtain profits or income from such project, which generally
comprises three years.

Amounts paid to the owners of the sites where the slot machines are located on an exclusivity basis are
capitalized as installation rights. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over the contract term.

Administrative concessions are amortized on a straight-line basis, according to the concession term, as
well as transfer rights of leased premise.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis over three years.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recognized impairment loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an indication that the net carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. If any indication exists, assets or cash-generating units are recorded at
their recoverable amount.

Expenses for repairs which do not extend the useful life of the assets, as well as maintenance expenses,
are taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year incurred. Expenses
incurred for expansion or improvements which increase the productivity or prolong the useful life of the
asset are capitalized. Future expenses for restoring and retirement are recognized, at present value, as
a cost component, with a liability provision as counterpart.
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Depreciation charges are calculated over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Property, plant and
equipment are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. A declining
basis is used alternatively for some assets, basically slot machines, since it better follows the actual
patlern of income related to these assets.

Method Rate
Commiercial buildings (new/used) and plant Straight-line 2-4%
Production installations (new/used) Straight-line 8-16%
Olher instaliations Straighl-line 8-12%
Production machinery Straight-line 10%
Other produclion equipment Straighl-line 20%
New siot machines ("A” and “B™/ V" and "C") Declining/Straight line 20%
Used slot machines Straight-fine 40%
Furniture (nev/used) Straight-fine 10-20%
Vehicles (new/used) Declining/Straight line 10-32%
Tools and lurniture (new/used) Straight-fine 30-60%
Dala processing eguipment (new/used) Declining/Straight line 25-50%
Molds and dices Straight-line 25%
Olher PP&E ilems Sicaight-line 16%

The finite useful life of slot machines is necessarily subject 1o exogenous factors (mainly market and
competence) of difficult forecast. In the event that such equipment completes its useful life before the
base period used for depreciation, the net balance of the related good at the removal date is charged as
depreciation for the year, given its recurrent and typical features, as well as its corrective nature of
systematic depreciation performed on retated goods.

2.9 Investments in associates
Investments are accounted for under the proportional consolidation methad or the equity method, that
is, they are accounted initially at cost and its carrying amount is increased or decreased in order fo

recognize the part of the result of the invested company attributed to the Group from the acquisition date.

Part of the profit (loss) for the year of the invested company is recorded in the Group consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Dividends received reduce the amount of the investment.

Changes in the invested company's equity different than those generated by income of the period are
directly recorded as changes in the Group's net equily.

210 Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recorded at fair value. For investments not measured at fair value with
changes in results, directly attributable transaction costs are added. The Group establishes the

classification of financial assets at the initial recognition, and, when appropriate and allowed, the
classification is assessed again at each year end.

Loans and receivables

The Group recognizes in this category trade and non-trade receivables, which incluge financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments not quoted on active markets and for which the Group expects to
recover the full initial investment, except, where applicable, in cases of credit deterioration.

Following initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortized cost.

Nevertheless, trade receivables which mature within less than one year with no contractual interest rate,
as well as prepayments and loans to personnel, the amount of which is expected to be recovered in the
shont term, ace carried at nominal value both at initial and subsequent measurement, when the effect of
nat discounting cash flows is not significant.
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2.11 Cancelation of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assels (or, when applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) are derecognized when:

- Rights to related cash flows have expired;

~  The Group has retained the right to receive related cash flows, but has assumed the liability of
fully paying them within the established terms to a third party under a transfer agreement;

~ The Group has transferred the rights to receive related cash flows and (a) has substantially
transferred the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the financial asset, or {b) has not
transferred or retained the asset's risks and rewards, but has transferred the contro} over the
asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the related liability is settled, cancelled or expired. When a
financial liabifity is replaced for other from the same borrower but with substantially different terms, or
the conditions of the existing liability are substantially modified, such change or modification is recorded
as a disposal of the original liability and an addition of a new liability. Difference of related carrying
amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are accounted for at the lower of the acquisition cost ang the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of raw materials is the replacement cost. Nevertheiess, no provision is set aside
for raw materials and other consumables used in production, if the finished products in which they are
to be incorporated will be sold above cost. The recoverabie value of finished products corresponds to
the estimated sales price less related selling expenses.

The cost value of finished products includes materials measured at the weighted average acquisition
price, third-party work, labor and production overhead.

213  Cash and cash equivalents

This heading includes cash, current accounts, bank geposits and other financial investments maturing
within less than three months from the acquisition date, provided that risks of the substantial alteration

of their value are not significant.

In terms of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
abovementioned concepts, net of bank overdrafts, if applicable.
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214 Impairment of assets

Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each year end whether there is an indication that a non-current asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, and when an annual impairment test is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the cash-generating unit (CGU)
fair value less cost to seli and value in use, and it is established for each separate asset, unless for
assets that do not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and its carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. To assess value in
use, expected cash flows are discounted to their present value using risk free market rates. adjusted by
the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses from continving activities are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group assesses at year end indicators of impairment iosses previously recorded in order to verify
whether they have disappeared or decreased. If there are indicators, the Group estimates a new
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if the circumstances
giving rise to it have disappeared, since the last loss for depreciation was recognized. In this regard, the
assetl's carrying amount increases to their recoverable amount. The reversal is limited to the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset.

The reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Upon such reversal,
the depreciation expense is adjusted in the following periods to amortize the asset’s revised book value,
net of its residual value, systematically over the asset's useful life,

Financial assets

The Group assesses at year end if financial assets or group of financial assets are impaired. To assess
the impairment of certain assets, the following criteria are applied:

¢ Assetls measured at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that there is an impairment loss of loans ang other receivables recorded at
amortized cost, the loss is measured as the difference between the book value and the present value of
estimated cash flows, discounted at the current market rate upon initial recognition. The book value is
reduced by an allowance, and the loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment loss is reversed only if the circumstances giving rise to it have ceased {o exist. Such reversal
is limited to the carrying amount of the financial asset that would have been recognized on the reversal
date had no impairment foss been recognized.

In regard with trade and other receivables, when there is objective evidence of not collecting them, an
adjustment is made based on identified bad debts risk.

215  Treasury shares

Treasury shares are recorded as a direct decline in the Group's equity. They are measured at cost value,

without recognizing any impairment l1oss. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on the purchase or sale of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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216 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when:

- the Group has a present obligation either legal, contractual or constructive as a result of past
events;

- itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

- the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured.

When the effect of the cash temporary value is significant, the provision is estimated as the present
value of the future cash flows required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate applied in the assessment of the obligation's present value only corresponds to the
temporary value of money and does not include the risks related to the estimated future cash flows
related to the provision. The increase of the provision derived from the aforementioned discount is
recorded as a financial expense.

2.17 Interest yield loans and credits

Loans and credits are initially measured at cost value, which is the fair value of the contribution received.
net of issuance costs related to the debt.

Upon initial recognition, interest yield loans and credits are recognized at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, including any issuance cost and discount or settlement premium.

218 Translation of balances in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are translated at the spot rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the spot rate prevailing
at the closing date. Unrealized exchange gains or losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. As an exception, exchange gains or losses arising from monetary assets and
liabilities that reflect investments in foreign subsidiaries are recorded in Transfation differences in equity,
with no impact on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.19 Leases

Leases are considered to be financial leases when all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
leased item are substantially transferred to the Group. Assets acquired under financial lease
arrangements are recognized as property, plant and equipment at the beginning of the lease term in the
consolidated statement of financial position, recording an asset equivalent to the fair value of the leased
item or, if lower, the present value at the commencement of the lease of the minimum lease payments.
A financial liability is recorded for the same amount.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability, in order
to maintain a constant interest rate of the outstanding debt. The finance charges are recorded directly in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. These assets are depreciated, impaired, and
derecognized using the same criteria applied to assets of a simitar nature.

Leases are considered to be operating leases when all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the

leased item are substantially maintained by the lessor. Operating lease payments are recognized as
expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when accrued over the lease term.
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2.20 Revenues

Revenues are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits from the transaction will flow
to the Group and the amount of income and costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.

Revenues from exploiting slot machines are measured at the collected amount. The percentage of the
amount collected from slot machines attributable to the owner of the premises where the machine is
located is included as operating expense under Variable rent.

Revenues from bingo cards are recognized for the total amount of sold cards, based on their face value,
while recognizing the prizes granted to players as a decrease in operating revenues. The card cost is
recorded in Consumplions, and the gaming tax rate over purchased bingo cards is included under
Gaming taxes.

Revenue from casinos is recorded for the net amount from the game ("win"), after deducting prizes
removed by players.

Revenue from sale of finished products is measured when risks and significant benefits incidental to the
ownership of the assets have been transferred to the buyer and the outcome can be estimated reliably,
circumstance that generally arises with the effective goods delivery.

Interest income is recorded based on the time passed, inciuding the asset’s effective yield.

2.21 Restructuring expenses

Expenses incurred in restructuring processes, mainly indemnities to personnel, are recognized when a
formal and detailed plan exists to perform such process by identifying the main parameters (i.e. main
locations, functions and approximate number of affected employees, estimated payments and the
implementation schedule) and creating a real and valid expectation among affected employees in regard
with the process.

2.22 Income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on all temporary differences at the closing date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences, except for taxable temporary
differences arisen from an acquired goodwill, which amortization is not tax deductible and those arisen
upon the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a {ransaction, other than a business combination,
and that at the transaction date did not affect the accounting or the tax result.

Likewise, a deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences from investments in
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled companies, except when both the following conditions are
met: (a) the Group is able to manage the reversal date of the temporary difference and (b) the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the future. In this regard, when the results are generated in subsidiaries
in countries where there is not an agreement to avoid double taxation and the Group's policy is the
repatriation of dividends, the Group records a deferred tax related to the effective amount that would be
filed when profits are repatriated.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax credits and unused tax
loss carryforwards, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
these assets may be utilized, except for deductible temporary differences arisen upon the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, and that at the
transaction date did not affect the accounting or the tax result.
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Furthermore, only a deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences from
investments in subsidiaries, associates or jointly confrolled companies when both the following
conditions met: (a) the temporary difference will be reversed in the future, and (b) it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which these temporary differences may be utilized.

The recovery of deferred tax assets is reviewed at year end, reducing the amount in assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable benefits will not be available and consequently these assets could
not be utilized.

Ceferred taxes are measured based on the tax legislation and charge rates enacted or to be enacted,
at the date of consolidated statement of financial position.

Oeferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted and are classified as non-current assets or non-
current liabilities, respectively.

2.23 Contingencies

When unfavorable outcome of a situation that feads to a potential loss is likely to occur (i.e. more than
50% of possibilities), the Group establishes a provision which is recorded based on the best estimate of
present value of expected future disbursement. On the other hand, if expectations of favorable resolution
are more likely, no provision is recorded, which is reported in the notes of existing risks, unless the
possibility of a negative outcome is clearly considered remote.

2.24  Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities are classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as current and non-
current according to their maturity date. Current assets mature within one year from the closing date,
and non-current assets mature in more than such period.

3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY OPERATING SEGMENT

The Group's activities are organized and managed separately based on the nature of the services and
products provided. Each segment represents one strategic business unit that provides different services
ang offers products to different markets whose operating profit or loss are examined on a regular basis
by the Group’s ultimate operating decision-making body in order to decide on the resources o be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance.

An operating segment has been considered to be an identifiable unit of the Group responsible for
supplying a unique product or service, or alternatively a set of these which are inter-related, and which
is characterized by being subject to risks and yields of a different nature from those which correspond
to other operating segments within the Group.

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses by segment include those directly attributable, together with
those which may be reasonably aftributed. Unallocated captions by the Group correspond to deferred
tax assets and liabilities balances.

Transfer prices between segments are determined based on the actual costs incurred increased by a
reasonable trade margin.
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3.1 Operating segments

The distribution of the operating segments on which information is disclosed coincides with the
information usually handled by Management. The operating segments defined by the Group are as
follows:

Slots:

It owns and operates slot machines in bars, cafés, restaurants and amusement arcades in Spain and
ltaly. It also provides machine interconnection services in Italy.

828:

It designs, manufactures and distributes slot machines and gaming kits for the Spanish and international
markets. The division sells directly or through distributors to other divisions of the Group, mainly slot
division, and third parties

Casinos:

The Group operates with two types of casinos, traditional casinos, which include table games and casino
slot machines, and elecironic casinos which only operate with casino slot machines.

Bingos:

Operation of bingo halls mainly in Spain and, to a lesser extent, in Italy and Mexico. These halls operate
through the sale of bingo cards to customers and, to a lesser extent, through slot machines and
restaurant services.

Other segments:

Segments that aggregately represent less than 10% of total external and internal revenue, less than
10% of the combined result of all segments with aggregated benefits, and less than 10% of total assels
have been considered as irrelevant. Thus, no specific information thereon is provided and they have
been grouped together under this generic heading.

The table below shows information on the income and results, certain information on assets and
liabilities, and other information regarding these business segments at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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3.2 information on geographical segments

In the presentation of information by geographic segments, sales are based on the destination country
and the assets on their location. The table below shows this information at Decembper 31, 2018 and

2017:

2018
Investments In
{Thousands  Sales to external Total revenue Assets by non-cusrent
of eucos) customers Inter-segment sales by segment sagment assets
Spain 586.584 85,134 671.718 737,314 80,780
Latin
America 532,987 664 533,651 1,508,303 74,784
Jtaly 349,553 2 349,555 124,504 4.13)
Efiminations
and other (85,800) (85,800) 472,658 493
1,469,124 1,469,124 2,840,779 160,188
2017
Investments In
(Thousands Sales to external Total revenue Assets by non-current
of euros) customers Inter-segment sales by segment sagment assets
Spain 547 831 106.094 653,925 660,122 74,515
Latin
America 512,740 748 513.488 815,426 64,524
Italy 335,375 16 335.391 117,755 4,481
Eliminations
and other (106,858) (106,858) 22,181 670
} 1,395,946 - 1,395,946 1,615,484 144,190
4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

4.1 Acquisition of the Cirsa Group

On April 27, 2018 Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. (owner of 52.43% of the share capital of Cirsa
Gaming Corporation, S.A.) and private capital (owner of the other 46.65%) signed the agreement for the
sale of the Cirsa Group to the venture capital fund Blackstone. This purchase and sale agreement
included several clauses whereby the transaction was subject to a set of obligations by both paries to
be considered fully effective. Final closing between the parties was signed on July 3, 2018, the date on
which Blackstones gained effective control over the Cirsa Group through the purchase of 100% of the
shares of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.

Note 10 provides a summary of the main data of the fransaction (consideration paid, carrying amount
of the acquired business, intangible values arisen, etc.).
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4.2 Other acquisitions in 2018

The breakdown of the companies constituting a business over which unilateral and exclusive control
was gained in 2018 is summarized as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

Non-
controlling
Interests Fair value of
Fair value of ariseninthe the previous Goodwill
Name and description of Acquisition the assets business ownership generated
the antitles and business  Acqulsition date cost acquired combination Interest (Note 5}

Tallunixe, S.A.U. July 2018 1,443 1,443 - - -
Casinos del Caribe, S.R.L.

and Merengue Bar Gran

Casino Jaragua, GCJ,

SR.LU. November 2018 13.557 13.557 - - -

15,000 15000 - - B

The values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business
combinations were as follows:

Recognized on

(Thousands of euros) acquisition Book value
Propertly, plant and equipmenl 4,770 4,770
Intangible assets 10.447 93
Olher non-current assets 202 202
Current assets 1.843 1.843
Liabililies (including deferred taxes generated) {2,784) (2,389)
14,478 4519

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the year, consofidated operating income in 2018
would have increased by 10,477 thousand euros and consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 2018 would
have increased by 785 thousand euros. Additionally, since their acquisition date these companies have
contributed profit to the Group amounting to 525 thousand euros.
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4.3 2017

The breakdown of the companies constituting a business over which unilateral and exclusive control

was gained in 2017 is summarized as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

Non-
controlling

interests Fair value of
Falr value of  arisenInthe the previous Goodwilt

Name and description of Acquisition  the assats business ownershlp generated
the entities and business Acquisition date cost acquired combination intarest {Note §)
Miky, S.L. and subsidiaries May 2017 38.457 38.457 - - -
Op. De Entrelenimiento

Manzanillo, S.L. February 2017 2,325 3.262 937 - -
Binge Sanlven, S A.U. January 2017 4,750 4,750 - -
Global TC Corp., SAU. March 2017 903 903 - - -
Triveneto Games, S.R.L. Seplember 2017 762 762 - - -
Sierra Machines, S.A.C. July 2017 9.046 9.046 - - -
Inmobiliaria Rapid, S.A.C. July 2017 14,139 14,139 - - -
L&G Business, S.L. October 2017 75 75 - - -
Regcreativos Ergosa, S.L.U.

and subsidiaries November 2017 544 544 - -
MCA Automatics, S.L. December 2017 6,433 6.433 - - -
Sacial Games Online, S.L. December 2017 2,482 2.482 - - -
Itallronic, S.R.L. November 2017 3,000 3.000 - - -
Promociones Sol lbiza, S.A.  November 2017 460 641 180 - -

~ 83,376 84,494 2417 - -

The values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business

combinations were as follows:

Recognized on

(Thousands of euros) acquisition Book value
Property. plant and equipment 21,510 17,957
Intangible assels 76,518 7.067
Other non-current assels 6,936 6,064
Current assets 14,412 14,412
Liabilities (including deferred taxes generated) (34,882) (15,274)
84,494 30,226

Hagd the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the year, consolidated operating income in 2017
would have increased by 32,941 thousand euros and consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 2017 would
have increased by 1,344 thousand euros. Additionally, since their acquisition date these companies

have contributed net profit to the Group amounting to 1,549 thousand euros.
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S. GOODWILL

Goodwill has arisen in the current year from acquisition of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. (Note 10). It
shows no impairment losses at December 31, 2018 and has been allocated to the whole Cirsa Group
as a result of the Purchase Price Allocation made by an independent expent:

{(Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Slots - 16.457
Bingos - 27.525
Casinos - 48,930
Cirsa Group 968,100 -

968,100 92,912

The evolution of the book value of goodwill, net of impairment losses, is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017

Balance at January 1 92.912 104,412
Impairment losses - (5.781)
Net exchange gains (losses) arisen in the period - (5.719)
Derecognition due o business combinations of PPAs prios to 2018 (92.912) -
Business combination (PPA 2018) 968,100 -

Balance at December 31 ) _ ) 968,100 92,912
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6. OTHER INTANG!BLE ASSETS

6.1 NMovements
2018
Balance at Translation Balance at
January 1, Differences and December
{Thousands of euros) 2018 Additions  Disposals  Transfers other changes 31, 2018
COST
Developmenl costs and patenls 56,355 11,638 (1.824) - 158 66,527
Service concession
arrangemenls 120,968 567 (25,158) - 2,134 98.511
Installation righls 643,668 1.047.154 (418,486) 54 53 1,272,443
Right to lease 10.817 2.797 (405) - 166 13,375
Software 34,211 5.269 (7.561) 294 144 32357
Prepayments and other 151 - {119) - - 32
866,170 1,067,425 {453,353) 348 2,655 1,483,245
AMORTIZATION
Development cosis and patents (50.080) (3.786) 1.624 - (90) (52,331)
Service concession
arcangements (68.232) (7.586) 10,898 - (1.540) (67.45%9)
Installation rights (294,489) (90.516) 165.133 - (12) {219.885)
Righl to lease (4,652) (3.042) - - (67) (7.761)
Software (28.802) (2.002) 3.602 - (62) (27.264)
(447,255) (108,932) 181,258 - (1,771) {374,700)
Impairment losses (19.727) (1.047) 15,806 - (1) (4.869)
Net carrying amount 399,188 969,446  (256,189) 348 883 1,103,676
2017
Balance at Translation Balance at
January 1, differences and  December
{Thousands of euros) 2017 Additions  Disposals  Transfers olher changes 31,2017
COST
Development cosis and patents 52,952 3,403 - - - 56,355
Service concession
arrangements 131,552 2,902 (28) 91 (13,548) 120.968
Installation rights 542,607 115,251 (7.158) - (7.033) 643,668
Righi to lease 7,924 5,358 (1.860) - (604) 10,817
Softwace 32.872 3.456 (275) 22 {1,864) 34,211
Prepayments and other 150 - - - - 150
768,058 130,370 (9,321) 113 {23,049) 866,170
AMORTIZATION
Development costs and paients (48,595) (1.485) - - - (50,080)
Service concession
arrangements (62.434) (10,101) 28 - 3,275 (69,232)
Instaliation rights (236.309) (63,820) 5.011 - 629 (294,489)
Right to lease (5.192) {1,554) 1,860 - 234 (4.852)
Software (27.094) (2,497) 273 - 516 (28.802)
{379,624) {79,457) 7,172 - 4,654 (447,255)
Impairment losses (17,155) (4,191) 1,613 - 6 (19,727)
Net carrylng amount 371,279 46,722 (536) 113 {18,389) 399,188
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The 'Additions’ column in 2018 shows:

- The effect of the acquisition of the Cirsa Group, as disclosed in Note 10.

- The effect of the other business combinations (Note 4.2), which has amounted to an overall
gross value of 27,828 thousand euros (82,376 thousand euros in the prior year) and
accumulated amortization of 912 thousand euros (5,858 thousand euros in the prior year). These
amounts related almost entirely to Installation rights, just like in 2017.

Most of the rest of additions in 2018 and 2017 included in /nstaifation rights mainly relate to the non-
refundable payment in exchange for the exclusive rights to operate the halls where the slot machines
were located. The disposals in this caption for both years mainly relate to installation rights pending
amortization in halls which had been closed, or it was decided not to operate the machines for profitability
reasons.

6.2 Development costs and patents
They mainly correspond to:

¢ [ndustrial companies: Creation of new models of slot machines and technological innovation for them.
The net value at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is 6,127 and 3,576 thousand euros, respectively.

e Companies engaged in lotteries and interactive products: Software development for online gaming
applications. The net value at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is 3,068 thousand euros and 2,700
thousand euros, respectively.

The internal cost of developing new models of slot machines and software for on-line games by the 82B
division of the Group is recorded as development costs and patents with a charge to the corresponding
expenses according to their nature in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Said work
performed by the Group for its property, plant and equipment in 2018 and 2017 amounts to 3,573 and
3,287 thousand euros, respectively.

Research and development costs recognized as an expense in 2018 amount to 66 thousand euros (41
thousand euros at December 31, 2017) (Note 22.2).

6.3 Service concession arrangements

The most significant items in the gross balance of service concession arrangements at December 31,
2018 are as follows;

¢ Official contract to manage and operate slot machine halls in the Republic of Panama for an amount
of 46,869 thousand euros (44,364 thousand euros at December 31, 2017). The net value of this
concessijon at December 31, 2018 amounts to 12,419 thousand euros (11,962 thousand euros at
December 31, 2017).

o Licenses of video terminals acquired by Cirsa ltalia S.p.A. for an amount of 40,807 thousand euros
at December 31, 2018 and 2017. The net value of this concession at December 31, 2018 amounts
to 12,360 thousand euros (16,447 thousand euros at December 31, 2017).
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6.4 Installation rights

This caption includes the amount given in exchange for the exclusive rights to operate in the halls were
the slot machines are located, and the effect of the business combination indicated in Note 10.

6.5 Impairment losses

The impairment losses recorded in 2018 mainly correspond to exclusive rights over peints of sale that
will no longer be operational.

Note 11 below shows the several items reiated to the potential impairment test conducted on the Group's
assets.

6.6 Other information

At 2018 year end, the net value of property, plant and equipment in foreign companies amounts to

877,775 thousand euros (136,393 thousand euros at 2017 year end), after the business combination
carried out in 2018.

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
71 Movements
2018
Translation
Balance at differences Balance at
January 01, and other December 31
{Thousangds of euros) 2018 Additions  Disposals Transfers changes 2018
Cost
Land and buildings 257,555 33.592 (191,702) 102 88 99,645
Technical inslallations 81,727 5,158 (7.750) 1,088 546 80,770
Machinery 616.379 39,772 {114.970) 16,258 3,611 561,050
Data processing equipment 65,857 4,492 (10.803) 662 241 60,449
Transpor equipment 10,850 205 (7.584) - 21 3,492
Other installalions. tools,
furnilure, and other PP&E 294,730 23,712 (32,043) 5.886 5,256 297.541
Properly, plant and equipment 16,043 29,238 (9.500) (24,345) 801 12.237
___under conslruction
1,343,141 136,163 (374,352} {348) 10,574 1,115,184
Depreciation
Buildings (105.026) (9,736) 80,262 485 (78) (34,093)
Technical installations (58.933) (10,300) 7.750 39 (377) (61.821)
Machinery (447,695) (64.979) 80.544 (9) (3.103) (435.242)
Data processing equipment (56,603) (4.528) 7.57M - (185) (53.745)
Transport equipment (8.676) (610) 6,271 - 23 (2.992)
Other installations, tools,
furniture, and other PP&E (221.788) (19.579) 20.916 (514) (4.154) (225.119)
(898,721) (109,732) 203,314 1 (7,874) {813,012)
Impairment losses (13,370) (2,264) 10,949 (26) (4,711)
Net carrying amount 431,050 24,173  (160,089) (347) 2,674 297,461
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2017

Translation
Balance at differences Balance at
January 01, and other December 31
(Thousands of euros) 2017 Additions  Disposals  Trangfers changes 2017
Cost
Land ang buildings 289,948 14,423 (1.230) 1,756 (47,342) 257,555
Technical installations 81,140 7.773 (2.386) 1.620 (6.420) 81,727
Machinery 622,612 80.222 (55,908) 15,852 (56.399) 616,379
Data processing equipment 63.351 8.041 (2.085) 304 (3.754) 65,857
Transport equipment 13,040 570 (375) - (2,385) 10,850
Other installations, tools,
furniture, and other PP&E 298.210 24 678 (13.874) 3.644 (17,928) 294,730
Property, plant angd equipment 14,441 24 508 (446) (23,289) 829 16.043
under conslruction
1,382,742 170,215 (76,304) (113) {133,399) 1,343,141
Depreciation
Buildings (94.286) (13.954) 363 - 2.851 (105,026)
Technical installalions (60.098) (7.009) 2,371 - 5,803 (58.933)
Machinery (465.454) (74,825) 50,868 - 41,696 (447.695)
Data processing equipmenl (53,938) (7.185) 1,586 - 2,904 (56.603)
Transport equipment (9.357) (1,354) 153 - 1,882 (8.676)
Olher ins(allations. tools,
furniture. and other PP&E {224.608) {23.428) 13,125 - 13,123 {221.788)
(907,741) (127,735) 68,496 - 68,259 (898,721)
Impairment losses {10,772) {5,710) 3,059 53 {13,370)
' Net carrying amount 464,229 36,770 (4.749) {113) (65,087) 431,050

The 'Additions’ column in 2018 mainly shows:

- The effect of the acquisition of the Cirsa Group, as disclosed in Note 10.

- The effecl of the other business combinations (Note 4.2), which has amounted to an overall
gross value of 12,939 thousand euros (41,945 thousand euros in the prior year) and
accumuiated depreciation of 7,127 thousand euros (20,435 thousand euros in the prior year).

Additions in 2018 also included investments in assets in Spain (41,076 thousand euros), Colombia
(14,575 thousand euros), Mexico (16,419 thousand euros), Peru (7,389 thousand euros) and Panama
(20,472 thousand euros) mainly to renovate some already-instatled halls, and additions of property, plant
and equipment under construction amounting to 29,238 thousand euros as a resuit of the renovation
and expansion of casinos, mainly in Latin American countries.

Additions in 2017 also included investments in assets in Spain (35,859 thousand euros), Colombia
(16,577 thousand euros), Argentina (13,021 thousand euros), Mexico (16,863 thousand euros), Peru
(5,618 thousand euros) and Panama (17,785 thousand euros) mainly to renovate some already-installed
halls, and additions of property, plant and equipment under construction amounting to 24,508 thousand
euros as a result of the renovation and expansion of casinos, mainly in Latin American countries. It
should be noted that at December 31, 2017 most of the additions in property, plant and equipment under
construction in 2016 were recognized according to their nature, since most of the halls vunder
construction had already been put to use.

The 'Disposals’ colums in 2018 and 2017 includes sales of several assets and other disposals, basically

due to the replacement of slot machines, which in 2018 resulted in gains of 13,025 thousand euros
(losses of 3,044 thousand euros in the prior year).
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7.2 Work performed by the Group and capitalized

The cost value of the machines manufactured by group companies that after being sold to operational
companies of the Cirsa Group are operated by them is recorded as property, plant and equipment with
a charge to the corresponding expenses according io their nature in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The work performed by the Group and capitalized as property plant and
equipment in 2018 and 2017 amounts to 46,438 and 50,365 thousand, respectively.

7.3 Assets used as guarantees

Several property, plant and equipment items, whose net value at December 31, 2018 and 2017 was 210
and 9,509 thousand, respectively, were used as guarantee for morigage loan deblts.

7.4 Assets subject to charges and limitations

All assets can be freely used, except for the assets used as guarantees indicated in Note 7.3 and those
acquired under finance lease arrangements, whose net carrying amount is 681 thousand euros at
December 31, 2018 (6,551 thousand euros at December 31, 2017).

7.5 Assets |located outside of Spain

The net value of the assets located cutside of Spain amounts to 186,242 thousand euros at December
31, 2018 (296,946 thousand euros at December 31, 2017).

7.6 Investment commitments

Firm investment commitmenis amount to 10,018 thousand euros at December 31, 2018 (4,895 thousand
euros at December 31, 2017).
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8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

This caption includes the following investments:

2018

Profit/{10ss)

Book value of Operating for the

(Thousands of euros) the Investment Assets Liabilities income period
AOG, S.R.L. 11.948 21,131 (12,028) 104,207 461
Unidn de operadores reunides S.A. 16.146 10,008 (1.842) 23310 4,700
Sporlium Apuestas Oeportivas, S.A. 48,678 161,115 (65,331} 635,383 11.542

and Subsidiaries
Other 2.218 14.862 (12,069) 40,084 920
. 78,990 N
2017

Profit/{loss)

Book value of Opaerating for the

{Thousands of euros) the investment Assets Liabillties income period
AOG. SR.L. 21,498 20,389 (8,944) 82,791 2,000
Binbaices, S.A. 12,919 11,550 (5.644) 40.028 €910
Montecarlo Andalucla, S.L. 4,764 2,285 (464) 22,805 1,611
Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. 10410 38,616 (16,515) 376.648 2,329

and Subsidiaries
Olher and write-down 8.229 24,645 (18.477) 49,475 (468)
57,820

The associates consolidated using the equity method had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments

at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The annual variation in the ‘Investments in associates’ caption is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017

Balance at January 1 57.820 56.497
Revaluation due to PPA Cirsa Group (Note 10) 16.592 -
Share in profit/(loss) for the year and write-down 4,578 (90)
Other changes i 1413
Balance at December 31 78,990 57,820

No impairment loss (write-down) has been included in 2018 after the measurement of assets in the 2018
PPRA after the purchase and sale transaction of the Cirsa Group, as indicated in Note 10.

The transactions carried out during the 2018 and 2017 between the above-listed companies and the
companies accounted for using the fuil and/or proportional consolidation method are not relevant.
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9. FINANCIAL ASSETS

This caption consists of the following balances:

2018 2017
Non- Non-
{Thousands of euros) current Current Total currant Current Total
Loans and receivables
Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. - - - 74,809 - 74,809
Laans 1o jeint venlures and
associates 2,854 2,909 5763 2,435 7,561 9,996

Loans 1o thirg parties 19.125 - 19,125 26,193 - 26,193
Guaranlees and deposils 10,064 14,762 24,826 8,347 13,718 22,065
Fixed income securities and deposils - 1,198 1,198 - 14,413 14,413
Trade and other receivables - 142,069 142,069 - 214,404 214,404
Other 7,832 1.434 9,266 2,042 7.204 9,246

39,875 162,372 202.247 113,826 257.300 371.126
Impairment losses (449) (34,977) (35,426) (601) (39.062) (39,663)

38,426 127,395 166,821 113,225 218,238 331,463

The Group considers that the fair values of these do not differ significantly from the amounts recorded.
The accumulated balance of impairment losses on non-current financial assets mainly relates to loans
to third parties, whereas the amount of impairment losses on current financial assets mainly relates to
trade and other receivables (32,468 and 36,272 thousand euros at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively). The remainder of the balance amounting to 2,509 thousand euros corresponds to
impairment losses on current financial investments.

9.1 Loans and receivables

Nortia Business Corporation, S.L.

(Thousands of edros) 2018 2017
Loan maturing in 2021, al a nominal inlerest rate of 5.75% - 31,381
Long-term promissory noles for the sale of assets discounted at an interest rate of 5% - 2,558
Accrued interest - 40,870
- 74,809

At December 31, 2018 all outstanding items held with the former owner of the Cirsa Group have been
canceled, as a result of the purchase and sale transaction, except for the outstanding price adjustment
at December 31, 2018 for an amount of 13,539 thousand euros, recorded in the 'Trade and other
receivables’ caption.

Loans to joint ventures and associales

This caption breaks down as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017

Current accounts with joint ventures and associales 5,763 9,386

Other - 610
5763 9,996

(') The amounts receivable from the joint ventures included in the lable above are the remaining balances after (he eliminalions
upon consolldation.
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The annual maturity of these assets is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Within 1 year 2,911 7.561
Between 1 and 2 years 713 608
Between 2 and 3 years 713 609
Between 3 and 4 years 713 609
Between 4 and 5 years 713 609
___ __ 5,763 9,996
The average interest rate of these assets in 2018 and 2017 was 5.82%.
Loans to third parties
The breakdown of non-current loans to third parties is as follows:
{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Mortgage Joan in US dollars 1o a company that owns a holel in Domninican Republic where a
casino operated by the Group is located. It earns an annual inlerest of 7.25%. - 249
Accounls receivable from the industrial division. 2.852 2,446
Deferred collection for the sale of a non-controlling interesl in an Italian company of the
operational division 498 972
Deferred collection {or the sale of a non-controlling interest in 2 Spanish company of lhe
operational division 1.843 2,680
Currenl accounls with third parties for Group purposes, at a floating interest rate of Euribor plus
1% wilh a minimum of 2% - 9,198
Other 13,932 10,638
] ~ 19,125 26,193
The breakdown of maturity dates for non-current loans to third parties is as follows:
{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Between 1 and 2 years 13,806 10,774
Between 2 and 3 years 2,711 4,416
Between 3 and 4 years 790 1,594
Belween 4 and 5 years 779 -
More than 5 years 1.039 211
Indefinite - 8,198
19,125 26,193

The balances with indefinite maturity relate to current accounts with third parties and accrue a floating
interest rate (Euribor pius 1% with a minimum of 2%). The current accounts are recorded as non-current
financial assets since the Directors of the Company consider that they will be collected in more than 12

months. and they have powers of decision in this regard.
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Trade and other receivables

This caption consists of the following balances;

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Trade receivables 56,955 61.184
Impairment losses (32.468) (36,272)
Other related parties - 618
Public administrations 28,860 26.186
Olher accounts receivable 56,254 126436
109,601 178,132

Receivables from Public administrations mainly correspond to payments on account of income tax, VAT

and other tax receivables.

The balance of Trade and other receivables is shown net of impairment loss. The movements in the

impairment loss allowance are as follows:

{Thousands of eucos) 2018 2017
Balance at January 1 38,062 38,106
Net charges for the year 3.011 2,703
Utilized (7.239) (3.512)
Additions of companies 143 765
34,977 39,062

Balance at December 31

The Group has established credit periods between 90 and 150 days, while the average collection period
is approximately of 120 days at December 31, 2018 (120 days at December 31, 2017).
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10. ACQUISITION OF CIRSA GAMING CORPORATION

The breakdown of the amounts related to the acquisition of the Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group over
whose business the Parent Company has gained control, effective from July 3, 2018, is as follows:

(Millions of euros}

Non-controlling

interests arisen Goodwlll
Name and description of the Acquisition Fair value of the In the business generated
entities and business Acquisition date cost assels acquited  combination (Note 5)

Grupo Cirsa Gaming
Corporalion July 03, 2018 1,453 476 105 968

The values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business
combinations, excluding resulting goodwill, were as follows:

Recognized on

_{Thousands of euros] acqulsition Book value
Property. planl and equipment 295 266
Intangible assels 1,134 132
Non-current financial assets (ownership interests accounted for using the
equily method) 74 12
Other non-current assets 195 195
Current assets 563 583
Deferred tax liabilities arisen (303) (15)
Other current and non-current liabilities (1,482) (1.482)

_ s 476 (329)

Operating income from ordinary activities. operating profit/(loss) and net profit/(loss) for the year already
correspond to a whole year in accordance with the premises for the special purpose consolidated
financial statements.

As a result of the transaction, all the Group's rights and obligations, including the agreements and
contracts that it held with third parties, continue to be in force subsequently. The only relevant business
of the Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group, prior to the transaction, that has not continued under the new
scope of consolidation is the one corresponding to the gaming activities in Argentina, which is presented
as a discontinued operation in the accompanying consolidated financiai statements.
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1. IMPAIRMENT TEST

11.1 Goodwill

Cash-generating units

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and any other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives have been attributed to cash-generating units for impairment testing. The breakdown of cash-
generating units is as follows:;

s Operational segment in Spain.

¢ Group of bingos in Spain and Italy (the latter is accounted for using the equity method).

s« Casinos in Spain, Panama, Colombia, Mexico, Dominican Republican, Peru, Costa Rica and
Morocco.

¢  Each differentiated interactive activity.

s Online activity (accounted for using the eguity method).

In the current year, given that the Cirsa Group was acquired on July 3, 2018, all existing goodwill at
December 31, 2018 comes from said transaction, as already detailed above, as a result of the purchase
price allocation of the excess price arisen due to the difference between the consideration paid and the
consolidated book value of the acquired business.

Based on the tests performed in 2017, impairment adjustments on goodwill were recorded in the prior
year for an amount of 5,781 thousand euros, mainly due to more prudent estimates of future cash flows
in Cirsagest, S.p.a., with an estimated impact of 5,000 thousand euros, as well as a lesser impact in the
estimates of the cash flows from a bingo hall, Tefle, S.A, Additionally, an impairment loss was recorded
on the investment in the company AOG (an associate consolidated using the equity method) for an
amount of 4,300 thousand euros.

2017
{Thousands of euros) Impairment losses
Recoverable
amount of the On other
Cau cGuU On goodwill assets
Tefle, S.A. - 784 502
Cirsagesl, S.P.A. 21.874 5,000 -
Impalmment loss recorded 5,781 602

11.2 Other assets

Impairment indicators used by the Group to determine the need of an impairment test on other non-
current assets, amongst others, are as follows:

Significant drop of the result over the same period in the prior year, and/or over the budget.
Legislative changes in progress or ptanned, which could lead to negative effects.

Change of strategy or internal expectations regarding a particular business or country.
Position of competitors and their launches of new products.

Slowdown of income or difficulties in selling at expected prices.

s« Change in habits and attitudes of users, and other elements specific to each division.

As indicated in Note 11.1, during 2017 impairment losses amounting to 502 thousand euros were
recorded (impairment fully corresponds to property, plant and equipment of Tefle, S.A.), as well as 628

thousand euros in another Spanish bingo hall.
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12, INVENTORIES

The breakdown of inventories by category, net of impairment, is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017

Raw and auxiliary malerials 3,660 3,888

Spare parts and others 8.225 7,746

Finished goods 1.555 689

Work in progress 3.390 3,353

Prepayments 1o suppliers 1,073 2.077
17,903 17,753

Inventories correspond mainly to the manufacture and marketing of slot machines carried out by Group
companies.

The balance of inventories is shown net of impairment loss. Movements in the impairment loss allowance
are as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017

Balance at January 1 1.145 1164
Nel charges for the year 425 747
Cancellations (641) (766)
Balance at December 31 - 929 1,148

The write-off in 2018 and 2017 corresponds 1o the destruction of several inventories from the industrial
division.

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For consolidated cash-flow statement purposes, cash and cash equivalenis include the following itemns:

(Thousands of auros) 2018 2017

Cash 42,300 15,000

Current accounts 73,049 164,043

Deposils under 3 months 66 2,176

Cash in hoppers 36.777 30,970
152,192 212,189

These assels are unrestricted and earn market interest rates.
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14. EQUITY

14.1  Subscribed capital and share premium
At December 31, 2018 the Parent Company's share capital consisted of 70,663 thousand registered
shares with a face value of 1 euro each after a capital increase was carried out on July 2, 2018 with a
share premium for an aggregated amount (capital increase plus share capital) of 706,603 thousand
euros. The Sole Shareholder of the Parent Company is LHMC MIDCO, S.a.r.l. ang all shares bear the
same obligations and voting and economic rights.

All shares are pledged in favor of six financial insfitutions as a guarantee of a credit line.

14.2  Treasury shares

There are no treasury shares at December 31, 2018,

At December 31, 2017, given that these are special purpose consolidated financial statements, the
former Parent Company owned 1,131,421 treasury shares at an average cost of 0.1626 each, which
were shown reducing the Group's equity.

14.3 Retained earnings

The balance of this caption includes reserves of the Parent Company, which are non-distributable.

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, Spanish companies obtaining profit will
assign 10% of profit to the legal reserve, until its balance is equivalent to at least 20% of share capital.
As long as it does not exceed this limit, the legal reserve can only be used to offset losses if no other
reserves are availaple. This reserve can also be used to increase capital by the amount exceeding 10%
of the new capital after the increase.

There is no legal reserve at December 31, 2018.

Additionally, the Group Spanish subsidiaries have provided the legal reserves at the amount required
by the prevailing legislation.

14.4  Non-controlling interests

The balances related to non-controlling interests are as follows:

Balance In staterngnt of Share In
financial position profit){loss)
{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Division
Casinos 102.910 145,004 8,388 11,838
Slols (2.277) 78.020 4,779 2,092
82B 2.356 3.086 228 296
8ingos 17,272 10,558 1,903 2,536
120,261 235,679 15,298 18,763
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The inter-annual variation of balances in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

{Thousands of euros)

2018 2047
Balance at Januacy 1 236,679 250,854
Share of profiv(loss) for the year 15,298 25,685
Translalion differences - (8.340)
Net impact due to business combinalions 2.484 1,117
Dividends paid (26.242) (32.737)
Sale of Argentinean campanies (107.958) -
Balance at December 31 - 120,261 236,679

The main movement in 2018 corresponds to the exclusion of non-controlling interests of Argentinean
companies from the scope of consolidation.

18. CORPORATE BONDS

At December 31, 2018 this caption mainly relates to a bond issue carried out by a group company
domiciled in Luxembourg, Cirsa Finance International, S.a.r.l., on July 3, 2018 for an approximate
amount of 1,560 million euros, which were partially used for the early repayment of previously issued
bonds by the Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group, for an amount of 950 million euros.

The current corporate bonds comgrise three tranches amounting to 663, 425 and 550 million US dollars,
respectively. All of them mature in 2023 and earn interest at a rate of threg-month Euribor of 6.25% plus
575 basis points, and 7.875% for each of the franches, respectively.

These bonds were issued below par at a price of 97.75%, 97.7% and 97.75% for each of the three
tranches, respectively.

Contracts subscribed in relation to the bonds issued by the subsidiaries in Luxembourg regulate certain
obligations and commitments by the Group, which include, among others, the supply of periodic
information, the maintenance of titlles of ownership in subsidiaries, the restriction on disposal of
significant assets, the compliance with certain debt ratios, the limitation on payment of dividends, the
limitation on starting-up new businesses, and the restriction on the Group granting guarantees and
endorsements to third parties. The Parent Company's Directors consider that all contractual obligations
have been met. The shares of several Group companies have been assigned as security for these
liabilities.

At December 31, 2018 the quoted price of the bonds recognized in the liabilities side of the balance
sheet is 101.2%, 100.5% and 99.0% of their par value, for each of the three tranches.
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16. BANK BORROWINGS

The breakdown of bank borrowings at December 31, 2018 ang 2017 is as follows:

2018 B 2017
Non- Non-

_(Thousands of suros) cursent Current Total current Current Total
Mongage and pledge loans 99 a2 181 12,271 2,337 14,608
Other loans 51,571 26.967 78,538 21,454 50.372 71,826
Finance lease arrangements (Note

21.2) 452 928 1,381 2,202 3.854 6.066
Credit and discount lines - 5.960 5.960 2.000 12,707 14,707
52,122 33,938 86,060 37,927 69,270 107,197

Average interest rates accrued by these borrowings are as follows:

Percentage

2018 2017

Loans 3.57% 2.73%

Finance lease arrangements 3.23% 7.39%

_ Credil and discount lines 2.27% 2.23%

The annual maturity date of these liabilities is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Within 1 year 33,937 69,270
Between 1 and 2 years 18,011 17,238
Between 2 and 3 years 14,591 9,704
Belween 3 and 4 years 11,065 5.648
Between 4 and 5 years 7.871 3.076
More than 5 years 585 2,261
86,060 107,197

At December 31, 2018 part of these fiabilities, equal to 718 thousand euros is denominated in U.S.
gollars (5.947 thousand euros at December 31, 2017).

At December 31, 2018, the shares of several subsidiaries were pledged in favor of six financial
institutions as a guarantee for the credit line, whose utilization limit amounted to 200 million euros (735
million euros at December 31, 2017). At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the Group has not drawn down
any balance of this credit line.

At December 31, 2018 the undrawn amount of credit and discount lines is 18,126 and 3,438 thousand
euros, respectively, without considering the credit line commented in the paragraph above. These figures
amounted to 11,135 and 3,601 thousand euros, respectively, at 2017 year end.

Finally. at December 31, 2018 and 2017 the guarantees given by credit institutions and insurance

companies to the Group, in connection with official concessions were 100,713 and 124,453 thousangd
euros, respectively.
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17.

OTHER NON-TRADE PAYABLES

The breakdown of this heading is the following:

2018 2017
Non- Non-
{Thousands of euros) current Current Total current Current Total
Public administralions 5 73,380 73.385 26,353 87,945 113,298
Bills payable 268 2,528 2,796 730 3.744 4.474
Sundcy creditors 31.698 97.849 129.547 37.487 117,237 154,724
31,971 173,757 205,728 63,570 208,926 272,496

At 2017 year end the non-current portion of liabilities with Public administrations referred mainly to the
effect of the voluntary adherence to the payment standstil in relation to the tax on gross revenues in the
Argentinean companies CBA and CBA-CIESA UTE (Note 1.2).

The current portion corresponds to gaming taxes with a short-term maturity (2018: 35,771 thousand
euros, 2017: 40,568 thousand euros), outstanding settlements (not due) for the personal income {ax,
VAT, sociaf security contributions and similar concepts.

Bills payable correspond mainly to debts arising from the acquisition of companies and operations of
slot machines with deferred payment, discounted at marke! interest rate.

The caption Non-current sundry creditors mainly includes:

Asset suppliers amounting to 8,206 thousand euros (6,994 thousand euros at prior year end).
Non-current payable amount related to certain investments in Panama corresponding {o a payable
balance related to an investment agreement amounting to 6,264 thousand euros. The debt derived
from this investment will be settled through 239 equal monthly instalments of 71 thousand dollars,
including interest, the first payment being in February 2018 until February 2038. At December 31,
2018 the payable amount classified as non-current amounts to 5,935 thousand euros.

Several payables for common transactions amounting to 11,0683 thousand euros, with an
undetermined maturity (12,763 thousand euros at prior year end).

Non-current payable amount related to the acquisition of companies in Spain and the Dominican
Republic at year end amounting to 1,849 thousand euros and 2,124 thousand euros, respectively.

The caption Current sundry credjtors mainly includes:

Asset suppliers amounting to 23,454 thousand euros {30,083 thousand euros at 2017 year end).
Payables for the rendering of services amounting to 26.566 thousand euros (22,982 thousand euros
at December 31, 2017).

Current borrowings amounting to 9,380 thousand euros (18,076 thousand euros at prior year end),
notably including the payable portion in 2018 for the investments in Peru and the Dominican
Republic mentioned above.

Employee benefits payable amounting to 23,241 thousand euros {33,280 thousand euros in the
prior year) (Note 22.1).
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18. NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2018 2017

Personne! commitments 9,407 11,041
Tax contingencies 1.357 4,208
Other 1,330 3,147
Balance at December 31 _ - 12,094 18.396

The amount recognized in Obligations in relation to employees mainly consists of probable
contingencies with the personnel in Italy and retirement incentives (in 2017 it also included the bonus
plan for the Group’s executives).

The amount recognized at December 31, 2017 as “Tax contingencies” mainly relates {o certain liabilities
in Mexico amounting to 2,904 thousand eurcs.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the amount shown under the caption '‘Others' mainly consists of
provisions for several risks and fines that are individually irrelevant.

The inter-annual variation of the balance is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Balance at Januvary 1 18.396 23,031
Net charges for the year 5178 9,694
Provisions utifized (10.062) (13.022)
Additions due to acquisition of companies - 30
Exchange gains (losses) 198 (1.337)
Disposals due lo sale of companies (1.617) -
Balance at December 31 ) B 12,094 18,386
19. TAXES

19.1  Tax group

The Company Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A., together with 65 Spanish group companies, which
comply with tax legislation requirements, files tax returns on a consolidated basis. Additionally, there is
another Spanish consolidated tax group in Spain, comprising 7 companies, of which the subsidiary
Orlando Play, S.A. is the parent.

The other Group companies file income tax returns separately in accordance with applicable tax
legislation in each country.

For the purposes of this note, the 2017 amounts have not been restated. Consequently, the income tax
for said period includes discontinued operations.
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19.2  Accrued and payable income tax

The annual tax expense that has been entirely recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account,
since the Group has direct tax impacts on equity, is broken down as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Current 38,073 57.124
Deferred for {(increase) decrease in lax credils related to \ax loss carryforwards and deductions 2,676 215
Deferred for temporary differences 1,029 4,194
Olher (14.400) 318
28,378 61,851

‘Other’ includes, among others, the tax effecls derived from amorlizalion and other accounting
revaluation adjustments as a result of the business combination of the Cirsa Group in 2018.

Income tax payable amounts at 13,064 thousand euros at December 31, 2018 (15,309 thousand euros

at December 31, 2017) and mainly corresponds to the current income tax accrued in the several
jurisdictions net of withholdings and payments on account for the period.

19.3  Analysis of tax expense

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Profit before tax 33 158,364
Tax rale prevailing in Spain 25%

Theorelical income tax expense 8 39,591

Adjusiments — Effect of:

Differenl \ax rales prevailing in other countries 5.261 14,178
Countries in which there is no incomne tax and/or offset of losses - (882)
Impairment losses on assels and goodwill recognized solely for consolidation purposes - 2.520
Utilization of (capitalized and uncapilalized) tax credits and deducticns in prior years 3,705 {3.853)
Limitation on the dedudtibility of financial expenses in Spanish companies that will nol be
recovered 9.708 2,687
Other non-deduclible expenses and other 9,696 7710
) 28,378 61,851

At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the effect of corrections in different tax rates mainly corresponds to the
higher taxes applied in Mexico and Colombia (in 2017 also in Argentina).

At December 31, 2018 and 2017 non-deductible expenses consist, among others, of portfolio charges
carried out by subsidiaries in Latin American countries.
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19.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

{Thousands of euros) 2018 2017
Assels
Tax loss carryforwards from the tax group whose parent is Cirsa Gaming Corporation 26,431 28,272
Tax loss carryforwards from the tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A. 1.168 606
Tax loss carryforwards fcom other group companies 1.254 8,274
Deduclible temporary differences:
-— Impaired receivables 480 575
--- impaired securties portiolio 10 2
--- Googwill impaired in individual books 743 737
--- Intragroup margin wrile-off 5628 5.189
-— Non-accounting impairmenl for tax purposes 1,924 4.131
Non-deductible amortization for accounting purposes 759 1,206
--- Other 7,182 7.548
- 45,580 56,540
Liabilities
Taxable lemporary differences.
--- Tax provision for maximum gaming prizes (8.173) (7.803)
--- Difference between tax depreciation and accounting depreciation - (511)
~- Non-accounting impairment for tax purposes (2,364) (5.683)
--- Margin write-offs (1,974) (2.297)
-— Business combinalions (inilial statemenl of non-current asseis at fair value) (275.133) (96.041)
— Other (1.770) (8,886)
B - (289,414) (121,22%)

The Group estimates the taxable profits which it expects to obtain within the utilization period based on
budgets. It also analyzes the reversal period of taxable temporary differences. identifying those that
reverse in the years in which unused tax loss carryforwards may be used, considering the application of
the Royal Decree-Law mentioned above. Based on this analysis, the Group has recorded deferred tax
assets for upused tax loss carryforwards as well as unused deductions and deductible temporary
differences for which it is considered probable that sufficient taxablie profit will be generated in the future
against which they can be utilized within a reasonable period of time.

The breakdown of unused tax losses carryforwards at December 31, 2018 for the two tax groups whose
parent companies are, respectively, Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. and the subsidiary Orlando Play,

S.A., is as follows:

{Thousands of euros)

Unused tax loss carryforwards

Tax group whose parent is

Tax group whose parent is

Ariging in Cirsa Gaming Corporation, 5.A. Ortando Play, S.A.
1999 410 -
2000 173 -
2001 9,309 -
2002 154 -
2003 6,416 -
2004 11,534 -
2005 24,383 -
2006 276 937
2007 12,032 396
2008 1,790 372
2009 11.698 1319
2010 13,036 -
20114 37,344 -
2012 12,177 -
2013 3.506 -
2014 24,377 -
2015 379 1,517
2016 260 908
2017 - -
2018 4.859 2,251
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Tax group whose parent is Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017 said tax group recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 26,431
and 28,272 thousand euros, respectively, relating to unused tax loss carryforwards of the tax group. No
deferred tax assets were recorded for the rest of unused tax loss carryforwards (which at December 31,
2018 amount to 17,088 thousand euros; 21,173 thousand euros at December 31, 2017), since their
future application is uncertain within a reasonable period of time.

In addition to tax credits for tax loss carryforwards, the lax group whose parent is Cirsa Gaming
Corporation, S.A. holds additional tax credits amounting to 52,534 thousand euros at December 31,
2018 (2017: 55,463 thousand euros), for unused tax deductions that were not capitalized for not meeting
the terms to be utilized.

{Thousands of euros)

Last year for utilization Unused deductions at December 31, 2018
2018 1.035
2019 3.521
2020 2,486
2021 6,591
2022 865
2023 903
2024 1,280
2025 566
2026 419
2027 1,675
2028 721
2029 252
2030 284
2031 268
2032 228
2033 188
2034 192
2035 209
No time limil for utilization 30.840

Tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A.
In 2010 the tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A, was constituted.

At December 31, 2018 the Group had recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 1,169 thousand
euros (606 thousand euros at prior year end) corresponding to unused tax loss carryforwargs.

Additionally, said tax group has deferred tax assets related to unused tax loss carryforwards and unused
deductions amounting to 756 and 744 thousand euros, respectively (756 and 760 thousand euros,
respectively, at the prior year) for which the corresponding deferred tax assets have not been
recognized, since the requirements established by the applicable framework for financial information are
not met.

19.5 Other information

Under prevailing tax regulations, tax returns may not be considered final until they have either been
inspected by the tax authorities, or until the corresponding inspection period has expired.

On March 7, 2018 the Group was notified of the start of general verification and investigation
proceedings regarding the corporate income fax for the years 2013 to 2016 of the 26/94 tax
consolidation group and, on a separate basis, of the companies Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A., Cirsa
International Gaming Corporation, S.A., Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A., Juegomatic, S.A.,
Uniplay, S.L. and Universal de Desarrollos Electronicos, S.A.
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On the same date, the Group was also notified of the start of partial verification and investigation
proceedings regarding the Value Added Tax, of the group of entities included in the regime of entities
for that tax, for the periods comprised between February 2014 and December 2016. Additionally, for
these companies, the Group has also been notified of the start of general verification proceedings, for
the periods comprised between February 2014 and December 2016, regarding the following concepts:

- Value Added Tax (for the periods when they were not included in the group of entities)
- Withholdings/prepayments on employee/independent professionals incomne tax.

The Group does not expect that any significant liability will arise as a result of this inspection, which at
December 31, 2018 has not yet been completed.

In general, the prescription periods for countries where the Group has significant presence are between
four and five years after the end of the statutory period for filing tax returns.

20. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The income statement of discontinued operations in Argentina breaks down as follows:

{Thousands of euros) Notes 2018 2017
Income from gaming activilies 134.373 299,748
Other operating income 8.633 21.500
Bingo prizes (19) (69)
Total operating income 139,987 321,179
Variable rent (602) (874)
Total operating income net of variable rent 139,385 320,205
Cosi of sales (2,908) (7.708)
Employee benefits expense 221 (33.685) {84,538)
Utitilies ang exlernal services 22.2 (16.585) (39.528)
Gaming taxes and othar similar taxes (47,038) (112.243)
Charge ta depreciation and amortization and impairment of assets (7,419) (18,289)
Change in operaling provisions (24) (48)
finance income 1.073 3.401
Finance costs {2.802) (8.645)
Chg. in financial provisions - -
Gains/(losses) on investments in associates 582 1,708
Exchange gains / (losses), net 223 12,779 2855
Gains/(losses) on disposal/derecognition of non-current assets (70) 10
Profit / {loss) before tax 43,190 57,280
Income {ax (15.458) (22.712)
Net profit/{loss) for tha year from discontinued operations 27,732 34,568
Profit/{loss) attributable to non-controlting interests from discontinued

operations {3.456) (8,922)
impact of the sale of companies in Argentina {264,643) -
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (240,366) 26.648

The impact of the sale of Cirsa International Gaming Corporation, S.A. and its subsidiaries at the date
of sale {mainly Argentinean) derives from the selling price quantified at 136.7 million euros and the
impact of the derecognition from equity of the several accumulated effects thereof. This impact consists
of a positive effect on equity of 26 million euros and negative effects on equity due to the reclassification
to the incomne statement of translation differences and non-controlling interests for the remaining amount.
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The cash flows would break down as follows:

_(Thousands of euros} 2018 2017
Cash flows from operaling activities 21,419 35,872
Cash flows from investing activilies (28,942) (980)
Cash flows from financing aclivilies (7,449) (21,112)
Net cash flows - (14,972) 13,780

21. LEASES

21.1  Operating leases

The Group has leases on severa) buildings for an average term between three and five years, with no

renewal clauses.

The future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31 are as follows:

(Thousands of auros} 2018 2017
Within 1 year 85.017 81,354
Between 1 and 5 years 384,758 350.565
More than 5 years 108,506 94,312

578,281 626,231

21.2 Finance leases

The Group has financed several acquisitions of property. plant and equipment (mainly slot machines)
through finance lease arrangements. The future minimum payments under finance leases and their

present value are as follows:

2017

Present Present

value of value of

payments Minimum payments

{Thousands of suros) {Note 16) payments {Note 18)
Within 1 year 929 4,818 3.854
Between 1 and 5 years 452 3,457 2,202
1,381 8,275 6,056

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment through finance lease arrangements, not recorded as cash
flows in investing activities in the consolidated cash flow statement, amounted to 3,062 thousand euros

in 2017.
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22 INCOME AND EXPENSES

221 Employee benefits expense

2018 2017

Discontinued Discontinued
(Thousands of euros) Continuing operatlo operations Continuing operatioi operations
Wages and salaries 228,760 23,653 177,542 58.219
Social Securily 39,734 7.869 37,439 20,079
Termination benefils 3,491 581 3,464 2,235
Other 9,865 1,582 9,664 4,005

281,850 33,685 228,109 84,538

Remunerations pending payment at December 31, 2018 and 2017 (23,241 and 33,280 thousand euros,
respectively) are included in Other non-trade payables - Sundry creditors (Note 17).

22.2 Utilities and external services

2018 2017
Caontinuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
(Thousands of suros) operations aperations operations operations
Leases and royallies 90,064 1.609 83.820 3,623
Publicity. advertising, and public relalions 45,383 2182 41617 5,783
Professional services 35,337 2,119 21,882 4,346
Other services 20,193 1,383 15,157 3,325
Ulililies 26,065 3,532 24,844 7.618
Travel expenses 8,334 238 11.388 484
Repairs and maintenance 8,206 2,204 17.646 6.286
Securily services 8,948 941 8,417 2,327
Postal  services, communications and 9.808 548 8.985 1,488
insurance premiums 5,774 120 5.484 321
Cleaning services 7.641 376 7.401 a76
Bank services et al. 8.387 686 8.340 1,385
Transportation 1.462 646 1534 1.565
Development cosls and palents (Note 6.2} 66 - 41 -
276,669 16,585 256,666 39,528
Exchange gains (losses)
2018 2017
Continuing Discontinued Continulng Discontinued
(Thousands of euros) operations operations operatlons operations
Posilive 14,013 133,380 3,903 38,395
Negative (25.526) (120.601) (5.178) (35.440)
. . (11,513) 12,779 (1,275) 2,956

Net exchange gains/(losses) from translation of financial balances in foreign currency between Group
companies are recognized in Transfation differences, as a component that decreases shareholders’
equity at December 31, 2018 by 584 thousand euros (2017: it decreased shareholders' equity by 8,513
thousand euros), since they are considered as exchange gains/(losses) arising from monetary
components of a net investment in a foreign business.
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23. RELATED PARTIES

No Cirsa Group-related companies have entered into any transactions or have any outstanding balances
with other subsidiaries of LHMC Topco, S.a.r.l. or the Blackstone Group.

24, CONTINGENCIES
The Group has litigation proceedings, claims and other administrative procedures underway as a result
of the normal course of business in the countries where it carries out its activity. However, the Group

does not expect that any unprovisioned significant fiabilities will arise as a result of the above
proceedings.

25. INFORMATION ON ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
Given the characteristics of the activities performed by the group companies, at year end it was not

necessary to record any expenses and/or investments related to transactions for preventing, reducing
or repairing environmental damage.

26. AUDIT FEES

Fees and expenses paid for the audit services provided by the main auditors and other firms belonging
to the auditor's international network amounted to 968 thousand euros in 2018 (2017: 1,356 thousand
€uros).

In addition, fees and expenses paid for other services provided by the main auditors or other related
entities amounted to 571 thousand euros in 2018 (2017: 65 thousand euros).

27. OTHER RELATED PARTIES

The breakdown of the remuneration earned by the key executives of Group Management is as follows:

(Thousands of auros) 2018 2017
Shor-tarm employee benefits 3,600 4,500
Olher long-term benefits 1,000 1.000
(Net) payments in LHMC Topco S.4.1.). shares 20,000 -

No additiona! transactions have been carried out and no other outstanding balances exists with group-
related parties.
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28. OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed fo credit risk, interest risk, exchange risk and liquidity risk guring the normal
development of its activities.

The Group's main financial instruments include bonds, bank loans, credit and discount lines, financing
obtained through the deferral of gaming taxes, financial leases, deferred payments for purchase of
businesses, and cash and current deposits.

The Group's policy establishes that no trading in derivalives (exchange rates insurance) to manage
exchange rate risks arising from certain fund sources in U.S, dollars will be undertaken. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to cover fluctuations in interest rates, either.

28.1 Credit risk

Most of the operations carried out by the Group are in cash. For receivables from other activities, the
Group has established a credit policy and risk exposure in collection is managed in the ordinary course
of business. Credit assessments are carried out for all customers who require a limit higher than 60

thousand euros.

Guarantees on loans and credit risk exposure are shown in Note 9.

28.2 Interest rate risk

External finance is mainly based on the issuvance of corporate bonds at fixed and floating interest rate.
Bank borrowings (credit policies, trading discounts, financial lease agreements) as well as deferred
payments with public administrations and other long-term non-trade payables have a variable interest
rate that is reviewed annually. Previous Notes show interest rates of debt instruments.

The breakdown of liabilities that accrue interests at 2018 and 2017 year end is as follows:

2018 2017
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
{Thousands of auros) Interest rate  laterest rate interest rate  Interest rate
Bonds 1,141,727 413,173 943,151 -
Bank borrowings - 86.060 - 107,196
Other payables - 32,091 - 80,961
1,111,727 531,324 943,151 188,157

At December 31, 2018 financial liabilities at a fixed interest rate represented 63% of total liabilities (83%
at 2017 year end). In this regard, the Group’s sensitivity to fluctuations in interest rates is low: a variation
of 100 basis points in floating rates would {ead to a change in the result amounting to 5,314 thousand
euros in 2018 and 1,882 thousand euros in 2017.

The Group estimates that fair value of the financial liabilities’ instruments does not differ significantly
from the accounted amounts, except for that indicated in Note 15.
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The breakdown of assets that accrue interests at 2018 and 2017 year end is as follows:

2018 2017
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating

{Thousands of euros) interest rate  Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. - 74,809 -
Loans (o joinl ventures ang associates 5,763 - 9,386 610
Loans lo third parties 5,193 13.932 6,312 19.881
Guarantees and deposils 24,826 - 22,065 -
Fixed income securities and deposits 1,198 - 14,413

36,980 13,932 126,985 20,491

The Group estimates that the fair value of the assets’ financial instruments does not differ significantly
from the net book value.

28.3  Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk in businesses located in Latin America, which affect
significantlly sales and expenses, Group results and the value of certain assets and liabilities in
currencies other than the euro. It is also affected to a lesser extent by granted and received loans. The
currency that basically generates exchange risks is the US dollar, since a portion of the corporate bonds
is issued in US dollars.

In order to reduce risks, the Group conducts policies aimed to keep balanced collection and payments
in cash of assets and liabilities in foreign currency.

The following study on sensitivity shows the foreign currency risk:

. Sensitivity of the profit for the year before tax against fluctuations of the exchange rate US

dollar/euro

Thousands of  Thousands of

euros euros

Change 2018 2017
+10% (4.020) {5.256)
+ 5% (2.108) {2.753)
-5% 2.328 3,043
-10% 4,914 6,423

28.4  Liquidity risk

The exposure to unfavorable situations of debt markets can make difficult or prevent from hedging the
financial needs required for the appropriate development of Group activities.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group shows positive working capital. This should be read within
the context of the Group's activities, which are mostly based on revenues that generate cash every day,
resulting in very high cash flows from operations, as observed in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Additionally, the Group obtains very high EBITDA, as shown in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which allows it to face debt service without cash difficulties.
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Additionally, to manage liquidity risk, the Group applies different measures:

+ Diversification of financing sources through the access to different banking and capital markets.
In this regard, the Group has an additional borrowing capacity (see quantitative data in Note 16).

+ Credit facilities committed for the sufficient amount and flexibility. Accordingly, the Group has
available cash and cash equivalents amounting to approximately 115 miilion euros at December
31, 2018 (2017; 181 million euros), to meet unexpected payments.

¢ The length and repayment schedule for financing through debt is established based on the
financed needs.

In this regard, the Group's liquidity police ensure to meet its payment obligations without requiring the
access to funds in costly terms.

Additionally, it is noteworthy that both at Group and individual business level, the Group performs
projections regularly on the generation and expected cash needs, in order to determine and monitor the
Group's liquidity position.

The relevant information on the maturity dates of financial liabilities based on contractual terms is broken
down in Notes 15, 16 and 17.

29, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The main objectives of the Group's capital management are to ensure financial stability in the short and
long term, appropriate return rates, increased business value and ensure proper and adequate financing
of investments and projects to be conducted in a framework of controlled expansion.

The Group’s strategy in 2018 is to enhance the more profitable business and to act decisively on the
deficit operations, to significantly improve the results and net cash flows. Control of invesiments and
costs restraint have also been established as a priority action, with satisfactory results.

As stated in Note 15, the contracts entered into in relation to corporate bonds issued include limitations

on the payment of dividends. The Company does not intend to distribute dividends in the short to medium
term given that the Group policy is not to distribute dividends.

30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No significant events have occurred after the reporting date other than those already mentioned in the

notes that may condition the information included in the 2018 consolidated financial statements of Cirsa
Enterprises Group, whose activity has been carried out satisfactorily.
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The undersigned, whose positions are indicated under their names, hereby CERTIFY the accuracy and

integrity of the special purpose consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 of Cirsa
Enterprises Group.

Terrassa, March 29, 2019

Mr. Joaquin Agut Mr. Lionel Yves Assant Mr. Haide Hong
Chair Vice-Chair Secretary

Mr. Miguel Garcla Mr. Antonio Hostench

63



TuoxIng
TURIIEY
pupey
e
CANTAUIA
CuoeIIey
euojpaieg
Cweued
Ay

1]

PUPCIN
cugadeg
puo@aey

ey e1SeD
cuo|0310g
Hmoquiaxn
QnoquaXn
BOIY CisaD)

CRNZIUIA
Jopenaz
g

veryy
oM 21SOD

NIy
ucajueg
onCiEp
oy €150

LULUIDY
CLUJeA

copunBy
TACONIA
sueung
pupcyy
QuUENY
TIrA0S
QuobruTy,
PUPTIA
evgRng
eATITA
LEn
PPN

pupeyy
ouooILy
pupC
ueUL) URID
123y pupny)

cuoeg
353380
COUBEA
cwcued
ouojoRIEg
cLooIng
[ISRLIY]
oIXOW

Kiunoy@3unoiy

10%3iny

[=3: TTLT ) 102 JIeDicy | |d NY'S UDIRIOWDY (B AW0Y IC90(5) %00°00L 2%,00'00L SIS N V'S "S0I(UQNSN 3 Soyouesdd 0p (O350
esseia)] 1 "Wy 1op 2 516199 ST 1d V'S ST3(UNII|T SOLOLTSDP OP |CINUN %0’ LG %00'1S gza 7§ 0002 1eAUPWOD)
pupeiy 60¢ "oy vawg 4D VY'S "SOPUNDY PLPTIA 0P SODUIH 400°004 %0000} sobitg  ©OEIST OJISONN SONPOLINg B OPEAY Gn(D
oncssy Z 9PENS "DDYOURHN HEUDIZINQ DIUBD) ‘N'y ¢S DUIPIOH BC)] 75820 %400'003 ,00°00L 1043 Yd'S 15a0esNHD)
eluclic|y oys( JCWEINY "CUBAS Y TAINN 'OUNTLY Q) NS 'von D POl [euo)| | BSID %0000 - souse?) O D TOINTIUDA e8ID
essauay 262 "ESTY 3p 'BIID V'S 'UONEIOMO) Bures) esitd %D0'001 %00'00% nois ‘AV'S 'uoieiodiny 101§ ei)
TSSCHIL g6z 1015 Ip 'enD NYS "UNIeI00io] BULD TID %00 001 %00'001 QRS NS SOMNRIOAOD SOHAIIS TSI
Apo vieued 7w ODWOg eIA “AY'S "UO(EIOWDT) DLILTS JEUBITUIOID| O 4.00"00! - <pwsey) AYS pueued oD
{uenpy) obessy Z DPRIIS 'UOYOUCIY 3|EU0[TaNQ 010D NV 4 S DUPOH mIm| eI %00°008 40000t sios NV TS ey Tan)
{vepyy) opassy Z CPONS NOYOUR Y OEUDTONQ 0nuDd) %00°00} 00’00} s195 ‘NS DUPIOY BIT) D

'7'S "UoRipdin) SEdUISNg jCUNICWDI) TSID
puptyy 1~ G TourMog Cuniag ) NS UML) Builues esN) - %00'001 SOUSE] )Y 'UOARIDAIN) SIIUISAG (CUDIRUDIL] eSIND
i~ UITR TN 862 “ITHdITED "eNd 'S "UIRIGI0)) DUMLESD BSI1D) $,00'00 - SOUSUD ) Y'S "ULIDAD) DUjWICY |CRAIIWIB]U| BRI
csseud), 862 JeRISeD "end ‘NS "U0NEI0dId BUIITD ESND 400001 %00°004 azg ‘NS "UBIRIAI0D IMnIviniy| CSI)
%00'001 %00'00% avs
GSO[ UBS € 09d '9 OHOY ‘BULHLS ) 0ANA3 0u3NO ‘N V'S By Tis0D) 09 esul) odnig souseD '@y 01502 KJ OJUNWIUOI MUY LEID) CSI1D)
rasend | g6Z JEvIsE) L)) ‘0 7S 'SIBUWINT TSI RO Q0L %00'00L aInpPNAS N Y'S UBHILI000) bujwes) TR
Ginoqudxny 85 "IIUCHY ey INY V'S UDHEIDWOY) BIWED CIID ¥,00'004 - LILIELIS NVY'S "DInoquiaxa bujpung eIy
ginoqudxmy v - Z ‘wodny ouobn3 ony TS "SI eRi) - %0000} oty TYYY'S Ievonewolu) ssuculy T4
P5ArUES  £Os4 "G 9NOL "BUCALS B 0NN oNUd0 0 'S "eaty 21s6D 2 LD 00D %0008 00001 souse) ‘0§ "qued (9P SEraNSg mand)
10WRHOY L (2207 "ITO1902) OALID "OALH OP [ 'EPAY YD 'CIDN2aUBA BSID %00'02L - sousT) YD e esi)
o}nY SOUOICWY TAY A £9Z¢T eudlmbuy Y S TUoNuIQo?) DUNLLD) 1FUONTRIIIN] CUID) 00'AD1 - souised OYV'S JopENaacan)
PIPUY OIUCS  DIUOD 2b BILG - £5 LV I OP SIPRILDY BNY +00'001 200001 SouIsTD YO S00EaRIIT SRIP CSID

"NY'S UILI04I0D SSOMSNE (BUBALLIDL]| @SHD
orseuQong 1g 'TUCISOL WA TY d 87IS9bT0]) %00'LS 4,00°00) SIS Ty §Tou)
OsOr U £ 0Sid P U0 "TUTQLS € OMMIR|J oNudO %TD'00) 9:00'001 S0UISE] "NY'S oudnu) Qiepg SOUsT)

NS "TAY L1500 3Q Bsa) ol
uguang eabeier - FH'003 souise) TY 578U (op sewise 3

op oBunwo( oS 1910H 05 o2 LT WOIYSTAA 052030 'CRPAY N1 S 'UORIOIIBY $3I0|SNG (QUONITILIONI] C1iD)
T} BRI 081 "uny eboipy-TIpe) "En) N'Y'S 'UoNTDMOY ADGOULRD) OUiSeD) IERND %00 004 %00'001 SOUSEY N7V G "OMIq4Dy] CRN|EPUY BABDYN QUI58D
Qsofues L Osld 'HouOY 'eunqeg B oandDl3 anuddQ N V'S THY 21500 BQ O 0INUD %00°00L F00'001 souisn) ‘0 YS 'onbREY |3 oyjse)
ovesoy-94 €IUCS £05 '19 5 094 'SOLY "5qOLI9DD G 40Ky SAUINE OWSED 9300 - sauised) WS "OHESOy 0p BLIgLD)
CUILA 6G "SRUCIIUI|CA SIUOD <M DD “EpAY NS TUG@IAdio) ADOIQUYIDY OLISE D 12QND HL0°008 %0000} souisn) 'MY'S ‘CRAUICA L) ot
'YS " ITIDIY) 0DINP Op LOMSID A 9400"001 - sousesn 'S TSN SOUING BAISED

Sy souang UsS "3UCd||DQ Ip UOKAEY Rl "CoAY ™YS "uenendio) bujsc oy ( jesnd
orqig 2¢-0F "oved3 NY'S ‘UNeIsAIeD ODUIE JEGOID %00 003 :00°004 sotivjg 0°Y'S "pue) xawng
An) mweuey QI513ULI] UCS P13 £L A0S 7LD ‘Y'S guourg 87 Z3DS 3 BullLD ©00'00t %00'¢01 sowmsny N'Y'S 'CLCUCY 3] Sodu0IRy 3 sobuig
pupeyy 15 'OUDMIADG Culwd o N V'S "U0ITI0aIe) DUWED TSI|D) %.00'00L %0000} sobuig NS "SOpUNdY PURTH op sobing
HUOPUOY Urs "DuIw) 4 JOIIDg £7TId NS UOIHLIKLDY LY 10990 ¥.00°05 =.00'0S sobug WS WuopuEg Sobuig
n.-_._Cva L .:U_U'_:_u( nvs ‘uQIEIOAIN) onug (2AAUD 388 %0005 soBuIf) (.m "SIINEPUY SODUIG
(14pURA (3 6911 "W GrC-N "¢ NVS VoI@msdIe) 0o (EG%D ROG'OGL 700°003 somag OY'S 'upNuEg oburg
puUpULY 1§ "oumy by euwing SQUCA %00°00L %00°00) sobutg "3 1y "1oscbuig
£SIeND ) g6 "1Cuvise) ‘e "0 V'S "Uqruotuny) obuig QYO %4001 - sabujg NnY's “sawcbulg
orqrg 2¢0C "ouI13 'Y S OO bl (FAdD) 9,00'004 %00°001 sabulg ‘N YS ouraulg
AN a3ix0y SUNTUY BAINN E1LO10D) 109 - § 'MuTY S "4SLISNE XV [EUGNBUIDIY| ,00'004 %00001 sobuig A'D R Y'S rdweduig
pupcy 9L "S0PITIYN RIS OY'S "PUREYY 0bUIT t00' 001 %*00'¢01 sobulg Y'S cwg

IegoiD A'nyv's ‘udiesodso) ofiu|g |Bqod)
pPUpPC 25 "OUETWBS eunudy NS "0aUEI0WO) 1S €S1|D 941209 212709 <SI0IS WS "atweInd - cwag
rugioseq 501 - €01 ‘IEDmITYY 0tey 1S AYK %00°001 %00'DO04 048 ‘N'Y'S ‘Arjgousng
pupcy| 1-5 "OUR IS euD S NYS "LoNmoio) obuig (EQ0LD 94007001 %00"00) sobuig ‘TS sobons ieg
sowjcg sey Sp ‘OWRIRN ZDILHDG 2 WS "WOGNT |ITAWoD ROD'SS %0D'SS 05 'S 'CICIONT)Y SOELWoINY
veny 992 Wy "2y (CUODEN 'eu) 50005 %0015 S10/8 N S "SODIYIVTW 5oMBW0INY

upsg 3P ITRAY V'S e
22 L-1TE] ) 452 "1eu01sey Ip "en N7 S "B30DIJ SOATIPON 400 00} 00001 SIS NV’ "urss3 seaumuoiny
eroudseld € ‘5018 (3P 1) (1 V'S "EIUTWLICS $0ANCIRAY IP (BAIVWDY %00LS %00'LS SIS N1'S "STAUQRIG] SeisINDY
PAUTHY 1} ‘WeAR3 9P BINDOS 7S HuoLEdT %OS6Y ©:05°6% siois 'S "000Z SIWES By
A muoung QIR UCS AT CLA QS A NS "Wor D 1S0g W TSH]) %00'0% %0005 souse]) ‘NI I UICLdU] oAUy
CSSEUD] 10z B d 1O VY "UO(LI00IG] JUIINY) DWED [RGDID %81°9/ %9L'9L 31015 'S Bujpw) ey
UsSei9yL SyL "ICIe)Y el NS 'WOIRINBIND 1S PSI) %00'0S %00'0S 51915 S TR Y
eAonH BI 'SCDICA ZOUNY] Ay NY'§ UGII0AD) obu|g (20D %00'SL ROO5L sobuig VS el
AuD 000 8 0Sid (99 "@IUCWED ZIYr7ULH SN ‘NI P VS XAWCTHUE %00'001 %00'001 sobuig AD PP YS "OUOIWIUIIINT
U3 [PU0LUD4 (] SI0peNSUWpPY
AD SSOIPPY Ss3ujsng 1IPIDY TUSWISoAU) 21002 910z Ay — utdwoy

IErURNA 2681u39)34
diysuUmO AyIounD

soNTIoIsaNs §0 15



1 oxawy

eI
Twosdoreq
Twajxreg
oRo10

®ag
Bj|(AJS
cweued
TWouRyg
CuRUL) uelD
£0)3252
obEpYy
URUDEA
eunuddny
el
cuoIIcg

cuoyeg
103y PPNy

DpED
euojpaeg

LOLT T
AIXAYN

o4
er0DRILZ
eIy S0

cuojeaIeg
elieus) urg
uesiy
rwtued

BUOXUCE
Qe
tuoddleg
cuodeg
PLpoN
PUpEN
cuo| 03Ty
pzZAbRWITZ
Quojgaseg
qupdoIeg
euooarg
Arei(

pupciy
tuaNeg
uog

cweueyg
enowny

pupuyy
uRiIN

pupeN
cuojoaieg
pUpay
tRUNCA
oUTURY ULID)
eurwE S

a_—-:aussgﬂ

P
Toiendy
TSETLO)

ApRDY

UjeaogquIc |
L TEEN

AgY) ewIRULY
AUJ euseucy

"D 9 SEWitY se

CRUOSAT
Tey
glunbeg
S0y ouIng
abossy
essena)

AYD Cuseuey
uenp

ues Ip sezgany
LIS ITEY )
CSSDUDY

£SSeN0]
A ooapy

ewn
rzobee?

§s0rucg

owo0) Ty
sewjeg se7
uip|3

Ay cweuey

L LLITEY
riovog
CSSRNY|
CSSTUdY
pupCy
pupety
Tssno)
rz7obriey
euojdeg
©S50L0)
0SSCHIL
(i) obessy

1@ '0puoy ap rassed umD

86Z JTuonED Ui

L€ envjseg ‘w1

OnbysunD}

1D DBIUEQ N0)2IS TICIEY NULNY [OIOK
8ZZ IO /D

£ 'vpmunsy

©SPUMA UTS 9153 ©L A 05 LD
QISPURIY UES 0153 £L A QS 0D
soleg 2p "9PL[LIDD B Sep| IWOLIY
£ 80104 198 /1O

16 "ZONDITOA ‘A

QAEDIG QIUOYY 01N G10|TWDD

'@ d 62LY "TUISY Q)OPY 1D

Q) OYZCC "Z BPEAS 'UDIJ DUCHA
BBZ "IENdIseD WD

QUICRD CPRUAY A LS 7D
69T Wy 0Ty (VUopeN e

2Z A 92 Cru0iy 1D
£62 "ITIAISED] OND

102 flevimy 1 id
J 298u0H g 2

805d 009

SIO[CHN LD LR OPITAHY A
Pp-Z "UCLIA BWEr 1)
€ 0ng ‘g DO ‘eUTTRS B 0AINAI(F DNUIBLO

9 1BYQIDUIT Ay

€ ImALeR wuwEs

PU| DARIC Y OURT 'd ZZ TJDATIIDG BTULBD)
anod

anbicg ugenueqin - 6¢ £ ‘uend M
852 TIRILE] b eN)

¥'d 26-06) 'ON 06 €Y

(02 NEDIE | 1d

B5Z Je91seD op ‘e

(G OUT{AIS CUjuT

4G 'OUIAYS CUjuLDY

862 endIsed ‘e

TPCYNGOY 0 Pu| (D § 'ULHD DULCE 1D
€01 ‘lInbrimy 0dsed

862 119150 £

LOT NSO (1d

rd (ed ‘T IPIS "UOGAUCHN DEUIRXQ O1{ueD)

PUPCH 1~ 'QUBpADS RUIWID S
PSSRUD ) SPE 'SICLIDY En)
owrn SOYTAW LyE ‘TWID OPIEDNY “AY
AID nuevey 0P 0519 '(249{S) DIO) 'Hd "0F D
IDITA Op 1D eNHSr) "EPENr B 'y
pupTyY BE 'IMEIONIY
obessy ¥Q oxveg
"2 EPCAS VOYOUTYY DPUDIZZANQ BIUID
PupoN LG "oueIIAg TUlLID g
essenay) 51028 SI3 7PYI Iod | OV 19P 1)
PUPCYy L5 TOUT ARG DUILLD Y
olunpeg 0ADD)g D1UO QIAJDIOH JLNIWID)
SeWCy ST &b Ol 204005 O
epeipeg oMEIUOW 1T 'I'd L) ‘Tuen) 1D

€ 9p osoleqiny
.RY SSOIPPT SS0uISng

NV S 'ABOIULYID) odug | 400001 7000018 sovng NYS 'IN7y s
"NY'S "0d{1eIoWe] 1S END RXGD'00 00001 slog "NT1$ "7 (CUDHEWIOIU| UDOUERT
"N Y'S 'UDRIIGWRY) bunweD CSAD 5500004 00008 1918 A'S “ehueng 977
gy osipRIrg bosoy %00'Z8 %0D'Z8 soused ‘NYNY'S ‘Speitg g SIS0T 597
VS SIANDG puy DYDY %,00'004 %0000 sourse) TTYTY S T30U0ISIdAU] EARS 6
'N'Y'S "0onCiodioy obing 1¢90|9 5.00°0S %00'05 =obuig V'S "obuig 19P £11010)e) €]
O7VS "udr % 1sng |eusq Ty <.00°000 %0000+ souIst) ‘MY S ‘tweund wicg T
JU) "IUOWILITUAL UOUY %0D'0S %400'05 soujse?) VS U0y tueg
‘0'Y'S "yonesodio) obuig 1rao) %05'1p 7HAS Ly sobuig 'V 'S ‘psor ueg sobanp
NS “SEHUPINT STISONOY %00'4S %00°15 slois 'N'T'S '0IS8Q |bg sobanr
NS VOMmBaIng GLIITH DWED (1S %0000} %:00°D04 siog V'S “oneusonang
'N'Y'S 'GARdId d1uapy 0101DI0H CJOIdWO K00 00t - s0usnY ‘OYS jesdp
V'S '5211y SoUBng 0UIsTD 5300'004 - aze "N "SIy $0UING OUISED - 8y
N'Y3 S "Buipjon eym| T1) %00'G0L Y0001 sobulg TYY'S Huouw)
NS 900001 %00'001 souise) TVYS "BI|134) SAUNDIS Y lUow)LIAY|

'UOQEIGAI0) SSIUENT [TUGIIBWIU] €311
N 'S WDWHYIADQ QIO %£00°0. %00°0L souIse) V'S 'SONIDEIM) SOUGISIBAY]
N'Y'S "UONLJOWR 105 EWD RO0'S %0015 Sl0S 'S oSy
V'S 'Suosenl 001 %0015 sio1s NY'S "Anaiow
%00'C0¢ %00'00% sobuig N S “§5BUIsNY XDYY [TUGUEWIR]Y)|

‘NS "uonv1edio) SSIV|SNg (SUDHUIDIU] TN
NY'S "001je 100107 JbuIg I1B90|9 5£00"00! 5.00'004 sobuig 'MY'S "AbO|OUKD |, ObUIF [RUIEdICIY)
WD 30 TAdYS %0004 %00'001 soguig ‘A22g
*01D10ND) IP SIUCISINAU} 3 SILDEOWOIY WS 0XY IP PPYONA CUEYITOWN) GBI
"D V'S "SIIAIDG PUY DUIRD 400001 5007001 R ] ‘D V'S 'PInY TUMIGouIY|
N YS "UoIRIONI0 D 19(S BN %D IS %00'1S slas TS SR e 1K
%00'001 %:00°00) SouIse) N Y'S 'BAY ;5o b wul) odrug

NS "voueiodion Sng ICu csu)
VTS 'B0U3 ewoy 540001 %00'004 sobuig Y'S epsesn
VS UGEI08I00 ABIOULDI ) DUISED) JUA0|D %00'00L %00'LS souise) V'S Sew(ed 501 9P oulse) g
V'S 'ABd opURyQ %0015 %001 5105 TIY'S 'AGouapicn
%*00°001 %00°00} sourse) NS ") 5112909

Y S "Quoueg op $39A10G T Gunaeo
V'S 'UOnTIRMe) bUWCD) SND) %0001 . azg N7 5 "VoNTIsMI0) DUUNYNUGH {FA0ID
/S "GNDID IBUUIA G000 %0000) soutsey 0SS NS 1BOY [£q0jD
N Y S Ui 10iS B %00'003 %00°001 s0ig 0 'S "VONTIGES) QUUPTN UL |0R%D
Y'S UOTIoAo]) DU BN 2400'00¢ %00"001 SOUISTD)  MY'S TUIESIOTI0D ARDEUYID] TuISLD) [CQY{D
N 'S '0eqTIomIe) briwe esi) %00'00L %0000 sobuig '(VY'S "$I8I5 Obing [enord)
NVY'S 'BOITIO0I0Y QUWED T[T %00'001 3%00'004 sobuig NY'S 'pupuyy QhuR 129
"0 Y'S "Uojjtiodioy Bujwed ey 3:00°001 %00'00} sobiulg "YY'S "UoqEIote) obuig 12019
MY'S UO{I0I0W0D IIITY Swes) [2A0ID %00°008 %00°00) S90S N'7'S "egbery oulog ITRo|D
'S AW %00'00L %0000} S0 NS 'S sewy
N TS "UOIITHI0Y) BadRID BSND %00 0OL - souse) V'S JEIDIY) OBANE |OD UPINSIY
N Y'S UMEIBAI0D AYITH DWIED (EAGD %,00'003 %:00'001 51013 CACRL LY
“500'G0¢ 900004 sabug nrrseway

'M'S ‘bonessdio) ssoujsng |PUORLIIOIIY €SiD)
NV 'UONTILA0) 19]S B %0001 500'004 0§ ‘MY'S warg opilto
V'S NRWINY 9:00'05 %00'05 08 0TS vpewrac)
%00'00) %0000} $QuisED DY'S TS00AIDS § DUt

"0 S ‘ubnwedio) $SLsNg [eUdeURIY) BSND
%00°001 %00°00) S0UIS0) ‘TS PWBLRg IP $TINIG § DUILLITE

‘NS ‘veunndin) sng | esn)
V'S "Aed OPUTIIQ %O0'LS %00'8S sl N TS "001-ITWoIn3 obujtyy
V'Y'S "pUPELY 00LIg 500'001 %00'008 sobwig Y¥'5 ‘sobonloiay

129919 £ '(1'V'S "0oIE10ding abiig I0q0D)
%:00°00! %00'001 noIg 0Ty S '97UBiA DoLIIdIZ

N7 d's sobesyd
‘NY § 'VoqmIodsd) 10)5 exr) %00°004 %0000t SIS “1'S eSIp0y SONUIRGT
NS "uHCI0AIC) 1S BSHD %00'L§ %0015 SIS V'S "oupirhy
N Y'S "UQNCIDAID) WIS T %00'001L %00°00) sl ‘'S '0002 0109
N'Y'S "VOIEIOIoD) ABDIGUYID L GUSED) (12Q91S) 3%00'00Y - souIsen) 1 V'S "GABSIY JUOKY QIO CJnI WO
T'Y'S HOlRIOBI0T 10/ TS4D %00'0S %00°0S siofs V'S ‘BWEdnf IeRIOWe)
%00'1S %N0'LS sSis NS " EIUCWIOTS $0M180AY 0P IERIdWe]

1S 1oddeouad),
TOB[oL {0OLITSIAU] 130z 8102 ATy — Juvdwoes

b eIy 0By
diysumy dIgSIOUND

SOUL|PISANS JO 1517



| oxduy

2angoy
yeo|unuog
j/qQnaoy
uRduwoed
219000y
uoIWog
2qndIy
yoawoqg
Jgnany
VT
pupeA
cuodIeg

nvg

PuCy
ePUCA
TOUIeH
ﬂCnxQn:ﬂm
nped
oRINg
ouelvoseg
eninag
YAIS
TRUNW
cuoacn
TUDIXAILY
103y popniy

PupCH
BUojpAILy
PUPTI
sareaeg

09O

PURELY
euoasiey
eI 01500

Cjiouny
Am)
rwputy
seumsy
oxRxQY|

ey @s0)
s9ICH0q

guolIINg
x|gnday
e e
wuoIeg
TUINS
cuopaIeg
TuopIcH
2qnaoy
uEoAwoQ
cuo(IIeg
[RTENT
PUPEYL
cwewey
afsanagy
pupL
Runeyoouwold

ODUjLOY OluTS
obujweg 0Juog
oDYIWe oues
obulwoq olueg
obunweq ques

pupeyy

sojea

109 JeBn3 ues
B3|0DI Iy

PUPCH
enuoen
SOUIOLIDLID )
esseno)
np¢0
owexisy
©SSENd)
s

CAS

tIngy
essend)
csseIIa)

venpe

urg ap iezeoRY
PUpTW
esseNe)
pupely
AuCunog

2P JUOIUY URS
A1Q oa1xom

pupely
oSSEUd)
308 ues

10117
obessy

ADD cweuog
Ut

ADD O34xdyy

950 ueg

Aununiog

op WOIY uES
essenay
obuwog viucy

ESSEO9)y
oA
©S5CL0)
cuaiIcy
ugwiIng

ap ofu1woq oig
[ATITEY |
101
pupcyy

Al vwcuey
Q19dtgv
pupeyy

e 15
1T DI UOLEUIYSCAN DDIDAS) “AY
UQIXD A LAV oM "y Ay

409U WCYRIQY ‘EpAY
0)NGIJ [T “BDAY ] TIWOD OLUIXERY AY
Qf €3 °CQF T VIO v 'AY

2-G ouQ)adg CujuLy
T ol 'CUdg

£0T "S019peNdH /D

BOT “Spuapy oacig

02 'edvan)

501 'DIpuTIdHY COUL)

SI08 | 'PU| 1I9d { "IN 19P 1D
£2 "u0] |0p QuEBARD

Zerl xog

862 U015V Y end

S "ojnueyy

92 “ojaiey

O V' TT 12ICWRY UEWBS) P
962 '1U915eY AQ 'BND

B86¢ HUNIZEY 0 ‘Tu)

982 unf "02Zp 1IBLOIEN LD

16 "OUTHIAdG BuwWIDS

262 J0IR15TY WD)
15 ‘UEYIADS Quiuny
$p "IOPLIRTTY SI9P /3

o3

190 ed Q09 ° D THCTUO N9
1T ECaduly

1'1ped

€ 0sld '93UD| ‘rulqeg @7 NN ONUIVO

EPIERS B 'I'd 0P IT13L PUolS

P O7ZUIRg ‘T LPTASG 'YOI QUTYY

12U07) DPELIL PUOAA SO0 WITL 1MoL S5MS
I pl ‘SojUCRIDD) 13

g 99 d Q08 PUDITIEY ZHTIUOD QW NG /3

£ 09y "G 01101 "CULQES €] DAINIALT 0MVIIYO
Sy sI0pRINCT] 9P 1D

262 enAse Ip LY
UIOaUF] WEYRIGY "ePAY

862 11815 R "TN)

Qy 'Rl endisR

SI019Q 13 pUl (P4 L ORYI0R 1D

SOL - £OL "ACDLIDy} 0ISCd O

SN oF LT "UDILIUSEAA IDICDS 'epay

862 "IEH0IsED EUD
Or 1e9) eSO

16 "OUGIADS UL Iy
253 ££ WL ‘g5 19D
pE 'TEIPIIRY) Gysuarg
62) ‘THNqy e 0 'ay

A

$S0IPpY “2SoMsng

%00°00) %0Q°001 saunce) V'S "CUIO{Uluog odATN 8IS

N TS 'volieaedian SSIUISNY [BUG(CWDlUL TEND)
%00°004 0001 SoUIST) “TH'S 'TuHwlleQ SouedsiH gos

NS 'uoneiodiog $soursng |Cuorcullu) Bsid
00001 %00'004 S0WS8D) S "EUTAUIIOJ BUDIHA PUELD) §O3

a's uok o 3 1Cug| | 5D
<400'00L ¥200'001 soutsed Y § Tunwiuog vy gos

n1s" 103 $3IU|SDE |eudl Uk
%00°001 %00°00L seuise) TH'S "euLjuieQ Wy 43S

ns ‘v 4100 |2Rg | 1dL] esN)
NY'S 'ummodio) 195 esnD) %00°00) “400°00) SigS 7Y'S 'upmdua) § omeg
4007001 %00'001 |2F4:] N'T'S "S2IBoioU3vL 0P 00IIESH(] 10BN NG

N'Y'S 'vonerao) ?.:EHU [.:1Tle]
'S "SONNRG Uy QLD %D D0 ¥:00°00¢ <couised) NY'S ITH04 SODINT IP LpiTg

MY'S WG 8dUIR 9060'00\ %0D'00Y

1eq0i9 4 ' v § "vonmiodio?) oBulg [eaod sobug V'S TSHEPIIA BICS
V'S VoEIeLo) obuyg Irad %0005 %00'05 soou(g@ 'S "CrauduA TS
N 7S 'EI07 T £4500'59 %00°'S9 soburg ‘N S ‘nliprg
'N'YS UONedIo) 19(S CJ1) YOv'19 %05V SIS SOANERVY 0P SIOPMOOX] V'S
N TS T Pl 9.00'008 %.00°001L sebuig 'S hubwoy
NS "udLIcnn) SSIVISRY (BURNBUIAN| eSi) 5.00°28 9:00'28 SouIsC) 8y aspitd 1osdy
(7 T'S 'UOJRIDALOD AMISTIOIY, BEN) %0000} %00°00) 828 ‘AI71'S "UpbEIY OP SIUGILS 0 PIY
0TS 'UOjiRI0WDY IMITRIBIV) BSHD 9400008 %0003 @28 "N"T'S "CIN|EPUY 3P UHXBUOIRIU( BP DAY
SOURA %00'PS %00'vS sebu(@ 31V "2390|0puy sotulg Op pIY
WS ARl OPUeNQ %00'LS %00'1S S10/S ‘N TS IUdRLEY SOMIEDIIY
'S AtId OpuepQ %00'VS %00'\S 10§ "07)°S “IUBARY) JRUGDQ SDANEIDDY
MY'S 'uo|lRiodic) dunpepy LD |eQAD %00 00t %00'001 SIS NS "souc SOMIEDIY
5300'4S 9:00°LS 9s N1 S "SOBIYIUEY SOMTIRIY

VS Aol
V'S TMBWOMT - Rwpg 00001 %0000} S19S W'S "AONIRY SAANBIIIY
1 V'S "Loampdiod dujpey JWeD 29019 9500°001 %:00°001 S191S "N TS "esobig soaednay
Y § "upnmIedio) 195 ¢ %00'001 900001 §1%s NS Zuny SoAICoYy
“T'S 'eAG INV0 ROV LS *00'tS 98 V5 tTq| (05 sIuoRownlg
A 2P TY'S XDWEIWE %0000\ %0000y sobug ‘NP
'dY'S 0124309 IP SPURIIAY( B SIUDHAULOIJ

NS SopUNdY MIPERY
op 206u1@ & 1'Y'S "UNILIedio) ofuIg QO[O 3500'¢04 %00'00! sofng V'S IE Teoouly
NS "ADOOUYRI Y obu|g |BYCICWRIY) %0000} %0000} sosug NV SIesed
S00°00) %00'00) S0USUD N Y S 'SBUAUDG SSOUIENY 03] uoBojiey

‘M'Y'S 'eNY L1500 B e odnig
OV'S UomIoemo) ouiReR dWeD 12409 %e0'LS 90015 S0[S V'S Ang opueyo
V'S AU SpuIpBO %00 1S %00'VS 51015 T4 S €U opunIQ
177 S 'volCiodin] SSOUKNG (CUOTCWIIU] CSID %00'00% 2%00°001 SAYsc) NY'S 1udwdo[3ndq S0
nys ._._D_—EDQOU 19iS [e31ie] woa'Ls %00'LS slog S ;8.2\:...”.9"_ 0P (THoKRWIONL] EDDEO&O
TAD 9P V'S XPWEDUIE R00'0Y %0009 sotiuig ‘ADop
“FS ‘OltUCIURY 0)URWIUDIINUT Op moporxIp
"N'Y'S "eAY DISDY 3] B BATUD ROA'COL %0000t somse) AV S ICYSUTE UeRDIK0
NS 'woamodInd 1945 e %,00°1S %00'15 SIS TS 'enQy 10
NY'S UAILIBO] bujweg e - %00°00) some) TY7'S "OQWojed) TS jedY TUON
%:00'00L % 00"00) sauised 1 Y'S ‘SUDIINISL0T) [UAIUDIN

NS "ueqeiodip) sSATNg (Luitu)diu) esID
V'S TUONroAIng 101§ M) %4005 %00'00% S193 ‘0TS ‘BWED WA MIN
V'S "A%id OpUeIO F500'15 %003 S SI0ls ‘TS rewor) may
1§ "30WC dNew 13Q) %00'VS %00 (5 BU Y'S vivay
MY S "UOITIoto) 10|S o) %00°00 S400°00L SIS TS AN
TH S e 12Q sewse) - %:00°001 SOUISED nry's
'roD ‘enbeure oysr) bR I o:mzsoz
'Y 'VONTIOWOD BUILOTIY OWITS [BQ0ID %00'008 %00°001 510(3 ‘N TS 'SIMOWoINY YIW
V'S "ACId ODURIIG Y,00°MS “00'1S K05 TS "AEpY] HPWRYIREY
TYY § 'u0Ie0dind 101S esnd %00°00L *00"001L 103 ‘N7Y'S ‘ouoinkeyy
‘TNY'S 'BUWLUCH IP SIVANIS B DUNIRD %0005 %0005 sowse) WS o) LQ6 Hsaleyy
"TY'S "ADOJOULDD ) oL ITUOATLI0N] BU0LS %q0'15 <otivg WS 'sodanlonen
Y § “Uotiodin) 191§ o) %00'00) %00'001 L ‘N Y S 'lewiso
JIPION JUDLS0AU] 71507 . 80T Ay ATy’

By obr
dySIIURY diysUNO

SOME]P|3QNS JO 15)]



cyqrIve)

aquwoo)
cusjaoIey
euoleq
DAUXIY

LTRATL
pupen
roojoaieg

ey m50)

QuIuaDbrY
DRI

CI0DWOZ
DAY
LILT Y
Toobeuy)
TIINTIUIA
peD)
0ID0I0HY

Cuoiieg
euuDNY
oBeeyy
niadg
rUo[OITg
cuoItg
TUoisaIThH
X0

Aunogrmpuolg

] oxouy

1opuTiucg 8¥ "OpUULDY UL

34 viepdg
op 24 ClUlrS \Qp BUBKY “ZE-D6) N 06 2ED
Coojoares 0L 'ToOTNUNG
eSSCuUa) SpE i By BN
AnQ oxxop S
1O 6 o51d 053 J PRIV AN
[22 T TR g6 ejoise) ‘end
Pupeiy 4G "oul|inBg BulwD
SoneA 2'euds /s

19p 18607 {uag
gsorues [ pag "9 IuOj "cuedes e SAln3dg oY
50y souony UrS 'IUC)ID||IP DP LOTHEY TIIALS "EPAY
[JENTLIN P10} ‘BAIS

€] dp 19101
¥200M07 2¢ 'ela)4 1oudy
maoeary 18 oIT2 "ouryotued pu) |0d
ediofe dp cused O11SC YIS ') 10d GFf "S$OIFLDQTT Op QuIdID
rojeg 0Js Jowelpy ‘odsgd
scome) epuCH)Y I "DILA UPAY
nped opeaUng 9y "eludiuees
npehy $€ JU DDNTH "g1S IUA GRD
esscuay geL Jeaseg end
SNy souang 201 9 "ot "0I51 DISAL 0P OEIIOWN LAY AY
LU L £6°16 29NDTR1DA “Ay
ewry SDNGYTINY I E T OpIFIY Ay
TIsend) SHE TITUIDY TN
esSseNDL 862 "1quDIS8) M)
csseio] 86¢ "191j01sED 2N
A1) 0oxayy agejueg
‘R 95d Q0 CURITWUCT ZITTUOS WIS
Lh) $S0IDPE SIIUISNE

0'Y'S "UOlILIOAeD oBUIg 19010 %6005 %00'09 sobuIg Y'S "OPUTILIDS UTS DQUINA
TIY'S THIGA| SRUNIIG P SIUdWISIAY] 41005 %1005 sousT) V'S "0noIQ Jauup
'MY'S "Abpjouyad) obig | 1 %00'001L %00'00Y sobuig N Y5 "G6 CPpIWdA
NY'S 'WoNRIGAEY 10jS T %005, %00'52 S1018 TS "amad) ueqin
%00'004 %0D0'00} gzg ‘AD
'ATV'S "553A05RG XAYY lPUORTLINY] 30 7 S "SeALANT S0)| 9P ( n
NS ‘LoNmIdIoy) HLIRS) CSA) %00°00b %0000} 829 "N’y "5 "SOOUPNNIIT SHONESHQ 2P |TSIINLN
NS "UONTIoWOY jofs ISid %K 001 %00°00) SlaS NS Amaun
Y S "SORUOIDINT £0([QLTSDL O [BSIINUN - %0000t [:H4:} TS "SAIDS SULNRINEQ BSIPIUTN
N'Y'S "EAY LSO I €511 eI %00'001 %00°001 soussed) N'Y'S SAVIWBY T INIGH SO1Y S|
V'S "SRy 30UaINg DVISCY) H00'5S - souIsED WS uom)
%00'001 %0000t sobug ‘NS 'eaul ewdy

O'Y's 'vojlelediog oSuig 1eqeo9
NS "ARD[OURD) OB JCUd] | 7%00°00} 7:00'001 Sobing 0v'S oyel
NS TUBILINAIN) 1S TSHD % 00'1S 5%00'1§ SI0|S TS 10dUCoudd
VY § "xvemchy %00°45 %00'3S slas NS "2ohuaag
‘A Y'S ‘LONTIOWMDD AbUIG (TGOD #0000t sobuig AYS aqun el
TS LOIRI0MC) OMILIDIUI TSI %0000 - 928 YD ‘€IONZILIA AT [LUINS
‘M'T'S EdUT ewoy %00°00) 500004 sabuig NS IcwIpos
‘NS vol 10D sSaUIsng JLugy | CSND - %00'15 souse) V'S BTy 97 QUISED NQ A0S
‘N TS 'uoneIndio) AIREINIY BSID %00°001 %00'001 28 TS LY SAWED [ees
IS S2uny SQuang dUISED %0D'G0L M souse) v § "senteoqog
Ny 'S 'AbOjoUY3A { obujg jeuoy] } 5600'001 %0001 sobug T'Y'S 'ewros
TIY'S 'S0ONRG pury bUIICD) %,00'001 %00'001 soused 'DV'S "SWUITY BaIAS
NS 'WoNtI08iad 10jS €SN|D %00'(5 %00°)S oS WS Poruog
"MTY'S WONTIOWLOY DU DT (7901 %00°004 %00°00L SIGS N V'S "SONICINIAY 9P uoPNANISIQ A SOIAIDG
SOHEA 400°00L %00 001 anpIs "3V "ODINF |0p SHDIDI) U SHHAIDG
AD 0P VS xowedng %00°00) %00'001 sonu:g AD
00 V'S "0590f 1dg soprmeads 3 Lodmog
YOPION UDLNSUAD] 0z q02 APy ATdwo)

260juId4 [: e TR
diymiaung diysiaump

saueipisans joisry



| oXaUy

eunudliny seiNy souang U/s “AUBIdOfjo P UDSMEY BIALT 1D V'S S3NY SOLANE ouise) %00°0S - souIse?) 31 °Y'S
'Salfy souang ouise?) - 'S “rels vibey
eunuatiny Saly souang Urs "30eld9)1eQ 8p UCSMEY) "2pAY V'S ‘'saiy souang ouise)  %00°05 M SouEe) 34N ¥$3I0-vad
AnunoDRIVIAOIY A SSOIpPC sSoMSNg J9pioyY lusunsaauj 2102 8102 Anandy Auediwor
ateusdied  dbMUINNY
diusumo diysssump

suone:ndo Jujof jo §517



| Oxduy

e|nely LI | £ 0211y § "210407] Opipue) CPAY 'S 'SEAILodIq SeISINGY WhiLeds  %30'05 5%00°0S st O°7'S "elBy seIsandy wniliedg
DINDCA £UIDd 1) Wodjeyy owgyong epudy N VS 'SUALDGOY SEISONgY Linpods %0005 LOD'DS L0)5 N'Y'S 'DIURAOT SEISUNAY wnhods
2pdAoluod clog c|op Urs ‘oIpdy uog /) g 'seauodeq seIsIngdy WnPods  S5400°05 Y0005 SI0IS ‘NTYS €I EY $eI5ANAY WiPodg
€j5] - BAGIQ |3
pupeny PP 21-01 ‘TUDopURYY 1y EWTSD TYS 'doNuIBTR) IS eUD  R0O'0S %00°0S B Y'S 'SOALIOCDY) SEISUNTdY Wnibodg
CIQUI0) Eiotiog 105 BURLQ 8/ - £6 N 2t €141C) V'S 'SeAlodaQ SAISINOY WNIods  400°09 %00'09 s1a18 SV S 'PIQUD0) SLSONAY Wnikieds
cInog end) VY DHONU “LuRUoIud py ‘LA URID SO V'S ‘senlodaq smsondy Wnyods  %,00'0S %00'05 BET ‘N*) S '€IR9D S0ISONDY LWOIodS
pPUPCW pupeX Z1- O\ ‘cuoepbuly euey eluts o 'S Sealleddq scisandy wmlods %00'0S 2.00'05 si0l5 N 'S eV B BINSED STISNAY WnhvLodS
PYLTY LTI ap(a) } ‘oI enies 1) V'S 'SCALLOCOE) SNty WRIIOdS  %00'0S %00°05 S10)§ ‘A'Y'S 'sendue) SAISaNgyY wnaods
©e219]|Tp| BI10] |8y 12 's101EQeS S0P (WO £ 'S 'STAIIDUOJ SOSONdy wniuods  %.00'0S .00'0S SI0I§ 'S 'SIICYRA SEISINTY WNNODS
seunjsy wipuepy - S0AED) odisy DU) 10d @5p CI02IEd 'Q 1D V'S "STALQUDJ STISONAY WNIPOBs  %00°05 94,00'0% SIS ‘NS STUNISY STISONGY WNiods
etz D20BEIED S 'upuDg owier ) VS SPAOUDQ FUISONdY Wwmpods 0006 %0005 S101S ‘N 7 S 'uDliErly SmSOACY WNILODS
chojep CDE|RY £6 - 16 '2aNDZLIA ‘CpAYy V'S 'SeAllodR(] SCISNdY WNPeds %0005 %:0005 SIS N1 S EInEpuy STISOngy Wwniods
cuojooieg S9IBA 2 'Cudg ) V'S "SEADOdDQ LTIsandy Wnjpods  K00'0S ©00'0S <018 '0YY'S “vAunjele) SISODY LuNiLodS
j0Q tefdng weg
oDy AlD cweued als3 ‘NY S TWrUE Tl %00°0S - sou(5e) u) 'oUIES) OND) JOAIS
eyne) Lyruej el £82 'duvIsung Ay Nnys oS %:00'09 €28 7S ‘0002 ebepas
*SOIWONIDIF 50{01LSHY OP [CLIDALN
pupry pupew 2 'IONByy LG alsueAD) souep G000 9500'0v sotulg V'S TPUREY] OP STISINGY A SOBINT IP Py
cuo|aaey €SSTIDL SPE SICUNDY ‘21D wv$'apwyy  %000% - <108 'S '0994) SOAICIIaY
opajo) EVILTE eieqely VS TDUTIOy] Z0UdWI )04 - %00'0S 018 ‘NS '8SIL0IQ SOANEIDIY
] I'd Z) "S3I0PE[EqEs] $0) IP CPAY
LIHIS VL abip, oleq £ UeLd apreIjy BpAY V'S 'S0PIUNBY S010peIBID 3P LN - 2,00'0S s1015 "N'S WDy SOMTRIoY
Ayl Dwoy L1 ToduoL 1$'90v 2000¢ %.00°0C souuig I'1'g 'S0OIdG 2CO
Cllinag Cg 8y ‘0qwWT ) [P 21U ‘A NY'S ‘wonTiowio) okig [ray %0005 500'05 sotuig TS 'CIORICANY QUEIOIUT
¢||laRS Cliiabsg 9z ‘CyCiboa) 1) N'Y'S 'UoNTI0010] DBUIG ITQAID  %00'Se %:00'52 saduig 7S "SOUOjDG IP TN LUy (AUIBSOION
Euwcury Al) eweuty 0153 £7 01D '0S 98D MY "guLurg op so3a05 2 buwe  %00'0S Y.00'05 souse) NS SINMDS podS dsIleN
euo|eAey QuoI2.iCg 1S 'eueIdcT o)A Ny S "AboouL2D) obuig lcvallewtly  £409Q0Z 52090 sofuip 1's "sofwg Ip _uOIID
opd0y sooy cAejenry OYS 'udiesednd 101§ s - °%00°05 0|5 V'S ‘BIUBION ZOUDLYC NIy
71 d 2} ‘sosopeleaes) o) op epay
eunuabyy SBIy soUOng 0Z-S 0sid §9LZ "Avororg nys %.00'05 - Souise) S eseonlng
‘woneiodi0) Buweo j2uojiBUIalY] BSD
T xXON abegiH  1-¥g "0Is0j0) op|TueQ N7 pueadneg WS "SENMUDONK] CEISINCY WhiUodS %09'59 30059 S01S ADOPIdVYS 099y Huneo) (e
nweueg AD eweued 0oSrUBs] UEg 0153 £ A 05 93C) N'Y'S 'BWEUCY 8p SIS § Buwc)  %00'0S 3%00'05 saursed VS 'SEALOTDY SOUORIDIIWOD)
pUPTR PUpTIY 284 'opdjol 1D NYS %0002 %.00'02 628 '1'S 'SeAC)39Y savalrg op Tadping clycdiue)
'SO2IUOIIIT(] SONOMBSH] 3P {TIDAUN
ewunoy v cyruoed gt nvs %0005 %0005 828 V'S 'veapn))
12001 § muEid Gt 'seyuey onbiuug [0 'SONUQNITT $9|0JIESHT BP [BSIdAIUN
LTS T]o ] BISCLI| 862 “fQU9ISED 'TND 'S 'seanyodaQ stisondy wnwods  %.00°0S %00°05 B U NV S ienkQ esa)
CIPIADILO4 ar0i 13 rlog o op eysy ‘woimodio) ACT|DuyD0 ] QuisEg jegojd %0005 %0005 SOWse) V'S 'Clog ¢ ouise)
sennisy upIo 8 UACN "N Y'S 'UOITIOA0) ABOIOULDO | ouIstD) (a0l %00'0p - SOUSED ¥'S Srumsy Op ouIse)
109y pepniy \eay popni) G "010I0 TINY OY'S 'LoI®9are) GBuIg |tQo £00'06 ¥,00°05 sobuig v 'S OALRSg
Alcly QUINWDDUIA UES | ‘vuaybue vip (IS 'Cwad) %0005 50005 so0ug I'! § "oy obuig
nuLABRY Ieweliy PLITLIVY} 'uoieiodio) Gujwes (Euclieudlu] BSp)  %LEE'LCE - 5QUISCY V'S ‘sarequig
PUpCH pupeyy « Z'19NyNg s 2 SOUBA  %LZ'SL HLZ'5¢ o1mang Y'D'S "SETuI4 |ENSIADIDMY
fueue) uer) cueltg Qt. 'PeLIQI) €] 9p aNDITY (D v'S 'ewsdny [eoidwe) %0005 5400°0S s01S 7§ 'eunuing sestewo)ny
ap g|3n) eluLg
LujuoBY <Dy soueng 3'»1 'L26 'Tqurgoy nNYsS %000S 828 ¥ S Ay
‘uofitiodio?) Suwed) jeuoqewdld esu)
Aren (AL eaps 02 'WIIC GOHTO LA NP3 CWs0  LDD0S %0005 soBuig 11$'00Y
cLIjuobYyY SOy soudng NG IuosIgg 'Y S Ny SOUING ouIseD)  H400'0S - souse) v'§ wanreny
“Ugs "ouidI0Q P UOTARY eliAl] AY
Ajunogaounog Ao SSMPPR sTUYIsag 19PIOu IWOWISINY| 2102 3102 Ay Aurowo)
oboiuodied  obecoind
dusioong  digsiawng

SEPL(I0IL SOPLPIII0S IP UDILIDY



cynie) v
oudIBo

Doly CIsD)

BwWrtuey

20lcpeg
CUTAGN

Anuno)mduiaorg

| oxoIny

Cynion Yy
QueILoT
0s0f ueg

ApD cwrugy

zalepeg
cuodiur 4

P {Uo]

£ 'Coya0 01ands /)

£ vATU OZ 'sosjeg S /)

£osid’'g

IO} ‘CUCQCG U oANNool3 0NudNQ

DISTTLAQS
0jjed '09sruUly UeS P olUBjwiBaDy

) 2 Bj3RIEY 920 DITAON 1D
VYol LZ UIBYEIEE Lpay

$SIIPPE $9IUIINY

s

s

vs"
vg'

Ny $ 'vaieadia) 10js €511D

'SEMUOIN] SCISINTY WledS
¥ST

SCAILUDOJ(] SUISANAY wniLods

“SeAINGda] $OISIAY WMpHodS

SCAILOTN( STISBNTY WNNOLS
SCANI0dRQ SEISONMY Wninoasg

0P|y 1UDLWISAY|

- %0005 sjas
%:00'0S %0005 310/
- /:00'09 Si01g
%00°09 7000 s19is
%0005 %C0'0S SI0iS
$%00'05 %0005 S1018
2102 8102 Aoy
oficiuanied  Blciuvriad
diguund  diyIdLAQ

¥'S 'SOPIUNBY S0P Op ugun
NY'S ‘DUON TUDZ Wnuods
'S 19S "SIUBWISIAY( (£Q0|D WNUDUS

VS CWLUE SEISoNaY wiueds

‘NS 31800 SEISINO WNINOIG
N Y'S 'CLCABN SBISONGY WRIBOIS

Aucdwo)

STPLIIOTIE SOPCPOII0S ap ugidE9y



Audit Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
issued by an Independent Auditor

CIRSA GAMING CORPORATION GROUP
Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated Management Report
for the year ended
December 31, 2017



(Translation of areport and consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish.
In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails)

AUDIT REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

To the Shareholders of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A.:

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. (the
Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position at December 31, 2017, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows, and
the notes thereto for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all
material respects, of consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of the Group at
December 31, 2017, and its consolidated results and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European
Union (IFRS-EU), and other provisions in the regulatory framework applicable to the Group in
Spain.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those
related to independence, that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
Spain, as required by prevailing audit regulations. In this regard, we have not provided non-audit
services nor have any situations or circumstances arisen that might have compromised our
mandatory independence in a manner prohibited by the aforementioned requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.



Most relevant audit issues

Most relevant audit issues are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatements in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These risks were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these risks.

Revenue recognition and collection of cash

As disclosed in Note 1.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group generates revenue
through the operation of slot machines, bingo halls, casinos and lotteries, in both Spain and
abroad. Due to the large volume of cash operations made by the Group, the intrinsic risk related
to the integrity in the collection of cash in its different businesses and the correlation with the
Group's revenue, we have considered this area as a relevant audit issue.

Our audit procedures consisted, among others, in: (i) understanding the processes of the different
businesses of the Group; (ii) analyzing the design and effectiveness of the relevant manual and IT
controls implemented by the Group in relation to the collection of cash and revenue recognition;
(i) performing analytical and substantive procedures, at December 31 and during the year,
including the analysis of the financial statements of the different businesses and companies in
relation to Management prospects, and cut-off and cash count procedures.

Measurement of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

At December 31, 2017 the Group has goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment amounting to 92,912 thousand euros, 399,188 thousand euros and 431,050
thousand euros, respectively. At least annually, Group Management analyzes the recoverable
amount of each significant Cash Generating Unit (CGU). The purpose of this analysis is to conclude
about the need to record an impairment loss on the goodwill assigned to these CGUs, or on any
other intangible asset or property, plant and equipment item belonging to it. For the purposes of
this analysis, and as indicated in Notes 2.14 and 10, the Group estimates future cash flows for
each cash generating unit using projections based on operating, financial and macroeconomic
assumptions. As the analyses made by Group Management require them to make estimates and
complex judgments regarding the above assumptions, we have considered this area as a relevant
audit issue. The information necessary for understanding this analysis is disciosed in Notes 5, 6,
7 and 10 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures consisted, among others, in: (i) understanding the process used by Group
Management for determining the recoverable amount of the assets subject to an impairment
review, including the analysis of the internal and external factors considered to determine whether
any objective indication of impairment exists on other intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment items; (i) performing specific tests on the recoverable value of the assets, as well as
involving internal valuation experts in order to evaluate the measurement method used and the
uniformity in its application, as well as the arithmetical calculations and evaluation of long-term
discount and growth rates used; (iii) reviewing the projected financial information regarding the
operational and strategic plans considered by Management, and checking the current situation
against the projections made in the prior year, as well as the historical evolution of such financial
information; (i) assessing the sensitivity of results to reasonably possible changes in the
assumptions made.

Recoverability of the Group's deferred tax assets

The Group's deferred tax assets at December 31, 2017 amount to 56,540 thousand euros. The
information related to these assets is disclosed in Note 19.4 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

The assessment made by Group Management to determine the recoverable amount of these assets
is based on estimates of future tax profit, made on the basis of the Group's financial projections
and business plans, and considering the applicable tax regulations at year end. Consequently, we
have considered the assessment of the Group's ability to recover the deferred tax assets as a
relevant audit issue.

We have performed audit procedures for assessing the assumptions considered by Management
in estimating the period for recovering deferred tax assets, focusing our analysis on the economic,
financial and tax assumptions used by the Group to estimate future profit, with the assistance of
our tax experts. Additionally, we have assessed the sensitivity of results to reasonably possible
changes in the assumptions made.

Other information: Consolidated management report

Other information refers exclusively to the 2017 consolidated management report, the
preparation of which is the responsibility of the Parent Company’s directors, and is not an integral
part of the consolidated financial statements.



._4._

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the consolidated
management report. In conformity with prevailing audit regulations in Spain, our responsibility in
terms of the consolidated management report is to assess and report on the consistency of the
consolidated management report with the consolidated financial statements based on the
knowledge of the Group we obtained while auditing the financial statements, and not including any
information not obtained as evidence during the course of the audit. In addition, our responsibility
is to assess and report on whether the content and presentation of the consolidated management
report are in conformity with applicable regulations. If, based on the work carried out, we conciude
that there are material misstatements, we are required to disclose them.

Based on the work performed, as described in the above paragraph, the information contained in
the consolidated management report is consistent with that provided in the 2017 consolidated
financial statements, and their content and presentation are in conformity with applicable
regulations.

Responsibility of the Parent Company's Director for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Parent Company are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements so that they give a true and fair view of the consolidated equity,
consolidated financial position and consolidated results of the Group, in accordance with I[FRS-EU
and other provisions in the regulatory framework applicable to the Group in Spain, and for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Parent Company's directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Parent Company's directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Parent Company’s directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Parent Company's directors’ use of the going
concern hasis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express and opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Parent Company's directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

From the significant risks communicated with the Parent Company's directors, we determine those
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the most significant assessed risks.

We describe these risks in our auditor's report unless faw or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter.

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L. CORTES & PEREZ AUDITORES Y

(Signature on the original in Spanish) ASESORES ASOCIADOS, S.L.
(Signature on the original in Spanish)

Lorenzo Lépez Carrascosa Miguel Herndndez Torralba

March 21, 2018
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Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group
Consolidated statement of financial position at December 31

ASSETS

{Thousands of euros) Notes 2017 2016
Non-current assets 1,150,735 1,185,252
Goodwill 5 92,912 104,412
Other intangible assets 6 399,188 371,279
Property, plant and equipment 7 431,050 464,229
Investments accounted for using the equity method 8 57,820 56,497
Financial assets 9 113,225 113,047
Deferred tax assets 194 56,540 75,788
Current assets 464,749 454,557
Inventories 12 17,753 15,319
Trade and other receivables 9 185,694 188,181
Other financial assets 9 63,514 69,595
Other current assets 16,569 7,405
Cash and cash equivalents 13 181,219 174,057
Total assets 1,615,484 1,639,809
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

{Thousands of euros) Notes 2017 2016
Equity 12,942 11,834
Share capital 141 24,577 24,577
Share premium 9,500 9,500
Treasury shares 14.2 (184) (184)
Retained earnings 143 34,174 30,910
Translation differences (362,632) (307,187)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 70,828 3,264
Non-controlling interests 14.4 236,679 250,954
Non-current liabilities 1,179,650 1,236,149
Bonds 15 938,536 935,390
Bank borrowings 16 37,927 78,375
Other creditors 17 63,570 68,713
Provisions 18 18,396 23,031
Deferred tax liabilities 19.4 121,221 130,640
Current liabilities 422,892 391,826
Bonds 15 4,615 4,653
Bank borrowings 16 69,270 49,328
Trade payables 124,772 135,398
Other creditors 17 208,926 188,800
Current income tax payable 19.2 15,309 13,647

Total equity and liabilities 1,615,484 1,639,809




Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the years ended December 31

{Thousands of euros) Notes 2017 2016
Gaming income 2,048,426 1,943,939
Other operating revenues 152,293 137,332
Bingo prizes (217,933) (209,540)
Total operating revenues 1,982,786 1,871,731
Variable rent (266,635) (258,913)
Net operating revenues from variable rent 3.1 1,716,151 1,612,818
Consumptions (75,823) (71,861)
Personnel (312,647) (291,010)
Supplies and external services . (296,185) (281,078)
Gaming taxes (604,477) (570,601)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 56&7 (194,801) (196,798)
Change in trade provisions (2,808) (31,886)
Financial income 7,413 8,731
Financial costs (76,796) (97,516)
Change in financial provisions 51 186
Profit/(loss) on investments in associates 8 1,619 (3,867)
Exchange gains/(losses), net 213 1,681 (1,529)
Profit/(loss) on sale/disposals of non-current assets (5,014) 205
Profit before income tax 158,364 75,794
Income tax 19.2 (61,851) (52,256)
Net profit (loss) from continuing activities 96,513 23,538
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to non-controlling interest 14.4 25685 20,274
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the parent 70,828 3,264




Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the years ended December 31

(Thousands of euros) Notes 2017 2016
Net profit (loss) from continuing activities 96,513 23,538
Translation differences (63,785) (41,340)
Tax effect - -
Other comprehensive profit/(loss) that wiil be reclassified to profit/(loss) in
subsequent years (63,785) (41,340)
Other comprehensive profit/(loss) that will not be reclassified to
profit/(loss) in subsequent years - -
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year after tax 32,728 (17,802)
Total comprehensive income /(loss) attributable to:
The Parent 15,383 (36,253)
Non-controlling interests 14.4 17,345 18,451
32,728 (17,802)




Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the years ended December 31

Non-
Share Treasury Retained controlling
capital Share shares earnings Translation interests

(Thousands of euros) {Note 14.1) premium (Note14.2) (Note 14.3)  differences (Note 14.4) Total
At December 31, 2015 24,577 9,500 (184) 30,910 (267,670) 246,852 43,985
Net profit (loss) for the year 2016 - - 3,264 - 20,274 23,538
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - (39,517) (1,823) (41,340)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 2016 24,577 9,500 (184) 34,174 (307,187) 265,303 26,183
Other changes:
« Additions for the year — Business

combinations - - - - 16,722 16,722
« Dividends paid - - - - (31,071) (3t1,071)
At December 31, 2016 24,577 9,500 (184) 34,174 (307,187) 250,954 11,834
Net profit (loss) for the year 2017 - - - 70,828 - 25,685 96,513
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - (55,445) (8,340) (63,785)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 2017 24,577 9,500 (184) 105,002 (362,632) 268,299 44,562
Other changes:
* Additions for the year — Business

combinations - - - - 1,117 1,117
« Dividends paid - - - - - (32,737) (32,737)
At December 31, 2017 24,577 9,500 (184) 105,002 (362,632) 236,679 12,942




Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the years ended December 31

(Thousands of euros) Notes 2017 2016
Cash-flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 158,364 75,794
Adjustments to profit:
Changes in operating provisions 2,808 3,323
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of non-current assets 56&7 194,801 196,798
Profit/(loss) on sale/disposals of non-current assets 5,013 (205)
Finance income and costs 67,713 92,466
Exchange gains/(losses), net 21.3 (1,681) 1,529
Other income and expenses (6,142) (6,834)
Change in:
Inventories (1,057) (899)
Trade and other receivables 339 (19,196)
Suppliers and other payables (8,874) 4,291
Gaming taxes payable (14,687) 53,718
Other operating assets and liabilities, net (15,155) (8,054)
Income tax paid (50,554) (57,652)
Net cash-flows from operating activities 330,888 335,079
Cash-flows from (used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (108,574) (101,932)
Purchase of intangible assets (47,421) (29,001)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 8,942 4,204
Acquisition of investments in other companies (54,110) (24,713)
Current account with Nortia Business Corporation, S. L. - Outflows (17,826) (53,149)
Current account with Nortia Business Corporation, S. L. — Inflows 16,935 54,066
Other financial investments (1,484) (10,940)
Interest received and cash revenues from financial investments 5,579 6,555
Net cash-flows used in investing activities (197,959) (154,910)
Cash-flows from (used in) financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings 1,631,219 2,009,668
Repayment of bank borrowings (1,649,914) (2,022,187)
Issue of bonds 15 - 447,552
Cancellation of bonds - (450,000)
Acquisition / sale of own bonds - 10,211
Finance leases (2,353) (2,354)
Interest paid (74,861) (84,555)
Dividends paid and other payments (25,570) (27,967)
Net cash-flows used in financing activities (121,479) (119,632)
Net variation in cash and cash equivalents 11,451 60,537
Net foreign exchange difference on cash balances (4,288) (1,400)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 174,057 114,920
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 13 181,219 174,057




Cirsa Gaming Corporation Group
Notes to the consolidated statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE GROUP

1.1 Group activity

Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S. A. (hereinafter the Company or the Parent Company) and its controlled
entities (hereinafter the Group or the Cirsa Group) consist of a set of companies operating in the gaming
and leisure sector, carrying out the following activities:

¢ Designing and manufacturing slot machines, which are sold to Group companies and third
parties, and development of interactive gaming systems

¢ Operating, both in Spain and abroad, slot machines, bingo halls, casinos and lotteries

1.2 Composition and structure of the Group

The Company, domiciled in Terrassa (Barcelona) at Carretera Castellar, 298, belongs to a group, of
which Nortia Business Corporation, S.L., also domiciled in Terrassa (Barcelona), is the direct parent
company.

The companies invested by the Company at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are detailed in the Appendix,
grouped in the following categories:

* The subsidiaries are companies controlled either directly or indirectly by the Company so that it can
manage the financial and operating policies in order to obtain profit from the investment.

e The jointly controlled companies are entities ruled by a contractual arrangement between the partners
whereby they establish joint control on the business, and which requires the unanimous consent of
the venturers regarding the operating decisions.

* The associates are enterprises not included in the previous two categories and in which there is an
ownership interest on a long-term basis that favors their activity, but with limited influence over their
management and control.

(NOTE: The column Percentage of ownership in the Appendix is obtained by multiplying the different
successive percentages along the corresponding chain of control, thereby reflecting the final ownership
at the Company’s level).



1.3 Changes in the consolidation perimeter

During 2017 and 2016, the Group's legal structure has experienced certain changes, as described
below:

2017

® Acquisition of companies

Operating
revenues
Total assets included in the
included in the 2017
consolidated consolidated
statements of statement of
% voting  Consolidation financial position at comprehensive
{Thousands of euros) rights method December 31, 2017 income
Miky, S.L. () 100% Full 49,083 14,353
Barnaplay, S.A. 100% Full 901 2,268
Gimar Jocs, S.L. 100% Full 1,493 510
Bingo Santven, S.A.U. 100% Full 7,015 9,699
Global TC Corp, S.A.U. 100% Full 1,783 316
Triveneto Games S.R.L. 100% Full 1,084 -
Sierra Machines, S.A.C. 100% Full 16,152 10,875
tinmobiliaria Rapid, S.A.C. 100% Full 12,195 3,086
L&G Business, S.L. 100% Full 87 2
Recreativos Ergosa, S.L.U.(**) 100% Full 1,034 186
Automaticos Essan, S.A.U. 100% Full 502 76
MCA Automatics, S.L. 100% Full 8,143 200
Social Games Online, S.L. 100% Full 3,393 -
Italtronic, S.R.L. 100% Full 4,815 717
Operadora De Entretenimiento Manzanillo, S.A. 60% Full 5,104 3,668
Promociones Sol Ibiza, S.A. 51% Full 649 19
113,433 45,975

(*) At the date of gaining control, Miky, S.L. held 100% equity interest in the company Barnaplay, S.A. and Gimar Jocs, S.L.

(**) Atthe date of gaining control, Recreativos Ergosa, S.L.U. held 100% equity interest in the company Automaticos Essan, S.A.U.

All the acquisitions shown in the table above have resulted in a business combination. Additionally, in
Colombia and Mexico two additional business combinations have been carried out and integrated into
the financial statements of Winner Group, S.A. (Colombia) and Promociones e Inversiones de Guerrero,
S.A. (Mexico), whereby two gambling halls have been acquired for 5.9 and 3.1 million euros,
respectively. The operating revenues generated by these acquisitions amount to 2,647 thousand euros
and 1,531 thousand euros, respectively.

Such transactions are detailed in Note 4 on business combinations.



e Creation of companies

In 2017 the following companies were created:

(Thousands of euros)

Total assets Operating
included in the revenues

consolidated included in the

statement of 2017

consolidated
statement of
comprehensive
income

Cirsa Brasil Participacoes, LTDA

Sportium Apuestas Andalucia, S.L.U.
Sportium Apuestas Colombia, S.A.S.

Sportium Apuestas Ceuta, S.L.U.
New York Games, S.L.U

% of financial
ownership position at
held by the  Consolidation December 31,

Group method 2017

100% Full -

50% Equity 2,959

60% Equity 878

50% Equity 9

50% Equity 1

3,847

The assets shown in the table above for the companies that are consolidated using the equity method
related to the investments, deriving from using such method, recognized in the consolidated statement

of financial position at December 31, 2017.

e Sale of companies resulting in loss of control

In 2017 the following companies have been sold, which resulted in a loss of control and/or significant

influence on their business:

Consolidation
method at prior

% of ownership at

% of ownership
interest after the

Consolidation
method after the

prior year end year end sale sale
Gestién Bingos Gobylan, S.A.(*) 100% Full - -
S.C.B. Margarita, C.A. 100% Full - -
Cirsa Insular, C.A. 100% Full - -
Tirrenogames, S.R.L. 50% Equity - -
Giochigenova,S.R.L. 50% Equity - -

(*) At both December 31, 2016 and sale date, the company Gestién Bingos Gobylan, S.A. held equity instruments

4.63% of the company Red de Bingos Canarios, S.A.

representing

Profit/(loss) from these sales included in the consclidated financial statements is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

Change in non-
controlling interests

Profit/{(loss) from the sale

Gestion Bingos Gobylan, S.A.
S.C.B. Margarita, C.A.

Cirsa insular, C.A.
Tirrenogames, S.R.L.
Giochigenova,S.R.L.

(388)

284
476

372




Total assets and operating revenues contributed by these companies to the consolidated statement of
financial position at December 31, 2016 and to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year 2016, respectively, are as follows:

Total assets included in the Operating revenues included

consolidated statement of in the 2016 consolidated
(Thousands of euros) financial position at statement of comprehensive
December 31, 2016 income

Gestion Bingos Gobylan, S.A. 1,893 4911
S.C.B. Margarita, C.A. 4 -
Cirsa Insular, C.A. 160 -
Tirrenogames, S.R.L. 1,217 -
Giochigenova,S.R.L. 422 -

3,696 4,911

The assets shown in the table above for the companies that at 2016 year end were consolidated using
the equity method (Tirrenogames, S.R.L. and Giochigenova,S.R.L.) relate to the investments, deriving
from using such method, recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31,
2016.

s (Other changes in the perimeter

In 2017 the companies Binred Madrid, S.A., Hostebar 98, S.L., Cirsa Amusement France, S.A., Entidad
Gestora del Bingo Siglo XXI, S.L.U., Pol Management Corporation, BV., Polispace S.L., International
Gaming Manufacturing, S.A., Global Cinco Estrellas, S.A., Gestora de Inversiones Cobiman, S.L.U.,
Binelec, S.L., Global Amusement Partners Corp, S.A., and Push Games S.L., were dissolved and
liquidated. The companies were dormant or showed low activity and their dissolution and liquidation
have not generated significant results for the Group.

Additionally, during the current year the companies Gonmatic, S.L.U. and Electronicos Trujillanos,
S.L.U. have been taken over by Uniplay, S.A.; Triveneto Games, S.r.l. has been taken over by Cirsagest,
S.P.A; Recreativos Rodes, S.A.U. has been taken over by Genper, S.A. and the companies
Promociones Tauro, S.L.U, Mabel 96, S.L.U. and Automaticos Siglo XXI, S.L. have been taken over by
Juegomatic, S.A.. These transactions have had no impact on the Group's consolidated figures.

016

s Acquisition of companies

Total assets included in Operating revenues

the consolidated included in the 2016
statement of financial  consolidated statement
% voting  Consolidation  position at December of comprehensive

{Thousands of euros) rights method 31, 2016 income
Comercial Jupama, S.A.(*) 50% Full 19,680 16,400
Servicios y Distribucion de Recreativos, Full
SA. 100% 1,942 430
Servi-Joc, S.A. 51% Full 3,017 2,302
Bema Euromatic, S.A.(**) 60.71% Full 6,261 1,956
Saturno 5 Conexién, S.L. 100% Full 326 144
Caballo 5, S.L. 100% Full 229 35
Losimai, S.A. 100% Full 466 132
Amical Trading, S.L. 100% Full 3 -

31,924 21,399

(*) At the date of gaining control, Comercial Jupama, S.A. held 55% of equity interest in the company Automaticos Maxorata, S.A.,
50% in the company Automaticos Quintana, S.L., and 100% in the company Jupama Servicios, S.L. (liquidated at year end).

(**) At the date of gaining control, Bema Euromatic, S.A. held 72.22% of equity interest in the company Recreativos Hatuey, S.A.,
and 100% in the companies J.R. 25, S.A. and Euromatic Madrid, S.L. (both of them liquidated at year end).



All the acquisitions shown in the table above have resulted in a business combination. Such transactions
are detailed in Note 4 on business combinations.

e Creation of companies

In 2016 the following companies have been created:

Operating
Total assets revenues
included in the included in the
consolidated 2016
% of statement of consolidated
ownership financial position statement of
held by the Consolidation  at December 31, comprehensive
(Thousands of euros) Group method 2016 income
Sportium Apuestas Baleares, S.L. 50% Equity 251 -
gn\l/versal de Desarrollos Electronicos, S.A. de 100% Full 309 )
560 -

The assets shown in the table above for the companies that are consolidated using the equity method
relate to the investments, deriving from using such method, recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position at December 31, 20186.

® Sale of companies resulting in loss of control

In 2016 the following companies have been sold, which resulted in a loss of control and/or significant
influence on their business:

Consolidation Consolidation
% of ownership at method at prior % of ownership method after the
prior year end year end after the sale sale
Recreativos Pozuelo, S.L.(*) 50 Equity - -
Grupo Royal Games S.R.L.(**) 50 Equity - -

(*) At both December 31, 2016 and sale date, the company Recreativos Pozuelo, S.L. held equity instruments representing 100%
of the Company Ovidio Collado, S.L.

(**) A Group the parent of which is Royal Games S.R.L. which, at both December 31, 2016 and sale date, held 95% of equity
interest in the company Royalbet S.R.L. and 51% in the company Andy Games S.R.L.

Profit/(loss) from these sales included in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Changes in
(Thousands of euros) non-controliing interests Profit/(loss) from the sale
Recreativos Pozuelo, S.L. - 4,049
Grupo Royal Games S.R.L. - 1,369

- 5418
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Total assets and operating revenues contributed by these companies to the consclidated statement of
financial position at December 31, 2015 and to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year 2015, respectively, are as follows:

Total assets included in the  Operating revenues included

consolidated statement of in the 2015 consolidated
financial position at statement of comprehensive
(Thousands of euros) December 31, 2015 income
Recreativos Pozuelo, S.L. 4,301 -
Grupo Royal Games S.R.L. 4,004 -
8,305

The assets shown in the table above for the companies that at 2015 year end were consolidated using
the equity method (Recreativos Pozuelo, S.L. and Royal Games S.R.L.) relate to the investments,
deriving from using such method, recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at
December 31, 2015.

¢ Changes in the percentage of ownership or consolidation method

In 2016 changes in the percentage of ownership or consolidation method have been as follows:

Consolidation method Percentage
At December At December
2016 2015 31, 2016 31, 2015
Juegos San José, S.A.(%) Full Equity 47.49% 47.49%

(*) At the date of changing the consolidation method the company Juegos San José, S.A. held equity instruments representing
100% of the company Tejebin, S.A., which at year end has been liquidated and extinguished.

As shown in the table above, during 2016 control was gained over the company Juegos San José, S.A,,
although the ownership percentage held by the Group in the prior year remained unchanged. Control
was gained as a result of certain agreements reached with the other shareholders related to the
governance of the abovementioned company, which came into effect on January 1, 2016, whereby the
Group was handled the control and management of the company. Consequently, in accordance with
IFRS 10, the obligation arose to consolidate said company using the full consolidation method.

e (Other changes in the perimeter

In 2016 the companies Cirsa Casino Corporation, S.L., Egartronic Servicios Centrales, A.LLE., Slot
Games Online, S.L., JR. 25, S A., Euromatic Madrid, S.L., Global Gaming Corporation Russia, S.L.,
Hispania Investments, S.A., Jupama Servicios, S.L., Capitan Haya 7, S.A., Oporto Juegos, S.A,,
Tejebin, S.A., and Desarrolios Inmobiliarios Rocare del Norte, S.A. were dissolved and liquidated. These
companies were dormant or showed low activity and their dissolution and liquidation did not generate
significant resuits for the Group.

Additionally, during the current year the companies Administradora de Salas de Juego Alfa S.A.C.,

Centro de Apuestas S.A.C. and Savoy Slot Machines S.A.C. have been taken over by the company
Salén de Juegos Portal S.A., which has had no impact on the Group's consolidated figures.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

21 Basis of presentation

The 2017 consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European (IFRS-EU) Union published by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and further interpretations.

The Company belongs to a group, whose parent is Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. (Nortia Group),
domiciled in Terrassa (Spain). The Company meets the criteria for exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements under article 43 of the Commercial Code. Consequently, these
consolidated financial statements are considered voluntary.

The consolidated financial statements of Nortia Group and the consolidated management report for the
year ended December 31, 2016 were approved on March 23, 2017 and filed with the Barcelona
Mercantile Registry together with the corresponding audit report. The consolidated financial statements
and consolidated management report for the year ended December 31, 2017 will be approved in the
due manner and filed, together with the audit report, with the Barcelona Mercantile Registry according
to the legal deadlines.

The financial statements of the companies composing the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017
have not yet been submitted for approval by the shareholders in general meeting. Nevertheless, the
Board of Directors of the Group’s Parent Company expects that they will be approved without
modification and, therefore, will not have any impact on the present consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements comply with the IFRS-EU prevailing at the date of their preparation. For certain cases, the
IFRS-EU provide alternative applications. The options applied by the Group are described in the
accounting policies listed in the accompanying notes.

For comparative purposes, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared at historical cost, include the 2017 figures in addition to those of 2016 for each item of the
consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows, and the
consolidated notes thereto, except where disallowed by an accounting standard.

2.2 Estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the management of the Group to
exercise judgment, to make estimates and to make assumptions which affect the application of the
accounting policies and the recorded amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The
estimates and assumptions taken into account have been based upon historical experience and other
factors which were considered to be reasonable in the light of the circumstances. Consequently, the
results obtained could differ from those assumptions.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, such that any changes made in accounting
estimates are posted in the period in which they are reviewed, in the event that such review only affects
that period, or in the period of the review and future periods if the revision affects both. The key estimates
and judgments are as follows:
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¢ Impairment of assets

All non-financial assets whose carrying amount could be unrecoverable are tested for impairment.
Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually, or when
there is evidence of impairment, based on financial projections and estimates of future operating cash
flows. In 2017 the Group has recognized impairment losses on goodwill and assets amounting to 5.8
and 0.5 million euros, respectively (2016: impairment losses on goodwill amounting to 9 million euros
and on assets amounting to 6.8 million euros) (Note 10).

¢ Non-current assets with finite useful life

The Group reviews periodically useful lives of non-current assets, adjusting prospectively amortization
methods where applicable. In 2017 and 2016 it was not necessary to make any adjustment in the useful
life of non-current assets with finite useful lives.

o Recoverability of deferred tax assets

When the Group, or any of the companies included in it, recognizes deferred tax assets, the estimated
taxable profits that will be generated in future years are reviewed at year end in order to assess their
recoverability, and any impairment l0ss is recognized accordingly. At December 31, 2017 the Group has
recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 56,540 thousand euros (2016: 75,788 thousand euros), as
described in Note 19.4.

e Provisions for taxes and other risks

Provisions are recognized for taxes and risks that will probably arise based on related studies. At
December 31, 2017 the Group has recognized provisions for taxes and other risks amounting to 18,396
thousand euros (2016: 23,031 thousand euros), as described in Note 18.

+ Business combinations and goodwill

The Group assesses for each business combination, the fair value of assets, liabilities and acquired
contingent liabilities, allocating the cost of the business combination to the identified elements. Likewise,
goodwill arising from the acquisition is assigned to its corresponding cash-generating unit, based on
expected synergies, for subsequent impairment tests (Note 10).

e Consolidation methods

The assessment of whether control is exercised when the Group does not have absolute majority of
voting rights, but agreements with the other shareholders have been reached, requires the Group to
make estimates and judgments to determine whether it has unilateral rights to manage relevant activities
in accordance with IFRS 10. Additionally, in order to establish the consolidation method of certain
entities over which control is not exercised also requires Group Management to make judgments and
estimates to determine whether they are considered jointly controlled companies, joint operations or
associates.

13



23 Standards and interpretations approved by the European Union and adopted for the first
time in the current year

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are the same
as those applied in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, as
none of the amendments to the standards applicable for the first time this year has had any effect on
the Group'’s accounting policies.

However, the amendments to |AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative require entities to
provide disclosures about changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses).

Most of the Group's financial liabilities are denominated in euros and, therefore, the movements between
periods, in both current and non-current loans and receivables, relate to cash flows for the year, with no
changes in their fair values.

2.4 Standards and interpretations issued by the IASB, but not yet mandatory in the fiscal year
2017

The Group intends to apply the standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the IASB, whose
application is not mandatory in the European Union as at the date of authorizing the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for issue, when they are effective, to the extent applicable to the
Group. Although the Group is currently analyzing their impact, based on the analysis conducted to date,
the Group believes that their first-time application will not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements, except for the following standards:

¢ |FRS 9 Financial instruments

In July 2014 the IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 Financial instruments replacing IAS 39
Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of IFRS 9. This
standard gathers the three phases of the financial instruments project: Classification and Measurement,
Impairment and Hedge Accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Except for hedge accounting, it shail be retroactively applied, but
comparative information need not be amended. For hedge accounting, the requirements are in general
prospectively applied, except for limited exceptions.

The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required application date and will not restate
comparative information. In 2017, the Group assessed the impact of the three aspects of IFRS 9. This
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes as a result of
additional information that may not be availabie in 2018 when the Group adopts IFRS 9. In general, no
significant impact is expected on the consolidated financial statements or equity as a result of the
adoption of this new standard.

1.  Recognition and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of the IFRS 9 classification and measurement
requirements will have a major impact on its statement of financial position or equity.

Its loans and trade receivables are held to coilect contractual cash flows which are only expected to take
the form of principal and interest payments. The Group analyzed the characteristics of the cash flows
from these instruments and concluded that they meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost
in accordance with IFRS 9. Conseqguently, these instruments need not be reclassified.
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2. Impairment losses

IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognize expected credit losses (ECLs) in respect of all of its debt
securities, loans and trade receivables either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The Group will apply the
simplified approach and recognize a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs for all trade receivables.
Due to the nature of the loans and receivables from its respective businesses, the Group has determined
that impairment losses will not increase significantly.

3. Hedge accounting

The Group does not expect a significant impact as a result of applying hedge accounting since it has
not entered into any cash flow or fair value hedges.

4. Other adjustments

in addition to the adjustments described above, other items in the financial statements shall be adjusted
on adoption of IFRS 9, where appropriate, including items related to investments in associates and joint
ventures, although none of these potential adjustments will be material to the Group’s financial
statements.

¢ |IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15, which was published in May 2014 and amended in April 2016, establishes a new five-step
model applicable to the recognition of revenue from contract with customers. In accordance with IFRS
15 an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

This new standard will replace all previous standards on revenue recognition. Total or partial retroactive
adoption is required for the years beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The Group plans to adopt the
new standard on the required effective date, using the partial retroactive method. During 2017 the Group
has made an assessment of IFRS 15.

The Group’s business consists in:

e the design, manufacture and marketing of slot machines that are sold to both group companies
and third parties, and the development of interactive gaming mechanisms and systems.

e Operation of slot machines, bingo halls, casinos and lotteries, in both Spain and abroad.
(a) Marketing of slot machines
This standard is not expected to have any impact on the Group's results for contracts with customers
under which the sale of machines is generally the only contractual obligation. The Group expects to

recognize the related revenue when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is
customarily when the goods are delivered.
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(b) Operation of slot machines, bingo halls, casinos and lotteries

1. Loyalty points program

Under IFRIC 13 Customer loyaity programs, the loyaity program offered by the Group in its casinos
division and other segments in which it participates (either through control or investments in associates
or joint ventures), results in the allocation of a portion of the transaction price to the loyalty program
using the fair value of points issued, and the recognition of deferred revenue in relation to points issued
but not yet redeemed or expired (called “Player tracking” by the Group). The Group concluded that under
IFRS 15 the loyalty program gives rise to a separate performance obligation, because it generally
provides a material right to the customer. Under IFRS 15, the Group will need to allocate a portion of
the transaction price to the loyaity program based on a relative stand-alone selling price, instead of the
allocation using the fair value of points issued, i.e., residual approach as it did under IFRIC 13.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, on adoption of IFRS 15, the Group expects that operating revenues,
mainly from the casinos division, will hardly change and, if they do, the amount will not be material.

2. Presentation and disclosure requirements

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are more detailed than under current IFRS.
The presentation requirements represent a significant change from current practice and significantly
increase the volume of disclosures required in the Group’s financial statements. In addition, as required
by IFRS 15, the Group wili disaggregate revenue recognized from contracts with customers into
categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are
affected by economic factors. However, given the Group's activity this information is not expected to be
substantially different from the current one. information that is disclosed for each reportable segment
shall also be updated. In 2017 the Group continued testing the systems, internal controls, policies and
procedures necessary to collect and disclose the required information.

3. Other adjustments

In addition to the major adjustments described above, on adoption of IFRS 15, other items of the primary
financial statements such as investments in associate and joint venture will be adjusted as necessary.
Furthermore, exchange differences on translation of foreign operations shall also be adjusted.

The recognition and measurement requirements in IFRS 15 are also applicable for recognition and
measurement of any gains or losses on disposal of non-financial assets (such as property, plant and
equipment items and intangible assets), when that disposal is not in the ordinary course of business.
However, on transition, the effect of these changes is not expected to be material for the Group.

¢ |FRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating leases - Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 establishes principles the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases, and requires lessees to record all leases under a
single lessee accounting model similar to the current recognition of finance leases in accordance with
IAS 17. The standard includes two exemptions applicable to the recognition of leases by the lessees:
low-value asset leases (i.e. personal computers) and short-term leases (that is, for a lease term of 12
months or less). At the commencement of a lease, lessees are required to recognize a liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments (that is, lease liability) and an asset representing the
right to use the underlying leased asset over the lease term (that is, the right-of-use asset). Lessees
shall recognize separately the interest expense for the lease liability and the depreciation expense for
the right to use the asset.

Lessees are required to reassess the lease liability when certain events occur (i.e. a change in the lease
term, a change in the future lease payments derived from a change in the rate used to determine such
payments). In general, lessees shall recognize the reassessed lease liability amount as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset.
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Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from current accounting under IAS 17.
Lessors shall continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and shall
distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

IFRS also requires lessees and lessors to include more detailed disclosures than under IAS 17.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is
permitted, provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 15, has been applied, or is applied at the same
date as IFRS 16. Lessees may use either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. IFRS
16's transition provisions permit lessees to use certain transition reliefs.

In 2018 the Group will continue to assess the potential effect of IFRS 16 on its consoclidated financial
statements.

e  Annual Improvements to IFRS —~ 2014-2016 Cycle
Amendments to IFRS 12 — Clarification of the scope of the disclosures required by IFRS 12

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, other than those in paragraphs
B10-B16, apply to an entity's interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its
interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale. For the IASB the effective date of these amendments is January 1, 2017,
however, they have not yet been adopted by the European Union. These amendments are not
applicable to the Group.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring investees at
fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-investment choice

The amendments clarify that:

»  An entity that is a venture capital organization, or collective investment undertaking, investment trust
or other qualifying entity, including insurance funds linked to investments, may elect, at initial
recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its investments in associates and
joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss.

If an entity, that is not itself an investment entity, has an interest in an associate or joint venture that
is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair value
measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate’s or joint venture’'s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each
investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which: (a) the investment entity
associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes an
investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from January 1, 2018, with earlier
application permitted. If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period, it must disclose that
fact. These amendments are not applicable to the Group.

Annual Improvements to IFRS - 2015-2017 Cycle

The IASB has made the following amendments to the standards:

IFRS 3 Business combinations — Previously held interest in a joint operation

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that previously was
a joint operation, it shall apply the requirements for business combinations achieved in stages,
remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at the fair value.

The amendments shall be applied to business combinations whose acquisition date is in annual period
beginning on or after January 1, 2019 with early application permitted.
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IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — Previously held interest in a joint operation

The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity holds an interest in a joint operation, but has no
control over it and obtains joint control of that joint operation that is a business in accordance with IFRS
3, the entity shall not re-measure previously held interests in the joint operation’s assets and liabilities
at fair value. The amendments shall be applied to transactions in which joint control is obtained on
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 with early application permitted.

Amendments to IAS 28 — Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity is required to apply IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to interests in
an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant
because it means that the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 shall be applied to these investments.
It also clarifies that, on adoption of IFRS 9, the entity shall not take account of any loss of the associate
or the joint venture or any impairment loss on the net investment that has been recorded as an
adjustment to the net investment in the associate or the joint venture under IAS 28 Investments in
associates and joint ventures. The amendments include an example that illustrates how the entities shall
apply the 1AS 28 and IFRS 9 requirements to these long-term investments. The amendments shall be
applied retrospectively, with some exceptions, in annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
with early application permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control
of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that
the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in
IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognized in full. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, is recognized
only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The IASB has
deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the
amendments must apply them prospectively. The Group will apply these amendments when they
become effective.

2.5 Consolidation methodology
The consolidation methodology is described in the following sections:

Consolidation methods

The methods applied in the consclidation process are as follows:

¢ Full consolidation method for subsidiaries
o Equity method for associates and jointly controlled companies

Additionally, as indicated in Note 11, the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Argentinean
temporary joint ventures, since they are considered joint operations, have been incorporated as
established in IFRS 11 for this type of joint arrangements. That is, the Group has recognized the
following items in relation to its interest in the said joint operations:

+ Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o lIts liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

* Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation, including its
share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation;

+ Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
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Harmonization

The financial year of the companies within the consolidation perimeter ends on December 31. For
consolidation purposes the corresponding 2017 financial statements of each company have been used.

The accounting principles applied by the companies comply with Group policies and, accordingly, no
harmonization adjustments were necessary.

Elimination of internal transactions

The intercompany balances arising from financial operations, rental agreements, payment of dividends,
financial assets and liabilities, purchase and sale of inventories and non-current assets and rendering of
services have been eliminated. In regard with purchase and sale transactions, the unrealized margin on
assets, as well as depreciation, has been adjusted in order to show the assets at their original cost to
the Group.

Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The financial statements of foreign companies have been translated into euros prior to their consolidation
foilowing the year-end rate method, except for the financial statements of Venezuelan companies, which
is considered a hyperinflationary country, as stated below. Accordingly, assets and liabilities are
translated at the spot rate prevailing at December 31, capital and reserves at the historical rates, and
revenues and expenses at the averages rate for the year. Differences arisen from this process have
been recorded directly under Translation differences in net equity.

According to the applicable standard for companies operating in hyperinfiationary economies, as is the
case of the companies that the group has in Venezuela, the translation of their financial statements into
foreign currency entails:

- Adjusting the historical cost of non-monetary assets and liabilities and the various items of equity
of these companies from their date of acquisition or inclusion in the consolidated statement of
financial position to the end of the year to reflect the changes in purchasing power of the currency
caused by the inflation.

- Adjusting the consolidated statement of comprehensive income to reflect the financial loss
caused by the impact of inflation in the year on net monetary assets (loss of purchasing power).

- Adjusting the components of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and of the
consolidated statement of cash flows according to the inflation index since their generation, with
a balancing entry in financial results.

- Translating all components of the financial statements of the companies operating in
hyperinflationary by applying the closing exchange rate.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Venezuelan economy continued to be considered hyperinflationary
in terms of IFRS application.

In 2017 and 2016 the Venezuelan subsidiaries of the Group are dormant and have almost not
incorporated any assets, liabilities, income or expenses in the consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. Consequently, the Group’s consolidated figures include
almost no impacts in relation to the method described above applied in companies located in
hyperinflationary countries.
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2.6 Business combinations

When Group gains control over one constituted business, or directly over a business’ net assets, the
consideration transferred is assigned to assets and liabilities, measured at fair value. The difference
between the sum of fair values and the sum of the consideration transferred plus the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree at acquisition date is recognized as goodwill where it is positive or as
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income where the difference is negative.

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value. This is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by
the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree, and the equity interests issued by the acquirer.

The costs related to the acquisition, such as finder’s fees, advice, legal, accounting valuation and other
professional or consulting fees, are recognized as expenses in the years when they are incurred and
the services are provided.

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment loss.

Goodwill is not amortized as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. Instead, it is tested for
impairment at least annually as well as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Likewise, the net
carrying amount of intangible assets having finite useful life is tested for impairment when there is
evidence or changes of not recovering the carrying amount, similar to the criteria established for
property, plant and equipment.

Research expenses are charged to expenses when incurred, while development costs related to an
individual project are capitalized when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility and
profitability, the availability of financing resources, and incurred costs can be measured reliably.
Development expenses to be capitalized, including the cost of materials, personnel expenses directly
attributable and a fair proportion of overheads, are amortized using a declining method (50% the first
year) over the period for which they expect to obtain profits or income from such project, which generally
comprises three years.

Amounts paid to the owners of the sites where the slot machines are located on an exclusivity basis are
capitalized as installation rights. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over the contract term.

Administrative concessions are amortized on a straight-line basis, according to the concession term, as
well as transfer rights of leased premise

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis over three years.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recognized impairment loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an indication that the net carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. If any indication exists, assets or cash-generating units are recorded at
their recoverable amount.

Expenses for repairs which do not extend the useful life of the assets, as well as maintenance expenses,
are taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year incurred. Expenses
incurred for expansion or improvements which increase the productivity or prolong the useful life of the
asset are capitalized. Future expenses for restoring and retirement are recognized, at present value, as
a cost component, with a liability provision as counterpart.
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Depreciation charges are calculated over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Property, plant and
equipment are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. A declining
basis is used alternatively for some assets, basically slot machines, since it better follows the actual
pattern of income related to these assets.

Method Rate
Commercial buildings (new/used) and plant Straight line 2-4%
Riverboats Straight line 6.6%
Production installations (new/used) Straight line 8-16%
Other installations Straight line 8-12%
Production machinery Straight line 10%
Other production equipment Straight line 20%
New slot machines (*A” and “B"/ "V" and “C”) Declining/Straight line 20%
Used slot machines Straight line 40%
Furniture (new/used) Straight line 10-20%
Vehicles (new/used) Declining/Straight line 10-32%
Tools and furniture (new/used) Straight line 30-60%
Data processing equipment (new/used) Declining/Straight line 25-50%
Molds and dices Straight line 25%
Other PP&E items Straight line 16%

The finite useful life of slot machines is necessarily subject to exogenous factors (mainly market and
competence) of difficult forecast. In the event that such equipment completes its useful life before the
base period used for depreciation, the net balance of the related good at the removal date is charged as
depreciation for the year, given its recurrent and typical features, as well as its corrective nature of
systematic depreciation performed on related goods.

29 Investments in associates
Investments are accounted for under the proportional consolidation method or the equity method, that
is, they are accounted initially at cost and its carrying amount is increased or decreased in order to

recognize the part of the result of the invested company attributed to the Group from the acquisition date.

Part of the profit (loss) for the year of the invested company is recorded in the Group consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Dividends received reduce the amount of the investment.

Changes in the invested company's equity different than those generated by income of the period are
directly recorded as changes in the Group's net equity.

210 Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recorded at fair value. For investments not measured at fair value with
changes in results, directly attributable transaction costs are added. The Group establishes the
classification of financial assets at the initial recognition, and, when appropriate and allowed, the

classification is assessed again at each year end.

Loans and receivables

The Group recognizes in this category trade and non-trade receivables, which include financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments not quoted on active markets and for which the Group expects to
recover the full initial investment, except, where applicable, in cases of credit deterioration.

Following initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortized cost.

Nevertheless, trade receivables which mature within less than one year with no contractual interest rate,
as well as prepayments and loans to personnel, the amount of which is expected to be recovered in the
short term, are carried at nominal value both at initial and subsequent measurement, when the effect of
not discounting cash flows is not significant.
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2.11 Cancelation of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets (or, when applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) are derecognized when:

~  Rights to related cash flows have expired,

-  The Group has retained the right to receive related cash flows, but has assumed the liability of
fully paying them within the established terms to a third party under a transfer agreement;

- The Group has transferred the rights to receive related cash flows and (a) has substantially
transferred the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the financial asset, or (b) has not
transferred or retained the asset’s risks and rewards, but has transferred the control over the
asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the related liability is settled, cancelled or expired. When a
financial liability is replaced for other from the same borrower but with substantially different terms, or
the conditions of the existing liability are substantially modified, such change or modification is recorded
as a disposal of the original liability and an addition of a new liability. Difference of related carrying
amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

212 Inventories

Inventories are accounted for at the lower of the acquisition cost and the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of raw materials is the replacement cost. Nevertheless, no provision is set aside
for raw materials and other consumables used in production, if the finished products in which they are
to be incorporated will be sold above cost. The recoverabie value of finished products corresponds to
the estimated sales price less related selling expenses.

The cost value of finished products includes materials measured at the weighted average acquisition
price, third-party work, labor and production overhead.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

This heading includes cash, current accounts, bank deposits and other financial investments maturing
within less than three months from the acquisition date, provided that risks of the substantial alteration

of their value are not significant.

In terms of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
abovementioned concepts, net of bank overdrafts, if applicable.

2.14 Impairment of assets

Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each year end whether there is an indication that a non-current asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, and when an annual impairment test is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the cash-generating unit (CGU)
fair value less cost to sell and value in use, and it is established for each separate asset, unless for
assets that do not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and its carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. To assess value in
use, expected cash flows are discounted to their present value using risk free market rates, adjusted by
the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses from continuing activities are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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The Group assesses at year end indicators of impairment losses previously recorded in order to verify
whether they have disappeared or decreased. If there are indicators, the Group estimates a new
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if the circumstances
giving rise to it have disappeared, since the last loss for depreciation was recognized. In this regard, the
asset’s carrying amount increases to their recoverable amount. The reversal is limited to the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset.

The reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Upon such reversal,
the depreciation expense is adjusted in the following periods to amortize the asset's revised book value,
net of its residual value, systematically over the asset's useful life.

Financial assets

The Group assesses at year end if financial assets or group of financial assets are impaired. To assess
the impairment of certain assets, the following criteria are applied:

e Assets measured at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that there is an impairment loss of loans and other receivables recorded at
amortized cost, the loss is measured as the difference between the net carrying amount and the present
value of estimated cash flows, discounted at the current market rate upon initial recognition. The net
carrying amount is reduced by an allowance, and the loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment loss is reversed only if the circumstances giving rise to it have ceased to exist. Such reversal
is limited to the carrying amount of the financial asset that would have been recognized on the reversal
date had no impairment loss been recognized.

In regard with trade and other receivables, when there is objective evidence of not collecting them, an
adjustment is made based on identified bad debts risk.

215 Treasury shares

Treasury shares are recorded as a direct decline in the Group's equity. They are measured at cost value,
without recognizing any impairment loss. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on the purchase or sale of the Group’s own equity instruments.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when:

- the Group has a present obligation either legal, contractual or constructive as a result of past
events;

— itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

—  the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured.

When the effect of the cash temporary value is significant, the provision is estimated as the present
value of the future cash flows required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate applied in the assessment of the obligation’s present value only corresponds to the
temporary value of money and does not include the risks related to the estimated future cash flows
related to the provision. The increase of the provision derived from the aforementioned discount is
recorded as a financial expense.
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217 Interest yield loans and credits

Loans and credits are initially measured at cost value, which is the fair value of the contribution received,
net of issuance costs related to the debt.

Upon initial recognition, interest yield loans and credits are recognized at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, including any issuance cost and discount or settlement premium.

2.18 Translation of balances in foreijgn currency

Transactions in foreign currency are translated at the spot rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the spot rate prevailing
at the closing date. Unrealized exchange gains or losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. As an exception, exchange gains or losses arising from monetary assets and
liabilities that reflect investments in foreign subsidiaries are recorded in Translation differences in equity,
with no impact on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.19 Leases

Leases are considered to be financial leases when all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
leased item are substantially transferred to the Group. Assets acquired under financial lease
arrangements are recognized as property, plant and equipment at the beginning of the lease term in the
consolidated statement of financial position, recording an asset equivalent to the fair value of the leased
item or, if lower, the present value at the commencement of the lease of the minimum lease payments.
A financial liability is recorded for the same amount.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability, in order
to maintain a constant interest rate of the outstanding debt. The finance charges are recorded directly in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. These assets are depreciated, impaired, and
derecognized using the same criteria applied to assets of a similar nature.

Leases are considered to be operating leases when all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
leased item are substantially maintained by the lessor. Operating lease payments are recognized as
expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when accrued over the lease term.

2.20 Revenues

Revenues are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits from the transaction will flow
to the Group and the amount of income and costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.

Revenues from exploiting slot machines are measured at the collected amount. The percentage of the
amount collected from slot machines attributable to the owner of the premises where the machine is
located is included as operating expense under Variable rent.

Revenues from bingo cards are recognized for the total amount of sold cards, based on their face value,
while recognizing the prizes granted to players as a decrease in operating revenues. The card cost is
recorded in Consumptions, and the gaming tax rate over purchased bingo cards is included under
Gaming taxes.

Revenue from casinos is recorded for the net amount from the game (“win”), after deducting prizes
removed by players.

Revenue from sale of finished products is measured when risks and significant benefits incidental to the
ownership of the assets have been transferred to the buyer and the outcome can be estimated reliably,
circumstance that generally arises with the effective goods delivery.

Interest income is recorded based on the time passed, including the asset's effective yield.
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2.21  Restructuring expenses

Expenses incurred in restructuring processes, mainly indemnities to personnel, are recognized when a
formal and detailed plan exists to perform such process by identifying the main parameters (i.e. main
locations, functions and approximate number of affected employees, estimated payments and the
implementation schedule) and creating a real and valid expectation among affected employees in regard
with the process.

2.22 Income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on all temporary differences at the closing date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences, except for taxable temporary
differences arisen from an acquired goodwill, which amortization is not tax deductible and those arisen
upon the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination,
and that at the transaction date did not affect the accounting or the tax result.

Likewise, a deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences from investments in
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled companies, except when both the following conditions are
met: (a) the Group is able to manage the reversal date of the temporary difference and (b) the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the future. In this regard, when the results are generated in subsidiaries
in countries where there is not an agreement to avoid double taxation and the Group’s policy is the
repatriation of dividends, the Group records a deferred tax related to the effective amount that would be
filed when profits are repatriated.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax credits and unused tax
loss carryforwards, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
these assets may be utilized, except for deductible temporary differences arisen upon the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, and that at the
transaction date did not affect the accounting or the tax result.

Furthermore, only a deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences from
investments in subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled companies when both the following
conditions met: (a) the temporary difference will be reversed in the future, and (b) it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which these temporary differences may be utilized.

The recovery of deferred tax assets is reviewed at year end, reducing the amount in assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable benefits will not be available and consequently these assets could
not be utilized.

Deferred taxes are measured based on the tax legislation and charge rates enacted or to be enacted,
at the date of consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted and are classified as non-current assets or non-
current liabilities, respectively.

25



2.23 Contingencies

When unfavorable outcome of a situation that leads to a potential loss is likely to occur (i.e. more than
50% of possibilities), the Group establishes a provision which is recorded based on the best estimate of
present value of expected future disbursement. On the other hand, if expectations of favorable resolution
are more likely, no provision is recorded, which is reported in the notes of existing risks, unless the
possibility of a negative outcome is clearly considered remote.

2.24 Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities are classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as current and non-
current according to their maturity date. Current assets mature within one year from the closing date,
and non-current assets mature in more than such period.

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s activities are organized and managed separately based on the nature of the provided
services and products. Each segment represents a strategic business unit, which provides several
services and offers product to different markets. The related operating results are assessed regularly by
the Group’s Management in order to decide which resources should be allocated to the segment and to
assess its yield.

The Group has classified as operating segment the identified Group component in charge of supplying
a single product or service, or a group of them, which is subject to risks and returns of different nature
to those related to other segments within the Group. The main factors considered in identifying the
segments have been the nature of products and services, the nature of the production process and the
type of customer.

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses by segments include those directly and reasonably assignable.
The captions not assigned by the Group correspond to deferred tax assets and liabilities accounts.

The transfer prices between segments are calculated based on the actual costs incurred, which have
been increased by a fair trading margin.
3.1 Operating segments

The distribution of detailed operating segments meets the information usually managed by the
Management. Segments, as defined by the Group, are as follows:

Slots:

Owns and operates slot machines in bars, cafés, restaurants and recreation rooms in Spain and ltaly.
Also provides interconnected machines in ltaly.

B2B:

Designs, manufactures and distributes slot machines and game kits for the Spanish and international
market. The division sells directly or through distributors to other divisions of the Group, mainly slot
division, and third parties.

Casinos:

The Group operates with two types of casinos, traditional casinos which include table games and casino
slot machines, and electronic casinos which only operate with casino slot machines.
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Bingos:

Operation of bingo halls mainly in Spain and to a lesser extent, in italy and Mexico. The parlors operate
through the sale of bingo cards to customers, and to a lesser extent through the operation of slot
machines and restoration services.

Other segments:

Segments that aggregately represent less than 10% of total external and internal revenue, less than
10% of the combined result of all segments with added benefits and less than 10% of total assets, have
been considered as irrelevant and no specific information has been provided, grouped under this generic
title.

The following chart shows information on revenue and results, information about assets and liabilities,
and other information related to the different operating segments as for December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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3.2 Geographic segments

In the presentation of information by geographic segments, sales are based on the destination country
and the assets on their location. The following chart shows this information as for December 31, 2017

and 2016.

2017
Sales to Sales Assets
external inter- Total revenue by by Investment in non-
{Thousands of euros) customers segment segment segment current assets
Spain 547,831 106,094 653,925 660,122 74,515
Latin America 832,945 748 833,693 815,426 76,329
ltaly 335,375 16 335,391 117,755 4,481
Eliminations and other - (106,858) (106,858) 22,181 670
1,716,151 - 1,716,151 1,615,484 155,995
2016
Sales to Sales Assets
external inter- Total revenue by by Investment in non-
(Thousands of euros) customers segment segment segment current assets
Spain 516,806 94,965 611,771 702,620 55,464
Latin America 761,127 708 761,835 927,102 63,316
Italy 334,885 297 335,182 109,467 12,153
Eliminations and other - (95,970) (95,970) (99,380) -
1,612,818 - 1,612,818 1,639,809 130,933
4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND ACQUISITIONS OF ASSOCIATES

4.1 2017

The breakdown of the companies in which the Company has gained unilateral and exclusive control in
2017 is summarized as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

Non-controlling Fair value of Goodwill
Fair value of interests arisen in prior arising on

Name and description of Acquisition  Acquisition acquired net the business ownership acquisition
companies and business date price assets combination interest {Note 5)
Miky, S.L. and subsidiaries May 2017 38,457 38,457 - - -
Op. De Entretenimiento

Manzanillo, S.L. February 2017 2,325 3,262 937 - -
Bingo Santven, S.A.U. January 2017 4,750 4,750 - - -
Global TC Corp., S AU, March 2017 903 903 - - -
Triveneto Games, S.R.L. September 2017 762 762 - - -
Sierra Machines, S A.C. July 2017 9,046 9,046 - - -
Inmobiliaria Rapid, S.A.C. July 2017 14,139 14,139 - - -
L&G Business, S.L. October 2017 75 75 - - -
Recreativos Ergosa, S.L.U.

and subsidiaries November 2017 544 544 - - -
MCA Automatics, S.L. December 2017 6,433 6,433 - - -
Social Games Online, S.L. December 2017 2,482 2,482 - - -
ltaltronic, S.R.L. November 2017 3,000 3,000 - - -
Promociones Sol Ibiza, S.A.  November 2017 460 641 180 - -

83,376 84,494 1,117 - -
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The value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of gaining control over the business
combinations was as follows:

Recognized on

(Thousands of euros) acquisition Carrying amount
Property, plant and equipment 21,510 17,957
Intangible assets 76,518 7,067
Other non-current assets 6,936 6,064
Current assets 14,412 14,412
Liabilities (including generated deferred taxes) (34,882) (15,274)
84,494 30,226

If acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the year, consolidated operating revenues in 2017 would
have increased by 32,941 thousand euros and consolidated profit for the year 2017 would have
increased by 1,344 thousand euros. Additionally, the gains contributed to the Group by these companies
since the date of acquisition amount to 1,549 thousand euros.

4.2 2016

The breakdown of the companies in which the Company has gained unilateral and exclusive control in
2016 is summarized as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

Non-controlling Fair value of  Goodwill
Fair value of interests arisen prior arising on
Name and description of Acquisition  Acquisition acquired net inthe business ownership acquisition
companies and business date price assets combination interest {Note 5)
Comercial Jupama, S.A. and
subsidiaries April 2016 10,915 19,169 8,254 - -
Servicios y Distribucion de
Recreativos, S.A. July 2016 1,108 1,108 - - -
Servi-Joc, S.A. May 2016 1,884 3,034 1,150 - -
Bema Euromatic, S.A. and
subsidiaries July 2016 4654 7,441 2,787 - -
Saturno 5 Conexidn, S.L. July 2016 251 251 - - -
Caballo 5, S.L. July 2016 300 300 - - -
Losimai, S.A. November 2016 - - - - -
Amical Trading, S.L. December 2016 2 2 - - -
Juegos San José S.A. and
subsidiaries January 2016 - 13,394 4,531 8,863 -
19,114 44,699 16,722 8,863 -

The value of identifiable assets and liabilities
combinations was as follows:

at the date of gaining control over

the business

Recognized on

(Thousands of euros) acquisition Carrying amount
Property, plant and equipment 19,685 9,126
Intangible assets 19,550 2,547
Other non-current assets 8,230 7,501
Current assets 12,101 12,101
Liabilities (including generated deferred taxes) (14,867) (8,071)
44,699 23,204

If acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the year, consolidated operating revenues in 2016 would
have increased by 8,875 thousand euros and consolidated profit for the year 2016 would have increased
by 659 thousand euros. Additionally, the gains contributed to the Group by these companies since the
date of acquisition amount to 1,385 thousand euros.
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5. GOODWILL

The breakdown of goodwill by operating segments is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Bingos 27,525 28,428
Slots 16,457 21,457
Casinos 48,930 54,527
92,912 104,412

The amount of goodwill at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is shown net of impairment loss allowances,
which according to the applicable accounting standards are not revertible, amounting to 125,675 and
119,894 thousand, respectively. During 2017 an impairment loss on goodwill amounting to 5,781
thousand euros (Note 10.1) has been recognized (2016: 9,013 thousand euros).

The evolution of the goodwill amount recorded in books, net of impairment loss, is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Balance at January 1 104,412 112,763
Impairment losses (5,781) (9,013)
Net exchange differences arising during the period (5,719) 2,978
Derecognition due to sale of companies (Note 1.3} - (1,259)
Other - (1,057)
Balance at December 31 92,912 104,412
6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
6.1 Movements
2017
Translation
January 1, differences December
{Thousands of euros) 2017 Additions  Disposals Transfers and other 31, 2017
COST
Development costs and patents 52,952 3,403 - - - 56,355
Administrative concessions 131,552 2,902 (28) 91 (13,548) 120,968
Installation rights 542,607 115,251 (7,158) - (7,033) 643,668
Transfer rights 7,924 5,358 (1,860) - (604) 10,817
Software 32,872 3,456 (275) 22 (1,864) 34,211
Prepayments and other 151 - - - - 151
768,058 130,370 (9,321) 113 (23,049) 866,170
AMORTIZATION
Development costs and patents (48,595) (1,485) - - - (50,080)
Administrative concessions (62,434) (10,101) 28 - 3,275 (69,232)
Installation rights (236,309) (63,820) 5,011 - 629 (294,489)
Transfer rights (5,192) (1,554) 1,860 - 234 (4,652)
Software (27,094) (2,497) 273 - 516 (28,802)
(379,624) (79,457) 7,172 - 4,654 (447 255)
Impairment loss (17,155) (4,191) 1,613 - 6 (19,727)
Net carrying amount 371,279 46,722 (536) 113 (18,389) 399,188
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Translation
January 1, differences December

(Thousands of euros) 2016 Additions Disposals Transfers and other 31, 2016
COST
Development costs and patents 52,163 2,378 (1,367) (222) 52,952
Administrative concessions 133,207 8,913 (7,382) - (3,186) 131,552
Installation rights 515,173 39,179 (11,490) - (255) 542,607
Transfer rights 7,433 731 - - (240) 7,924
Software 32,826 1,007 (1,501) 340 200 32,872
Prepayments and other 492 - - (340) (1) 151

: 741,294 52,208 (21,740) - (3,704) 768,058
AMORTIZATION
Development costs and patents (48,081) (2,014) 1,328 - 172 (48,595)
Administrative concessions (52,550) (9,802) 707 - (789) (62,434)
Installation rights 188 ,356) (57,163) 8,909 - 301 (236,309)
Transfer rights (3,592) (1,731) - - 131 (5,192)
Software (25,735) (2,497) 1,413 - (275) (27,094)

(318,314) (73,207) 12,357 - (460) (379,624)

Impairment loss (14,363) (4,129) 1,337 - - {(17,155)
Net carrying amount 408,617 (25,127) (8,046) - (4,165) 371,279

Additions in 2017 include the effects of business combinations (Note 4), which amounted to a gross
value of 82,376 thousand euros (2016: 22,712 thousand euros) and accumulated amortization of 5,858
thousand euros (2016: 3,162 thousand euros). These amounts were almost entirely related to
Installation rights, as in 2016.

Most of the rest of additions in 2017 and 2016 included in /nstallation rights mainly relate to the non-
refundable payment in exchange of the exclusive rights to operate the premises where the slot machines
are located. The disposals in this caption for both years mainly relate to installation rights pending
amortization in premises which are closed, or it was decided not to operate the machine for profitability
reasons.

6.2 Development costs and patents

They correspond mainly to the following:

e Industrial companies: Creation of new models of slot machines and technological innovations for
them. Net value as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is 3,576 and 2,242 thousand euros, respectively.

e Lottery and interactive products companies: Development of software applications for on-line
games. Net value as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is 2,700 and 2,115 thousand euros,
respectively.

The internal cost of developing new models of slot machines and software for on-line games by the B2B
division of the Group are capitalized as an increase in the value of developments costs and patents with
a charge to the corresponding expenses according to their nature in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The total amount of works performed by the Group for the intangible assets in
2017 and 2016 amounted to 3,267 and 2,251 thousand euros, respectively.

Research and development expenses recognized as expenses in 2017 amounted to 41 thousand euros
(2016: 103 thousand euros) (Note 21.2).
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6.3 Administrative concessions

The gross balance of official licenses to operate as of December 31, 2017 mainly corresponds to:

¢ An official contract to operate slot machines in Panama amounting to 44,364 thousand euros (50,001
thousand euros at December 31, 2016). The net value of this concession at December 31, 2017
amounts to 11,962 thousand euros (16,375 thousand euros at December 31, 2016).

® An Argentinean company holds the concession of a lottery employing disabled people amounting to
395 thousand euros at December 31, 2017 (545 thousand euros at December 31, 2016). The net
value of these concessions at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is zero.

e |icenses of video terminals acquired by Cirsa ltalia S.p.A. for an amount of 40,807 thousand euros
(40,807 thousand euros at December 31, 2016). The net value of this concession at December 31,
2017 is 16,447 thousand euros (20,535 thousand euros at December 31, 2016).

e |icenses arisen in the gain of control of Casino de Rosario, S.A. for an amount of 19,158 thousand
euros at December 31, 2017 (25,581 thousand euros at December 31, 2016). The net value of these
licenses at December 31, 2017 is 16,191 thousand euros (22,610 thousand euros at December 31,
2016).

6.4 Installation rights

Installation rights correspond to the amounts paid in exchange for the exclusive use of the premises in

which slot machines are located.

6.5 Impairment losses

The balance of Impairment losses basically covers the value of certain administrative concessions in
Argentina (395 and 545 thousand euros at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively).

The impairment losses recognized during 2017 mainly correspond to exclusive rights to points of sale
that will no longer be operational.

Note 10 includes several elements in relation to a test of the potential impairment of the Group's assets.
6.6 Other information

At December 31, 2017, the net value of intangible assets in foreign companies of the Group amounted
to 136,393 thousand euros (2016: 144,773 thousand euros).
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

71 Movements
2017
Translation
January 1, differences December
{Thousands of euros) 2017 Additions  Disposals  Transfers and other 31, 2017
Cost
Land and buildings 289,948 14,423 (1,230) 1,756 (47,342) 257,555
Installations 81,140 7,773 (2,386) 1,620 (6,420) 81,727
Machinery 622,612 90,222 (55,908) 15,852 (56,399) 616,379
Data processing equipment 63,351 8,041 (2,085) 304 (3,754) 65,857
Vehicles 13,040 570 (375) - (2,385) 10,850
Other installations, tools, and
furniture 298,210 24,678 (13,874) 3,644 (17,928) 294,730
Assets in progress 14,441 24,508 (446) (23,289) 829 16,043
1,382,742 170,215 (76,304) {113) (133,399) 1,343,141
Depreciation
Buildings (94,286) (13,954) 363 - 2,851 (105,026)
Installations (60,098) (7,009) 2,371 - 5,803 (58,933)
Machinery (465,454) (74,825) 50,888 - 41,696 (447 695)
Data processing equipment (53,938) (7,165) 1,596 - 2,904 (56,603)
Vehicles (9,357) (1,354) 153 - 1,882 (8,676)
Other installations, tools, and
furniture (224,608) (23,428) 13,125 - 13,123 (221,788)
(907,741) (127,735) 68,496 - 68,259 (898,721)
Impairment losses (10,772) {5,710) 3,059 53 (13,370)
Net carrying amount 464,229 36,770 (4,749) {(113) (65,087) 431,050
2016
Translation
January 1, differences December
{Thousands of euros) 2016 Additions Disposals Transfers and other 31, 2016
Cost
Land and buildings 295,915 22,759 (2,709) 3,373 (29,390) 289,848
Installations 68,920 6,171 (410) 6,078 381 81,140
Machinery 574,297 74,012 (47,649) 21,545 407 622,612
Data processing equipment 57,547 6,702 (1,484) 1,033 (447) 63,351
Vehicles 14,153 1,016 (644) - (1,485) 13,040
Other installations, tools, and
furniture 285,959 17,876 (6,436) 3,692 (2,881) 298,210
Assets in progress 16,377 34,523 (1,450) (35,721) 712 14,441
1,313,168 163,059 {60,782) - (32,703) 1,382,742
Depreciation
Buildings (80,233) (17,473) 1,107 - 2,313 (94,286)
Installations (49,472) (9,130) 337 (773) (1,060) (60,098)
Machinery (415,804) (84,237) 36,673 (12) (2,074) (465,454)
Data processing equipment (49,055) (6,189) 1,001 - 305 (53,938)
Vehicles (8,835) (1,892) 433 - 937 (9,357)
Other installations, tools, and
furniture (204,086) (27,308) 4,823 785 1,178 (224,608)
(807,485) (146,229) 44,374 - 1,599 (907,741)
Impairment losses (4,098) (9,935) 3,265 , (4) {10,772)
Net carrying amount 501,585 6,895 {13,143) - (31,108) 464,229

The column Additions in 2017 includes the effect of the business combinations (Note 4), which has
amounted to a gross value of 41,945 thousand euros (40,245 thousand euros in 2016) and accumulated
depreciation of 20,435 thousand euros (20,560 thousand euros in 2016).

35



Additions in 2017 also included investments in assets in Spain (35,859 thousand euros), Colombia
(16,577 thousand euros), Argentina (13,021 thousand euros), Mexico (16,863 thousand euros), Peru
(5,618 thousand euros) and Panama (17,785 thousand euros), mainly to renovate some already-
installed halls, and additions of property, plant and equipment under construction amounting to 24,508
thousand euros as a result of the renovation and expansion of casinos, mainly in Latin American
countries. It should be noted that most of the additions in said caption of property, plant and equipment
under construction in 2017 were recognized according to their nature, since most of the halls under
construction were already put to use.

Additionally, additions in 2016 also included investments in assets in Spain (27,051 thousand euros),
Colombia (14,570 thousand euros), Argentina (18,968 thousand euros), Mexico (9,010 thousand euros),
Peru (2,728 thousand euros) and Panama (7,382 thousand euros), mainly to renovate some already-
installed halls, and additions of property, plant and equipment under construction amounting to 34,523
thousand euros as a result of the renovation and expansion of casinos, mainly in Latin American
countries. It should be noted that most of the additions in the said caption of property, plant and
equipment under construction in 2016 were recognized according to their nature, for the same purpose
as at 2017 year end.

Disposals in 2017 and 2016 show sales of assets and other disposals, mainly due to the substitution of
slot machines, which represented a loss of 3,044 thousand euros in 2017 (a loss of 4,252 thousand
euros in 2018).

7.2 Work performed by the Group for property, plant and equipment

The cost value of the slot machines manufactured by Group companies and sold to slot machine
operators of the Cirsa Group, are recognized as property, plant and equipment by crediting the
corresponding expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The amount of work
performed by the Group for property, plant and equipment in 2017 and 2016 amounted to 50,365 and
41,813 thousand euros, respectively.

7.3 Assets subject to guarantees

Several property, plant and equipment items, whose net value as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was
9,509 thousand and 11,442 thousand euros, respectively, were used as guarantee for mortgage loan
debts.

7.4 Assets subject to charges and limitations

All assets are unrestricted, except for assets subject to guarantees indicated in Note 7.3 and those
acquired through financial lease contracts, whose net book value amounted to 6,551 thousand euros at
December 31, 2017 (9,149 thousand euros at December 31, 20186).

7.5 Property, plant and equipment located abroad

The net value of property, plant and equipment located abroad was 296,946 thousand euros at
December 31, 2017 (2016: 337,971 thousand euros).

7.6 Investment commitments

At December 31, 2017 firm investment commitments amount to 4,985 thousand euros (4,046 thousand
euros at December 31, 2016).
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8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

This caption includes the following investments:

2017
Carrying

amount of the Operating Profit/{loss)
{Thousands of euros) investment Assets Liabilities revenue for the year
AOG, SR.L. 21,498 20,389 (8,944) 82,791 2,000
Binbaires, S.A. 12,919 11,550 (5,644) 40,028 6,910
Montecarlo Andalucia, S.L. 4,764 2,285 (464) 22,805 1,611
Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. and 10,410 39,616 (16,515) 376,648 2,329

Subsidiaries
Other and write-offs 8,229 24,645 (18,477) 49,475 (468)
57,820
2016
Carrying

amount of the Operating Profit/(loss)
{Thousands of euros) investment Assets Liabitities revenue for the year
AOG, SR.L. 25,068 59,679 (9,543) 86,087 1,775
Binbaires, S.A. 11,043 38,731 (5,570) 32,151 5,405
Montecarlo Andalucia, S.L. 3,974 8,222 (274) 22,582 1,492
Sportium Apuestas Deportivas, S.A. and 8,934 32,543 (14,675) 30,580 1,851

subsidiaries
Competiciones Deportivas, S.L. 1,657 3,440 (127) - -
Other and write-offs 5,821 25,733 (18,219) 93,929 501
56,497

Associates consolidated using the equity method had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments at
December 31, 2016 and 2017.

The variation for the year of the caption “Investments in associates” is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Balance at January 1 56,497 75,717
Share in profit (loss) for the year and write offs 1,619 (3,867)
Other changes (296) (15,353)
Balance at December 31 57,820 56,497

In 2017 impairment losses (write-downs) amount to 4,300 thousand euros, as indicated in Note 10.
“‘Oher changes” in 2016 included the derecognition deriving from the business combinations of the year,
the sale of companies, exchange differences and dividends received from companies consolidated using
the equity method.

Transactions in 2017 and 2016 between the companies mentioned above and other companies
consolidated using the full and/or proportional consolidation methods are irrelevant.
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9. FINANCIAL ASSETS

This caption is composed by the following balances:

2017 2016

Non- Non-
{Thousands of euros) current Current Total current Current Total
Loans and receivables
Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. 74,809 - 74,809 71,863 - 71,863
Loans to jointly-controlled companies

and associates 2,435 7,561 9,996 3,260 6,120 9,380

Loans to third parties 26,193 - 26,193 28,073 - 28,073
Deposits and guarantees 8,347 44,688 53,035 8,026 42,432 50,458
Fixed-income securities and deposits - 14,413 14,413 - 22,941 22,941
Trade and other receivables - 214,404 214,404 - 220,081 220,081
Other 2,042 7,204 9,246 2,477 5,309 7,786

113,826 288,270 402,096 113,699 296,883 410,582
Impairment losses (601) (39,062) (39,663) (652) (39,107) (39,759)

113,225 249,208 362,433 113,047 257,776 370,823

The Group estimates that fair values of these assets do not differ significantly from the recorded
amounts.

The accumulated balance of impairment losses on non-current financial assets mainly corresponds to
loans to third parties, while impairment losses on current financial assets mainly corresponds to trade
and other receivables (36,272 and 38,021 thousand euros at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively). The remainder of the balance amounting to 2,790 thousand euros corresponds to
impairment losses on current financial investments.

9.1 l.oans and receivables

Nortia Business Corporation, S.L.

The non-current debtor balance of Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. includes the following entries:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Loan maturing in 2021, at 5.75% interest rate 31,381 31,381
Long-term promissory notes from the sale of assets, discounted at 5% interest rate 2,558 2,308
Accrued interests 40,870 38,174
74,809 71,863

At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the carrying amount of this loan was similar to its fair value.

Credits to jointly-controlled companies and associates

This caption is broken down as follows (*):

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Current accounts with jointly-controlled companies and associates 9,386 8,216

Other 610 1,164
9,996 9,380

(*) Receivable balances from jointly-controlled companies shown above are the remaining balances after the eliminations derived
from the consolidation process.



The maturity date of these assets is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Within one year 7,561 6,120
Between one and two years 608 815
Between two and three years 609 815
Between three and four years 609 815
Between four and five years 609 815

9,996 9,380

The average interest rate of these assets in 2017 and 2016 was 5.82%

Loans to third parties

The breakdown of non-current loans to third parties is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Mortgage loan in US dollars to a company that owns a hotel in Dominican Republic where a

casino operated by the Group is located. It earns an annual interest of 7.25% 249 546
Receivable accounts from the industrial division 2,446 2,133

Deferred collection for the sale of a non-controlling interest in an ltalian company of the

operational division 972 1,561

Deferred collection for the sale of a non-controlling interest in a Spanish company of the

operational division 2,690 3,490

Current accounts with third parties for Group purposes, at a floating interest rate of Euribor

plus 1% with a minimum of 2% 9,198 8,651

Other 10,638 11,692
26,193 28,073

The breakdown of maturity dates for non-current loans to third parties is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Between one and two years 10,774 11,580
Between two and three years 4,416 2,676
Between three and four years 1,594 3,637
Between four and five years - 1,529
More than five years 211 -
Indefinite 9,198 8,651
26,193 28,073

The balances with indefinite maturity relate to current accounts with third parties and accrue a floating
interest rate (Euribor plus 1% with a minimum of 2%). The current accounts are recorded as non-current
financial assets since the Directors of the Company consider that they will be collected in more than 12
months, and they have powers of decision in this regard.
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Trade and other receivables

This caption is broken down as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Trade receivables 61,164 53,203
Impairment losses (36,272) (38,021)
Other related parties 618 648
Receivables from Public administrations 26,186 28,600
Other receivables 126,436 137,631
178,132 182,061

Receivables from Public administrations mainly correspond to payments on account of income tax, VAT
and other tax receivables.

The balance of Trade and other receivables is shown net of impairment loss. The movements in the
impairment loss allowance are as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Balance at January 1 39,106 33,613
Net charge for the year 2,703 5,232
Utilized (3,512) (4,406)
Additions of companies 765 4,667
Balance at December 31 39,062 39,106

The Group has established credit periods between 90 and 150 days, while the average collection period
is approximately of 120 days at December 31, 2017 (120 days at December 31, 2016).

10. IMPAIRMENT TEST
101 Goodwill

Cash-generating units

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have
been attributed to cash-generating units for impairment test. The breakdown of cash-generating units is
as follows:

» Industrial companies, as a whole

o Each regional branch of slot machines
Each group of bingos jointly acquired
Each casino managed individually
Each differentiated interactive activity

Key assumptions

e Budgeted gross margins - to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins, the
average gross margin achieved in the year immediately preceding the year budgeted is used,
increased by the expected efficiency improvements. The period used in these projections is 5 years.
From the fifth year the figures are extrapolated using a growth rate similar to expected inflation.

e Increase in costs - to determine the value assigned to the increase in prices, the price index

expected during the year for each country where the Group operates is used. The values assigned
to key assumptions are consistent with respect to external sources of information.
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» The discount rate applied to projected cash flows is determined by the specific risk of each cash-
generating unit, taking into account the type of activity and country where it is located. The following
chart shows the discount rates used based on business and geographic area for the CGUs with
significant goodwill associated to them.

Discount rate
Country Activity (before tax)

Spain Gaming 9.80%-11.37%

Spain Industrial 9.80%-11.37%
Spain Interactive 9.80%-11.37%
ltaly Gaming 9.98%-11.20%
Peru Gaming 9.53%-13.33%
Colombia Gaming 12.69%-14.69%
Mexico Gaming 13.21%-15.21%

Test results

Based on the tests performed, impairment adjustments on goodwill were recorded in 2017 for an amount
of 5,781 thousand euros, mainly due to more prudent estimates of future cash flows in Cirsagest, S.p.a.,
with an estimated impact of 5,000 thousand euros, as well as a lesser impact in the estimates of the
cash flows from a bingo hall, Tefle, S.A. Additionally, an impairment loss has been recorded on the
investment in the company AOG (an associated consolidated using the equity method) for an amount of
4,300 thousand euros.

In 2016 impairment adjustments to goodwill were recorded for an amount of 9,013 thousand euros
basically due to the reduction in the estimates of future cash flows for the casinos in Lima (Peru)
amounting to 6,563 thousand euros, as well as due to a lesser impact on the estimates of future cash
flows in Cirsagest, S.p.a. for an amount of 2,450 thousand euros.

The breakdown of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs for which, during 2017 and 2016, an
impairment loss on related goodwill has been recognized is as follows:

N

01

~J

|

(Thousands of euros) Impairment loss

Recoverable

amount of the On other
CGU CGU On goodwill assets
Tefle, S.A. - 781 502
Cirsagest, S.P.A. 21,874 5,000 -
Impairment loss recognized 5,781 502

N

016

(Thousands of euros)

Recoverable

Impairment loss

amount of the On other
CGU CGU On goodwill assets
Gaming & Services S.A. - 6,563 6,825
Cirsagest, S.P.A. 24,250 2,450 -
Impairment loss recognized 9,013 6,825
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10.2  Other assets

Impairment indicators used by the Group to determine the need of an impairment test on other non-
current assets, amongst others, are as follows:

Significant drop of the result over the same period in the prior year, and/or over the budget.
Legislative changes in progress or planned, which could lead to negative effects.

Change of strategy or internal expectations regarding a particular business or country.
Position of competitors and their launches of new products.

Slowdown of income or difficulties in selling at expected prices.

Change in habits and attitudes of users, and other elements specific to each division.

As indicated in Note 10.1, during the year impairment losses amounting to 502 thousand euros have
been recorded (impairment fully corresponds to property, plant and equipment of Tefle, S.A)), as well as
628 thousand euros in another Spanish bingo hall. During 2016, as a result of the tests performed,
impairment losses were recognized amounting to 6,825 thousand euros (fully corresponding to the
casinos in Lima).

1. INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Jointly controlled companies have been accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. However, the Argentinean joint operations (temporary joint venture CBA-CIESA and
temporary joint venture CBA-Magic Star), have been accounted for in accordance with Note 2.5.

The information on these companies is detailed in Appendix.

Other relevant information related to the joint operations is detailed in the following table:

Data affected by % of
ownership interest

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Non-current assets 7,360 9,578
Current assets 151,291 174,862
Non-current liabilities (19,760) (25,441)
Current liabilities (14,771) (15,066)
Operating revenues 127,174 110,205
Expenses (108,016) (108,041)
Net profit for the year 19,158 2,164

Additionally, at December 31, 2017 the overall amount of assets, operating revenues and profit after tax
of the jointly controlled companies amount to 192,390, 192,557 and 18,363 thousand euros, respectively
(174,160, 183,447 and 15,528 thousand euros, respectively, at December 31, 2016).
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12. INVENTORIES

The breakdown of inventories by category, net of impairment, is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 20186
Raw and auxiliary materials 3,888 3,648
Spare parts and other 7,746 6,478
Finished products 689 232
Work in progress 3,353 3,010
Prepayments to suppliers 2,077 1,951
17,753 15,319

Inventories correspond mainly to the manufacture and trade of slot machines carried out by Group
companies.

The balance of inventories is shown net of impairment loss. Movements in the impairment loss allowance
are as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 20186
Balance at January 1 1,164 1,141
Net charge for the year 747 472
Write-off (766) (449)
Balance at December 31 1,145 1,164

The write-off in 2017 and 2016 corresponds to the destruction of several inventories from the industrial
division.

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For consolidated cash-flow statement purposes, cash and cash equivalents include the following items:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Cash 15,000 13,722
Current accounts 164,043 154,846
Deposits under 3 months 2,176 5,489
181,219 174,057

These assets are unrestricted and earn market interest rates.
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14. EQUITY
141  Share capital

At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Company’s share capital consisted of 122,887,121 shares with a
par value of 0.20 euros each. All shares bear the same political and economic rights.

The breakdown of the Company’s shareholders and their equity interest at December 31 is as follows:

2017 2016
Nortia Business Corporation, S.L., company beionging to Mr. Manuel Lao Herndndez and his
family 52.43% 52.43%
Mr. Manuel Lao Herndndez 46.65% 46.65%
Treasury shares 0.92% 0.92%
100.00% 100.00%

Part of the Company’s shares (26.04% at December 31, 2017 and 2016) and shares of several
subsidiaries are pledged in favor of Institut Catala de Finances as a guarantee for a loan granted to
Nortia Business Corporation S.L., main shareholder of the Company.

14.2  Treasury shares

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Parent Company has 1,131,421 treasury shares at an average
cost of 0.1626 each, which are shown reducing the Group's net equity.

14.3 Retained earnings

The balance of this caption includes reserves of the Parent Company, which are non-distributable.

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, Spanish companies obtaining profit will
assign 10% of profit to the legal reserve, until its balance is equivalent to at least 20% of share capital.
As long as it does not exceed this limit, the legal reserve can only be used to offset losses if no other
reserves are available. This reserve can also be used to increase capital by the amount exceeding 10%
of the new capital after the increase.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Parent Company’s legal reserve amounted to 4,915 thousand
euros.

Additionally, the Group Spanish subsidiaries have provided the legal reserves at the amount required
by the prevailing legislation.

Treasury shares reserve

As indicated in Note 14.2 above, the Parent Company acquired treasury shares. In accordance with
prevailing mercantile legislation, the Group has provided the corresponding non-distributable reserve by
the amount of treasury shares, maintained until sold or amortized.
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14.4  Non-controlling interests

The balances related to non-controlling interests are as follows:

Balance in statement of

financial position Share in profit
(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Division
Casinos 145,004 155,602 20,762 19,954
Slots 78,020 82,747 2,092 (1,974)
B2B 3,096 2,801 296 238
Bingos 10,559 9,804 2,535 2,056
236,679 250,954 25,685 20,274

The inter-annual variation of balances in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Balance at January 1 250,954 246,852
Share in profit for the year 25,685 20,274
Translation differences (8,340) (1,823)

Additions for acquisition / creation of companies, changes in consolidation methods or
changes in the % of ownership in companies consolidated under the full consolidation

method (Note 4.1) 1,117 16,722
Dividends paid (32,737) (31,071)
Balance at December 31 236,679 250,954

15. BONDS

At December 31, 2014 this caption basically referred to the issue of bonds by a group company located
in Luxembourg carried out in 2010 and subsequent extensions thereto amounting to a nominal of 900
million euros. These bonds were listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, accruing an annual interest
of 8.75% paid every six months, and maturing in 2018. Additionally, in April 2015 the same company
domiciled in Luxembourg made an issue for an overall amount of 500 million euros below par, at a
99.211% price. These bonds, which accrue an annual interest of 5.878% paid every six months and
mature in 2023, were partially used for early redemption of a portion of the bonds commented above for
a par value of 450 million euros.

Notwithstanding the abovementioned, in April 2016, the same company domiciled in Luxembourg made
an issue for an overall amount of 450 million euros below par, at a 99.456%. These bonds, which accrue
an annual interest of 5.75% paid every six months and mature in 2021, were used for early redemption
of the remaining bonds mentioned in the first paragraph above for a par value of 450 million euros.

Consequently, at December 31, 2017 the Group has issued bonds for a par value of 450 million euros
maturing in 2021 and bonds for a par value of 500 million euros maturing in 2023.

Contracts subscribed in relation to the bonds issued by the subsidiaries in Luxembourg regulate certain
obligations and commitments by the Group, which include, among others, the supply of periodic
information, the maintenance of titles of ownership in subsidiaries, the restriction on disposal of
significant assets, the compliance with certain debt ratios, the limitation on payment of dividends, the
limitation on starting-up new businesses, and the restriction on the Group granting guarantees and
endorsements to third parties. The Parent Company’s Directors consider that all contractual obligations
have been met. The shares of several Group companies have been assigned as security for these
liabilities.
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At December 31, 2017 the quoted price of the bonds recognized in the liabilities side of the balance
sheet maturing in 2021 was 103.78% of their par value (106.25% at 2016 year end) and 104% of their
par value for the bonds maturing in 2023 (105.96% in 2016).

16. BANK BORROWINGS

The breakdown of bank borrowings at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017 2016
Non- Non-
{Thousands of euros) current Current Total current Current Total
Mortgage and pledge loans 12,271 2,337 14,608 14,716 7,817 22,533
Other loans 21,454 50,372 71,826 55,484 24172 79,656
Financial lease agreements (Note
20.2) 2,202 3,854 6,056 4,175 4,839 9,014
Credit and discount lines 2,000 12,707 14,707 4,000 12,500 16,500
37,927 69,270 107,197 78,375 49,328 127,703

Average interest rates accrued by these borrowings are as follows:

%

2017 2016
Loans 2.73% 3.90%
Financial lease agreements 7.39% 7.11%
Credit and discount lines 2.23% 2.66%
The annual maturity date of these liabilities is as follows:
(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Within one year 69,270 49 328
Between one and two years 17,238 51,383
Between two and three years 9,704 13,240
Between three and four years 5,648 6,113
Between four and five years 3,076 3,179
More than five years 2,261 4,460
107,197 127,703

At December 31, 2017 part of these liabilities, equal to 5,947 thousand euros is denominated in U.S.
dollars (11,035 thousand euros at December 31, 2016).

At December 31, 2017, the shares of several subsidiaries were pledged in favor of Deutsche Bank
London AG as a security for the credit line, whose utilization limit amounted to 75 million euros (75 million
euros at December 31, 2016). At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Group has not drawn down any
balance of this credit line.

At December 31, 2017 the undrawn amount of credit and discount lines is 11,135 and 3,601 thousand
euros, respectively, without considering the credit line commented in the paragraph above. These figures
amounted to 18,086 and 1,721 thousand euros, respectively, at 2016 year end.

Finally, at December 31, 2017 and 2016 the guarantees given by credit institutions and insurance

companies to the Group, in connection with official gaming concessions and licenses were 124,453 and
121,451 thousand euros, respectively.
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17.

OTHER CREDITORS

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

2017 2016
Non- Non-
(Thousands of euros) current Current Total current Current Total
Public administrations 25,353 87,945 113,298 38,284 89,256 127,540
Bills payable 730 3,744 4,474 272 2,928 3,200
Sundry creditors 37,487 117,237 154,724 30,157 96,616 126,773
63,570 208,926 272,496 68,713 188,800 257,513

At 2017 and 2016 year end the non-current portion of liabilities with Public administrations referred
mainly to the effect of the voluntary adherence to the payment standstilf in relation to the tax on gross
revenues in the Argentinean companies CBA and CBA-CIESA UTE (Note 23). The current portion
corresponds to gaming taxes with a short-term maturity (2017: 40,568 thousand euros, 2016: 39,036
thousand euros), personal income tax, VAT, social security contributions and similar concepts pending
to be filed.

Bills payable correspond mainly to debts arising from the acquisition of companies and operations of
slot machines with deferred payment, discounted at market interest rate.

The caption Non-current sundry creditors mainly includes:

Asset suppliers amounting to 6,994 thousand euros (5,754 thousand euros at prior year end).
Non-current payable amount related to certain investments in Panama. At December 2017 the
company paid the last installment of the debt incurred in January 2014 and that matured on that
date, although there is a payable balance related to an investment agreement amounting to 6,075
thousand euros. The debt derived from this investment will be settied through 239 equal monthly
instalments of 71 thousand dollars, including interest, the first payment being in February 2018 until
February 2038.

At December 31, 2017 the payable amount classified as non-current amounts to 5,669 thousand
euros.

Several payables for ordinary transactions amounting to 12,763 thousand euros, with an
undetermined maturity (12,674 thousand euros at prior year end).

Non-current payable amount related to the acquisition of companies in Peru and Spain at year end
amounting to 7,530 thousand euros and 1,841 thousand euros, respectively.

The caption Current sundry creditors mainly includes:

Asset suppliers amounting to 30,063 thousand euros (28,670 thousand euros at prior year end).
Payables for the rendering of services amounting to 22,982 thousand euros (21,443 thousand euros
at December 31, 2016).

Current borrowings amounting to 18,076 thousand euros (4,048 thousand euros at prior year end),
notably including the payable portion in 2018 for the investments in Peru and Spain mentioned
above.

Employee benefits payable amounting to 33,280 thousand euros (2016: 33,377 thousand euros)
(Note 21.1).
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18. PROVISIONS

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Obligations in relation to employees 11,041 9,172
Tax contingencies 4,208 10,111
Other 3,147 3,748
Balance at December 31 18,396 23,031

The amount recognized in Obligations in relation to employees mainly consists of probable
contingencies with the personnel in ltaly, the bonus plan for the Group's executives, and retirement
incentives.

The amount recognized at December 31, 2017 as "Tax contingencies” mainly relates to certain liabilities
in Mexico amounting to 2,904 thousand euros (2016: 3,155 and 5,921 thousand euros in Mexico and
Panama at prior year end).

At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the amount shown under the caption Others mainly consisted of
provisions for several risks, fines and labor trials that are individually irrelevant.

The inter-annual variation of the balance is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Balance at January 1 23,031 28,842
Net charge for the year 9,694 6,439
Provisions utilized (13,022) (5,353)
Reclassifications to short term - (6,897)
Additions due to sale of companies 30 -
Exchange gains (losses) (1,337) -
Balance at December 31 18,396 23,031
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19. TAXES

19.1  Tax Group

The Parent Company, together with 72 Spanish group companies, which comply with tax legislation
requirements, files tax returns on a consolidated basis. Additionally, there is another Spanish
consolidated tax group in Spain, comprising 7 companies, of which the subsidiary Orlando Play, S.A. is
the parent.

The other Group companies file income tax returns separately in accordance with applicable tax
legislation.
19.2  Accrued and payable income tax

The income tax expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is broken down as
follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Current 57,124 36,528
Deferred for (increase) decrease in tax loss carryforwards capitalized and tax credits 215 10,154
Deferred for temporary differences 4,194 7,470
Adjustment in the Mexican income tax for the prior year - 295
Other 318 (2,191)
61,851 52,256

The breakdown of current income tax payable is as follows:

{(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Current income tax 57,124 36,528

Withholdings and payments on account (41,815) (22,881)
15,309 13,647

19.3  Analysis of income tax expense

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Profit before tax 158,364 75,794
Tax rate prevailing in Spain 25% 25%
Theoretical income tax expense 39,591 18,949

Adjustments ~ Effect of:

Different tax rates prevailing in other countries 14,178 7,371
Changes in the general tax rate in Spain (Note 19.4) - 12
Countries with no income taxation and/or compensation of tax losses (882) (850)
Impairment losses on assets and goodwill solely for consolidation purposes 2,520 3,960

Cancelled (recognized) prior years' deferred tax assets from the tax group whose parent is
Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A. - 8,973
Utilization of uncapitalized tax credits and deductions in prior years (3,953) (2,080)
Translation differences deductible / taxable for tax purposes - 1,698
Revaluation of previous investments in business combinations - 1,590

Limitation on the deductibility of financial expenses in Spanish companies that will not be
recovered 2,687 6,876
Other non-deductible expenses and other 7,710 5,757
61,851 52,256
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At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the effect of corrections in different tax rates mainly corresponds to the
higher taxes applied in Argentina, Mexico and Colombia.

In 2016 deferred tax assets arisen in prior years in the tax consolidated Group, of which Cirsa Gaming
Corporation, S.A. is the parent, were derecognized or accrued for for an amount below 9 million euros
as a result of the approval of Royal Decree Law 3/2016, which restricted, among others, the utilization
of future taxable profit to 25%, thus mitigating all improvements and increases expected in the future
cash flows of the tax consolidation group.

The impact of assets impairment merely for consolidation purposes basically relates to the prevailing tax
rate applicable to the impairment of goodwill and other assets in Spain amounting to 10 million euros
(15.8 million euros at December 31, 20186).

At December 31, 2017 and 2016 non-deductible expenses mainly consist of financial investment
impairment allowances carried out by subsidiaries in Latin American countries.

19.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Assets
Tax loss carryforwards from the tax group whose parent is Cirsa Gaming Corporation 28,272 29,210
Tax loss carryforwards from the tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A. 606 884
Tax loss carryforwards from other group companies 8,274 15,960
Deductible temporary differences:
--- Impaired receivables 575 818
--- Impaired securities portfolio 2
--- Goodwill impaired in individual books 737 980
--- Intragroup margin write-off 5,189 5,759
--- Non-accounting impairment for tax purposes 4,131 6,970
--- Non-deductible amortization for accounting purposes 1,206 1,967
--- Other 7,548 13,238
56,540 75,788
Liabilities
Taxable temporary differences:
--- Provision for maximum gaming prizes (7,803) (8,878)
--- Difference between tax depreciation and accounting depreciation (511) (582)
--- Non-accounting impairment for tax purposes (5,683) (8,461)
--- Margin write-offs (2,297) (2,330)
--- Business combinations (Initial statement of non-current assets at fair value) (96,041) (105,721)
--- Other (8,886) (4,668)

(121,221) (130,640)

The Group estimates the taxable profits which it expects to obtain within the utilization period based on
budgeted projections. It also analyzes the reversal period of taxable temporary differences, identifying
those that reverse in the years in which unused tax loss carryforwards may be used, considering the
application of the Royal Decree-Law mentioned above. Based on this analysis, the Group has recorded
deferred tax assets for unused tax loss carryforwards as well as deductions pending application and
deductible temporary differences for which it is considered probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
generated in the future against which they can be utilized within a reasonable period of time.
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The breakdown of unused tax losses carryforwards at December 31, 2017 for the two tax groups whose
parent companies are, respectively, the Parent Company and the subsidiary Orlando Play, S.A., is as
follows:

{Thousands of euros) Taxable basis
Tax group whose parent is the Parent Tax group whose parent is Orlando
Arising in Company Play, S.A.
1999 410 -
2000 272 -
2001 10,342 -
2002 1,889 -
2003 9,812 -
2004 13,853 -
2005 34,278 -
2006 2,064 937
2007 14,265 396
2008 1,891 372
2009 9,862 1,319
2010 17,349 -
2011 40,181 -
2012 11,656 -
2013 3,430 -
2014 25,886 -
2015 229 1,787
2016 111 908
2017 - -

Tax group whose parent is the Company

At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the said tax group recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 28,272
and 29,210 thousand euros, respectively, relating to unused tax loss carryforwards of the tax group. No
deferred tax assets were recorded for the rest of unused tax losses carryforwards (which at December
31, 2017 amount to 21,173 thousand euros; 23,050 thousand euros at December 31, 2016), since their
future application is uncertain within a reasonable period of time.

In addition to tax loss carryforwards, the tax group whose parent is the Parent Company holds additional
tax credits amounting to 55,463 thousand euros at December 31, 2017 (2016: 55,613 thousand euros),
for unused tax deductions that were not capitalized for not having met the terms to be used.

{Thousands of euros)

Last year for utilization Unused deductions at December 31, 2017
2016 1,876
2017 1,035
2018 3,521
2019 2,677
2020 6,591
2021 865
2022 904
2023 1,290
2024 1,096
2025 503
2026 1,765
2027 771
2028 255
2029 284
2030 268
2031 228
2032 188
2033 192
No time limit for their utilization 31,152
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Tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A.

In 2010 the tax group whose parent is Orlando Play, S.A. was constituted.

At December 31, 2017 the Group had recognized deferred tax assets amounting to 606 thousand euros
(884 thousand euros at prior year end) corresponding to unused tax loss carryforwards.

Additionally, the said tax group has deferred tax assets related to unused tax loss carryforwards and
unused tax credits amounting to 756 and 760 thousand euros, respectively (546 and 734 thousand
euros, respectively, in the prior year) for which the deferred tax assets have not been recognized, since
the requirements established by the applicable framework for financial information are not met.

19.5 Other tax information

Under prevailing tax regulations, tax returns may not be considered final until they have either been
inspected by tax authorities or until the inspection period has expired. At December 31, 2017 Spanish
companies (which mostly file taxes under a consolidated tax group) were open to inspection for all taxes
to which they are liable for the last four years. Note 30 "Events after the balance sheet date” provides
further information on this matter. In general, the prescription periods for countries where the Group has
significant presence are between four and five years after the end of the statutory period for filing tax
returns.

20. LEASES

20.1  Operating leases

The Group has leases on several buildings for an average term between three and five years, with no
renewal clauses.

The future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases at December 31 are as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Within one year 81,354 74,476
Between one and five years 350,565 320,928
More than 5 years 94,312 86,338

526,231 481,742

20.2 Finance leases

The Group has financed several acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (mainly slot machines)
through financial lease agreements. The future minimum payments under financial leases and their
present value are as follows:

2017 2016
Present value Present value
Minimum of payments Minimum of payments
{Thousands of euros) payments {Note 16) payments {Note 16)
Within one year 4,818 3,854 6,048 4,839
Between one and five years 3,457 2,202 6,554 4,175
8,275 6,056 12,602 9,014
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Acquisition of property, plant and equipment through financial lease agreements, not recorded as cash
flows in investing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows, amounted to 3,062 thousand
euros in 2017 and 5,449 thousand euros in 2016.

21. INCOME AND EXPENSES

211 Personnel

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Wages and salaries 235,762 219,013
Social security 57,518 53,025
Indemnities 5,699 5,721
Other personnel expenses 13,668 13,251
312,647 291,010

Remunerations pending payment at year end of 2017 and 2016 (33,280 and 33,377 thousand euros,
respectively) are recognized in the caption Other creditors (Note 17).

The breakdown of the average headcount by professional category and gender is as follows:

2017
Average number
of employees
with a disability greater
than 33%
over total headcount

Men Women Total in the year
Executives 397 113 510 2
Technicians, production and sales staff 6,941 6,041 12,982 33
Administrative personnel 1,166 1,003 2,169 16
8,504 7,157 15,661 51

2016
Average number
of employees
with a disability greater
than 33%
over total headcount

Men Women Total in the year
Executives 373 138 511 2
Technicians, production and sales staff 7,092 5,395 12,487 58
Administrative personnel 932 755 1,687 23
8,397 6,288 14,685 83

The headcount at December 31, 2017 and 2016 by category and gender does not significantly differ
from the breakdown shown in the table above regarding the average headcount for those years.
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21.2  Supplies and external services

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Rent and royalties 87,443 83,397
Advertising, promotion and public relations 47,400 45,912
Professional services 26,328 22,937
Sundry services 18,482 19,053
Supplies 32,462 29,371
Travel expenses 11,872 12,801
Repair and maintenance 23,932 22,991
Security 10,744 9,227
Postal services, communications and telephone 10,474 10,507
Insurance premiums 5,805 5,747
Cleaning services 8,377 7,957
Bank services and similar 9,725 8,006
Transportation 3,100 3,089
Research and development expenses (Note 6.2) 41 103
296,185 281,078

21.3 Exchange gains/(losses)

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Gains 42,298 19,127

Losses (40,617) (20,656)
1,681 (1,529)

Net exchange gains/(losses) from translation of financial balances in foreign currency between Group
companies are recognized in Translation differences, as a component that decreases the shareholders’
equity at December 31, 2017 by 8,513 thousand euros (2016: it decreased the shareholders’ equity by
6,793 thousand euros), since they are considered as exchange gains/(losses) arising from monetary
components of a net investment in a foreign business.

22, RELATED PARTIES

The Group conducts several trade and financial transactions with its main shareholder Nortia Business
Corporation, S.L., and its subsidiaries, which are broken down as follows:

(Thousands of euros) 2017 2016

Sale of slot machines 16 75
Revenues from the rendering of services 1,095 1,051
Operating expenses (10,404) (10,316)
Interest income 2,103 3,236
Interest expenses (8) (134)

Transactions with related entities correspond to Group normal trading activity and are carried out at
market prices in a manner similar to transactions with unrelated parties.

Accounts receivable derived from these transactions at year end are described in Note 9.

Accounts payable from trade transactions amount to 791 and 1,108 thousand euros at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively, and are included in Trade Payables.
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23. CONTINGENCIES

Argentina

In October 1999, an Argentinean group company opened a floating casino in waters of Rio de la Plata
on the basis of an official license granted by the Federal Authorities. The Government of the
Autonomous City of Buenos Aires (GCABA) challenged the competence of the Federal Authorities
(“Loteria Nacional, SE”) in gaming matters. In particular, it claimed that gaming activities fell under its
jurisdiction in the City of Buenos Aires, and hence, raised objections against the license granted to the
subsidiary Casino Buenos Aires, S.A. (CBA).

These circumstances ied to a co-participation agreement for gaming matters that was signed between
the Federal Authorities (LNSE) and the Government of the Autonomous City of Buenos Aires.
Conveniently, this agreement was ratified by Decree 1155/2003 of PEN, dated December 1, 2003 (B.O.
02/12/2003) and Law 1,182 of the Legislation of the Government of the Autonomous City of Buenos
Aires, dated November 13, 2003 (BOCBA 01/12/2003). The agreement matured four years after, but it
was renewed since there was a clause that stated that if neither party —the City or the State- notified the
other to the contrary, it would be renewed automatically for four more years.

Despite the abovementioned agreement, the Government of the Autonomous City of Buenos Aires
continued to request CBA to pay the tax on gross revenues from the activity carried out by the Group
since 1999 as operator of an Argentinean floating casino in waters of Rio de la Plata. This fact prompted
CBA to request precautionary measures against the Government of the Autonomous City of Buenos
Aires to stop the latter from conducting any action to collect taxes on gross revenues derived from the
floating casino’s turnover. The last precautionary measures requested by CBA were accepted by the
Federal Authorities in November 2011. The Government of the Autonomous City of Buenos Aires lodged
an appeal against the abovementioned precautionary measures.

Subsequently, on November 1, 2013, the GCABA summoned the blocks of Buenos Aires legisiation to
find a way to start receiving the said tax on gross revenues. On December 4, 2013 the LNSE and the
GCABA signed an addendum to the agreement (hereinafter “the addendum”). Among others, the
addendum established that the CBA would pay a special monthly supplementary charge of 3% (three
per cent) over the income from siot machines and casino card games after certain deductions (rather
than over gross revenues). In accordance with the addendum, the special charge started to accrue as
of January 1, 2014, payable in monthly instalments in the following month, and the payment was subject
to compliance with certain conditions, which most notably include:

- The receipt of the abovementioned charge entailed the extinguishment of the claims or credits
related to the payment of the tax on gross revenues by the GCABA.

- CBA reserves the inalienable and irrevocable right to render ineffective and automatically
interrupt the payment of such special supplementary charge should the GCABA intend to claim
the payment of the tax on gross revenues.

Although the addendum was pending final approval by the National Executive Authority, on December
15, 2014 the Group paid an amount of 23.4 million pesos to the LNSE. Additionally, from January to
April 2015 it paid approximately 8.4 million pesos.

Despite the addendum, on May 22, 2015 the GCBA notified the LNSE of the intention of not extending
the agreement. In light of this, CBA notified the LNSE of the decision to discontinue the payment of the
special charge and compensate the balances paid from January 2014 to April 2015, which was resolved
favorably by the LNSE on July 1, 2015,

On June 2, 2016 Decree 743/16 was enacted, whereby the members designated by the LNSE are
instructed to agree within 120 days on a work schedule, together with the members designated by the
Gaming Institute of Buenos Aires, to enhance the competences assumed in this matter by the City of
Buenos Aires. Consequently, and in accordance with said Decree, the authority responsible for awarding
the concession, LNSE, required CBA-CIESA UTE to pay the tax on gross revenues derived from the
gaming operation at a 12% rate and to adjust the non-expired periods, under written warning of
terminating the concession.
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Considering the new legal framework, on October 21, 2016, within the framework of Law N° 27.260
exceptional regulations, the Committee of CBA-CIESA UTE resolved to voluntarily adhere to a payment
standstill for the periods 2007 to April 2016, owing an amount of 733,184 thousand Argentinean pesos
and compensatory interest on the amount payable of 243,177 thousand Argentinean pesos.

Additionally, CBA Management resolved to voluntarily adhere to a payment standstill for the periods
1999 to 2007, owing an amount of 91,582 thousand Argentinean pesos and compensatory interest on
the amount payable of 68,686 thousand Argentinean pesos.

At the date of adherence the amount payable and compensatory interest must be cancelled in 90
instalments at a monthly interest rate of 1.8%, after paying 15% as a principal advance.

At December 31, 2017, in accordance with the adherence to the payment standstill and the
corresponding debt acknowledgment mentioned above, 2,844 and 25,640 thousand euros have been
recorded as current and non-current liabilittes in the “Other creditors” caption (2,023 and 30,943
thousand euros at December 31, 2016).

With the adherence to this payment standstill all prior obligations related to the tax on gross revenues
are extinguished, and no future claims regarding those periods can be lodged by GCABA and LNSE.

Other
The Group has litigation proceedings, claims and other administrative procedures underway as a result
of the normal course of business in the countries where it carries out its activity. However, the Group

does not expect that any unprovisioned significant liabilities will arise as a result of the above
proceedings.

24, INFORMATION ON ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Given the activities and features of the Group, neither capital expenditures nor expenses took place in
connection with the prevention, reduction or damage repair of environmental matters

25. AUDIT FEES

Fees and expenses referred to the audit of the 2017 financial statements of the Group’s companies
rendered by the main auditors and other firms belonging to the auditor’s international network amounted
to 1,356 thousand euros in 2017 and 1,492 thousand euros in 2016.

In addition, fees and expenses paid during the year corresponding to other services rendered by the

main auditors or other related entities amounted to 65 thousand euros in 2017 and 190 thousand euros
in 2016.
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26. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

The breakdown of the remuneration earned by members of the Company's Board of Directors and senior
executives is as follows:

{Thousands of euros) 2017 2016
Directors
Salaries 1,514 1,164
Senior executives
Salaries 5,500 5,200
7,014 6,364

At December 31, 2017 debit balances in current accounts with the Parent Company’s Directors were
recorded for an overall amount of 1,861 thousand euros. (2016: 1,786 thousand euros). These accounts
accrued an annual interest of 4.25%.

The Group companies have no pension plans, life insurance policies or dismissal indemnities for former
or current members of the Board of Directors and senior executives of the Company.

Pursuant to article 229 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, the Directors have informed the
Company that there are no situations representing a conflict for the Group.

During 2017 directors’ liability insurance premiums for damages arising in the performance of the
directors’ duties have been paid for an amount of 140 thousand euros.

27. OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to credit risk, interest risk, exchange risk and liquidity risk during the normal
development of its activities.

The Group's main financial instruments include bonds, bank loans, credit and discount lines, financing
obtained through the deferral of gaming taxes, financial leases, deferred payments for purchase of
businesses, and cash and current deposits.

The Group's policy establishes that no trading in derivatives (exchange rates insurance) to manage
exchange rate risks arising from certain fund sources in U.S. dollars will be undertaken. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to cover fluctuations in interest rates, either.

271 Creditrisk

Most of the operations carried out by the Group are in cash. For receivables from other activities, the
Group has established a credit policy and risk exposure in collection is managed in the ordinary course
of business. Credit assessments are carried out for all customers who require a limit higher than 60

thousand euros.

Guarantees on loans and the credit risk exposure are shown in Note 9.

27.2 Interest rate risk

External finance is mainly based on the issuance of corporate bonds at fixed interest rate. Bank
borrowings (credit policies, trading discounts, financial lease agreements) as well as deferred payments
with public administrations and other long-term non-trade debts have a variable interest rate that is
reviewed annually. Previous Notes show interest rates of debt instruments.
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The breakdown of liabilities that accrue interests at 2017 and 2016 year end is as follows:

2017 2016
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
{Thousands of euros) interest rate interest rate interest rate interest rate
Bonds 943,151 - 940,044 -
Bank borrowings - 107,196 - 127,702
Other creditors - 80,961 - 71,064
943,151 188,157 940,044 198,766

At December 31, 2017 financial liabilities at a fixed interest rate represented 83% of total liabilities (83%
at 2016 year end). In this regard, the Group's sensitivity to fluctuations in interest rates is low: a variation
of 100 basis points in floating rates would lead to a change in the result amounting to 1,882 thousand
euros in 2017 and 1,988 thousand euros in 2016.

The Group estimates that fair value of the financia! liabilities’ instruments does not differ significantly
from the accounted amounts, except for that indicated in Note 15.

The breakdown of assets that accrue interests at 2017 and 2016 year end is as follows:

2017 2016
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
{Thousands of euros) interest rate interest rate interest rate interest rate
Nortia Business Corporation, S.L. 74,809 - 71,863 -
Loans to jointly-controlled companies and associates 9,386 610 8,216 1,164
Loans to third parties 6,312 19,881 7,730 20,343
Deposits and guarantees 53,035 - 50,458 -
Fixed-income securities and deposits 14,413 - 22,941 -
157,955 20,491 161,208 21,507

The Group estimates that the fair value of the assets’ financial instruments does not differ significantly
from the net book value.

27.3  Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk in businesses located in Latin America, mainly in
Argentina, which affect significantly revenues and expenses, Group results and the value of certain
assets and liabilities in currencies other than the euro. It is also affected to a lesser extent by granted
and received loans. Currencies that basically generate exchange risks are the Argentinean peso and
the US dollar.

In order to reduce risks, the Group conducts policies aimed to keep balanced collection and payments
in cash of assets and liabilities in foreign currency.

The following study on sensitivity shows the foreign currency risk:

. Sensitivity of the profit for the year before tax against fiuctuations of the exchange rate US

dollar/euro
Thousands of euros
Variation 2017 2016
+10% (5,256} (4,545)
+ 5% (2,753) (2,381)
- 5% 3,043 2,632
- 10% 6,423 5,556

58



. Sensitivity of the profit for the year before tax against fluctuations of the exchange rate Argentinean

peso/euro
Thousands of euros
Variation 2017 2016
+10% (4,321) (678)
+ 5% (1,799) (20)
- 5% 4,040 1,504
- 10% 7,447 2,393

These variations correspond basically to the impact on operating magnitudes, and not on financial
figures, since approximately 95% of Group financial liabilities are paid in euros (34% at December 31,
2016).

27.4  Liquidity risk

The exposure to unfavorable situations of debt markets can make difficult or prevent from hedging the
financial needs required for the appropriate development of Group activities.

At December 31, 2017, the Group shows positive working capital (positive working capital in 20186). This
should be read within the context of the Group's activities, which are mostly based on revenues that
generate cash every day, resulting in very high cash flows from operations, as observed in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Additionally, the Group obtains very high EBITDA, as shown in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, which allows it to face debt service without cash
difficulties.

Additionally, to manage liquidity risk, the Group applies different measures:

« Diversification of financing sources through the access to different banking and capital markets.
In this regard, the Group has an additional borrowing capacity (see data in Note 16).

e Credit facilities committed for the sufficient amount and flexibility. Accordingly, the Group has
available cash and cash equivalents amounting to 181 million euros at December 31, 2017
(2016: 174 million euros), to meet unexpected payments.

» The length and repayment schedule for financing through debt is established based on the
financed needs.

In this regard, the Group's liquidity police ensure to meet its payment obligations without requiring the
access to funds in costly terms.

Additionally, it is noteworthy that both at Group and individual business level, the Group performs
projections regularly on the generation and expected cash needs, in order to determine and monitor the
Group's liquidity position.

The relevant information on the maturity dates of financial liabilities based on contractual terms is broken
down in Notes 15, 16 and 17.
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28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The main objectives of the Group's capital management are to ensure financial stability in the short and
long term, appropriate return rates, increased business value and ensure proper and adequate financing
of investments and projects to be conducted in a framework of controlled expansion.

The Group's strategy, both in 2017 and 20186, is to enhance the more profitable business and to act
decisively on the deficit operations, to significantly improve the results and net cash flows. Control of
investments and costs restraint have also been established as a priority action, with satisfactory results.

As stated in Note 15, the contracts entered into in relation to corporate bonds issued include limitations

on the payment of dividends. The Company does not intend to distribute dividends in the short to medium
term given that the Group policy is not to distribute dividends.

29. INFORMATION ON THE AVERAGE PAYMENT PERIOD TO SUPPLIERS. ADDITIONAL
PROVISION THREE “DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT” OF LAW 15/2010, OF JULY 5

The information on the average payment period to suppliers is as follows:

2017 2016
{Days)
Average payment period to suppliers 223 23.3
Ratio of transactions paid 19.8 19.4
Ratio of transactions pending payment 2.5 3.9
(Thousands of euros)
Total payments made 569,534 481,971
Total payments outstanding 43,501 49 523

30. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On March 7, 2018 the Group was notified of the start of general verification and inspection proceedings
regarding the corporate income tax for the years 2013 to 2016 of the 26/94 tax consolidation group and,
on a separate basis, of the companies Cirsa Gaming Corporation, S.A., Cirsa International Gaming
Corporation, S.A., Global Game Machine Corporation, S.A., Juegomatic, S.A., Uniplay, S.L. and
Universal de Desarrollos Electronicos, S.A.

On the same date, the Group was also notified of the start of partial verification and inspection
proceedings regarding the Value Added Tax, of the group of entities included in the regime of entities
for that tax, for the periods comprised between February 2014 and December 2016. Additionally, for
these companies, the Group was also notified of the start of general verification proceedings, for the
periods comprised between February 2014 and December 2016, regarding the following concepts:

- Value Added Tax (for the periods when the companies were not included in the group of

entities)
- Withholdings/prepayments on employee/independent professionals income tax.
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31. ADDITIONAL NOTE FOR ENGLISH TRANSLATION

These consolidated financial statements were originally prepared in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

These financial statements are presented on the basis of the International Financial Reporting Standards
adopted by the European Union which for the purposes of the Group are not different from those issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Consequently, certain accounting practices
applied by the Group might not conform with generally accepted principles in other countries.
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Cirsa Gaming Corporation group
Management Report

Year ended December 31, 2017

Despite the complex economic situation, and the depreciation of some currencies of Latin American
countries (Argentinean pesos) in which the Group carries out a significant part of its activity, the Group's
operating revenues (net of variable rent) have increased by 103,333 thousand euros (+6.4%) during the
twelve months of 2017.

EBITDA amounts to 427,019 thousand euros, compared to 398,269 thousand euros in the prior year,
which represents a 7.2% increase (+28,750 thousand euros) mainly due to the improvement in the way
the Group has managed its business, focusing on achieving profitable growth and consolidating its
already existing business activities. In particular, we highlight the performance of the activities in Latin
America.

In order to maintain the Group’s position of leadership at a domestic level and offer a larger range of
products in traditional sectors and in those related to new technologies, the Group has continued, as in
previous years, to invest significant level of resources in research and development. This year the total
amount allocated for projects carried out by the Group’s Research and Development department
amounted to 3,043 thousand euros.

The Group’s strategy for the future is focused on three objectives:

e to continue to increase EBITDA through cost improvement and management of the mix of
revenues.

e productivity programs applied in all the businesses and countries.

* selectively chosen investments, analyzed and conducted strictly.

On May 28, 2004, the parent Company acquired 2.47% of its shares at an acquisition cost of 31,007
thousand euros. On July 13, 2007, the Company transferred 1.55% of its treasury stock to Nortia
Business Corporation, S.L. as a consideration for the acquisition of a bunch of siot machine operators.
The remaining shares (0.92%) are being held in the treasury stock portfolio.

The Group has not recognized any derivatives or financial instruments in its financial statements that
would be significant for measuring its assets, liabilities, financial situation or results.

On March 7, 2018 the Group was notified of the start of general verification and inspection proceedings
regarding the corporate income tax for the years 2013 to 2016 of the tax consolidation group and several
separate companies. On the same date, the Group was also notified of the start of partial verification
and inspection proceedings regarding the Value Added Tax, of the group of entities included in the
regime of entities for that tax, for the periods comprised between February 2014 and December 2016,
as well as general verification proceedings for the periods comprised between February 2014 and
December 2016, for the following concepts:

- Value Added Tax (for the periods when the companies were not included in the group of
entities).
- Withholdings/prepayments on employee/independent professionals income tax.



The undersigned, whose positions are indicated under their names, hereby CERTIFY on page number
3292170 the accuracy and integrity of the financial statements and management report for the year
ended December 31, 2017 of CIRSA GAMING CORPORATION GROUP, which have been drawn up
on xx two-sided sheets of government-issued stamped paper class 8, N series, sequentially numbered

from 3292129 to 3292169.

Terrassa, March 20, 2018

Manuel Lao Hernandez Manuel Lao Gorina M? Ester Lao Gorina
Chairman Vice-chairman Secretary
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